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HIGHLIGHTS

> Excellent financial » Positive reservations and

performance rental cuticok for 2016/17
> Visible eamings > Development pipefine
growth outlook remains sfrong
> Growth prospects
remain strong
Eomings per ghare'? Dividend per shore
Net assat volue' Tolal occounting retum
Profit betore tax Loan-fo-volve ratic

! The finGincial staterments ore prapared in accordance with internationo) Anancial
Reporting Sfandards (IFRS). These financiol hghiights ore based on the Eyropaan Putiiic
Real Estate Association (EPRA] best practice recommeandations and thee performance
meosures are published as they are intended fo help users in the comparabiiity of these
results across other éshad neal esiate comparmes in Europa. The melrics Qre ako used
intemally 1o measure and Mmonage e business and aign 1o the performonce reiated
conditions for Direciors' Rermuneration.*

2015 and 2016 EPS is bosed on adjusted EPRA earmings

* A fullreconcifiation of the financlal staterments signed under IFRS fo the EPRA
performance measunes is set out in note 2.2 of the financiol stalements,

151  Read more on ow frequently ysed terms: Glossary
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PROVIDING HOMES FOR OVER

49,000

STUDENTS

DELIVERED BY

1450

PASSIONATE
PEOPLE

OPERATING

140

PROPERTIES

WE WORK CLOSELY WITH

60

UNIVERSITIES
ACROSS THE UK

FOCUSING ON

2

UNIVERSITY TOUJNS
AND CiTIES



CELEBRATING
25 YEARS

oo, UE ARE THE LARGEST AND 20
@z‘. MOST EXPERIENCED PROVIDER wmw !

/¢ OF PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT inSheffied
"> ACCOMMODATION IN THE UK. We lounch join

3 Uy ',

1992 1994 1999 200

We open our first property We acquire more propertias in We ore listed on the Alternative We form Europ

in Bristol where we remain Bristol and start specialist property Investrment Market {AIM) specialist stuce
hecd-quartered and now management services invastment fun
have 140 properties, housing Accommodati
49.000 students for the 2016/17

acodemic year

1998 2000

we opsen our first London properties We are floated on London Stock
Exchange to expand info Manchester,
Liverpocl and Portsmouth



4

G4 property —

t venture with GIC

6

&'s largest unfisted

nt accommodation
3, the Unite UK Student
on Fund [USAF)

Unite

Foundation

2009

We are voled one
of 'Britain's Top
Employers' by the
CRF institute

2010

We open G new
London office which
provides a basa for
ourproperty and
development teams

2011

We have grown to house 40,000
shudents in 135 propartias across 24
University towwns and cities every year

we are oworded the Investors in
Pacpie Siver Award

We launch our employee recognition
programme — the Stars Awords

2012

We found and donate £8 milion

fo the Unite Foundation —a charity
to support students without famiy
support, Our first 28 students are
racruited hrough four universities
and receive scholorships made up
of oecommodotion and o living
allowance to support them through
their study years

We raise £90 milion after issving
a refail bond

We kaunch the London Student
Accommodation Vehicle (LSAV)

We scoop the Student
Accommodation Oparator of the
Year cword at Property Week's RESI
owords which celebasle successes
in the residential property secior

2014

we launch our business purpase,
Home for Success

we invest £21 million in improving
lighting ocrass oll of our buikdings
o benefit our students and

the envirofirment

2016

we ore gwarded the Investors in People
Gold Award

We open a sales and marketing office
In Beging

wea donate a further £5 miliion to the
Unite Foundation in the form of USAF units

Ouwr students andd employees raise
£175,000 for Sport Relief

we scoop the Student Accommodation
Operator of the Yedraward ot Property
Week's RES| awards for the third fime

2015

We become the fist Living Wage
Employer in our secior

Tne first four unite foundation
scholars graduate

The Notional Union of Students
awards our students 12 Graen

tmpact Awards for their sustainable
work whila fiving with us

*
1/2 MILLION
STUDENTS
HOUSED

SINCE 1991
e e ——
WE LAUNCHED
OUR INNOVATIVE
TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTION, PRISM
*
WE EXPANDED
OUR BUSINESS,
OPENING AN
OFFICE IN CHINA
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STRONG
FOUNDATIONS

FOR THE FUTURE

More than half a million students have lived
with us during our 25-year history and we
continue to grow. In 2014, we opened five
new properties which means we have the
privilege of housing our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. As the UK’s biggest and
most established provider of purpose built
student accommodation we have leamnt

a huge amount from our students and

the universities with which we work.

It is crifical to our 1,450 employees
that we use our unique experience
to continue to develop the most
supportive student experience,
which delivers for cur current and
future students, our universities and,
of course, for our employees.

Our consistently strong
performance throughout 2016
and visible development pipeline
and operational experlise mean
we are well positioned to deliver
sustainable eamings growth in
the coming years for our investors.

2 For more information
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WHERE WE OPERATE

UE OPERATE ACROSS THE UK IN

24 CITIES, WITH OUR TOP TEN
MARKETS MAKING UP 75% OF OUR
TOTAL BEDS. 47% OF OUR CAPITAL
IS INVESTED IN LONDON.

Our development and forward
funds plpeline

This is our development pipeline until 2019,
Once completa it will biring 4.965 beds to the market.

® © o ©°

|

New openings
in 2016
Gresthom Street, Portsmouth

I (Wholly owned)*

. 836 beds

Cousewayend, Aberdeen
Wholly owned}

399 beds

Far Gosford Siveel, Covantry
Wholty owned)®

284 beds

Stapiston House, London
(LsAY)

B&2 beds

Otymplc Way, tondon

(L3AV)
439 beds

New beds
————

3,082

* Sotdio USAF dunng 2014

‘ Opening
{‘ In 2017
$t Leoncwtds. Edinburgh
© {Wholly owned)
| 581 beds
Millgnnium Way. Coveniry
' (Wholly owned)
. 391 beds
Tara House, Liverpool
[Wholly owned)
. 776 beds
Beech House, Oxforg®
! {USAF) 167 beds
| uiton Court, Ecinburgh®
{USAF) 237 bads

New beds
*

{ 2,152

|
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Top ten properties

by value

1

Mooneaker Foint, London Beds: 4M (Wholly owned)
Moorrakes Point offers 147 shudos and 527 ooms

in ciuster fais. Situatedin Zone 1 and next o the
Tate Modem, Mooriaker Point provides ghome
for King's College, London students.

Opening
in 2018
Newgole Strast, Newcastie

(wholty ovmed)
575 beds

Brunel House, Bristol
{Wholly owned)

| 232 beds

| Chaucer House, Portsmouth

|
|

(Wholty owned)

| 484 beds

St Vincents, Shaffleld
{Wholly owned)
545 bads

Intemaiional Houss, Birmingham

(Wholly owned)
584 beds

| New beds

ﬁ

*

2422

Opening

In 2019

. Skethome, Liverpool

| (Wholly owned)
1LOB5 bheds

‘ Old 8RY, Bristol

i (Wholly ownad)

706 beds

Constitution Sireet,
Aberdesn

| ( Y )
400 beds

New beds
A ————

2,391
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Stupieton Kouse, London
Bods 842 (LSAV)

Great value, high gquaity
student occommodation
next io Holioway Road
tube station, quick links
o all central London
Universties.

Stratiord ONE, London
Beds: 1,001 (Wholly owned)
This 28 floor property is
Unite's fargest in London
with ponoramic views
across London and the
Clympic Park.

The Moo, Leeds

Bads: 1.500 (USAF)
Completed in two phases,
the poperty & corvenient
for both Universihes in
Leeds. it offers amnge

of en-suite rpoms in
thrae- 1o s-bedroom
ficrts and stucios.

Wobum FMoce, London
Bodx 455 (LSAY)
Wobum Place is idealy
located odiocent 1o three
University compuses and is
at the heart of sudent life
m caningl London,

St Pancras Way is ashort
watk from King's Cross and
St Pancros stations. The:
building provides a horme
for 571 UCL studtents,

Angel Lane, London
Bodx: 759

Cpened in September
2015with g ronge of

en suite and studio
aecommodaolion, Angel
Lone k located in Statford
with Westfield shopping
centre and the Olympic
Park on the doorstep.

18

Emilly Bowes Court, London
Bedsx &3 (USAF)

A condemporary room
design, Zone 3 location
and quick fnks intc central
London make thisq

Olympic Way, Landian
Beds: 499 (LSAV]
Opened n Septermber
2016, this property
offers a broad ange
of studio fooms and
providing guick inks
to central Londor.

The Forge, Sheffield

Beds: 1,381

(Wholly owned)
Campus-style fiving within
a city centre ervironment
providing homes

for students ot both
Uriversities in Sheffield,

Top ten cllies in which we operate*

Completed  Ful-time student market
beds numi

Ronk  City bers share
@® oo 10,124 22706 3.5%
(2] Birmingham 4846 57767 84%
© shetted 37 51,095 7.3%
1) Bristol 3479 41286 8.4%
© e 3,458 53,185 6.5%
©  Monchester 2.33% 65,664 3.6%
©® Lepx 229 46245 48%
© rotmoum 2,222 18628 118%
©  ieicester 1487 23,299 5.1%
@  cuogow 1,643 57921 28%
Tolod 35765 nrse 5.0%
Proporion of Unike porioio 5%

* Top ten cities in which wa operate has been ad|usted to reflact the
portfolko changes in February 2017, Aston University on-campus
acquisition (3,067 beds) ond the regionol portfolio disposal (4,175 beds)

i ; % capitalinvested in London

34 Read more; Property review
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OUR PURPOSE
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Home for success

Individually and
coliectively, our 1,450
people are driven by

a commorn purpose:

to provide the students
who live with us g 'Home
for Success'. This means
providing the best home
for all students, helping
them grow and succeed
at University and beyond.

We do so through the
passion of our people,
gregt properties and a
deep-rooled commitment
1o customer service for
both our stfudents and
our University partners.

The best home...

We provide a high quallty and secure fiving
anvironment where young people con develop
academically and socially.

Because we know that while, for most people,
University i ¢ fime of excitement and opportunity,

it can alse be a time of anxiety and stress. Cur
research shows that students who feel weh
infegrated are more resilient and befter equipped
1o navigote the transition to University, wWe therefore
aim 1o provide an ervilonment, which, in every way,
heips them achieve this.

for all shudents...

We understond that ¢ University education is
nowaday: a significant invesiment for young people
and befleve that no-one should miss out dmply
because of thelr pevsondl chcumslances.

we therefore offer o variety ot accommodation

ot different price points, ranging frorm rooms with
shared bathreoms, 1o clusters of ensuite bedrooms
with shared kitchens and living spaces to seif-
contained studic apartments. In addifion. the Unite
Foundation is cumrently providing occommaodation
and o generous living allowance for 134 students
from severely disadvantaged backgrounds ot
Universities across the UK.

helping them grow and succeed...

For marny peophe, University is where the acadermic
foundalions of ther career are loid, But. for every
generation of students, University & more than simply
o stepping stone 1o a job.

It moulds them as individuals and provides a critical
bridge o adulthood, where they can leam the
Interpersonal skills they will need for life. We therafore
qim o create on ervironment that is caring and
supportive but olso ollows our students 1o express
ther natural desine for independence,

at university and beyond...

We belave that where a student ives has a material
impact on their acodemic and social experiance of
University and., ulfimately, ther lives.

Through our people, our buiklings and our focus on
custarner service, we aim to help oyr students make
the transition fiom teenagers fo reslient adutlts,
equipped for everything that lies ahead. We
regulory maasure how well we are meeting therr
needs ond are confinuously looking for ways 1o
impyove our proposifion,



THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014

OUR BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Dellvering our purpose through our business model

Unite Students is the seclor-leading
manager and developer of student
accommodation. with a high quality,
well-located portfolio of appraximately
140 propertias in the UK's strongest
University towns and cities. We have o
customer-focused approach and work
Closely with our University partners to
provide a searniess service to over 49,000
students, providing them with a sofe and
secure home ata wide range of price
points and room sizes, falloring our service
to meet their needs.

Qur focused business model seeks 1o
defiver low double-digit total returms and
sustainable, growing earnings. by
maintaining our competitive advoantage.
growing and maintaining the highest
quality portfolio and being the most
trusted brand in the sector, underpinned
by a strong capital structure.

1u Reod more: Morket review
12 Read more: Relationships

We cperate through fwo main Business Urits:
Operations and Property. Qur Operations
unit is responsible for the portfotio, including
those owned by our co-investment vehicles,
USAF and LSAY. We aim to deliver operating
cashflows and eamings, delivering
sushainable annual growth inrentalincorme:
and profits, increasing the value of

owr investment portfolio through the
strengthening of our brand. Our operating
platform PRISM enhances and improves
our operational capabilities, defivering
improverments lo customer services,
revenue management and demonsirating
the efficiencies of scole.

The Property business unit is responsible
for owr development and asset
management strategy and oversees owr
two co-investment vehicles, We identify
and manage acquisitions, disposals and
the development of operational assets
that enable us to leverage our highly
scalable operating platform,

2% Read more: Principal risks
and uncertainfies

32 Read more: Operations review

Delivering great custormer service and
building strong relationships with our
University partners, the communities in
which we operate, our customers,
suppliers and 1,450 employees is crucial
o our success.

We work strategically with University
leaders. using curknowledge ond
experience to help them with the
regiisofion of their estates and residemces
strategies. We invest in our employees and
support their development, helping them
achieve their personal and professional
potential. We work closety with the local
community, from the earty stoges of
development and planning fo providing
opportunilies for students living with us to
volunteer and bring positive benefits to
the areq in which they live. Overal, we
aim to provide the homes and services
that enable and support our students”
personat and academic achievements.

34 Read more: Propearty review
48 Read more: Anonciol review
44 Read more: Up to us
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In 2014 we welcomed our largest ever number
of students, 49,000. We ore the first home from
home for the majority of our students meaning
that almost one in 10 first year studenis live
with us. We are responsible for more students
than any single University.



DELIVERING
FOR OUR

STUDENTS

PRISM

We launched our innovative
technology sciution, PRISM,
which provides a huge range
of benefits for our students,

wa will be able to process ther
bookings much quickar and book
thern into ther rooms faster when
they arrive lo stay with us. PRISM oko
has the capacity fo speed up how
we can respond to student requests
on maintenance issues.

15 For more informcifion

Ambassador programme
In 2016 we piloted our Student
AMmbassador programme,
which gimed fo idenfify
stucients fiving with us who were
willing and passionote to share
their own first-hand experience
1o heip cur new students
throughout their time with us.

The 12 initial Ambassodaors were
racruited across four ¢ity locations
and actively engoged in helping
new students, porticularty during
the on-boarding experience. The
Ambassadors quickly became
recognised by naw arrivals as the
'go 10’ people o help them to settie
in and the programme will continue
o develop.

Focus on employabliity

As part of our Home for
Success commitment, our
Ermpicoyability initiative identifies
ways in which we can heip
students and their fiends

to be successful in increasing
their employability once they
finish their University studies.

The Student Ambassodor programme
pilcted in 2016 was seen as a potentical
stepping stone fo identifying such
future opportunities, while our online
Student Life Hub was alsa further
developed in 2016 to include
emplayability tips,

Meanwhile, for students who finished
tner University course in 2016, the Unite
Students Internship programme gave
students the space and iools to leamn
more obout our business, while buiding
empiloyable skills. Ten students joined
us as interns in 2014, working in ok parts
of the business.

45 For mone information
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DELIVERING
FOR OUR

UNIVERSITIES

Our long-term agreements with more
than 40 Universities across England and
Scotland guarantee that more than 50%
of our students are allocated rooms In our
bulldings. As student numbers increase
and Universities seek to atiract students,
they look to us to support them by
providing afiractive accommeodation
that fits with their student strategies.

Further sirengthening

our Universily parinerships
Dedicated University
partnership tearn working
colkaboratively with our

40 University partners.,

70%

of 2016 openings ore let 1o
Universities under nominaticn
agreements

58%

of alirooms let through
University agreements

[

] For more information

First move info on-campus
in Bimingham

Aston Student Village

{ASV] acquisition in central
Birmingham comprises
3.067 rooms in our first move
on-cCampus.

E For more information

“1 just think the Unite
product is inspirational.

| think as o brand, they're
ahead of other providers
in that they've kept

the prices not af an
unreasonable level."

Unite Students Reputation Survey,
2016 — an independent survey of
Higher Educaotion institutes

21 For more information
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Invesiors in

People Gold

Unite Students joined the elite
group of UK companies to
achieve the coveted Investors
in Peopie Gold geereditation
in 2016.

Developing our tecms continues o
be a pricrity for us and this occoiade
recognisas that by providing effective
programmes acrass the company.
our teams can deliver excellent
customer service, while offering

a great place 10 Work with

a Clear commitment to

developing employees.

Living Wage

2016

We were proud ta receive the
Living Wage occreditation

Training

We have continued to develop
our comprehensive range of
high quality training courses and
development programmes for
our employees ot all levels. in
total, 4,100 training days were
delivered o help employees
evolve their skills and grow in
fandem with the company.

Cur leadership framework has ako
continued tomature, with 43 delegates
aftending leadership courses
throughout the vear including

the progrommes Becoming o
Supefvisor, Becoming o Manager
and leadership developrment.

4,100

We offered a lotal of 4,100 training
days in 2016

Other related content

15 Chiel ExeCutive’s review

E Opemtions review
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We have 1,450 employees at Unite

Students with the majority working

with our students in 24 towns and

ciies. They are supported by

250 people in our Bristol support

centre. Our property and development 2

team have d central London base. g
g
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RELATIONSHIPS

WE RECOGNISE THAT THE STRENGTH
AND SUCCESS OF OUR RELATIONSHIPS
ACROSS A VARIETY OF STAKEHOLDERS
HELP US TO CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE

FOR THE BUSINESS.

Qur success is founded on delivering great customer service and building strong
retationships with our University pariners, the communities in which we operote,

our customers ond employees.

We are committed to high ethical siandands in the way in which we engage with
our customers, pariners, employeas, sharehoiders, suppliers and other stakeholders.

CQurrepuiation as the most trusted brand in our sector is founded on our achievement

of thess high standards.

THE UNITE GROUF PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACTOUNTS 2014

Investars and stakeholders

We seek to provide balanced, clear
and fransparent communications that
allow our sharehokders to better
undexstand the business ond our
strategy. through a programme of
regular meetings, Capital Mcarkets Days,
results briefings and trading updates
with its institutional sharehotders, equity
analysts and investors. These provide
oppoertunities to discuss the progress

of the bysiness. All presentations given
to institutional shareholders are made
available on our website.

In April 2016, we hosted o Capital
Markets Day which allowed investors
to view gur Coveniry portfolio and
development pipeline and the
opportunity to interact with our
cutting-edge operating platform,
PRISM. In December 2016, a second
Capital Markets Day held in London
includted demonstrations on how
PRISM improves and streamlines
our operations.

Universifies

We aim fo rmaintain the strong
rekationships we have built with our
University partners who trust Unite
Shudents to provide students with a
safe and secure home that supponts
their personal and academic
achievarnenl. In 2015, we have
continued 1o grow the proportion of
beds let through University portnerships,
increasing Ihe percentogs of the
portfolio let under nominations
agreements with Universities, to 58%.

We can boost our recrvitment by offering
assurances to students (and thelr
parents) about quality accommodation.
When we understood Unite wens bullding
next fo Wembley Stadium we tock the
opporiunity to take the whole bullding
for cur shudents of he start of the 201617
academic year. We believe this will heip
our University become part ol ihe
exciting regenerated communlly around
{he stadium, anhancing the experience
for our cumrent and future students.

Jomes Kennedy
Chle! Ainancial Officer,
Mlddlesex University

Students

Unite Students is focused on providing
quatity services to its students, at no
extra cost, to ensure that they have
the best resources and facilities
cavailable. This includes S0MB/s Wi-Fi
access, free forinightly cieaning
services for shared spaces, discounts
with retail partners and all inclusive bills
and insurance, We also offer a number
of career opportunities to help them
develop thelr employability and (ife skills.

We have also continued 1o add to
the My Unite app and our online
plotform, the Student Life Hub which
hasimproved our ability to
communicate in real-time with our
students and engage with them on
relevant, interesting and usefut topics.

Students’ welfare is a care priority for
Unite and there are a number of
initiatives in pkice to help better
understand and address the issues
facing students, conducting extensive
research and working Closely with
University partners to identify and
support struggling students.

The iImpact the Foundation schodarship
hod on my academic abllity and my
lite in general has been Immense. It
provided me with a safe, comforiable
and independant environment-a
space | could ¢call my own. And, most
Importantly, a space which wasn't
going to sprout legs and run away.

Emily Drew
A student and Unite Foundation
gradvate 2014
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People

Qur peopie are at the hear! of aur
business and our engagement with
all of our stakeholders. We recruit,
develop and retain employess in
accordonce with the following key
themes: Resourcing, Reward, Talent
and HR Policies and Procedures,
Diversity and Cultyre.

We are committed o fostering a
diverse and inclusive workforce with

a cutture that is rewarding for all of qur
people and that remains angoging
and challenging. We want to mointain
our cuylture, which delivers high
amployee retention rates and career
development.

The welfare and professional
development of our employeesisa
high priority for us, We have effective
systemns through which con identify
appropriate, high quality training
programmes for our employees 1o
evolve their skills and grow in tandem
with the company.

{ hova worked at Unite Students for
neady 12 yeors. | have leamt and
goined 3¢ much through ny time
hare. ! reclly hos bean o grect
experience. | storted off as a
caretaker in m but | always
had a particulor interest in electrical
work and my mentor af the time,

saw potential In me. With his and the
business’ help | was able go back to
college to complete my basic English
and Numeracy exams ond move on
1o studly to be an Elechician.

Jon Cash
Unite Students Central
Compllance Team

Suppliers

We rely on the strong relationships
that we deveksp wifh aur suppliers
and partners. We aim 1o ensure they
share our conporate commitment

1o providing excellent service o our
customers and widler stakeholkders,
and that they are most suited to our
long-term strategy. By selecting the
right suppliers through a figorous
tender process, we can ensure that
they enabile us to drive efficiencies
and improve margins, rom bath

an operotional and o development
point af view. This enables the
forming of strong, strategic and
mutually beneficiol partnerships with
consistently high standards of quality
and innovation.

Technology is an important resource
for Unite Students and following the
appointment of a suppler, we
conduct ongoing and regular verickor
management octivities through
collaboration between the:
Procurement and I¥ departments. This
process is designed to not only monitor
performance against agreed levels,
but to ensure we continue 10 take a
leading role in indusiry developments.

Forbo Fooring Systems have been
working with Unfte for over fout years
now, and i is a partnership we are
proud to be part of. From working
with the accommodation designers
o ensure we get the right flooring
solutions for the applicolion, to
managing the glant logistics ond stock
control requirements o ehsure projects
nn smoothly, we are pleased jo be part
of the process every step of the way.

Elizabath Bushell
Key Accounts Manager,
Farbo Flooring Systems

Charities and communities

we appreciate the central robe that
we piay in the many communifies we
cceupy across the UK. We work closely
with the local community, from the
early stages of development ond
planning to providing opportunities for
students living with us to volunteer and
bring positive benefits to the areain
which they live.

In 2014, in support of our 2016 charity,
Sport Relief, our students, peaple and
marathon static cycling world record
holder Jamie McDonald cycled
43,000 miles and raised £175,000 on
The World's Biggest 'Virtual' Tandem.
This included a static bike challenge
in 24 cities where we have student
accommodation and the John
O'Groats fo Lands End challenge.

We olso continued our notionol
volunteering prograomme, launched

in 2015, which allows every employee

a paid day to volunteer for g good
cause. We also encourage our sfudents
to volunteer and support kocal and
national chorities. For example through
clothing donations alone we rased
£140.000 for Cancer Research. The Unite
Foundation continues to support young
people from the most challenged
backgrounds achieve a degree.

We are delighted thot Unite Students
took on this amazing chollenge and
roised such a fantastic amount for
Sport Rellef 2014. The money rolsad
will heip give extremaely vuinerabie
and disadvantaged people in the
UK, and across the werid’s poorest
comemuniiies, a helping hand o fum
thelr ives around.

Anne-Cecille Berthiar

Mead of Fundraising & Partnerships,
Comic Rellet which manages Sport
Rellet, our charity for 2014
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

STRONG PERFORMANCE DELIVERED
THROUGH TALENT AND HARD
WORK OF OUR TEAMS

Phil White
Chairman

Govemance highlights

The Govemance Repor! on pages
50 1o 99 (inclusive) provides
details of the Group's approach

to governance and how il supporis
the delivery of our strategy.

The highlights of the year included:

> Succession planning ond talent
development — CEQ transition
during 2016

> Governmance/tisk manaogement
following Leove vote and dynamic
external market

¥ Substantial investment in PRISM

» Preparation for REIT conversion
on 1 January 2017

5@ For more inforrmation

2014 has been a landmark year for Unite
Students for several reasons: celebrating
our 25th year, welcoming our 500.000h
customer and providing homaes for 49,000
students, our largest ever intake in a single
year. We also achieved o Goid
accreditation in the 'Investors in Peopls’
peaple management standard. ptacing
us in the top tier of businesseas.

Performance has again been strong.
with @ fotal accounting return of 15%
and growth in Adjusted EPRA earnings
o £61.3 million, up 24%, Profit before

tax was £201.4 million which ncludes
property revaluations of £1346.3 milion
(2015: £388.4 milion and £324.6 millicn
respectively). As a result of this strong
performance, we are increasing our
dividend pay-out ratio to 75%, a year
ahead of schedule and declaring a final
dividend of 12.0p. This adds up to a total
of 18.0p for the full yaar, an increase of
20% year on yedar.

Unite Students is a service brand and the
strong performance we have delivered
for our customers, University portners and
sharehoiders is only possible because of
e talent and hard work of our leams
across the business. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank therm for
another excellert year.

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AMO ACCOUNTS 2814

. On 31 May, Mark Allan stepped down as

Chief Executive, a rode he held since 2006.
Mark played a key role in the success of
Unite Students and on beholf of the Board
and everyone at Unite, | would fike to
thank him for his service and wish him

well for the future.

Richard Smith has taken over as Chief
Executive, having been the Managing
Direcior of our Operations business for
the last five years, successfully keading
the transformation of our service delivery
and implermentation of our PRISM
operating platform.

A core part of ourrecent success has
been our consistent strategy and we

will continue o focus on its three main
elements; 1o deliver great service to

our students and University portners,

to operate brilfant buildings and fo
maintain high quality eamings ond a
strong capital strocture. As a result of our
continuing progress in these aregs, we
have successfully ransitioned to become
a RE(, effactive from 1 Jonuary 2017, and
we believe this is consistent with our focus
on income and capital discipline.

The outiook for our markat remains
pasitive with structural growth being
supparted by the strength of the world
rencwned UK Higher Education seclor.
increasing participation rates, the
internationalisation of Higher Educatien
and the shortage of housing in the UK,

The impact of Brexit is starting to become
clegrer and we do not expect it to have
a material impact on student numbers.
Cur high quality portfolio. University
rekationships and market-leading
operating platform leave us well placed
to continue performing strongly in the:
years fo come.

Phil White
Chalrmon
22 February 2017
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

MAINTAINED FOCUS TO DELIVER
HOME FOR SUCCESS FOR ALL
STUDENTS WHO LIVE WITH US

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer

Financial highlights

EPRA eamings

£62.7m

Adjusted EFRA samings

£61.3m

Adjusted EPRA EPS

27.7p

EEEI.Am

Basic EPS

101.3p

Dividend per share

18.0p

Tolol accounting retum

15%

Loon-to-value

34%

In my first year as Chief Executive, | am
plecsed to report another sirong set of
results for the year ending 31 December
2016, We have maintained our focus on
delivering sustoinable growih inrecurring
profits and cash flow in the long term,
and delivering a Home for Success to all
of the students who flive with us, We do
this by providing great service and
operating brilliant buildings that students
and Universities choose. We olso ensure
investment discipline to maintain
astrong capital structure and deliver
high-quality earnings.

Performance in 2016 was driven by
another year of strong growth in EPRA
eamings. renial growth and development
profits, combining to deliver o tofal
accounting return of 15%. Adjusted EPRA
eamings (adjusted to excliude the yield
reloted element of the USAF performance
fee) increased by 24% to £61.3 million
and now reprasents one-third of the

fotal shareholder return, As aresult of

the significant growth in earnings ond
the positive outicok for further eamings
growth, we are declaring a finai dividend
of 12.0p {2015; 9.5p}, making a dividend
per share of 18.0p for the full year (2015:
15.0p). an increase of 20% year on year.

We are Continuing 10 focus on growing
earnings in absolute terms and also as a
proportion of our total returmn. This is driven
by our ability to continue growing reniat
tevels on an annual basis. the delivery of
cost efficiencies and frorm the Comgpletion
of our high-quality development pipeline.

Our PRISM opaerating plkatform, which
become fully operational in 2014, provides
us with a unique capability to drive

value from our portfoko through scaie
efficiencies and revenue management,
supporling our angaing income focus.

15

Since the year end, we have completed
two important strategic initiatives with the
acquisition of a 3.100-bed. on-campus
portfolio at Asten University and also

the scle of a regional portiolio, which
together improve our partiolio quality
and locus on the best Universities.

The business completed its planned
conversion fo become aREMon 1 Jonuary
2017. This transition supports our continued
focus on eamings, capiial discipline and
commitment to distribute eomings to
shareholders, As a result of the strong
performance and positive oulloock, we
have accelerated our increased pay-out
ratio 1o 75% of Adjusted EPRA earnings
{exciuding USAF performance fees)

a year ahead of schedule.

Defivering great service to our

students and University pariners
We provide g high-quality ond secure living
environment where young pecpie can
develop acodemicaily and socially and
make the most of their time at University.

For many peopile, Univarsity is where the
foundations of ther career are loid. We
understand that a University education is
a significant invesiment for young pecpie.
and believe that no-one should miss out
simply because of their personal
circumstances. But, for every generation
of stuclents, University is more than simply
a stepping stone fo g job. it mouids them
as Individuals and provides a critical
bridge ta adulthood, whers they can
learn the interparsonal skills they will need
for life. We betieve that where ¢ student
lives has a materialimpact on their
academic and social experience of
University and, ultimately, ther lives. We
therefore aim 10 create an environment
whichis caring and supportive, but also
allows our studants to express their natural
desire for independence.

Wwe recognise thot aoffordability of Higher
Education is an importani consideration
and therefore we offer a variety of
accommodation at different price

paoints o students with the majority of

our accommodation focused ot the
mid-range price point for purpose-built
student accommodgafion. 65% of our
customars are frorm the UK and we
confinue 1o atiroct growing numbers of
second and thind-year students, who now
make up one-third of our cusiomer boase.
We will continue to focus on providing our
custarnars with excellent service and an
experience that they value.

Qur focus on the student experience is
completety aligned to the qims of our
University partners, for whom student
experience is g key measure. With

0
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

CONTINUED

students spending more fime in their
accommodation than on campus, we
can demonstrate to Universities how we
can support therm and their ambitions.
This focus has led to 58% of aur
accommaodation being let Yo Universities
through nominations agreements. With
an average remaining life of six years, our
nominations ggregments provide income
and renial growth certainty on over half
of our revanua. In tum, this provides
protection from any potential changes to
studenrt numbers, and has helped 1o deliver
averoge occupancy of 98% and rental
growth of 3.5% over the last five years.

Students foo, expect more from their
accommaodation and this year, we
maintained customer service satisfaction
levels - a key performance indicator for
us—at high levels, placing us on apar
with some of the best European service
compahies. We Qlso secured excellent
results in cur indepandently assessed
employee effectiveness ond University
trust scores. The delivery of great custorner
service to students and Universities
transiates into our strong financial
performance, delivering occupancy of
98% and rental growth of 3.8% in 2016
(2015: 98%. 3.8%). With our new opemting
systern, PRISM we have also deliverad
further improvements to our NOI rmargin
and overhead efficiency measure.

Our people, University relationships, the
quality of our portfolio, PRISM and the
broader operating platform set us apart
from the other operators in the secter
and will support the ongoing growth

in our portfolio, service levels and
financial performance.

Operating brililant bulldings

Our sirategy is built around the quality,
location and scale of our portiolic. We
aim to operate buildings that are located
in and around the Universities with the
best prospects. We believe that our focus
on high-quality Universifies across the UK
is the best sirategy to ochieve conlinued
high levets of occupancy and rental growth.
We genenate 82% of ourincome from
customers attending high and mid-
ranked Universities, increasing to B6% on
compietion of cur development pipeline.

During 2016, we opened 3,100 new beds.
invested £12 milfion in asset management
and refurtishment progroammes and sold
£114 million of assets {on a see-through
basis). Taking into account these activities
together with valuation movements, the
value of ourinvestment portfolio {including
our share of co-investment vehicles)
increased by 14% to £2.1 billion as at

31 December 2016 andis valued at an

average portolic yield of 5,45% {2015
£1.8 billion and 5.55% yielkd).

We also macte excsllent progress with

our development pipefine during the year.
We compieted five new buidings over the
summer and secured an addifionat four
new development schemas, which
increases our secuned development
pipefne ko 7,000 beds for delivery over

the next three years. Construction of all
our 2017 openings is progressing in line
with plans, pianning consents and buikd
confracts are in place for all of cur 2018

' deliveries and plkanning permission is in

place lor all but one of our 2019 schemes.

We are continuing to see attractive

' development opportunities in strong

University markets and we pkan o invest
selactively in target markets to enhance

i porifoio quality and deliver target

retums. Whilst demand for student
accomrnodation remains strong in
London, the fallin lkand prices over the
kast 12 months has not been sufficient,
when combined with new planning
requirernents for affordable student
housing provision, o enable us o achieve
our target neturns. We will confinue to
monitar the situation for opportunities.

The anticipated yield on cost of our
secured pipeling is 8.4% and prospective
retums on new schemes resnain attractive
at 8,0-8.5%. The secured development
pipeline & highly gccretive and remaing

a significant component of our future
earnings growth and could contribute
12-14 pence per share to EFRA earnings
once built cut,

We continue fo target acguisitions of
completed assets and portfolios that
enhance the quality of our portfolic and
the earnings profile of the business. These
acquisitions are targeted through our
co-investment vehicles due to their lower
cost of capital, allowing us o generate
enhanced retums through our asset
manoagerment and acgquisition fees,

USAF has goquired two assets under
development which will be cpened for
the 2017 academic yeor. These 'forward
fund' assets represent 404 beds, in Oxford
and Edinburgh ond werne purchased for

o combined total of £56 million. Following
the year end, LSAY acquired a £227 milion
portfolio iocated on the Aston University
campus. This exciting development aliows
us to buitd @ strategic relationship with g
high-ranked Liniversity and to levemage our
PRISM operating systern fo deliver strong
financial returns.

Disposols remain an importont part

af our skrategy and we will continue

to recycle assets out of cur portfolio to
ensure that we increqse exposure o the

best Universities in the UK, and ako to
generate capital to invest in further
development aclivity and exciting
opportunities such as the Aston Student
village acquisition. During 2016, we sold
£114 mition of assets {on a see-through
basis) including the sale of two assets fo
USAF. These assets were sokd in line with
book valuafions. We intend fo sell
£150-200 midfion (U nite share) of assets on
a see-through basis during 2017 fo toke
advantage of the ongoing skength in the
investrment morket and fo ensure that we
maintain a strong and fiexible bolance
sheet as we progress our development
pipeine. We have made good progress
afready in 2017, having completed the sale
of 0 4,175-bed regional portfolio in February
for £295 million {Unite sharg £102 milion)

in line with book value.

Maintaining high quafity eamings
and a shrong copfital structure

We hove maintained full occupancy
across our portfolio [Y8%} with rentol
growth of 3.8%. With 58% of this income
underpinned by nominations
agreesments, we have a high level of
vigibility in the ongoing occupancy and
rental growth outiook of the portiolio. In
addition to revenue growth, a focus on
efficiency has resulted in further
improvemants in our NOI margin up to
73.1% {2015: 72.5%), and in our overhead
efficiency revenue which shaws that our
overheads, net of management fees,
now represents 40 basis points of gross
asset value [2015: 48 basis points). We
remain confident about our ability to
make further efficiency gains and to
deliver our targets of 75% and 25-30 basls
points by the end of 2017

Unite's share of net debt grew by £45
rnifion to £774 million in 2016, Our capifal
expenditure programme {Unite share
£144 million) was majority funded by

our disposal programme and retained
eqrnings. We maintained our LTV within
our fanget range in the mid-30% level at
34% (2015: 35%) as development profils
and rental growth outstripped the
increase in net debt. Qur net debt to
EBITDA ratio is 8.5 (2015: 6.9). again within
our fanget level which we intend to maintain.

tnterest rates have remained at low levels
throughout 2016, and we have continued
to take advanloge of these historically
iow rotes both on new debt facilities and
through entering into forward starting
interest rate swaps in respect of future
bomowing requirements of our secured
development pipefine. As aresult of these
activities, our average cost of debt has
fallen to 4.2% from 4.5%. We expect it fo
fall a litte further over the next few years
as forward starting swaps becomes
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effective. At these lavels, the spread fo
ungeared development yields and
investment yields remains significant.

The Group's conversion fo REIT status
reflects the consistency and quality of the
earnings profile and its conservative
financing strategy. The Group will ensure
that the baiance of business, gearing ratios
and dividend pay-out levels remain within
the guicelines set cutwithin the RE regime.

Market and shategy

The outiook for the student accommodation
sacionremains positive, with structural kactors
continuing 1o drive the demand: supply
imbalance in the University markets in which
wi operate. The UK Higher Education sector
is recognised giobally for the strengih ol its
Universities and contribution that it makes to
reseqarch. innovation, talent development
and the UK econosry more broadly. The UK
it the second most populor destination for
intermational students and has 18 out of
the world's top 100 Universities and 47 of
Europe’s fop 200 Universities, We expect
the UK Higher Education sector o
magintain ity global standing and reputation.

The numbex of applicants and the number
of students accepted into courses in 2014
was again ¢t recond levels ot 725,000 and
540,000 respeciivety (2015 710,000 and
530,000), ariven by growth in demand from
both UK and internotional students. Witk
applicants outsiipoing ihe ploces offered
by Universities by 185,000, the sectoris
well placed to withsiand any potential
reductions from UK demographics or the
impact of the UK leaving the EU.

Following the removal of the student
nummber cap in 2015, the Higher Education
sector is facing further change with the
infroduction of the Teaching Excelience
Framework (TEF} In May 2017. Thi will provide
students with greater visibility of the quality
of teaching at Universities and ao allow
Universities to increase fees in line with
inflation i they meet certain criterfa. we
expect tha TEF 1o have o significant impaoact
on the ottractiveness of Universities,
particularly to UK students, and we are
wel! picced to respond to changes
resulting from this new information,

The gop betwean the number of appiicants
and the number of University places could
be reduced by extemal factors, including
the potentiolimpact of the E referendum
on student numbers, Since 2015, a
deamographic frend has sean a reduction
in the numiber of 18-21 year olds, affecting
the next four years. Early appfications dota
in January 2017 shows a 5% reguction in
applicants for the 2017/18 academic yeor,
However, we expect that the 185,000
surplus of applicants over places and the

ramoval of the cap means the number of
students accepled onto courses will not
e matedally impacted, and we expect
the high and mid-fanked Universities to
racrult more students than those ot the
lower end of the league tables.

The qualities of the student acoommaodation
sector have atiracted significant levels of
capitalinvesiment aver the: last three years
with over £11 bilfion of investment aclivity. This
increased investrment activity has aiso seen
the level of new supply iIncrease ond the
1olal numiber of pupose-bullt beds to
increase to 250,000 beds {14% of the UK's
student popuiation]. The outiook for new
supply suggests that the ate of new supply
will continua at a similar rate of around
20,000-25,000 over the next two yeqrs.
Howenver, a significant proportion of the new
beds are focused on the upper erd of
the price range which willhave a minirnal
impact on our fype of accommeodation.

Furthermore, our exposure o changes

in student numbers is mitigated by our
high quality University relationships and
nominations ggreements and therafore
we remain confident that well-located,
mid-range, direct-let student
accommodation will be able to maintain
high levels of occupancy and rental growith.

Outiook

Building on a period of consistent strang
performance, and supportive market
fundamentals, the Group remains well
placed to deliver sustainable eamings
growth in the years anead. Our
development pipeline and operational
expertise provides good visibilily over the
future rental growth and increasing
recurnting earnings. Our portfotio is
focused on stronger Universities, plus our
highly scakible operating platform and
strong brand leaves us well piaced o
extend our market leading position.

Despite the broader macro uncerainties
created by the EU referendum, the
supply/demand outiook for student
accommodaotion remains in our

Favouwr, and we will look to benefit

from opportunities to extend our
development pipefine, grow on-campus
accommodation and strengthen University
relationships. With this backdrop. a strong
balance sheet ond our new REIT status,
we are confident that the business
remains well ploced fo deliver highty
attroctive shareholder returns.

Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
22 Febryary 2017
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Chief Executive's G&A

Richard Smith
addresses some fopical
questions from our sharehokders

What has the highlight of 2014
been for the business?

In 2016, we welcomed our

500,000th student tc Unite
Students, a fontastic milestane in the
Compaony's 25-yeaor history and
testament to the high quality service
we provide students during their
university careers. The launch of PRISM
wais another important gchievement
in 2016, which is defivering significant
efficiencies for the business ond
considerably improving the customer
axparience we can offer to students.

How will the axit from Europe
alffect the business?

A Following the EU referendum, the

Government has confirmed that

alt existing EU students and for the
2016/17 and 2017/18 academic years
will have funding provided for the
duration of their courses. with 9% of
our students coming from the EU. ony
potential impact on student nurmbers
from the EU referendum would have
a limited impact on Unite's occuponcy
given the confinued supply/demond
imbalance. We continue fo be positive
on the autiook for the higher education
sector in the UK which is recognised
globalty for its excellence and its ability
to attract alent kom across the worid.

Q

25 Read more: Brexit

Does the boord plan to expand the
axeculive management feam?

Pl The Board, senior management
and | remain focused on and
committed to the continued success of
the business. The Board has estoblished

a comprehensive senicr keadership
development programmme to grow
and nurture our falent and develop
cur high performers. This ensurés we
have a clear talent pipeline for future
Board appeintments.
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MARKET REVIEW

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

REMAIN ROBUST

This year we are seeing another year

of student number growth with more
students accepling places for the 2016/17
academic year than ever befare. A total
of 535,000 studenis started at University
in 2015716, faking the total number of
full-fime students 1o £1.8 million, up from
£1.7 miltion in 2014715, Acceptances have
rsen 15% since tultion fees were infroduced
in 2012. Applications continue to oulstrip
acceplances. A record 723,353
applications were received for 2016/17
which left a demand gap of 188,450
students. This nurmber has remained
stable for the: Iast five yeors. See Figure 1.

Demand drivers for student
accommeodation

We fully expect the demand for UK Higher
Education to continue from both domestic

and infemational students. More young

peopie in the UK are choosing togo to
University than ever befone, with 37%

of 18-year-olds now applying to go fo
University up from 33% 10 years ago.
Expectations continue to rise and we
expact ko see schoot leavers continue fo
place reqi value on a University educafion.
The UK remains the #2 destinotion for
international students in Higher Education,
attrocting 10% of intemational students.
The UK draws almost double the number
of international students compared

with third place Australio, See Figure 3.

The UK continues to aitroct intemational
students due to the high quality of the
Universities in the UK. The UK now has
three universities in $he globai top ten.
four in the top 20 and seven in the top 50
in Europe, six of the top seven universities
are UK institutions. See Figure 5.

FAgure 1: Applicants and occeplances (thousands)

Figure 2 PBSA bads (thousands)
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Education agents support thesa rankings
as 91% rated the UK, as @ desfinafion to
study as "attractive” or “very attractive”,
This will support UK nationcls” desire fo go
to university at home os well as drawing
mare international students to the UK.
Internationalnumbers grew by 15,000
between 2014/15 and 2015/16.

Student numbers

Totol student numbers in the UK hove
voen steadily increcsing since 2012, The
2016/17 vearis expecting to see 1.8 milion
students {under-graduate ond post-
graduate] in the UK, This is a 2% increase
from 2015/16 and comfortably above 1%
average student growth of the previous
five years. See Figwre é.

The number of intemational students has
grown since 2015/16 by 1% to 428.000.

International students make up a

higher proporfion of demand for
accommadation. They account for 30%
of students needing accommaodation,
compared with 25% of full-time students.
See Figure 4,

Unite maintains its focus on providing beds
for those segments of ihe market that

suit PBSA, namely internafional students,
who account for 35% and first years, who
account for 85% of our beds.

Fgure 3: infernational
student mobiliity
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Rgure 4 Dermand for accommodalion (%)

Supply of purpose built student
accommodation

The structurol growth of the Higher
Educaticn sacior has attracted significont
leveis of nvestment over the last three
years. This increqsed investment has seen
PBSA beds grow from around 200.000 in
2014 to 250,000 in 2016. A further 50,000
beds are expecled 1o be built over the
next two years, taking the total to around
16% of the full-time student population.
ina mone competitiva morkst place,

the quality of the portfolio, price point,
custamer service and university
relationships are critical o ensuring full
accupancy ond ongeing rental growth,

Brexit and immigration

The fullimpact of 8rexit on the LIK Higher
Education sector willbecome Clearer
over the next few months, Funding
amangements have been confirmed

for current EU students and those starting
in 2017/18.

Following Brexit. we expect 1o see BU
students join other infernational students
and therefore see anincrease in fees.
However, given the quality of UK Universities
ond the ctractiveness of studying in

the UK, we estimate that ovenall student
numbears from the EU should only fall by
around 20,000 - 30,000. Universities will
work hard to ensure that any foll in student
numbers is mitigated with additional
recruitment from the UK, the EU and from
other international destinations,

Figure 5: Untversily rankings (institutions)

Figure &: Full time student numbers (milions)

The UK's immigration palicy for
inlernational students remains one of the
most robust in the world, compared with
other major destinations for intemational (
students. Infernational students make a
significont contribution to the UK economy,
generaling on estimated £10.7 billion of r

export earnings for the UK, and over

135,000 jobs. Immigration and immigration
policy rermains a political issue and the }
secior will continue to monitor and assess
the impact of any turther changesin

this areqa.

EU ressarch funding curmently accounts r
for £4688 million or 2.5% of fofad income

for Universities and there one Concems |
regarding the long-term outook for this ‘
funding. Univarsities' exposure o this issue
varies, with six UK insfitutions receiving over
50% of their resecrch funding from the EU, ’

|
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Howaver, the Government has stated that
Universities will have certainty over future

- funding and shauld continue to bid for

competitive EU funds while the UK remains
a member of the: EU, with a commitrment
that the Treqsury will underwrite the
poyments of such owords, even when
specific projects confinue beyond the

UK's departure from the EU.

5 Read more: Our business model
ond strategy

2 Rewdmore: Pinciped daks
ond uncerioiniies
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KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

FINANCIAL KPIS

Eamings per share®

Pence

28p

Meosume

Our EPRA exrnings KPiis a
rmeaswre of profit per share
in fine with EPRA guidelinas.

Nei asset value®

Pence per share

646p

Measure

Our EPRA NAVY per share
measures the market value of
properties and developments
less any debt used to fund
them plus any working capital
in the business.

Comments Target

Sustainable growth in earnings  Deliver visibhie and

has been driven by high levels  meaningful graowth

of occupancy and rental in EPS by maintaining
growth supported by o focus  high eccupancy rental
on delivering operational growth and delivaring the
efficiency, The growth in development pigsiine.
eornings underpins our

strategic priorities of defivering

Commenfs T

Cansistent NAV growth has To continue delivering
been delivered through renfal  strong balonced retums,
growth, yield compression, contributing to a double-
development profits and digit fotal refurn.

retained eamings, Our
sustainable growth in NAY
reflects the implementation
of the business modeal and

7 Remuneration

great service and growing our strategic priority to operate

and sustainable earnings. brilliant properties.

Allgnment to strategy .2 ° Allgnment to strategy “
Total accounting retum Loon-to-value ratio

% %

Meosure Measure

The total return to shareholders is Our ratio of net debt ta

the ratio of growth in EPRA NAV property values.

pius dividends paid as @

percenioge of opening

EPRA NAV,

Commenis Maintaining o strong fotal Comments Targed

Total return hos averaged 16%  retum from our portfolio Continued ta deliver reduction To maintain LTV around
in the \ast six years, driven by the  is a result of our business in LTV through angolng focus  the mid 30% level.

growth in EPRA eamings, vield  model and delivery of
compression, rental growth and  our strategic priorities.
development profits. The

performance in 2016 was Target

dedvered by focusing Continue 1o deliver

on growing rental levels and double digit-total retyrns.
the defivery of our high quality

develcpment pipeline.

Alignment to strategy

00

* Results gre based on the Eyropecn Public
Real Estate Association Perfermance measures.

on disposais and growing the

value of the property portiolic, 73 Remuneration
OurLTV reflects cur strategy fo

maintain the strongest capilal

structure in the sector.

Atignmcrnfomutegy
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OPERATIONAL KPIS
Satety

Number of accidents

5

Measure

The number of reportable
accidents in our Opearations
business each year as a meons
of assessing Our SUCCess in

1

Key

Greqt service Brilliant propertes Growing and
sustanable soMINgs

Customer safisfaction

%

Measure

We underiake an independent

survay with INS twice ayaar to

understand our relationship wilh
our customers, the experience

approaching health and safety. we provide and their ikefhood to
rebock and recommend Unite.
Comments pricrity within our Comments Target

Qur Accident Incident business and supports
Manogement Systerm (AIMS),  our sirategic priority 1o
has provided us with greater offer great service.
visibility on our incident

reporting. enabling us o Target
implement new ways of Wa shrive to reduce the
working that hove improved number of reportoble

While there hos beean We aim to reoch the top
improvement in customer 10% of benchmarked
satisfaction over the priorfour  companies within the
years out 2016 result moved nex! three yeaors.

back 3% points, We need to

work hard through ourstrategic 72 Remuneration
priority to offer great service so

efficiency. Safety is a high incidents year on year. that we put custiomers at the
heart of that process.
Alignment to shrategy S2.3 Algnment to strategy S2.3
Employee effectiveness Higher Education trust
% %
Measure Mexsure
We have an amployee survey Annual qualitative research with
fool. run by the Hays Group, our Higher Education pariners to
called Employee Effectivensoss. understand their perception of
Unite and the degree to which
we meet their needs,
Cornments Target Comments focus of providing a Home
Qur new survay resuits provided  We aim to increase the Understanding what our Higher  for Success. we need to
delgiled insight into the empioyee effectiveness Education pariners need fiom  confinue fo work hard to

molivations and driversof our  perceniage above the
employees and positions us %  60% threshold.

above the General UK industry

Benchmork |48%; and 1%

behind the High Performing

Industry Benchmark {55%) in

our third year.

Alignmaent o strategy 2.3

us, both for therselves as ensure this isreflected in
institutions and for thew students, the score.

is @ vital part of improving our

lovel of service fo offer great  Torget .
sarvice. The overallscoreisin fine e im 10 reach the: mid
with last year and whilst our 80% level within the next
strong Univensity parinerships  three years.

were supported by the ongoing.

Alignment fo strategy o 3
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RISK MANAGEMENT

THE UMITE GROUP FLE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUMTS 2014

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND
RISK MANAGEMENT IN A
DYNAMIC EXTERNAL MARKET

Chyris Szpojnarowicz

Company Secretary and Head of Legat

2014 -the year we celebrated
our 25th bithday - was the most
dynamic external market the
PBSA sector has seento date.
With the Higher Education sector
and the broader economy lacing
new chollenges such as Brexi
and polilical changes around
the globe, our shrategic planning
and risk management Is evolving
in response lo these changes.

Being well prepared for a combination

of risk events happening at the some time
is ceniral to our readiness preparation.
Affordability and volue for meney is
increasingly impaortant and ourrisk
management focus on student experience
and the efficient delivery of @ quality
product is more impaortant than ever.

The following pages provide insight info
Our kxy risks and how we navigote them.

Related sections

Assessing ovur risk profile and key
risk developments during 2014

As an Infrinsic port of our strategic
planning, and to support the Boord's
robust assessment of the Group's
princigal risks and its ongoing longer terrm
viability. the Board conducted d thomough
review of our risk profile. This review
involved both a fop-down approach;

> ihe Board considered a wide range
of strategic and emerging risks and
opportunities and their impact

and a bottom-up approoch:

» ihe Board scrutinised and challenged
the risks identified in the Operations
and Property Business Units, as well
our financing and treqsury risks.

To ensure a broader perspective, this
review included engagement with external
experts, such as property valuvers & heatth

} & safety quditors, as well as senior lkeaders

in the Higher Education sector. This
external engogement was especially
important this year as the sector starts to
digest the impact of Brexit.

This risk profile review identified four
risk categaries:

Maorket - supply ond demond 26
Opearalional risks r2j
Properly/development risks 28
Financing risks pal

These risk categories are consistent
with those identified in prior years,
with movement in specific risks -
driven principally by uncertainty
due to Brexit — as foliows.

Maricet risks Increasing uncertainty following the Leave vote and the impact
(reduction on the Higher Education sector, UK pic and immigration policy
! #n demand]} uncertainty flowing frorm this.
| Whie the impoct of Brexit on the UK ecanormy and Higher
i Education sector remaing uncledar, it has ied to greater uncertainty,
‘ we have focused a significant proportion of cur risk activity
5 Business model and sfrategy F understanding the potentialimpact on our business.
12 Relationships Property/ Liquidity and uncertainty in the brooder real esiate sector.
—_— - development risks

18 Morket overview

2 Kay performance indicators (KPis}
26 Principal risks and uncertainties
59 Corporate governance

The property market has been atfected by Brexit ond broader

macro economic factors, We have focused risk activity on
determining how this impacts our properfy-related business
activity during the yeor.

26 Read more; Principal risiks ond uncertointiss on poges 26 to 29.
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Re-calibrafing ovur risk appetite in 2014

The Group's risk appetite is considered as a fundamental part of the Board's strategy setting and annual budget - it does not happen
in isolation. Qur risk appetite is undempinned by our principal financial aim to continue delivering double-digit total retums and
sustainable growing earnings. Having regard to the key risk developrnants in 2014 set cut on page 22, the Boord recalibrated our risk
appetite. This recaforation corsiders both threats ko — and opportunities in —our business in the context of MAaCND and Minor developments,
not only in the PBSA sector, but aiso the broader Higher Education sector. property market and economy more generally.

Gredl service with higher fee levels, the affordability and value of Higher Education remains a risk focus.
Home for Success. PRISM ond our Univarsity relationships remain an opportunity for us to differentiate

o from competitors.

Brllllant properties  Focusing our portfolio on high quality Universities and recycling our portfolio in & competitive market ploce.

o Undertaking development aclivities. 8
Growing ond During 2014, focus on becoming a RET and cnhgoing compliance with REIT 1ests to enable REIT conversion g
sustainable eamings effective | January 2017 &

_ _° Planning and completing our conversion 10 REM status. Q

Maintaining full occupancy across our portfolio. g

a

Stress testing our 3
strategic planning

Each year, the Boord develops and

refreshes the Group's Strategic Plan,

This 8 bosed on detailed three-year

strategic/financial projections {with

related scenario planning) and rolls

Forward or @ furiner wo yoars usind increase in Yield
more genaiic assumptions. The . :
mops our three strategic objechives interest rates expansion
sot against our risk profile [described The influences
directly below). Recagnising that risk of multiple
events do not necessarily happen in combined
isolation, the Board then siress tests risk events
these projections against various

multiple combined fisk events. Through

this process, a base cose and stress

tested Strategic Plan is developed.

$JUBLIBIONS IDIDUDUY

During 2014, this stress tested scenario Reduction in EU/
planning considered a maieriai international
rectuction in the number of European students
and international students, a material

rise in long term interest rates and

yield expansion, together with a

combination of all these events

occuring at the same time.

Mapping our three sirategic objectives against our risk profile

Great service Market (supply The health, safety, wellbeing and security of the 42000 students who make tnite Students
and demond) their home is the foundation of our reputation and continued focus on heoith & safety is key
Operational 1o building and maintaining this frust,

Affordability and value for money are increasingiy critical i the increasingly cormpetitive
markel place. Developing the most trusted brand in the sector continues ta be critical
10 our sustainable and longer term success.

UOHOWLOULBUIC

Sriliant propertias  Property/ Our focus on working with high and mid ranked Universities means that we will
0 development recycle capitglinta higher performing cities. Property development is @ higher risk,
higher return activity.
Growing and Anancing Maintain a timety approach to amenging new debt and extending debt maturities,
sustainable samings reducing the cost of funding, diversifying our tunding sources and introgucing new
B _° lenders to the Group. Secure a sirong balkance sheet with appropriate levels of leverage
and liquidity to ensure the business con withstand any property cycle.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Creating the right corporate
culture for effective risk

management

The Group's risk management framework
is designed to identify the principat

risks and ensure thot risks are being
appropriatety monitored, controls arein
place and requirad aclions have clear
ownership with requisite accountability.

The orgonisation hos an open ond
accountable cutiure, led by a stable and
axperienced leadership team that has
operated in the secter for a number of
yedars. This culture is set by the Board in the
way it conducts its Board ang Committee
meetings and cascades fhrough the
organisation enabling the same cultune
for risk management,

During 2016, this corporate culture was
assessed as part of the Boord's effectiveness
evaluation, using the key learnings rom
the Financial Reporling Council (FRC}'s
recent report, Corporate Culture and the
Role of 8oards.

62 Read mors; Etectiveness

The culture of the grganisation recognises
- and accepts — that risk is inherent in
business and encourages an cpen and
proactive approach to risk managerment
as opposed to a blaome culture. By viewing
our risks through the lens of our three
strategic objectives, the Group is able o
ensure risk monagement is prooctive and
pre-emptive and not a tick box exercise.

The Board has the overall rasponsibility for
the governance of risks and ensures there
are cdequate and effective systemsin
okace. It does this in various ways:

» Risks ore considerad by the Board as
an intrinsic part of strotegy setting and
considerafion of new opportunities -
risk is recognised as an inherent part
of each opportunity

> A twice yecrly formal review by the

Board of principal risks. haw they

are changing and considering any

emearging risks

Risk Commiittee reviews the principal

risks that the Group is facing or

should consider

? Specificrisk manogement in
dedicated Board sub-commitiees
allowing focus on specific risk areas
{for exampie, the Audit Commitiee
and Health & Sofety Commitiee)

v

Our risk management framework

» Risk Committee scrutiny and chalienge
of Business Unit risk management
oclivity aliowing a focused forum
for risk identification and review )
> Board directors also sit on Business Unit !
bodrds and thus provide the Board with .
direct fine of sight to Business Unit risk
management activity
Risk assurance through external and
intarnal auditors as well as specialist
thirci party risk assurance where
appropricte [e.g. specialist
independent heaith ond safety
compliance in the Opermtions and
Property Business Units).

v

Robust ossessment

of principal risks

The directors confirm that they have |
conducted a robust assessment of the
principai risks facing the Group. The
process for how the Boord determined
these principal risks is exploined above
and the specific principal risks are set
out on pages 26 fo 29,

The board ﬂ
Risks assessed as poart > Owned by the Board and its Committees
of shrategy seffing > Twice yearly fonmal risk review and ongoing mon#toring
and risk aversight of risk integral to Board meetings
\[/ J/
Risk management Policies and controls Composition
of Risk Commitiee
> Owned by the Risk Committee and the Underpinning risk management Chrls Szpojnorowicz
Business Unit boards {such as Capital Operating Guidetines; Company Secretary
> Morithly risk traocker review af Business Treasury Policy; Anti-Bnibery Policy: Major and Heod of Legal and
unit boards Invastment Approvals Committee and the Chair of Risk Committeea
» Risk Commitiee review of all risk frackers internat controls framework)
Jow Lister
Chief Financial CHicer
e N~ and MD of People
and Cominunications
People and culture R Richard Smith
Chief Executive Officer
Embedded risk Openness, ransparency and clear ownership of
management cultyre risk managemeant {through risk trackers) cascades Richard Simpson

through the organisation

Group Property Director



THE LMITE SROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

Key Risk indicators (KRls)
linked to our KPis and our
three strategic objectives
Grect service Custormner
satisfaction
Safety
- - Higher Education frust
% MNoms v. Direct Let
Briltionf Net asset value
properties Age of asset
Occupancy
" Rentfal growih
Growing and Eamings per sharg
sustalnable Total return
eamings

Net delyt
Loan-to-value ratio
Net debit : EBITDA

Viabiiity sictement

The Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period

to December 2019, faking account of the
Group's current position and the potenfiol
impact of the principal risks. The Directors
consider the three-year lockout period to
be the most appropriate as this
fundamentally gligns with the Group's
own strategic planning period combined

: with the levels of planning certainty that

can be derived from the development
pipetine. Based on this assessment, the
Directors have o reasonable expectation
that the Group willbe able to continue

j noperation and meet its icbilites as they

foll due over the period 1o December 2019.

As explained above, the Group has
developed an annual business planning
process, which comprises a Strategic
Pian, a financial forecast for the cument
year and @ financiot projection for the
forthcoming three years [which includes

| stress tasting and scenaorio planning and
. also rolls forwards for o further two years).

This plan is reviewed each year by the
Boord os port of its strategy setting
process. Once approved by the Boord,
the plan is cascaded down across the
Group and provides a basis for setting all
detailed financicl budgets and strategic
actions that are subsequentty used by
the Board to monitor performance.

Our risk management in action: Brexit

One tool in our risk management
process is arisk ‘deep dive’, This involves
an in-depth review of a specific risk with
Brexit o key focus since the praspect

of an InfOut referendum first crystalised
in 2015,

In the pericd through to June 2014, our
risk deep dive process concluded that
no specific pre-emplive octions [other
than ongeing engogement with the
Higher Education sector} should be
taken for our business in the event of

a Leave or Remain vote. This decision
was driven by the anticipated impact
o our business if there was a Legve vole
{see below} and the minimum two-year
transitional periog under Article 50,
Engagement with the Higher Educotion
sector is helping inform our thinking on
implications for the PBSA sector and
specifically our business.

Qur risk deep dive process concludes
that Brexit should not significanthy
impact our business for the
following reasons:

> Following a periad of initial
vncerfainty immediafely after the
result in June 2014, confidence has
returned to the PBSA market with

a high volume of portfolios and assets
frading in the second half of 2014

EU research funding is important to UK
Universities and this. logethes with the
immigration status of EU academics
and EU students in the UK more
generally, clearty creates uncertainty
for the Higher Education sector along
with the broader uncertainty in the
wider economy. This uncertainty is
modsrated by the strength of UK
Universities (the second largest
destination for intemational

stugents after the US|: the ongoing
intermationalisation of Higher
Education with the global rise of the
middie classes. Sterling depraciation
also makes UK Higher Education/
accomrnodation more affordable
for intfernational students

»

The foracast performance cutiook s also
used by the Remuneration Commitiee to
establish the targets for both the annual
and longer term incentive schemes.

The financing risks of the Group are
considered fo have the potential greatest
impact on the Group's financial viabfity,
The two principal financing risks for

the Group are: the Group's ability fo
aronge new debl/replace aexpiring debt
facilities; and any adverse interast rate
movermnents. The Group has secured
funding for the committad future
development pipgline and prepares its
Strategic Plan on a fully funded basis in
fine with the three-year outlook period.
To hedge against the potenticl of
adverse interest rate movemaents the
Group manages its exposure with a
combination of fixed rate faciities and
using interestrate swaps for its foating
rate debt. During the yeor the Group has
complied with all covenant requirermnents
attached to Its financing facilities.

40 Read more: Anancial review

» EUstudents’ funding arrangaments
under current fuition fee arangements
are contirmed for 2016/17 and 2017/18,
but there is uncertainty beyond then,
EU students represent 9% of our
cusfomers and so any impact on
EU student numbers would have
a limited impact on cur occupancy

> Despite these broader uncertainties.
the supply/dernand outiook remains
favourable and with the benefil
of our development pipeline, the
strengthening of our University
redatienships and our focus on high
and mid-ranked Universities, our
business is well placed to navigate
the uncertainty risk.

We continue to monitor the
developments and engage in the

other risk management actions outlined
in the principal risks {see page 26).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES

Marke risks

1. Demand reduction {driven by Government policy or other macro events)

Postibie svents

» Brexit impacting numbers of EU students coming to study in the UK

> Changes n Government policy an Higher Educahon funding

» Immigratian pokicy changes affecting intemational student numbers
and behavioyr.

impact

coming to the UK

What happened in 2016

Studient numbers in the UK continue 1o grow with approximately 3000 mare applicants than 20142016

The total number of applcants in 2014 also glew with 155,000 more applcations than places

Stronger growth (3% In acceptances) in the high and mik-tanif Uriversities

tnite Students occupancy of 8% (2018/2017} compored o 99% {2015/2016) but mone beds 45.000

at 31 December 2016 as comparned with 44,000 al 31 December 2015 Increase in overal student

numpers conhinues to lransicte 10 more students staying at Unite

B\ students tunding amangements for duration of study confirmed tar 2014/2017 and 201772018

» Ouring 2014, we have sean an ncreose in nomnations with more cormmitted to beds than ever
before 58% beds - 2014/2017 vs. 57% 2015/2014

N Read more: Occup and o "

vV wvv

v

» Potenfialreduction in demand and hence proMabifly and asset values
> Depariure from El impacting EU ressorch granis and EU studens

Risk management

Ongoing monlitonng of Biexii imphcations,
Government polcy and lls impact on UK,

EU and international student numbers studying
1 he UK. Reguicrly reviewing ous portiolo o
answre we have the highest quality portfolio.
appropriately sized and in the right kcations.

Risk Miigation in 2014
Risk deep dive into impoct of Brext,

25 Read more: Out risk management In action: Seexdit

Threugh imphementafion of Home for Success ~ our core purpose fo Provide environmanis thal help
students achieve more during their fime at Universty - we are seeing consistently ugh custamer
sahisfaction and Higher Educahon frust scanes.

20 Reod more: Key performance indicoiors (KMs)

Focus tor 2017

Shraregh: objecthe

Ottering graat service s key lo helping us sustain
o reduction in demand fos wall as ensuring
wa have briiant properfies ond growng

and sustainable eamings to manage any
demand defici).

3 Readmaore: Our sikalegy

00

Confnued engagement with the Hgher Education sector to understand and be ready fot the impact of Brext ond other HE pokcy changes

2. Demand reduction {duve to societal change)

Posslbie aventy

» Concerns aver the costs of a University education - atfordabiity and
value for money

> Aftemative couse delivery (such os knssive Open Onine Courses]

» Shorterfmare semester led courses.

impoct

ond asset values

What happened In 2014
During 2016, robed oul PRISM, our digital and scalable operating plattorm. daving etficiency and
customer service

A Read more: PREEM
Applications ond acceptance data continue to provide evidence that stranger Universifies are
perlorming better.

18 Read maora: Market Review

Enhanced service lavelk over the kst lew yaars with faster Wi-F speeds, free comrmunal Cleons ond
enhanced common spaces.

» More compettion for value ond reduced demand for year round
student accommaodalion in the ionger femn resuiing m lower profitabiity

Risk managemant

Ongang meniionng of attardabilty and value for
money and the evolufion of cigikal learming and
emsuring we partner with the stronger Urwersities
with properifes In the best locations

Risic mitigation aclivity In 2016
Ensured the successiul roll out of PRISM, enabiing cnline and more flexible tenancies.

Conhnued nvestiment In market knowledge and bulldng on our relationships with the strongest
Universities, dnven by Home for Success and our University parinerships team.

Focus hor 2017

Shategic objective

Oftering great service is key to ensuring we

have relahonships with the higher ond medivm
tantf Universtics (the ones most Tkely o suskain a
reduction in demaond). PRISM helps us delbver the
best customer tarvice efflcienty

5 Read more. Our siralegy

Using PRISM to drive enhanced cusiomer servwce and value Iormoney, through its scalkablkty ond digital eficiency.

Cortinued focus on Home lor Success and ouwr parinerships with the strongar Univershies.
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Key

7
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Great service

Growing and
susionabie earh:ngs

Briliant proparnes

3. Supply Increase (dve o increasing interest in the performance and appeal of the PBSA sector)

Foubie evenis

¥ New supply as sustained high feveks of investment demand filerinio the
devalopment market. primarly through Investors providing forwaed
commutments to smaller developers.

What happened In 2014
Volume of PRSA assets traded n 2014 moderated from record levels seen in 2015

mpact
> Mote compettion for the best sites
» Potentialrmpoact on rental growth and occuporncy

During 2016 confinued rof oul of Heme for Success and maintaining a strong proportion of beds secured under naminalions agreernents ot 58% (2015, 57%).

Qpening of five new properies during 2016
34 Recd more Properties delivered
Level of new suppty

18 Read more: Market riview

Risk Miigaticn In 2018

We cenfinue with our focus and sirategy on:

> Markets with supply/demand imbalance

» Exposure to the best niversities undempinned with new devekapments secuned with nominahors deds

E Read more: Operations review
» Investment in cur brond ond student expenence - crealing better snvironments within our new

developments through Home lor Success mitiative
3 Muainlaining strong rekationships wath key Higher Education pariness.

Focusior 2007

Strafegic objective
Offering great service as well as having
briliant propertias is critical to mitigatng
any supply surpius.

Confinued tocus on our portfalio in the fowns and cities with the sirongest growth prospeacts and using PRISM, our scalable opetuting platiorm, to differenfiate

our brand ond ofler consistently high levels of service to students and Univessities alike
Ensuring a strong yet Raxible capital structune so we con adap? appropriately as SUPPlY grows,

Operational risks

4. Major health & safety (HLS) incident In a property or a development site

Possiola events
» Fatality or major Injury trom a fire or other Incdent at o property
> Mudliple coriractor muries at a developmaent of aperalional site.

What has happened during 2014

With fire as our biggest satety sk in our operating portfolio. during 2014 we estoblished a Primarny
Authority Agreement with fhe Avon Fire Authority to locus on

¥ The development journey for ouwr fire shictegy decisions

> Fire Safety Management ~ improved pokcies and procedures, fisk assessments, training & five records
> Mainlehance Regiimes - lestirg and plonned preventative marnitsnonce

> Specification lor naw buiks and developmenis.

Externad assurarkee sought threugh.
> Appointment ol the British Safety Councy as our new external safety auditor
> Physical secunty review of our properiles by WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff.

Continued good pertormonce agalinst our aperational safety KP1, with five reporiable accidents and
posifive results against our KPisin our development cothvity.

EL Read more: Key Performance indicaiors {(KMs)

wnpact
> impact to students iMng with us, contractors working on-site and visitors.
> Reputational damage and trust in Unite Students os a rallable parmear

Risk management

H&S k given direct Board superviion by the H&S
Cormimitiee [a sub-committea of the Board)
which actively suparvises H&S, ensuring robusl
policies ond proceaures are in place and
consistently comphed with,

7 Read more; H&S Commiitee eport

HAS is also aclively reviewed in the Operations
andg Property Business Units, ensuring that HAS s
top of mundin ow day to day operations and
regularly assessed and valdated.

Risk Mifgation in 2034

Reguiar extemal gudits and intemal nspactions of our praperties. Full review of owr operations risk
astessrments 1o ensurs adequate hazord control, fogether with improved centracion managerment and
permit 1o work systerm for hazardous work activities. mproved satety raining, using augimented reality,
focusing on driving for work, lone working, safety signage, housekeeping/mamtenance. hazaeds such as
chemicak, L asbrestos ond personal grolectve equiprnent. This includes an intaracivve garme tor
accidert, incldent and nedar misses.

Facys for 2017

Stategic

€nsuring the HAS af our customers, coningcions
and employees is fundamental to us offering
greqt service.

5 Read more: Our sialegy

Work on the jouney fointerdependence with empowerment in day to day HAS monagement af the caote of everything we do.
Ongoing tocus on continuous improvement (Inchuciing prioritising the fire risk review, crisis managemen, security review and exlema oydit recommendations

ond actions)
integrating wellbeing info e H&S Manoagemenl System.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

AND UNCERTAINTIES
CONTINUED

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT ANG ACCOUNTS 2014

Poasibie avents Impact

> Sie acqukition rsk - increasing competifion for the best stes pushes
up prices

» Planning sk — dekays or failure o get planning

» Comstruchion nsk - build cost inflkation as the econonmy improves

What ha n204
Five sites gcquired, adding 3.082 beds to the developmen’ pipeline;

Five planning consents secured.
2016 schemes delivered, on time and 1o budget.
34 Read more’ froperty review

> NAY and EPS affected by aborted schemes and/or reducad tinancial
returms, walh cash ied up in Gevelopment,

Risk management

Expenenced deveicpment team with extensve
site selection and pkanning experhse, coupled
‘with strong track record and fecus an project
delivery and shiong rekationships with
construction partners with cppropnate sk
sharing. Group Board agpproval for commilments
above a certain threshokd

Anancialinvestrment In schemes carefully
managed prior o grant of planning

To ersure we have the highest qudlity porifolio, we
are parsung new opportunities on a conditional
basis. but with a Imited number of stes contracted
not condiional on planning following a detaled

sk assessment of that epportunity
Kisk Mitigotion in 2016 Shrotegic objective
Reguiar developmant teamn ond property review, with Group Boord dikeclor sversight to ersure failure Brllant properties
10 secure sites or complete on fime are managedin the budget. 5 Our

Detaited pranning pre-apekcations and dus dikgence belora site acquisition
2 Read more’ Development aclivity

Build cost infiation regukarly appraised and refreshed in Property Board meefings Mid-sized framework
confroctorn used and onger femn rekationships esiabinhed ko mutigate oycicol swings.

Focus for 2017
Main focus will be on delivering mulilocation developments and securing pipsfing for 2020,

2 Read more Development pipeline

Possible events Impact
> Buying of seling praperties al the wiong point In the Sycle.

What happaned in 2014
Volume of PBSA assets moderaled in 2016 Tollowing record volumes in 2015

The value af the Group's Invesiment porttolio (including our share of co-Investment vehiclet] increcsed
to £2.277 milion as ot December 2014 (31 December 2015 £2.065 rmulllon] with the cvermge porttoko
yield faling Yops 10 5.4%.

During 201 4 wa continued to maximise our portfalic value through a programme of seleclive
davelopments, acquisitons, dsposalks and relurbishments.

3% Read more. Disposols
Custames safsfaction cantinues at high leves supporting rental growth and our porttolic value.
36 Read more. Rendal growih and pottolio volue

> Reduction in asset volues reducing financial retums.

Risk rrxay

Group Board and Properly Board ongotng
maonitoring of property market, direction
and values

Farecast renital growth and recurring profit
oftsets any yield movernent.

Ersuring we hove o strang yet tiexdble capitai
structure so we con adapt appropriaiely 1o
market conditions.

Clear and aclive asset managemant strategy

Risk M¥igation In 2015

Dispasals - ongoirg monitoring of our enhre portfollo with selective disposals to benefit from keener
prices in the markel. We sold £114 milkon of assetsin 2016.

Acquisitions — discipéned acqubsitions stralegy exercising caution over portiolio premiums being paidin
the mcakst.

Carefulmonagement of nef debt and see-through LTV,
Maintaining discipined approach o new development ransachions by maintaining Group hurdie rates

Focvs for 2017
To continue to acquire sites in iine with Group hurdle rmtes and to procure contracts in kine with budgels.

Shategic objective
Brillan! properies.

3 Read more’ O siralegy
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Financing risks

7. Unabie to arange new debt or expiring debt facliities cannot be replaced or only

at high cost. Adverse interest rate movements

Possible svents wmpact

3 Unite breaches a loan covenant of fails to repkace debt on expiry > Iturable to replace debt, then possibie forced sale of assets

? Interestiale increase

potentially lecding to sales below valuation. Siowdown ol

developmeni aclivity. Recuced kevel of profitability

> Advene iate moverments con lead lo reduced profitabity
and reguction in property values [ through resulting expansion
of valuation ylelds and lower valugtions).

what hoppaned in 2014
During 2014, LTV ratio Improved fo 34% from35% at the end of 2015 ond net debt grew by £45 rmillon
o £774 rrulkon. During 2016, £150 milkon of new debt was amanged.

100% of debt ot fixed ralefswaopped.

During 2014 our average cost of debl has iaken to 4. 2% from 4.5%: 2015 ond we axpect it to iall further
by the end of 2017 as a proporiion of forward starting swops become effective.

48 Read mone’ Ananciol eview/capiiol siructures

Risk mancgenmmnt

Proactively managing debt maiurities 1o
refinonce these tacliities at least 6-12 manths
betore maturity and in parallel diversifying our
sources ot ingnee 1o repay Mole experntive and
less fiexible borfowings.

Control of future cash commitments In ine with
progress of disposal and refinancing.

Intares? rates monitored by the tunding team
as an infegral port of our refinancing octvity

- owned by the CFO and with Group Board
oversight. Gearing ratios defined in our Caplial
Opetating Guideines,

Hedge exposure with interest rate swaps ond
refinance faciities with fixed rates,

Risk Miligation in 2074
Reguiar and reliabie sngagement with lenders.,

With benign interest rate environiment. have confinued to toke odvantage of histodcally low rates (both
on new debt and alo enterng into lorward starting interast rate swops I0cking in rates For gur 2017 and
2018 development pipekne}.

48 Read more. Debl renewalAdeveto prent debt and swaps

Focus lor 2017

ic obsjaciive
Growing mnd sustcinabile eamings.

5 Read more: Our srategy

Funding fulure developiment acquisitions as well as 2017 tunding requirements for the Group. USAF and LSaV.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

GREAT
SERVICE

Our commitment to providing

a Home for Success for students
and to be the most trusted brand
in the sector is centred around our
high quality properties, helpful
staft and a commiiment to great
customer service for both our
students and Universtty pariners.

The implementation of our aperating
platform, PRISM, has brought considerable
improvements to our customer service,
altowing us o move to o seven doy
operoting maodel, offer online room

viewings and to adopt paperiass tenancies.

These improvements have resulfed in the
fime for tenancies to be confirmed
reducing to five days from 15 days.

30% of bookings are now done online or
through mobile bookings, ensuring the
process of securing accommodation is

as easy and as efficient as possible for
students. Additionally, through our Living
with Unite app, 75% of maintenance jobs
are now fixed within 24 hours.

Qur Home for Success investment
progrommae, which has seen us invest

£40 million across key areas of the business
including physical, digitol, customer
sarvice and people, has been complatad.
We hove enhanced our Wi-Fi speeds
across stiudent rooms and communal
spaces to S0Mbps, compieted the
instaliation of our LED ighting programme
and our Student Life Hub confinues to
prove popular with students.

We continue to build on our strong
retationships with over 0 high and
rricl-rark Universities, with norminations
agreements now representing 58%.
with new farms agreed for alonger

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AMD ACCOUNTS 2016

duration, on average 10 years, compared
to saven years for existing amangements.
Our partnerships ansure that Universities
are able to provide their students wilth
accommaodation close o campus and

a safe and secure environment in which
to live, succeed in ther ocademic studies
and meet fellow students.

Our continued focus on customer service
has ied to high occupancy leveals with
28% of beds ket and rentol growth of 3.8%.
In 2016, we achieved record high levels
of customer satisfaction and a growing
proportion of return students,
demonstrating our commitment o
heiping students grow and succeed

at University and beyond.
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31

BUILDING ON OCUR GREAT
SERVICE THROUGH THE
LAUNCH OF OUR NEW
OPERATING PLATFORM

Simon Jones
Operations Director

Related sections
5 Business model and strategy

12 Relofionships

18 Market review

20 Key performance indicators (KPis)

26 Pfil(:ipal risks and uncertainties

QEA

Simon Jones oddresses some topical questions
from our sharehoiders

How has PRISM benefitted the
services Unile provides?

Our operating platform, PRISM,
which is unigque to Unile, cllows
us lo drive greater efficiencies of scale
while offering the best possible service
1o our customers. PRISM has allowed

us fo move 1o 0 seven day operating
model and offer new services such as
anline bookings and room viewings, in
addition to papertess tenancies, Those
improvements have not only delivered
efficiencies for the business but greotly
improved the service we provide

1o our students. As we continue

1o grow the portiolic, PRISM enables
vs to demonstrate a different
approach to other operations.

Q

Do you envisage growing the
proportion of your beds offered
through University porinerships?
we pride ourselves on our
partnerships with Universitios
and work with them to ensure that
they are able to offer high quality
accommodation and services to their
students, an important component
of the overall siudent experience.
Nominations agresments moke up
58% of the portiolio with the remaining
bed:s let directly 1o students. We continue
to explore future partnerships with
Universities, which typically span
10 yeors ond provide visibility on future
income. We expect io remain at
around this level.

How important is the affordabliity
of your accommeodation 1o your
business modef?

N Atfordabifity is important for

students and therefore it is
important to us. We offer o wide range of
price points and room sizes as part of our
focus on delivering a more affordable
proposition for students. Over the past
few years, Unile has focused on
delivering o more affordable proposition
for students. We also reinvest each year
in the accommadation and extend our
student services so that students get
valye for money.

Ry How do you assess and value
competiion and what do you
doto counteract #?
Nl e monttor the market closely and
competition for sites and property
portfolios has continued. We continue o
nvest in our key differentiators such as our
portfolio scale and the locations or our
buidings as well as PRISM, through which
we deliver unmatched customer services,
and through ow Higher Sducation
indusiry experience and relationships.
Qur expertise continues 1o be Important
as investor interest in the sector increases.

o
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Summaory EPRA income siatemen

2014 15

m £m

Unite's share of rental income 159.1 1443
Unite's share of property operafing expenses {42.8) 139.8]
Net apercling Income (NOI) 1163 104.5
NOI rargin NI% 725%
Manggement fees 14.0 120
Operoting expenses (23.7) {21.9)
Finance costs (45.9) (48.1)
USAF acquisition and net performance fee 49 20
Development and other costs {5.5) (7.2}
EPRA gamings 82.7 61.3
Yield reicted element of performonce fee (1.4) {11.8)
Adjusted EPRA samings $1.3 49.5
Adjusted EPRA EPS 27.7p 2Bp

* A full reconcifation of Profit before tax to EFRA eamings 15 sef oul in note 2.2 of the fincncial statements

The Group continues to report on an IFRS
basis and to also present its performance
in line with best practice recommended
by EPRA. The Operations ond Property
raviows focus on EPRA measures as these
are our key internal measures and oid
comparobifity across the real estate sector.

Sales, rental growth

and profttability

The key sirengths of our operating business
ore our people, our PRISM operating
platiorm, the strength of our brand and
the strength of our relationships with
Universities, We have continued to build on
these sirengths throughout 2018, resulting
in a £11,8 milion, 24% increase in Adjusted
EPRA eamings to £41.3 milion compared
to last year [2015: £49.5 million). This growth
has ggain beean driven by high occupancy,
rental growth and the impact of portfolic
movements as well as further operational
efficiencies and ongeing cost discipline.

The Group's share of rental income has
increased by £14.8 million, up 10%, as a
result of new openings and sustained
rental growth, NCI margin improved to
73.1% (December 2015: 72.5%)], refiecling
further operating efficiencies that were
driven by the implamentation of our new
PRISM operating platform during 2014,
PRISM provides us with the abitity to
differenticte oursetves from others, driving
efficiencies through the usa of technology
which enables us to provide enhanced
levels of service ta our custorners, We
maointain owr expechation that NOI margins
willimprove fowards 75%, olthough
bakancing margin growth ond service
level enhancement will remain our
overrding priorily.

We are now managing 49,000 beds
compared to 46,000 at 31 December
2015. Alongside thisincrease in beds
there has been a growth in overneods of
£1.2 millien, driven mainly by depreciation
costs assacioted with the new PRISM
systemn, and we expect a turther small
increase of depreciation costs in 2017.
Recurring management fee income from
joint ventures increased by £2.0 million to
£14,0 miliion {2015; £12.0 million), as a rasult
of the growth of assets under management
in USAF and LSAV, In addition to the
recurring asset management fees. a further
£4.9 million of net USAF performance

and acquisition feas were generaled
(2015: £22.0 millkon). Qur key overhead
efficiency measure (total operating
expenses less management feesasa
praportion of Unite's share of property
value) continues 10 improva and now
stands at 40bps {December 2015: 48bps),
and we remain focused on our target of
25-30bps by the end of 2017 bosed on
current yields.

The £6.5 milion USAF net performance
fee is poyable in units and is based

on USAF's cumulative total retum ot

31 December 2016, The component of
the fee that relates to yvield movement
has been excluded from Adjusled EPRA
earnings purposes to reflect a normalised
level of earnings. The operalional element
of the performance fee is driven by USAF's
income and rental growth performance
and i not expected tfo significantly ada
o our earnings performance going
forword given the current valuotion yields,
gearing levels and rentol growth oullook.

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNLAL REPORT AND ADCOUNTS 2015

Finonce cosls decreased to £45.9 million
{2015: £48.1 million). An increase in net
debt of £45 million to £776 million (2015;
£731 million) was offset by o lower
average cost of finance of 4.2% (2015
4.5%) as we have added new debt
facilities of lower average rates, faking
advantage of the historically low cost

of debt. In addition, the increase in nat
debl has been driven largely by spend
on development activifies which hasin
tumn lead fo an increase in the amount
of interest that is capitalised into
developrmen! schemes to £5.% million, up
fram £2.7 milion in 2015. We expect the
level of interest capilalisation to remain
at around this level given the ongoing
leval of developmenl activity in 2017,
Development {pre-contract) and other
costs fell to £5.5 million (2015: £7.2 milion),
reflecting the levels of site acquisition in
the business, the earnings impact of share
based incentives and our contribution to
our charitable trust. the Unite Foundation.

Occupancy, reservatlons

and rental growth

Occupancy across Unite's partfolio for
the 2016/17 academic year stands ot 78%
and like-for-ike rental growth of 3.8% was
achieved on our skabdlised portfolio. We
have continued to grow the proportion
of beds let to Universities with 56% of
rooms under nominations agreements,
up by 5.000 beds over the tast three
yaars. Enhanced service levels and our
deep understanding of student needs
have resulted in longer terrm ond more
robust partnerships with Universities.

We expect the proportion of beds let

fo Universifies o remain at or around

this level in the future. This balance of
nominations and direct-let beds provides
the benefit of having income secured
by Universities, as well as the ability to
offer rooms to returning students and to
determine market pricing on an cnnual
basis. On average. rents on nominations
rooms are €.5% below direct let
equivalents and, based on our recent
expariance with new agreements, there
is an opportunity to close this discountin
the coming years.

Reservations for the 2017718 ccademic
yearare encouraging, ot 73% {(6/% at the
same point tast year) as aresult of our
continued focus of working alongside the
UK's best Universities os well as our locat
presence in China building relationships
with Chingse Universities. This structural
growth within the Cities we operate.
together with our differentiated service
olfering, provides us with further
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69%

Reservations for the 2017718
academic year

THE FINAL ELEMENTS OF
PRISM WERE DELIVERED
IN 2016, PROVIDING FULL
ONLINE VIEWING AND
BOOKING FUNCTIONALITY
ALONGSIDE ENHANCED
MAINTENANCE SERVICE
LEVELS AND REVENUE
MANAGEMENT
FUNCTIONALITY

confidence in accupancy ond rental
growth for the 2017/18 academic year
whith we expect to be in the region of
3.0-3.5%.

Home for Success

Qur Home for Success investment
programme provides us with a real
point of differentiation to other providers
of student accommodation. The
pragramrme, which was intticted in 2014,
generated significant enhancements in
our operating platiorm, the establishment
of communal study and retaxation
spaces that our customers have told us
that they want and the development

of a sense of home within our properties.
These factors, together with our service
levels, student insight, prirme locations
and mid-market price points. make us
stand out for siudents and Universifies.

Investment In people,
technology and relationships

Satisfaction with service and the strength

- of our relationships with Universities has

been maintained at high levels as both
studlents and Universities benefit from
the investiments that we are making.
The final elements of PRISM were
deliverad in 2014, providing full online
viewing and booking functionality
alongside enhanced maintenance

. service levels and revenue management

functionality. We will continue fo invest
in cnd evolve this platform 1o maintain
our sectorlecding cdvaniage in this area.

We have continued to invest in our
digital capabilities, focusing on the
stucent experience. In 2016, this has
seen us deliver further enhancements
to owr student-focused apps and our
website, a portiolio-wide communications
portal to drive engagement and to help
students access the information they
need to support them during the course
of the academic year. Our apps and
digital platforms provide students with

a hassle free solution to every day

. concems, provide them with the support
. they need and so allow them fo focus

on their studies and time at University.

3

Developing cur teams remains g pricrity
for us and we have implemented new
leadership programmes across the
whole organisation over the past two
years. These programmes ensure that
we are providing our teams with the
training required to deliver excellent
customer service os well as developing
their careers, and they have been on
integral part of our successful attainment
of Investors in Pecple Gold status in 2016,

We also continue 1o invest meaningfulty
in our Higher Education sector
retationships. Our Universities Parinerships
ond Engogement team is dedicated to
building strong working relationships
with key University partners, and this
aperoach has seen us incorporate
University requirements into new
developments and driven the growth

in the number of beds under nominations
agreements.

In China, our marketing office is now
fully operational and our local online
presence has been established, We
have also started to create meaningful
relationships with both local ond British
Universities in China, as well as providing
important support to our Chinese
customers before they travel to the UK
and to their parants while their children
are overseas. wWe are confident that this
invastment will deliver long-term banefit
to the business as weli as to Chinese
students and UK Universities.

Simon Jones
Operations Dirsetor
22 Febryary 2017
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PROPERTY REVIEW
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BRILLIANT ==
PROPERTIES

Stapleton House, London

In 2016, we opened five new
bulidings. adding to our porfiolio
of high quality, conveniently
located accommodation for
students studying in the strongest
University towns across the UK.
The new buildings Increased

our number of beds by 3,082

to a tolal of 51,.310. The bulldings
compiise mainly cluster flat
accommadation and provide
facfiities such as on-site laundry,
study space, communal areas
and dry cycle storage. We
entered 2014/17 with the largest
ever number of students al the
start of an academic year.

More than half of the beds, 1,561, are
located in London at our two new sites:
Qlympic Way and Stapieton House,
Olympic Way. which has been let o
Middlesex University under a nomination
agreement, sits next to the iconic Wembley
Stadium and i pant of the regeneration
of that areq. Stapieton House, Holloway
Road, also opened its doars to students
in September 2016 and is let under

a nomination ggreement fo London
Metropoliton University.

Two further tompletians, Greetham
Street Portsmouth and Far Gostord Street
Caventry, were acqguired by USAF, recycling
capital for the Group's development
pipeline, with an additional development
cornpleted in Aberdeen. The gcquisifion
by USAF was funded with @ new

£100 milion, five-yeor faciity provided

by Wells Fargo. Both properties are on
nomination agreements 10 Portsmouth
University and Coventry University and are
fully ket for the 2016/17 academic year.

We continue to progress our 7.000-bed
development pipeline which extends out
to 2019, with five schemes set to openin
September 2017. These developments will
provide a home for students studying at
some of the UK's sfrongest Universities in
Coventry, Edinburgh, Liverpoot and Oxford.

In agddition 1o this, we acquired five
developrment sites: 3t Vincent's Sheffieid,
Intemotional House Birmingham,
Chaucer House Portsmouth, Skelhorne
Street Liverpool and Millennium Way
Coveniry and secured four planning
consents {Skelhorne Street Liverpool,
Infemational House Birmingham.,
Millenniurmn way Coventry and Brunel
Chaucer.)

Greetnorm Sveet, Patsrrouth

Causewayend, Aberceen
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COMPLETION OF FIVE BRILLIANT
PROPERTIES AND STRENGTHENING
OUR DEVELOPMENT PIPELINE

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director

Reiated saclions
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26 Principal risks and uncericinties

QA

Richard Simpson addresses some topical questions
from our sharehoiders

Has investor appetite for the
sector continued?

Purpose built student

accommodation continued to
attract high levels ofinvestment in 2016
at £3.25 bilion, albeit at slightly lowear
levels than seen in 2015 at £5.5 billion.
Transaction volumes have remained
healthy. supporting current valuations,
with arange of buyers in the market. This
continued interest reflects the defensive
nature of the asset class and attractive
rental growth outiook.

oy e you saeing fulure development
opporiunities given the levels of new
supply coming onto the morket?
PRl There is still strong demand for
affordable, well-located and
high qualily accommodation in
leading University towns ond cities.
Our development pipeline of 7.000 beds
ypanning yunti 2019 is prograssing well.
We continue to moniter the market for
development apportunities that are 1In
line with our target returns for regional
development, focusing on high to
mid-ranked Universities in fowns and
cities which we sxpact wil see the
strongest growth.

Q Do you envisage the London mavked
for developmaent opaning up?
Y We are starting 1o see signs that
oppartunities may re-emerge m
London, Mowever, returns on potential
new projects in Landon remain below
our hurdle rate due, principally to
excessive planning levies and higher
alternative use volues for prospective
sites. we monitor the market closaly

and remain alive 10 fulure opporiunities.
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PROPERTY REVIEW

CONTINUED

EPRA NAV growth

EPRA NAV per share increased by 12% to

646 pence at 31 December 2016, up from
579 pencs at 31 December 2015. In fotol,

EPRA net assets were £1,557 milion at

31 December 2016, up from £1.394 milion

a yeor earlier,

The rmain facton behind the 67 pence per
share growth in EPRA NAV per share were:

» The growth in the value of the Group's
share of investrent assets {+34 pence),
as a result of rental growth {+26 penca)
and yigkd compression (+8 pence)

> The velue odded to the development
porttolio [+21 pence)

> EPRA earnings for the period (+25 pence]

* Dividends paid of 14 pence

Looking forward, our portfolio is well pkaced
1o deliver continued volue growth, Our
focus on the strongest University locotions
underpins rental growth prospects and we
wilt continue to deliver meaningful upside
frorm our devekapment activily. in fofol, our
secured pipeline s expected to detiver

43 pence per shame of NAY uplift and

13 pence of ecmings per share

once completed.

Property porifolio

The vatuation of our property portiolio ot
31 Becember 2014, including our share of
gross assets held in USAF and joint ventures,
was £2,277 mitlion (31 December 2015
£2065 miltion). The £212 millicn increase

in portfolio value {Unite share) was
attributable to:

THE LWTE GRIRIP PLC ANNUAL REPCRT AND ACCTHINTS 2014

*» Capital expenditune on developments
of £144 rillion and £12 million on
investment assets relating to
refurbishment and LED installations

> Disposals of £114 million

2 Valvationincreases of £136 miliion on

the investment gnd development
portiolios, with like-for-like renial growth
of 3.8% being generated on the
stabilised portfolio

2 Increased share of USAF of £32 miliion,
as aresull of the performance fee
earned in 2015,

reducad NAV.
Summary balance sheet
W 2015
Wholly Shae of wholy Shana of
owhed Fund/sv Tolal owned Fund/lv Tokat
m £m tm £m Em £m

Rental properties 1,062 1.023 2.085 1.024 an 1,835
Properties under development 185 7 192 150 80 230

1,247 1,030 2277 1.174 891 2065
Adjusted net debt (432) {344) (778) {448) (283) 1731)
Other assets/{liabilities) (15) {14) {29) {5) 18) [23)
Convertible bond 85 - [ 83 - 83
EPRA nel assehs 885 672 1,557 BO4 590 1,394

* A neconcikation of the IFRS baionce sheet 1o EPRA net assets is set out in section 2.2 of the financiol statements

The proportion of our property portfolio that is income generating is 2%, up from 89% at December 2015, with 8% now under
developmenl. With the compietion of the LSAY devealcpment pipeline, the majority of development achivity relates to wholly-owned
assets. We will continue to manage the development weighting of our balance sheet and expect it to remain at around these
levels, well within our intemal cop of 20% going forward.
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Unite investment portiollo analysis at 31 December 2014

whally Unite
USAF owned Loase Tokal share
London Value [£m) 351 265 425 - 1,74 988
Beds 2014 5861 1,989 2680 10,124 4TR,
Maijor provincial value (£Em) 1,584 44 440 - 2,048 824
Beds 20.656 331 5914 2,577 29.478 0%
Provincial Value [Em} 322 - 197 - 519 n
Beds 4,804 - 3,253 1.059 2,118 13%
Total Valye (£m} 2.257 1,009 1,061 - 4,327 2,085
Beds 27,474 6192 11,156 3.8% 48,718 100%
Unite ownership share 23% 50% 100% -
Unlie ownaership (Em) 519 505 1,061 - 2,085

The investment portfolio [see-through) is split between London (47%) and the rest of the UK (53%), broadly in line with previous years,
The regional focus of our development pipeline means that the London weighting is ikety 1o fall to around 35% as the portfolio is built out.

Student accommodation ylelds
The level of transactions in the student
accommadation sector has remained
high in 2014 following the unprecedentsd
levels seen in 2015, with over £3 billion of
assats trading during the yeor. The majority
of buyers have been supported by giobal
institutional capital. An element of
uncertainty in the few months following
the EU referendum in June was replaced
with confidence in the market with a high
volume of portfolios and assets trading

in the second half of the vear.

As aresult of the investor appetite and
subsaquent transactions, there has been
a modest level of viekd compression
across the sector. This yield compression
hos been reflected in our portfolio and
the average yield lon a see-through
basis) at 31 Deceamber 2016 was 5.45%,
an Inword movement of nine basis

points over the year.
Indicative valuation yields

31 0wc 2014 3i Cac 2015
London - 45-50% 45525%
Prime provinciol $.25-5.78%  5.35-58%
Provincial $.0-6.5% 6.0-6.5%

Development activity
Development activity continues to be

a significant driver of growth in NAY and
future eamings, We ara continuing 1o see
opportunities to selectivety secure sites
for delivery in 2019 and 2020 in strong
regional locations alongside high-quality
Universities within our target mnge

of 8.0-8.5% vield on cost. Returns on
potentiol new projects in London shill
remain below our hurdie rate of 7.0%

due principally fo higher alternative

use values for prospective sites and
planning levies. and we have not saen
the comaction in lkand prices that were
anficipated filowing the EU referendum.

2014 and 2017 completions

We completed five schermes during 2014
in line with budget ond programme. Over
70% of these beds are let to Universities
under nominations ogreernents for the
2016/17 ocademic year, with an average
duration of 10 years.

The 2017 pipeline is progressing well.

We are on track o defiver three wholly-
owned schemes in Edinburgh. Liverpool
and Caventry and, in USAF, tweo forward
funded developmantsin Oxford and
Edinburgh, odding a fotal of 2,200 beds.
We expect all of the schermes fo ba fully
let tor the 2017/18 academic year.

Reglonol developmant pipeline

During the year, we have continued to
grow our 2018 and 2019 regional pipeline
ond have now secured a tota) of eight
schemes which are expecied to defliver
approximalely 4,800 beds in addifion

to our ongoing 2017 projects, All new
regional develkopments are being
undertaken wholly on balonce sheet
and prospective raturns for the secured
pipefing ore very attractive at an averoge
8.5% yield on cast.

Planning is now in piace on all of the
schemes in the pipelfine [with the
exception of the Old BRI site in Bristol
which is expected o receive consent
in the first haif of 2017}. During the year,
wea have reorganised the phasing

of deliveries in 2018 and 2019, with
Aberdeen aond Bristol being pushed
back to 2019 and 8imingham and
Sheffield accelerated o 2018, This will
ensyre a balanced level of activity
across the two yaars.
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PROPERTY REVIEW
CONTINUED

$ecured development plpeline (wholly owned)

rotal Tolal Fonseast
cormpleled  deveiopmant opex n Capex FOnacost NAY ekl
Secured beds volue CO81% perog remanng amanYng Oft oSt
No £m £m £m Em ]
2017 completions
St Leonards Edinburgh 581 64 41 15 13 g 9.5%
Millennium Point Coventry 3 u 24 12 12 4 85%
Tara House Liverpoot 778 &5 44 24 13 -] 7.3%
2018 complations
Newgate Street Newcashe 575 44 7 7 b 8 85%
Brunel House Bristol 232 28 2 1 1o 5 8%
Chaucer House Portsmouth 484 41 33 [} T 26 ] 8,{}%—‘
$t Vincent's Sheffield 545 46 36 1 35 10 8.2%
International House  Birminghaom 586 48 38 1 7 11 B.O%
201% completions
Skethorme Liverpool 1.085 92 73 14 60 15 BO%
Old BRI Bristol 706 93 74 2 58 2 B.4%
Constitution Streat Aberdeen 00 54 40 e = 7 8.4%
fotal (wholly owned} 6,56) 411 4462 83 324 102 5%

' Subject to oitaining plenning consent.

Secured forward tund pipeline (USAF)
USAF has secured two assets on g forward fund basis in Oxford and Edinburgh. These acquisitions are consistent with its sirategy
fo increase exposure to high quality Universities ang to expand its presence in markets o ioke advantage of scale.

Whilst USAF has fully deployed its equity, USAF is making good progress with a smaltnumber of further acquisitions and could
expec! to deploy more capital, released from portfolio recycling activities info these opportunities

Sacurea compl;o:!i duva!our::nuil Coaxex Copax Forecast NAY Forecost
beds vale coAts m period remarung reHmCIning Y on Cost
No. £m £m £m £m £m %=
USAF

2017 completiony
Beech House Oxford 167 ) 18 1 8 3 63%
Lutton Court Edinburgh 237 ks 4 18 ? 4 60%
Totol USAF 404 54 47 29 17 7 &1%
Uinke share of USAF n/a 13 11 7 4 2 4.1%
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Qur development pipeine remains a source of significant future volue and eamings growth and the table below summarises its
potentialimpact on future NAV and @ornings per share:

IBustrates returns [y 2019)

Future: Fulure
NAVPS EPS
Secured regional projects wholly ownedi} 42 13
Secured USAF projects 1 -
Total secured pipeline 43 13

Assed disposals

During 2016, £52 million of assets were sold in third-party tronsactions (Unite share: £44 million]. In addition, Unite sold two whally-
owned assets in Porfsmouth and Caventry to USAF for a combined fotal of £88 milfion, taking total disposals on a see-through basis
to £114 milion. All of the assats were sold in fine with book value,

Asset disposais remain an important part of our strategy going forward to ensure that we align our portfolio with our strategy to work
witt high and mid-ranked Universities. Disposals aiso provide the capital to fund further growth in our development pipeline in 2019
and 2020. Wa remain focused on our capital discipline o balance further growth opportunities with our leverage targets and
expect to make around £150-200 million {Unite share} of disposals in 2017. In February 2017, we exchanged controcts 10 sell
regional portfolio of 4,175 beds for £295 million {Unite share £102 million] in ine with book value.

g
:
:
:

Richard Simpson
Group Property Director
22 February 2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Gostord Siraat. Coverry

GROWING AND
SUSTAINABLE

Owr sirolegic objeciive

- ©

Qur consistent strategy continues |
to deliver susiainable and growing
eamings underpinned by our
highly accretive development
pipeline, strong University
parinerships and scalable
operational platform, PRISM.
Recvuring profits increased

by 24%% and our dividend is up

by 20%. We achieved rental
growth of 3.8% increasing
earnings and NAV.

Qwr high quaiity portfolio with o wide
range of price points ana reom sizes,
sector-leading brond and services continue
o attract students and o deliver o
superior experience for students and
universities, driving sustaginable income.

PRISM is fulty implemented and delivering
improvements to custormer service and
demonstroting efficiencies of scala.

EARNINGS

Qur net operating income margin is
up o 73% and our improved overhead
efficiency of 40bbps is on frack fo meet
target of 25-30 basis points by the end
of 2017,

We conlinue to operate a strong capital
structure maintaining LTV at 35%. Our
cost of debt has reduced to 4.2% and

a net debt 10 EBITDA ratio of §.5remains
within our targeted range of & to 7 fimes.
Qur sirong debt position means we
have limited refinancing requirsments
befonre 2020.

in Navernber 2016 at o General meeting
for shareholders, the Company's
conversion to Real Estate Investment

Trus! [REIT) status was approved, effective
on 1 January 2017, sfrengthening ihe

earnings and dividend focus of the business.

Recycling capifal through assef disposals
rermains an important part of our strategy
to maintoin capital discipline ond 1o fund
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Oiyrnpie Wary, London

further growth in our 2019 development
pipeline. In total we defivered £125 millicn
of asset disposals during the year including
the disposal of two properties to USAF

in Seplember 2014 and the disposal of
Curzon Galeway in Birminghom to HS2
under o compulsory purchase order
agreement in July 2016, in line with the
book value of the assef.

In May 2016, USAF issued £125 million

of bonds under its existing debi funding
platform established in June 2013. The
proceeds were used 10 repay secured
debt and 1o fund further growth in

the Fund.
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FOCUS ON DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH IN RECURRING PROFITS
AND CASHFLOW

Joe Lister

Chief Financial Officer and
mManaging Director of Peopie and Communications

QA

Joe Lister gddresses sorne topical questions from our sharehoiders

During the year, the Group
elected to be taxed as a REIT
with effect from 1 Jonuary 2017
The election will not change the
core business model of Unlte
Students, and we remain focused
on providing affordable purpose-
bulll student accommodation,

mlmnsm

Nl REMTs provide a way forinvestors to
access the risks and rewards of
holding property without having to buy
it directly. REITs ware intfroduced by the
Govemment in 2007 with the aim of
supporting investment in UX real estale
and HMRC has supported groups
converting to RELTs over the last ten years,

REIT status means that the Unite Group
is exempt from paying corporation tax
on profits and gains arising from its UK
property rental business. However, it will
still pay corporation bax on income
arising from any non-property reicted
activities such as management fees and
interest incorme. REM status has no effect
on VAT, starmp toxes ond employment
taxes, and REiTs continue to pay these
taxes as normal.

a What Is the Impact on
dividend paymenls?
There are strict conditions set by
HMRC for groups to remain as REITs,
including the requirsment to distribute
ot least 0% of their property profits
{as caleulatad for tax purposes which
may differ to the accounting profit] fo

sharehoiders. For UK shareholders, this
distribution is treated for tax purposes
as property rental income rather than
dividends, and overseas shareholders
suffer withholding tax at the basic rate
of tax. The net affect is that the taxation
of property income is moved from

the REIT to the shareholder thereby
allowing tax efficiency while pratecting
the UK Exchequer.

The tox-exempt property profits that are
distributed to shareholders are known
as Property income Distributions {PIDs}).

A REIF can atsa distribute post-tax profits
from its othar activities, known as a
Non-Property Income Distributions
{non-PIDs}. Any one distribution from

a REIT may be solely PIDs, solely non-PIDs
or a rmixtyre of the two,

In line with REIT conversion the dividend
pay-out ratio will be increased to 75%
of 2017 adjusted EPRA earmmings.

NN Why is Unlte Sludents becoming
il o REIT?

R Unite Students holds a large

B portioio of student accommodation
and has a sirong dividend. Ifs business
is therafore akeady well suited to
becoming a REIT which provides a
tax efficient environment for property
investrment groups that meet a dividend
reguirement. Conversion o a REIT will
enable Unite to continue with its core
business whilst increasing its investment
in its property postfolio and growing
the return to shareholders. It con do
this without needing to consider the

impocts of tax on disposals of capital
assets and while offering an effective tax
Iransparent environment to investors in
relation o its property income.

As o REI, Unite is able to attract a wider
pocl of investors, most especially those
whao are exempt from fax in the UK who wil
nolonger indirectty suffer fax at the level of
the group. In addition, the concept of

a REH is widely understood and valued
by the global investor community.

What is the Impact in 2014 for Unite
Students of RENT conversion?

The Group has historically been

required under Internationa!
Accounting Standards 1o recognise
a deferred tax liability n respect of
increases to the market value of its
investmant properties. This deferred iax
liability is not tax that the Group owes,
butinstead is an accounting provision
for estimated tax that could become
payabile were the Group o sellits
investment properties in the future
{on the excess of market value over
the amount originally paid). As a REIT,
such gains will be exempt from UK
corporation tax and hence no provision
for defered toxis required o be
recognised. The provision at 1 January
2016 has therefore been released during
the yaar. The Group has still provided for
the potential defered tox kability relating
to assets that ore not exempt as a REIT
{including investments in joint ventures)
at the balance sheet date where it is
expected that the timing difference witl
give rise 1o toaable profils as it unwinds.

Q
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

Income stotement and

profit measures

A tull reconciliation of profit before tax
10 EPRA earnings measures is set out in
summary bekww and in full in section 2
of the financial staternents.

216 015
tm £m

Adjusted EPRA eamirngs 613 495
EPRA earnings 427 613
Vaivation gains and
pProfit/loss on disposal 1363 346
Changes in vaiuation
of interest rate swaps
ond debt break costs {1.0) 0.3
Minority interest
ond fax included
in EPRA earnings 4 22
Profit betore tax 2004 3884
Adjusted EPRA
eamings per share 7.7p Np
anicecmingsperme 101.3p 1442p

EPRA eamings of £62.7 million 1o

31 Decemier 2016 [2015: £61.3 milion) is
stated ofter deducting tax charges, share
option costs and obortive/pre-contract
davelopment spend of £5.5 million.

The significant reduction in profit bafore
tox is primarily the result of a lower level
of ynreclised valuation gains of
£1364.3 million being recognised in 2016
compared with the £324.4 million
recognised in 2015.

Cashflow and net debt

The Operations business generated
£61.3 million of net cashin 2016 {2015:
£40.8 milion) and see-through net debt
increased marginally to £774 milion
(2015: £731 million}. The key componeants
of the movement in see-threugh net debt
ware the operctfional cashifiow and the
disposal programme (generating lotal
infiows of £175 million) offset by total
capital expenditure of £158 milion and
dividends pqic of £34 million, n 2017,

we expect net debt to increase by

o similar jevel as capital expenditure

oh Investment and development activity
will exceed anticipated asset disposals.

Dividend

Wea are increasing our dividend pay-out
level fo 75% of EPRA earnings [excluding
USAF performance fees) and are
recommending a fully cavered final
dividend payment of 12.0 pence per
share (2015 9.5 pence). making 18.0
pence for the full year {2015 15.0 pence).
Subject 1o approval at Unite's Annual

General Meeting on 11 May 2017, the
dividend will be paid on 19 May 2017
ta sharehokders on the register at close
of business on 21 April 2017,

Tax and REIT conversion

During the year, the Group elected to
convert ta REIT status with effect from

1 January 2017. This has resulted in the
relaase of the provision for defered

tax on property business assets totalling
£41.) million os disposols of investment
property, as a RET, will be exempt from
tax. The remaining deferred fax ligkility
relating to unrealised gains on joint
veniure investments of £17.2 million, which
ore not exempt frorm tox, exceeds the
deferred tax assed relating to tax adjusted
losses carried forward of £11.8 million.

As the losses can be set against gains as
they arise, the deferred tax asset relating
10 the losses con be recognised in full
cgoinst deferred tax liabitities.

Certain getivities, primarily the invesiment
management of joint ventyres, whilst
expected to foll within the limits of the
balance of business tests, wiltinCur o tax
charge which we expect to be in the
region of £2-3 million per gnnum.

Debt firancing

During the period, we have maintained
our focus on controlling gearing levels,
extending dabt maturities and minimising
financing costs:

Key debl statistics (see-through baosis)

201 x5
Net debt E776m £731m
LTV % 35%
Net debtEBITDA
ratio 4.5 49
Average debt

" maturity A.7years 5.6 vyears
Average cost of
dedt 42% 4.5%
Propertion of
investment debt ot
fined rate 100% 0%

The Group's see-through LTV improved
to 34% at 3t December 2014, from 35%
at the end of 2015 as aresutt of the value
growth of the portfolio exceeding the
increase in net dabt. We will continue

to manage our gearing proactively and
intend to maintain our LTV around the
mid-30% level going forward, assuming
currant yields. With greater focus on the
earnings profile of the business. we are
also new monitoring our net debt to
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EBITDA ratio, which was 4.5 fimes in 2014
and we plan fo keep this in line with
current lavels going forward.

Interest rate hedging
arangementis and cost of debt
Our see-through cost of debt has
reduced to 4,2% {2015: 4.5%) as we have
secured additional debt on our recent
compiations and refinancing in USAF at
historically iow levels. The Group has 100%
of its see-through investment debt subject
to a fixed interest rate {2015: $0%) for an
average termn of 4.9 years.

Convertible bond

The Group's £30 million convertible band
is due to moture in October 2018, Under
the ferms of the bond., earty conversion
of the debt info equity could be triggered
by us fram Oclober 20146 onwaras if

the shore price frades over 1.3 timeas

the convension price for Q period of time,
The initial convarsion price of £5.10 has
reduced fo £4.88 following share placings
and dividend payments and therefone
EPRA NAV has bean prepared on the
basis that the bond will convert in the
future. This has resulled in NAV dilution

of 15 pence per share as at 31 December
2046, Conversion woutd result in around

a 4% point reduction in LTV.
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Urvle
Property Net Cthet Net share
Qssets debl assets s of NAY Tokal
£m Erm £m £m £Em retum Maturty Unite shore
Vehicle
USAF 2.288 {714) {51} 1.523 352 % Infinite 23%
LSAV 1,009 (354} {15} &40 320 15% 2022 S0%
Funds and joint ventures The asset management fees from both

The table above summarises the key
financiak for each vehicle.

USAF and LSAV have continued o
perforrm well in 2016, LSAV's fofal refurn

is driven by stronger capital growth from
developrment relurns.

USAF cumently does not have any
acquisition capacity following the farward
fund acquisitions and acguisitions from
Unite mode in the year. but will contfinue
fo monitor acquisition opporiunities
funded by capital recycling.

Fees

During the yeor, the Group recognised net
feeas of £21.2 million {2015: £35.2 million}
from its fund and asset management

activities as follows:

014 05

tm £m

USAF .
Asset
managernent fee 10.0 8.7
Acguisition fee 04 18
Net
performance fee 45 202
LSAY
Asset and property
monagement fee 4.0 3.3
Devslopment
management f_ee 1.0 1.9
Tolal fees 21.9 35.9

* A ful breakdown of the net performoence
fae 15 In note 3.4(c) of the notes to the:
finoncial statements.

USAF and LSAV have increased as a result
of the growth in the portfolios under
management during the yeor generated
by acquisitions and vakiation growth,

A total performance fee of £8.1 million
was earned and will be pad in unils
during the first quarter of 2017. The net
fee recognised of £6.5 million is after
deducting £1.1 miliion, which represents
the Group’s share of the performance
fee paid by USAF and after advisory costs
of £0.5 miilion, The level of the fee is
sensitive to moverments in property
valuctions and is therefore significantly
lower than in 2015 due to the high level of
yielkd compression in 2015, Afier payment
of the fee, our stake in USAF will rermain

at 23%.

Joe Lister
Chiet Financial Officer
22 February 2017
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Up touS

Our ambifion is o create homes
to support the development

ol future generations of dynamic
and successiul graduates,
equipped to make posiiive social
and economic coniributions.
We have a unique opportunity
to make a valuable conkibution
to soclety by helping our 49,000
students every yearto leam,
adopt and develop responsible
living habits. The management
of, and accountabiiity tor,
ourimpact onourworid Is
embedded as par of our
day-to-day operations.

UP

uS

I has aiways been important to Unite to act
as aresponsible business. Our first buildings
were renovations of existing vacant
properties in Bristol where there was a lack
of good quality student accommedation.

In 2016 we starfed work on a new
responsiole business strategy. called Up
to uS, addressing the key sustainability
issues affecting our business and supply
chains. Up fo uSis a plan designed

to equip us for a future in which our
retevance to students will depend on our
ability to help them protect their world.

Up to uS will deliver sustainable value

for our stakeholders and moke us the
leading sustainabile purpose-built
accommodation provider. However,

we want to go turther than being the most
sustoinabie business in our sector. Fulher
even than making ongoing improverments
to what we do as we grow and the world
evolves. Ultimalely our goal is o use our
business fo drive pesitive secial change.

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 20146
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WE'RE MAKING A POSITIVE
CONTRIBUTION TO OUR PEOPLE,
OUR UNIVERSITIES, OUR STUDENTS
AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Joe Uster

Chief Financial Officer and

managing Director of People and Communications

Up fo us underpins our unique business
model to create long-term value through
the effective use of resources and
relationships. It is driven oy the same
strategic priorifies as our business model;
to be the most rusted brang, to have the
highest quality pertfolio ond strongest
Caopital structure.

Uy to us covears four main themes:

Great workploce 435

The environment &5

Social impact 48

Trustad pariner 48
Great wotkplace

We want to create an inclusive and
positive workplace for all of our people.

Highlights and key commiimaents

In 2016 we received investor in People
Gold Aword and our target now is to
achieve investor in People Platinum
by 2020.

We investad £110.000 intc a programme
for paid interns, supporting current
students fowards employability and
giving our employees opportunities to
work directly with students, gaining
valuable insights into ther worlds.

Qur pricrities in this area are:

Diversity and Inclusion

Wa believe that inclusivity and diversity
across the organisation is crifical 1o our
continued success. Our empilayees are
from many different backgrounds and
have diverse experiences. perspectives
and skils. We airm fo have a workforce
that is fruly representative of all sections
of society, whene each employee feels
respected and able to give their best.
Unite Students will promote o culture

of equality and fairness for alland
ensure no person acting on our

behalf sha!l discriminate in any
situgtion agoinst ancther individual

or group, directty orindirectly.

in 2016 we conducted our first
company-wide Diversity Survey and
the insights provided by this will help
inform the development of policies
and working proctices.

Coreer endichment

We have cregted g comprehensive
range of training courses and
development programmes for our
employees at alllevels. These are
focused on technical skills, parsonal
development ond monagement
competences. Our leadership fremework
inchudes programmes such as Becoming
@ Supervisor, Becoming a Manager and
a leadership development programme,

Wellbelng

The heglth and wellbeing of our
employeas ks critical to creating
sustainable performance. In 2016 we

introduced o weilbeing portal on our
infrane, providing advice and tips to
enabie employees to look after their
parsonal health, financiai and mental
wellbeing. Creating a cohesive weilbeing
strategy will be a focus for 2017.
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Humaon Rights

Unite believes that human rights are
universal and recognises that the UN
Guiding Principles on Business and
Human Rights set o standard of conduct
axpected of companies. We do our
best to ensure that everyone involved

or associated with our business is
protected, freated fairy and subject to
our Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policies,
Health and Safety Policy. and various HR
palicies including those cavering data
protection, disciplinary, perfermance
management, Rexiole working,
grievance, leave, equality and divessity.

The environment

we want to reduce our environmenial
impact and encourage respensible
behavicurin our students, employees
and suppliers,

Highlights and commitments

In 2016 we ochieved further
improvements across various matrics
including a four star rating from the
Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB), were placed in the
98th percentile of the FISEAGood index,
and were rated B for our climate change
performance by the Caorbon Disciosure
Froject {CDP). These reflect our ongoing
efforts to reduce our contribution fo
climate change, and improve our
broader environmental performance.
We were shorilisted for the 2014 Energy
Awards and the 2017 EDIE Sustainability
Awards for our behavioural change and
engagement programme,

Our environmental strotegy focuses on
four main objectives, which together hejp
us reduce our three matericl environmental
impacts: energy and carbon; water; and
resource use and waste.

In 2014 we pledged to develop a
science-based carbon reduction target.
in line with the Poris Climate Agreement
fo limit worming to kess than two degrees,
and have been working with the Science

Based Targelts Initiative [SBT) fo set
an ambitious and credible target.

We have also set a range of targets fo
help reduce our other environmential
impacts foo:

> We signed up fo the intemational
RE100 scheme, committing to buy
100% renewabie energy by 2020

> We are warking to a target of doubling

our energy productivity by 2032 under

the internationa! EP100 programme,

meaning we will halve our energy

consumption per bed

We aim to send zero waste to Jandfill

fram our sites by 2025

Al new buildings opaning from 2018 on

willachieve a BREEAM ‘Excelient’ rating

> By 2020 we will aim to effectively
engage 50% of our students every
year with sustainability campaigns
while living with us.

v

v

Sustainable bulidings

Building on our Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) survays and
Energy Performance Cerfificate update
in 2015, we are producing individual
oction pians for each of our bulldings

to identify the full range of energy and
water efficiency opporiunities, Over 2017
we will bring this into a coordinated plan
aiming to daliver significant energy and
water efficiency improvements. As well
as complying with the 2018 minimum
energy efficiency standards and the
2019 ESOS deadline, this will deliver
significont carbon reductions across our
existing estate. Ahead of this we have
continued our ongoing £21 rillion LED
lighting upgrade, and installed a range
of new technologies to understand how
best to achieve the energy and waler
efficiency improvements, During 2016 we
deployed wireless networked building
confrals, installed PV panels ond Qir-source
heat pumps, and assessed aronge of
other potential technologies including
demand side responsg and battery
storage. This activity has helped deliver
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a 10% reduction in energy per bed from
2014-2015 and a 4.8% reduction from
2015-2016.

Sustalnobls behaviour

Our Up to vl Sustainability Engagement
Programme is now in its third year, and
seeks 10 deliver lasting Changes in
behaviour towards more environmentally
responsibla living and working habits. wWe
see this as o unique opportunity to help
our students adopt enduring sustainable
living habits that stay with them after they
move on from Unite Students, creating a
legacy of positive environmental impact.
Aligned with the NUS Green Impact
Awards, the programme uses individual,
tocal and national initiotives 1o maximise
engagement. During the 2015/16
ccademic year we recruited more than
120 student volunieers to help us deliver
a range of activities fo roise awareness
of sustainable living choices, Going inte
2016/17 we launched our Pledge for
Good campaign which includes
commitments to follow sustainable
behaviours that could deliver more

than 30 tonnes of carbon reduction.

Susiainable Construction

As weli as impraving the existing estate.
we are also committed to making sure
aur new buikdings deliver high standards
of energy efficiency and envirenmental
performance, and help our students
live more responsibly and sustainably,
From 2017 onwards all of our new builds
will gtimn for an *Excelient’ raling under
the widealy used BREEAM envircnmental
assessment methodology.

Susioinable Energy

As wall as improving energy efficiency,
we gre looking at how best fo use
renawable energy to further educe
our carbon emissions. Over 2017 we will
be locking at a mnge of short and long
term options to identify the best way

to use credible renewable energy to
racucea our footprint and deliver wider
business benefits.

Caiculation of market based emissions lactor for grid electricity sypplied under contract

Carbon Dionde

Suppier's resdual armsuons for eaach  Resdual Fuel M x CO,

foed mux fustsounce emasons

Prmary enevgy Source used lor generchion %) [kg/kWh} {kgwn)
Coal 16 091 01454
Natural Gas &b 039 0.2574
Nuclear | o] 4]
Renewables 16 o] 0
Qther Fuels | 0.59 0.0059

Overall emissions factor

0.4089 kgCO2/kWh
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Corbon
Contributions
Change v Change v3
W14 X5 PNOF yeor 16 prior yeor
Year end bed numbers 43039 45,447 5.59% 48,437 7.02%
Carbon contributing bed numbers 39.125 43,084 10.02% 45,925 6.60%
Carbon contributing floor areg (m?) 1.097.060 1.207.804 10.07% 1,282.018 4.14%
Energy ond waler consumption
2014 2015 2014
Changavs Ch-v s
Consumphon Consumgtion pnoryear  Cormsumplion prior yeor
Electricity Absolute (kWh) 111,948911 110,948,791 0.89% 112,524,053 1.42% o
Reiative fo bed numbers [kWh/bed) 2841314 2575154 -1000%  2.450.108 A85% g
Relative 1o floor area (kWh/m?} 102045 91.860 - 98% 87.771 -4 45% %
Natural gas Absolute [kWh) 23328332 26.977.762 15.44% 29075659 7.78% a
Reiative fo bad numbers (kwh/bed) 596.251 626,162 9.57% $33.09% 0.02% §
Relofive fo fioor area (kWh/m?) 21,264 22.33% 5.04% 22.680 1.54% g
Woter Absolute (m?) 1,819,569 221820 NN% 8
Reiative to bed numbers im*/bed} 42.233 48.300 14.37%
Relative to floor area
(/) 1.507 1.730 1485%
Greenhouse gas emissions
2014 215 200
Change vs Change va
Consumption Consymphon Pnor yedr Consumphion BrIOr Yoo
-
T‘::?' §C:SPG ! Absolute (tonnes CO) 4393764 537305 229% 575032 7.02% 2
emisto Relative to bed numiers (fonnes COe/bed) o 0.12 11.05% 013 0.40% g
Relative 1o floor area (kg CO.e/m?) 4.0050 4.4484 11.068% 4.4054 0.83% g
Total Scope 2 Absolute {fonnes CO-e) 5602597 5238217 4.50%  47.352.15 -9.40% &
emissions Relative to bed numbers {tonnes COse/bed) 1.43 1.2 B.00% 1.03 -1277% a
focotion based) ) -
Relgtive 1o fioor area (kg CO.e/m?) 51.0692 43.3698 -1508% 34.9356 -14.84% <
Total Scope 2 Absolute ftoannes CO-e) 48,488.98 46,997.70 -3.08%
'f_:“‘io:‘sba soct Relative o bed numbers {fonnes CO,e/bed) 113 1.02 -8.38%
moxke! ) Relative to floor area (kg CO.e/m?) 40.1484 38.4592 BER
Total Scope Absolute (fonnes CO.8) £.41973 577557 -401% 5310247 -8.04%
! i;i G:T““‘ggsed Relative fo bed numbers {lonnes CO,e/bec] 1.54 1.34 4.14% 116 A051%
ocationbased] ¢ iative fo floor orea fkg COe/m?) 550742 478184  3U7% 414210 -13.38%
Total Scope Absolute {tannes COe) 53,862.03 52,748.02 <207T%
1+2 amissions Relative ta bed numbers tonnes CO.e/bed)] 1.25 115 5T9%
{market based) , g
Relative to floor area (kg COe/m? 44,5950 41.1445 -7.74% @
Total Scope 3 Absclute (tonnes CO) 1480220  15486.29 462% 1548629 -1.74% %
elé“c'”;?’“ba od Relative to bed numbers ffonnes CO.a/bed) 0.38 0.36 -4.99% 0.36 -7.82% 3
1on
focationbased] o iive o floor area (kg CCe/m| 134926  12.8219 497% 12079 -5.79% E
=

* Scope | emissions include gas consumplicn and business vehicles use.
* Scope 2 emussions nclude grid electricity ond heat

Scope 3 emissions include supply chain emissions such as water and poper use, business travel, and energy supply chain emissions {transmission
and distnibuhion losses and well-to-tank emissions).

Location based emissions are calculated using DEFRA 2014 emissions foctors.
* "parbed" emissons use pro rofa bed numbers, taking into account the length of ime the site Wos under our wnearship.
Market based emissions are colculated using market bosed emissons facky based on suppier's stated residual fuel mix shawn below:
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RESPONSIBLE

BUSINESS REVIEW

CONTINUED

Scope 1 and 2 emissions have been
cdicviated in fine with the DEFRA
Environmenta! Reporting Guidelines
2013. DEFRA 2015 emissions foctors
have been used, except for market
bosed amissions which have been
cailcuiated using an emissions factor
reflective of our electricity suppiier's
generation mix as shown bedow:

Scope 112 CO,e emissions per bed

Scope 152 CO,e emisslons per m#

More details on our environmental
strategy and impacts are availoblke on
our website and will be updated over
2017 along with more details of our wider
approach to Up o us.

The table on page 47 summaorises

our carbon footprint compared o the
previous two years. Although energy
efficiency improved, a 6% increase in
total bed numbers resulted in an guesall
1.4% increase in electricity consumption.
Gas consumption also rose by 7.6% due
to more widespread use of gas in newer
apenings compared 1o older properties
that typically use electricity for heating.
Despite this, however, our carbon
footprint shrank: changes 1o the DEFRA
carpon emtissions factorsin 2016 maant
aur combined location-based Scope 1+
Scope 2 carbon footprint shrank by 8% in
absolute terms, or 10.5% per bed. The
reduction in our cbsolute and per-bed
market-based Scope 1 + Scope 2 footprint
wos 2% and 6.8% respectively, with the
smaller reduction here driven by chonges
in our supplier's net generatfion mix.

Soclal impact

Delivering posifive impacts o help young
people succeed in Higher Education
and build sustainabla fives,

Highlights and commitments

In 2016, we donated £2 million o charities,
inchuding the Unite Foundation and our
charity of the yaor Sport Relief. More than
33% of our ermployees volunteerad with
local communities,

Theseg are our prioritias:

Community

QOur students ond employees have o
crucial roie in shaping thefr communities.
and have a more enriching experience
by being integrated with locol residents
and groups. Over the forthcoming years,

we are commiitted to daing even more
with gur commuynities through use of our
properties, giving support to community
groups and collaborating further with
Universities ond students’ unions. We want
to use the research we commission in our
annual Insight Report to help develop
meaningful engagement with young
people in the communities we operate

in fo help prepare them kor University life.

Charlty

Supporting charifabile organisations is

af the heart of our values at Unite

Students. we believe we have o unigue
opportuniy 1o help raise owaoreness of
charitable giving to the fulure generation
of charitoble givers, while akso providing |

a great opportunity for engagemant
between our employeas, students and
Universitios alke. We are commitied to
supporting charftable organisations that
are aligned ta our business, whether this
is through cash or in kind donations.

Volunteering

Volunteering provides o briliont basis fox
angogement with the locol communities,
giving valuable resouwce and expertise
10 organisations to really make a tangible
ditference, while also developing skills,
team building and increasing motivation
for those taking pari, In just two years,

our employee volunteering scheme has
achieved more than a 30% participation
rate and we are committed fo continuing
10 grow this in future years, with particular
focus on skils-matched volunteering.
Alongside this, we absclutely recognise
the opportunity to develop student
volunieering opportunities. While done
an a smoll scole curentty through

our NUS Gresan Impact scheme, we
orelooking to develop this 5o that

it becomaes scolable, providing
opportunities for students whather

they are looking to do this to develop
empicyability skills, or Just to give their
support to a great couse.

Trusted pariner

We qim o develop trusted and open
ralationships with our investors as well s
Universities and other stakeholders who
partner with us. This is fundamental fo
our long term sustainability.

Highlights and commitmenis

In 2016 we were recognised In the
Buiding Public Trust Awards for our
strategic reporting. We were aiso
oworded Business of the Year 2016 by
the Brisiol POSY, in our nome City. We cre
committed to maintaining the highest
stondards of transparency and integrity
in cur raporting and our relationships.

Priorities

> Maintaining high ESG ratings, with

indices such as FISE4Good and GRESB,

In 2016 we received a FTSE4Good ESG

Rating ICB Supersectior Relative

Percentiie Scome 98, with 100 being

the highest possible. We achieved

Greenstar status for the third

consecutive year, increasing our

2016 score 1o 71, from 66 in 2015

Building longer ferm commercially

sustainable relationships with our

niversity pariners and increasing

our Higher Education trust score

» Developing o more susicinable suppty
chain, working with suppliers certified
by the CIPS Sustainability Index,

W
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Affordabillty

Unite Students recognises that going

o Univenity now represents o big
investment for students, and their
accommodation needs represent a
significant component of those costs. We
have a responsibility to ensure that the
living environment we offer our students
represents good quality accommodation
at the best possitle value for money.

To meet the students’ needs, we offer

4 choice of roorm types at different price
Roints, in purpase built envionments, which
include common spaces and, wherever
possible, o quiet study rom, outdoor space
and even a gym. Our proposition further
differs from traditional Homes of Mulfiple
Qccupancy (HMO) properties, where
we believe we represent petter value in
g nurmbaer of key areas. These include not
charging booking or administration fees,
and offering G range of exible payrment
plans. Our rents also include a range of
valug-added components such as
all-inclusive utility bills; high-speed
broadband access; a forinightly cleaning
service for shared spaces; best-in-class
contents insurance; on-sie laundry service;
24-hour security; a 24-hour helpling service
centre; and discounts with well-known high
street retaiers.

For schoiars from the most challenging
backgrounds, the Unite Foundation was
established in 2012 to provide assistance
o those who might not otherwise be able
o attend University. Working with 10
Universities across the UK, the Foundation
provides free accommodation and is
currently supporting 128 active scholars.

]

CREATING AN

ENGAGING
ENVIRONMENT

in seffing our rents, we will continue

to routinaly work with Universities®
accommaodation services, through
nominations agreamaents and more widely,
to ensure that the tiving envircnment

we offer our students represents the best
possible volue for money.

The Unife Foundation

Unite Studenis is the founder of ond

a major donor Yo the Unite Foundotion,

a charity thal helps undergraduates who
lack family support, The Foundation
providas its scholars with occommodation
throughout their stucly years and
applicants are selecied by the Universities
towhich they apply from the 10 Universities
which port of the Foundation programme.
Established in 2012, the Foundaotion

has supporfed 179 people fo dafe

and currentty has 128 active scholars.

The end of the 2015/18 academic year
saw 18 Foundation scholars graduate.

Unite Students hosted a Foundation
Fundraiser at the Natural History Museum
in 2016 to celebrate its 25th anniversary.
Guests heard from 2018 Faundation
graduale Emily Drew about her experience.
Unite Students itself donated o further

£5 million to the Foundationin 2016, The
donation took the torm of an investment
in the Unite Student Accommaodation
Fund [USAF] in order to give the
Foundation greater kang term security.

Qur 2014 Strategic Report from page
110 page 49 has been reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors on
22 February 2017.

Jose lister
Chief Financlal Officer
22 Fabruary 2017
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

TO GOVERNANCE
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A GOOD GOVERNANCE
CULTURE SITS AT THE HEART
OF GROWING LONG TERM
SUSTAINABLE EARNINGS

Phil White
Chagirman

I'm pleased to present our Corporate
Governance Report on behalf of the
Boaord. 2016 nas been a busy year. The
Leave vote hos led to a dynamic external
market while in parallel — as we celebrate
Unita's 25th anniversary — we are seeing

a maturing PBSA sector.

Swccession planning and corporate
cutture has been o focus in 2014. We had
a change in Chief Exacutive, with Richard
Srmith taking over from Mark Allan affer

17 years with Unite, 10 as CEQ, as well as
the Group converting to a REIT effective

1 Jonuary 2017,

The Board's governance rote has focused
on the impact of change in the wider

economy, while ensuring we are prepared
for change in the Higher Education and
PBSA sector. This preparation includes our
substantial investment in technology -
roling out our scalable operating platform
PRISM —as well as ensuring our developrment
pipeling is well funded.

Qur governance framework is designed
to help us navigate these external and
intermail changes. it is imperative the
Beard is able to provide the necessary
oversight and challenge 1o secure the
Group's long lerm sustainaible success,
building on all we have learnt in our 25
years, and the following pages provide
insight as to how we are doing this.



THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNT; 2816
1o

Goavermance overview underpinned by the Corporate Govemance Code

Geovernance framework

Qur governance framework,
ynderpinned by the Corporgte
Govemance Code, is designed to
support our strategy and ensure
our long term sustainable success.
Similar to our risk managernent
framework {described on

pages 22 1o 25), our govemance
frarework is driven by an open
and collaborative Board and
brogder Unite Students Culfure,
creoting an environment for
people to have confidence to
chollenge the norm. For example,
we now consider proceeding with
certain site acqguisitions not
conditional on planning, provided
cerfain planning risk threshoids are
sotisfied. Below and on the next
two pages, we descrithe how
governance has supported our
strategy during 2016 and how thisis
linked to our principal risks. We olso
describe our governance priorities
for 2017,

Accountabiifty

The internal controls and the
Audit Committee Report (pages
86 1o 69). together with our risk
managerment kamework and
principal risks (poges 22 to 29),
describe how we ensure g fair,
baianced and understondable
assessment of Unite's position and
prospects, the assessment of our
principal risks and their alignment
with our strategic objectives and
how we maintain an oppropriate
relationship with Deloitle,

our externat auditors, consistent
with the Code and statutory
requirements.

Leadership

On pages 54 and 55, we describe the
composition of Ihe Board expigining
their skills and expenence. On pages
57 to 61 we expiain how the Board
operates as an effective board,
colectively responsible for the
long-term systainable success of
Unite, the clear division of responsibiliies
of the Board and the role of the:
non-executive directors to
constructively chaenge and
develop our strategy.

Remuneration

The Unite remuneration policy and
implementation chart {page 75)

and Remuneration ot a glance

chart {page 76} provide an overview
of this comptlex crea. together with
the detaied Remuneration Report
{pages 73 1o 95) describing how we
ensure Executive Director rermunesation
is designed to promote the long-term
success of the Company and how we
develop our remuneration golicy.

Effectiveness

Pages 62 and 63 describe how

our govemance framework ensures
the effectiveness of the Board.
Recognising how critical corporate
culture is to effectivaness and
sustainable success, during 2016
our Board evaluation focused on
armong other things) our corporate
culture and governance
leadership. in addition, in a year
when the CEQ rale transiioned,
Richard Smith's induction as the
incoming CEQ has been critically
important to develop his Chief
Executive skitk and ralationships
and ensure a smooth transition.
The Nomination Committee
Report {pages 64 and &5) describes
how we manage our succassion
planning, our broader igadesship
development, our approach

o diversity and inclusivity ond

how we ensure we have a deep
talent pipealine.

Shareholder relations
and engagement

Page 56 describes how we engage
with shareholders, which during
2016 included a Capital Mdarkets
Day in April, which allowed
investors fo see our Coventry
portfolio and development
pipeline and the opportunity to
interact with our digital operating
platform. PRISM. and then a second
Capital Markets Day in December
in London dermonsirating how
PRISM improves and streamiines
our operations, We also describe

in pur Remunerotion Report (pages
73 to 95) how we have engaged
with shareholders during 2014

on our Remuyneration Policy and
executive remuneration.

Hoda oiBejoyg
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CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION
TO GOVERNANCE

CONTINUED

How governance supported our strategy during 20146
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Strolegic: Unk jo
objechive Boand’'s QOVeTTaNCe ke Principal Bsk 2013 Board activity
Greal service PRISM 24 Readmore  BOFdraviaw of cur digitalstrategy.
Ovorsight on PRISM dolvery ond the Elfed ypterrisk-wpply  Oversight that PRISM defvens:
esnhonced custarmer service and operating and demand )
sticiency benefits. » A robust booking systemn
» Anmproved and scalable plattorm for revenue
management and custamer engagement
> Enhanced service levels for both Uneversities and shudents
> Markel differenhation,
L Read more” Opemtions review
AfterdabBity and volye kor money 26 P Analyss of the HE accommodation sector and ensuring we
Market risk - supply continue to offer an affordable and value for money product.
and dermand 31 Read mora: Affocdability
Health & Sately 27 Recdmore. 111 Board reviews the safety of cursiudents. visitors and
As we develop our brand through the o Homal Risk. T amployess, as well as contractors at aur development sites,
implementation of Home for Success, the risk of —Major heath & at each Board meeting.
g:;ﬁ h& st;sfe?hgﬂs: B d%rl\;\oglng o:rnr:: :;?::n satety (HAS) Incident  HAS Commitiee, a sub-committee of the Board, focus on'
health & safely, welbelng u?-nd sacurlty ol the Ina proparly ora > Hre, our biggest solety risk, and the appointment of the
49000 students who make Unite Students their  CoYeicpment dhe Avor Fire Authosity as our Pimary Authorty lead
homa Is critical bo the Group's continued success * m mf:m';:’:xﬂh 'h;m:"'m"ngr
nd trusted reputation.
“ Py 3 Physical security review of our properties by WSP Pamors
Brinckerhoft,
T Read more: HAS Committes repart
Home for Success 26 Reod moke Board review of the ongomg implementation aof the £40 mifion
Chollanging tha substanticl invesiment in Mome Moriowt risk - wpply Home for Success reinvesiment programme. Sirategic raview
for Success and how i is fronsiating into real and and demand of tha next phase of Horme for Success to ensure the Group
improved cusiomer experniences and stronger continues to dafiver improved customer experlence in an
University reiationships. increasingly competitive marketpiace
30 Reod more: Operafion review
Brilkqnt Developmant pipeiine 28 Readmore: Board ansuned dedivery during 2014 of live new developments,
properties Boand scnutiny of city and site selection for naw Property/ " representing 3,082 beds on programme and budget. 2,000
deveioprments ogolmst bockdrop of ncreasing Developrment fisk o these secured with long term nominations.
competttion for the best sites. Governance of 34 Read more:
‘acquisiions to ersure they run fo Property review
budget and scheduia and are eamings accretive
Yiekd
2016PCs Back on cost
Staplaton House 842 89%
Olymplc Way. Wermblay 499 a8%
Gosford Gate, Coventry 284 90%
Greetharn S, Portsmouth 836 %3%
Couseway View. Abardeen %9 8%
Tolal 3.082 1%
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-
Key
rategic Unk ta
objective Soord's QOvEmAancs roke Principal Xisk 2014 Boord Ochivity
Brilliant PFroperty disposols 28 Read . Board ensuring further growth through deneloprnent activity.
properties Board oversight on dsposak  ensuing voive Property markat T During 2014, towr schemes exchanged and five planning
oblained ond proceedsrecyciad etficientty. cycle sk consents. 2,152 beds due for defvery n 2017 and good
progress on cur devetopment and funds pipeiine.
2 Read more. Development pipeline
Yiela
2017 PCs Becs oncost
Developments
St Laonard’s Edinburgh 581 5%
Millennium View, Coventry kol 88%
Tara House. Liverpool 776 ?2.3%
1.748 3%
Forwand tunds (USAF)
Booech House, Oxford 167 0%
Luton Count, Ecinburgh nr 6.1%
Tobal 2,152
Growing ond Capital siruciure 29 Read more. QAngoing 8oard review ol cur Capital Operating Gudelnes.
sustainable Group Board focus on a sfrong and fiexioke Anancing ek - * Confinued focus on incking In debt at historically iow rates far
eamings copital siructure, which ¢an adopt to market Unabie 1o new "CWoebt faciftties and forward starting interest swops for
condifions, and reduang and diversifying the debr or expiring debt tuture Domowings fof secured development pipefine.
cost of unding. facBies cannot be At the end of 2016
replaced or only 3 Loon-to-volua 4%
at high cosl. 3 Averoge cost of debt 4.2%.
Advers inlarest
rate movemenis 0 Reod more. Anancial review
Tax strategy/REIT conversion Board review of the Group's tax posifion and strategy Analysis
Group Board review of tax strategy for of convension ta REIT and why this is right for the Group.
publcation In 2017 and our cormvernation Qversight of gngoing REN conditions and headoom for
o a REIT. operating within the Bolonce of Business REIT tests.
41 Reod more' QLA on REIF comvernsion
2017 governance priorities » Delivery of the development Compliance with UK Corporate
> Greot service pipeline - to budget and on time quomunce Code
Student and University expeciations - with continued focus in tawns During 2016, our govarnance kamework
are constantly increasing. Governance and cifies with the sirongest was buitt on the UK Corporate

to ensure: growth prospects Governance Code [the Codel. The Code
' > Porttolio recycling with disposal remained the minimum standard against
> Continyed investment in Home for proceeds deployed effectively. which we measured ourselves during

Success translating into vaiue for
monay for our custormers ond
market differantiation

> PRISM, our scakabie digital
operating platform, delivering
improved customer service,
efficiency and thus offordability.

> Brilllant properties
PBSA sector maturing. Governance
to ensure;

> Growing and suslainable eamings
In the uncertain world following the
Leave vote, Governance to ensure:

» A strong and flexible capital
structure 1o enable us to adapt
appropriately to market conditions
as the CyCle evolves

» Compliance with cngoing RET
status following conversion on

1 January 2017

2014. We complied with all the provisions
in the Code during 2016 and expect to
be fully compiiant during 2017. The Code
is published by the Financial Reporting
Councll (FRC) and is available at
www.frc.org.uk.

Phil White
Chairman of the Board
22 February 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

From left to right
Chris Szpojnarowicz. Andrew Jones:

Phil white, Joe Lister, Richard Simpson,

Richaret Smith, Elizabeth McMeikan,
Tim Wilson and Manjit Wolstenholme.

Boord commitiee key

N Nomination Committee

A Audit Committee

H Health & Safaty Committee
R Remuneration Committee

1 Phi White

Chairmon

Chair of Nomination Commitiee
Remunergtion Committes

Relevant skills and expedence

Phil was appointed Chaimman in May
2009. The majority of his executive career
was spent in the public fransport sector,
during a period of dereguiction and
privatisation. He was Chief Executive of
National Express Group pic from 1997

to 2004, teading the business through
considerable growth both in the UK and
overseas, Philis curranily Non-Executive
Charman of Kier Group pic and Lookers

plc, and Non-Executive Director of Vp ple.

THE UMITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2014
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é
2 Richard $Smith
Chief Executive Officer

H

Relevant skilis and experence

Richard was appointed Chief Executive
in June 2014, Prior fo this, Richarnd was
Unite's Managing Director of Openations
from 20t 1. That MD role invetved Richard
leading the service provided 1o

our customars, and managing the
maintenance and facilities manogement
across the Group's portfolic.

Richord joined Unite as Oeputy Chiel
Financial Officer in 2010. Prior 1o this he
spent 18 years in the transport indusiry,
working in the UK, Europe, Australia and
North America. Richord spent 13 years
ot National Express Group where he
held a range of senior finance. strategy
and operations rotes, including Group
Development Director and Chief
Financial Officer, North America.
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3 Joe Uster
Chief Financial Officer and Managing
Director of People and Commwunications

Reievant skilis ond experience

Joe joined Unite in 2002 hoving quolified
as a chartered accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers. He was
appointed as Chiet Finance Officer

in January 2008 having previously hekd
a variety of roles including Investment
Divector and Corporate Finance Director.
In addition to the Group's finance
function and investment strategy, loe is
now also responsible for People andg
Communications. Joe is G member of
the Council at the University of Essex.

4 Richord Simpson
Group Property Director

Relevant skills and experience

Richard is Group Property Drector and sefs
the strategic direction for all aspects of
the property portfolio, oversees the fund
mancgement of Unite's co-invastment
vehicles and leads the property
development activities. Richard joined
Unite in 2005 and has held o variety

of sgnior roles within the Group. He is

a qualified chartered surveyor and

a fellow of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.

Richard has been a Non-Executive of
Citywest Homes from January 2017,

5 Professor Sir Tim Wilson
Non-Executive Director
Chair of Health & Safety Commitiee

H A R N

Relevan! skilis and experience

Sir Tim was appointed Knight Bachelor
for services o Higher Education and to
business in the 2011 New Yeor's Honours
list. He is a strong advocate of the role
of Univefsities in economic development
and is acknowledged as one of the
leading thinkers in University business
coliaboration. He is the author of the
government cammissioned Wilson
Review of Business—University
Collaboration, published in March 2012,

Formerly Vice-Chancelior of the
University of Herlfordshire, Tim served

on the Board of the Higher Education
Funding Council for England [HEFCE),
was Deputy Chair of the CBl innovation,
Science and Technclogy Committee and
atrustee of the Council for Industry ond
Higher Education {CIHE}, He has extensive
experience in both UK and international
Higher Education.

Tim was appointed to the Board in 2010,
He holds Honorary Degrees from London
Soulh Bank, Plymouth and Hertfordshire
universities and is curmently, as Chairman
of Arden University, @ member of the
Committee of University Chairs,

4 Mon]k Wolstenhalme
Senlor Independent Director
Chair of Audit Committee

A R N

Relevant skilis and experlence

Manjit qualified as a chartered
accountant with Coopers & Lybrand.
Her background includes roles as Director
ond Co-Heaod of Investment Banking

at Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein, and
Pariner at Gleacher Shackiock. She is
Chair of Provident Financial and Senior
Independent Direcior and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee of Future pic
as well as Chair of Cala Group Hoidings
and Chair of Audit ot CMC Markets pic.
mMon|it was appointed fo the Board

at the and of 2011,

? Elzabeth McMelkan
Noan-Execulive Director
Chair of Remuneration Committee

R A N H

Relevant skills and expernence

Liz was appointed Non-Executive Director
in Fabruary 2014. She has significant
experience in customer-focused
businesses Tesco ona Colgate Paimolive,
where she was successful in driving
growth through an understanding

of custorner needs and an innovotive
marketing approach.

Liz is Senior Independent Director ot

FTSE 250 putc group JD Weatharspoan
and Chair of the Remuneration
Committea af FiyBa pic. She is a Non-
Executive Director ot import/export fruit
and vegetabie company. Fresca Group
lid, and CH & Co Ltd. a privately-owned
catering company.

In November 2012, Liz was oppointed
Chair of Moat Homes Ltd, a leading
housing association working in the

South East.
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& Andrew Jones
Non-Executive Dirgclor

Redevont skills and axpedence

Andrew Jones is Chief Executive Officer
of LondanMetric Property, following the
2013 merger of London & Stamford and
Metric. Andrew was a co-founder of
Metric and Chief Execufive Officer since
its inception in March 2010. Andrew"s
previous roles include Executive Direclor
and Head of Retaqil ot British Land. He
joinad British Land in 2005 fotowing the
acquisition of Pilkar Property where he
was on the main 8oord, with resporisitilities
for thew retoil portiolic and the Hercules
Unit Trust.

Andrew was appeinted to the
Boardin 2013,

* Chris Szpojnarowicz
Company Secrefory
Relevant skills and experience
Chris was appeintec Company Secrefary
and Head of tegai in 2013, folkowing
General Counse! roles at GE, MTV
Networks and other multinationals and
previously an M&A fcorporate and
commercial lawyer at Ciifford Chance
and Baker McKenzie. Chris uses his general
counsel and corporate/Cornmercial legal
experiance 1o fuse our comorate and rsk
govemance with our business activity. In
*his wary, Chris links his Company Secretary
and governance leadership roke with that
ofHead of Legal.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board attaches a high priority to The Company maintoins a corporate

effective communication with shareholders | website confaining a wide range of Investor days

and with other providers of capital to the | information of interest 10 institufional and .

business. and wekeomes their views on private investors. The Company has We regularly hold investor days !O
the Group's approach to corporate frequent discussions with shareholders on profile the latest developmentsin
governance. In gadition to the finaland | a mange of isues affecting its performance, our business and shawcase our new

properties and iocations. During
2016, these events included a Capital
Markets Day in April, which allowed
investors 1o see our Coventry

portfolio and development pipaline
and the opportunity to interact with
our cigital operating platiorm, PRISM,
and a second Capital Markets Day in
December in London demonstrating

interim presentations, a series of meetings | baoth following the Company's

petween instilutionel shareholders/other announcements and in response fo
providers of capital and senicr specific requests. The Company regularty
management were held throughout 2016. | seeks feedback on the percepfion of

The Board is made aware of the views of the Company amongs! its shareholders,
maijor shareholders conceming the the investor cormmuynity rmore broadly
Company through, among other means, | and its stakenolders.

regular analyst and broker briefings, and

surveys of shareholder opinion. That Save in exceptional cicumstances, . y
process will continue throughout 2017, all members of the Board attend the how PRISM improves and skreamiines

Company's Annual General Meetings our oparations. These events allow
During 2016, the Remuneration and shareholders are invited to ask us to demonstrate the breadth and
Committee conducted a consultation questions during he meeting and fo depth of our management team
with shareholders representing around meet with Directors prior to, and after, who hetp ensure fhat Unite Students
two-thirds of the issued share capital, the formal proceedings. At the meeting, continues fo evolve.
as well as key UK institutional investors, the Chgirman reviews the Group's
regarding prososed changes in our current trading.
Remuneration Palicy

The results of the votes at the Annual Sharshalders by geography

73 Remyneration General Meetings, tagether with details

of the leve! of proxy votes lodged for
The Board, together with its professional each resoiution is made available on
advisers, aclively analyses the Register of | 0 regulotory information service and
the Company with a view fo ensuring the | on the Company's website at
long temm stability of the Register. www.unite-group.co.uk.

155  Notice of the Annuol
Genenal Meeting
Top 10 sharehoiders

Resulls of 2016 Annual General Meeting

For Against

X voles R Votes

Resolution cost cost

1 Receive Annuol Reports & Accounts 1000 0.0

2 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 989 1.1

3 Annual Report on Remunergtion 99.7 0.3
4 Declare o fingi dividend 1000 00 !

5-14  Appointment of Directors 938-~-9992 0O1-43

15 Appoint the auditor 100.0 0.0

6 Auditors' remuneration 1000 0.00

7 Approve performaence share plan 983 1.7
8 Approve employee share scheme 99.1 0.9 |
9 Authority fo allot shares B3.4 e |
20 Pre-emption rights 986 1.4

2 Allow general meetings on 14 days' nolice 84.2 15.8
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CQrpo[a[e cullure and to operate in an open, harmonious and [omong others) presented to the Board. §
govemance Ieudershlp ransparent manner. One way in which This direct access to management opens

The Board has ultimate responsibility 10
Unite Students' shareholders for all the
Group's ochivities and also o broader
responsibility, extending to environmental
and social issues, recognising that the
Group is horme to 49,000 siydents during
a crucial stage of their personal
deveiopment and with Universities right
across the UK, To discharge this broader
responsibility effectively, the Group needs

this is achieved is by ensuring open
communication between the Board and
senior leaders. Various members of the
senicr leodership team regulary present
to the Board. During 2016, Unite’s
Operations Director, Student Experience
Director, Head of Digitat, Area Monagers,
Development Director, Funds Director
[representing our various co-investment
vehicles), University Parinerships Director
and Head of Legal & Company Secretary

57

dialogue beyond the board room itseff.

Further, with Boord meetings located in
cities across the UK, the Board visits our
new developments as well as existing
properties meating with our Operations
teams and giving them a grounded insight
to the implementation of our strategy.

)
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Board structure
™., Unfle Operations
Board 67 Boord
Unfle Property
Nomination Audit Heglth & Safely Remuneration o
Commiitiee Committee Commilitee Committee §,
Pht White - Chair Manjit Wolstenholme Sir Tien Wison - Chail Eizobeth McMeikan g
Ancirew lones - Chais Richard Smith - Chalr
Elzabeth McMmekan Ekzabseth McMeikon Hizabeth MchMekan Andrew Jones §
Sk Tim Wikson Sir Tim Wikon Phil Winte Risk Commitiee 4
sManit wolslenholrne S Nlm Wikan -
Manjt Woktenholme: Christopher
&4 86 70 73 Szpojnarowicz
Nominaion Auddil Hedlth & Satety Remuneration {Head of Legaland
Commiltee Report Commiliee Report Commitiee Report Comrritiee Report Cormpany
) Secratary} Chair
I:h;n m"e’;v'p";: Richard Smith
3] .
B Incorporated J_oe Llsfer'
Info this Corparate Richard Simpson
Govemance
Stolerment
by reference.
i
=
%
6‘:
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LEADERSHIP

CONTINUED

Board operating rhythm - linked
to strategy and business oversight
The Board has an annyal operating
rhythm with a forward agendo of iterns
for the ferthcoming year bilt around our
three strategic abjectives, The Board's
meelings are spiit between sirategy
{these consider the Group's longer term
strategy having regard o emerging risks
ar the raview and approval of specific
investments abave certain thresholds)
and routine operationagt, property and
financial updaotes [these provide context
for the strategic discussions as well as
governance oversight of in-year activity).

Meatings take place throughout the UK,
often at Universities in order for the Boord

Board operating rhythm

Regular updates from the Board
Committees on their activities
and recommendations

Operational, property
and financial updates

Market and Higher Education
seclor vpdates

Strafegy and five-year plan

Risk

New development schemes

Tealning

Review ol Group policies

o meet Vice-Chancellors ond leom
about their experiences with Unile, their
accommodafion requirements more
generally and broader devetopments in
the Higher Education sector.

The Board is able fo oversee the setting
and impkementation of the Group's
strategy due fo its flat managerment
structure; three members of the Board
are Executive Directors and therefore
actively involved in the day to day
implementation of the strategy. This
executive perspective is balonced by five
Non-Execufive Directors, including the
Chairman, who bring a depth and breadth
of experience in senior management,
Higher Education, finance, custorner
service and real estate.

Senior leaders are regularly invited fo
attend rmeeatings and present to the
Board. This pravides the Board, andin
parficular the Non-Executives, with direct
and open access o keoders throughout
the Group and helps incukcate a culture
of apenness and directness. In addition,
extemal expearts are qlso invited to
present to the Board (such as University
Vice-Chancellors and property valuers)
to give the Diractors a broader and
independent perspective,

Detais of the number of Boord and
Committee meelings held during the
year, and Direclor attendance, is
available in the table on page é1.

Ensure that the detailed work performed in the Board Committees
is considered by the 8oard as awhole

Provide the Board with the necessary information to frack the Group's
performance and challenge any problems with performance

Ensure the Boord is equipped with the most up to date knowledge and
understanding of the industry ond environment we are operating in

Discuss, review and approve our strategy and five-year pkan, and track
how we are perforrming against our current strategy and the five-year plan

Review and discuss our principal rsks at a Group level and also a review

of our operotional level risks [Ihe Board's operationalrisk review is to verify
that risks have been properly identified and that appropriate risk mitigation
plans are being correctly managed with claar actions and ownership]

Review and chalenge new davelopment schemes being recommended
by management and, due 1o the significant capilal expenditure
involved and key strategic decisions required, approve these new

development schemes

A raview of the Board's training needs and also to ensure that the Board
is up fo date on key lkegal and regulatory changes. During 2016, training
was conducted on how we are using technology and social media in
the businass as well as governance fraining on various topics, including

the Market Abuse Regukations

Review of key Group policies, such as the Anti-Bribery Policy. to ensure
they are appropriate and implemented effectively
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Board activity and annual programme

9

L

February g 2@ EeO Y K3 'Y )
Corporcte Post completion Property —approval  Prefiminary resufts Treasury
rasponsibifity and review - fevieny of kand gcquisition Policy review
Home for Success  of 2015 property in Liverpool

completions
March ]
m Nominations
Committee
= SLCCEesSIonN
planning
Apili ) a e
E] Devetopment Approval of kand Tramng: Market
pipedine acquisition Abuse Reguiations
in Birmingham
and canstruction
contmactsin
Portsmouth

May & Ze e ®e ¢

m Unite Foundotion infernal audit plan  Assess auators Review internal H & 5 Committee

# 0 controls
PRISM WOrKshop &

Principal
rigks review

Jung & . & '

m Market review Half-yaar Acguisition Adophng
valyation opportunities new Inside
preview — approval of Information

lond ccauisiton Policy ond Share
n Sheffield Dealing Policy

Juty '™

m Intenm resuks

September & o ‘ ’ 'y

m Strategic Plan Boord evaluation  USAFASAV/wholty Tax review and H & 5 Committee

6 and takent review owned portfolio REIT conversion

review
November g i (Y @ wo® L
m Principal risks review 2017 budget Sales cycle Copilaloperating  RET Circular
themes reviow guidefines revliew  approved

DecCember [ Y| B o & -

El Customer Approve Prospective whistieblowing Trgining: Corporote H & § Commitiee

g satisfachion 2017 budget yeor end out-turn raview Govemance

Anti-pribery review
& ﬁ Financial ond nsk h . # Cigetal
Sirategy monagement Opemtional Commercial imvestor relations. Governance Workshop

1 Great mo Baont mmieso Gawing and sustainabic earnngs * No board activity In January, August and October
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LEADERSHIP
CONTINUED

Composition and appointments
The composiiion of the Board during 2016
is s&t outin the table on page 57.

The 8oard currentty consists of the
Chaoirmon, three Executive Direciors ond
four Non-Executive Directors.

Boord composiion

Rae

In accordance with the requirements of
the Code, each of ihe cumeni Directors
offers themselves for re-election at the
Annual Generol Meeting to be convened
on 11 May 2017. Brief biegraphies of all the
Directors are set out on pages 54 and 55.
Following the individual performance
evaluations of each of the Non-Executive
Directors seeking re-election, it is
confirmed that the performance of each
of these Non-Executive Directors
continues 1o be effective, They each
demonstrate commitment 1o the role,
and add valve and relevant experience
to the Board.

DescHption
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Roles

The Group's ferms of reference for the
Chairman and the Chief Exacutive
cleorly establish the division of
responsibility between the twa roles,
Summarias of those roles, and that of the
Seniorindependent Director, are set out
in the iable below.

Chairman

Phit Whita's principal responsibilities are:

> Ta establish, in conjunction with the Chief Executive, the strategic objectives ot the

Group. for approval by the Board
» To orgonise the business of the Board

» To enhance the standing of the Company by communicating with shareholders,
the financial community and the Group's stakeholdears generaly

Chiaf Executive

Richard Smith has responsibility for:

> Establishing, in conjunction with the Chairman. the strategic obiectives of the Group.

for approvai by the Board

> Implementing the Group's business plan and annual budget
?» The overall operational and financkal performance of the Group

Senior Independent Director

As Sanior Independent Direclor. Manijit Wolstenholme's principal responsibilities are fo:

» Actas Chair of the Board if the Chairman i conflicted

> Actasa conduit to the Baord for the communication of shareholder concerns if
other channels of communication are inappropriate

» Ensure that the Chairman is provided with effeciive feedback on his performance

Responsibliity and delegation
A schedule of specific matters is reserved
for the Board., Those include:

> Approving the strategic objectives of
the Group and the business plan to
achieve those objectives

v v

> Approving major investments,
acquisitions, mergers and divestments

Approving appointments to and
dismissals from the Board

> Raviewing systems of internal control
and risk management

Approving maojor development schemes |

?» Approving policies relaling to
Directors' remuneration.

These topics are scheduted as part of the
baard’s annuatl operating rhythm and
forward agenda or brought 1o the Board
on an ad hoc basis, as and when this

is necessary.
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Board and Commiitee atlendance at meetings in 2014

[}

-

Date of Health &,
Current Appointment Audit  Remuneranon Normnghon Safety
Diecions Statys o the Board Boord Cormmintes Commiliee Comevittee Commmae_
Phil White: Chairman 210109 14 N/A 5 2 N/A
Sir Tirn Wilson Independent 01.12.10 9 4 5 2 3
Manjit Wolstenholme Indspendent onizn 9 4 5 2 N/A
Andrew Jones Independent 002,13 ? N/A 5 2 N/A
Elizabeth McMeikan Independent 01.0214 9 4 5 2 3
Joe Lister Executive 02.01.08 ? N/A NfA N/A N/A
Richard Simpson Executive 0101312 9 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Richard Smith Execulive 01.01.12 9 N/A N/A N/A 3
Resignad during the year
Mark Allan
Resigned 31.05.16 Executive 17.11.03 474 N/A N/A N/A 0
Patrick Dempsey
Resigned 31.08.16 Independent 01.03.16 4/4 212 242 171 11
Board Commitiees The graph below shows the cument Professional advice
The Board hos delegated certain balance c_:f tenure of the Nop-Execuhve and 8oard support
responsibilities to its Committees, as Directors, including the Chairmon. Directors are given access 16

detailed on the following pages. The
terms of reference for each Committee
are reviewed annually and the current
versions ore available on the Campany's
website ot www.unite-group.co.uk. The
current membership of each Committee
of the Board is set out in the chart on
page 57.

Board tenure

Eoch of the Execufive Direciors has a rofing
contract of employment with g 12 month
notice periad, while Non-Execulive
Directors are, subject to re-election by
shareholders, appointed to the Board for
o term of approximately three years. In
accordance with the recommendations
of the Code, the Directors wilt all refire

at the Annual General Meeting and wil
submit thermselives for re-election by
shargholders,

Board lenure

independent professicnal advice at the
Company's expeanse when the Directors
deem it necessary in order for them to
carry out thairresponsibilities. The Diractors
also have regular diakague with, and
direct access to, the advice and services
of the Company Secretary who ensures
that Board processes and corporate
governance practices are followed.

Insurance

The Comparny maintains Directors and
Officers iability insurance, which is
renewed on an annual basis.
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EFFECTIVENESS

Induction

On appointment to the Board.
each Director tokes portina
comprehansive and personalised
induction programme covering:

> The business and operations of the
Group and the Higher Education
sector; the role of the Board and
matters reserved for its decisions; the
terms of reference and membership
of Board Committees; and powers
delegated to those Committees

> The Group's corporate govemance
practices and procedures and the kdest
financial information about the Group

* Thei l=gal ond regulatory responsitilifies
as a Dinector and, specifically, as o
Director of @ listed company.,

As port of the induction program, each
Director also visits kay [ocations to see our
business operatfions and properties first
hand and the Higher Education institutions
we partner with, Also, they meet with key
senior execulives so from the outset they
nave access to managers throughout the
organisation fo help them form flair own
independent views on the Group and its
performance, and the Higher Education
sector we operate in. In addition, they
are given the cpparunity 1o maet

with representatives of the Company’s
key advisors.

This induction is also supplemanted with
ongoing training throughout the year to
ensure the Board are kep! up to date with
key legal, regulatory and industry updates.

Richard Smith's CEO induction
Foilowing Richard Smith's appointment
as CEQ, a specific induction plon was
developed. Richard already had
considerable experience with the
Company, but a pian was davised to
reflect his new role as CEQ. This included
meeting with various stakehaiders In this
new rote as well as building o development
plan to help ensure Richard's transition
into his new role.
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2014 evaludtion key themes
Corporate cutture and

govemance leadership:

This year, we expanded our Board
evaluation lo ask searching questions
abaout our corporate culture and
governance leadership {see questions
set below) using the learnings from the
FRC raport, Corporate Culture and the
Role of Boards, The output was very
encouraging, with a consensus that
we have g positive and coherent
corporate culture with strong
governonce leadership. We plan fo
build on this far 2017, using our Home
for Success brand architecture and
ways of working to develep KPis to
help measvre performance,

Collaborative team:

The Boord and its Committees cperote
0s g collaborative leam, balkancing
their collective responsibility
appropriately. Comments across

the Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors were

broadly simitar, indicating no real
outliers or divergence of views.

Questions in Board Evaluation focusing on corporale culfure and govemance leadership

Does the Board have cleor agreement on its role in shoping, embedding and overseeing the Group's corporate cutture?

Does the Board devote sufficient time and resources to evaluating govemance leadership?

Doas the Board have visibiity over KPls which measure comorate value arking from Unite Students’ byvand and repuiation?

Are the Executive Directon aikgned in Unite Students' purpose and values?

is the broader leadership teom aligned with Unite Students’ purpose and values?

Do the NonExecutive Directors have appropriate ine of sight access 1o the businessg

Does the Company Secretary provide independent and ransparent advice and guidance on corporate govemnance matters?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of frust within its investor base, with a posifive say/do ratio?

Does Unite Students enjoy a high level of trust within its wider stakeholder base. with a positive say/do ratio?
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Performance evaluation

Each year the Boord, its Commitiees

and Directors are evaluated considering
[among other things) the balance of
skills, experience, independence and
knowlkadge on the Board, its diversity
{including gender}, how it works fogether
s a unit and other foctors relevant to

its effectiveness.

During 2014. this Board evaluation
specifically explored our corporote
cuiture ond govemance leadership.

The key leamings from the FRC's recent
report, Comporate Culture and the Role

of Baards, wene used s the basis for this.
In addition, the evaluation considered
the behavicurs and processes of the
Boord, its Commitiees ond ecch member
of the Board, including the Chairman.

The Company's policy is to conduct an
extamally facilitoted evaluation every
third year. During 2014, the evaluation
was conductaed intermnally. The previous
axternal evaluation was 2014 and the
next externa) evaluation is expected

o be during 2017,

fhe 20156 evaiuation ook fhe form of a
questionnaire asking searching questions
of the Board and Cormmittees, This was
conducted on an anonymous basis — to
encourage frank and direct feedback
—and the results then collaled by the
Company Secrefary and shared with
the Group Boord and each Committee.
In addition, the recommended actions
from the 2015 evaluation were reviewed
fo determine progress against them,

Chairman and

Non-Executive Directors

The Board considers each of its four
Non-Executive Directors 1o be
independent. Accordingly, the Company
meets the requirement of the Code in
relotion to members of the FTSE 250 that
at least half of the Board [excluding the
Chaimnan), is made up of independent
Non-Executive Directors. In addition,
Phil White (Chairman of the Board)

was considered independent on his
appointmaent fo that role.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Directors constructively challenge and
help develon proposals on strategy, and
bring strang. independent judgerment,
knowledge and experiencs to the
Board's defiverations. Non-Executive
Directors are expected to commit
approximately 20 days pel anhum

to the business of the Group.

The terms and conditions of appointment
of the Non-Execulive Directors are
availoble for inspectien at the Comparny's
registered office and at the annuc!
general maeting.

43

Training

The Boord raviewed their fraining needs
and considered it imporiant that the
Directors have a broader perspective
of the digital and technology needs of
the bwsiness. This led to a Digital and
Social Medio Workshop for the Board,
demonstrating PRISM and its functionality
and user experience in May 20i6.In
addition, the Board considerad it
important that the Committee Chairs
continue toreceive relevant functional
froining [such as on accounting, UK
Cormporate Governance Code and
executive remuneration reporting
devalopments] and accordingly the
Committee Chairs attend relevant
external seminars. The Board receives
on-going trdining on corporate
governance developments, whichin 2014
included training on the Market Abuse
Regulation in anticipafion of this coming
info effect during 2014.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Phil White Chairman

Nomination Commiitee

Chair's overview

Earlierin the report, | exploined the Board
changes during the year, with Richard
Smith appointed Chief Executive following
Mark Allan's resignation after 17 years
with Unite, including 10 as Chief Executive.

With succession plkanning and toilant
development a key area of focus for the
Committee over the years, it has been
especialy pleasing thot this cuiminated

in the smooth transition of the role of the
Chief Executive role with an internal hire.
This focus on succassion planning and
talent develcpment has Glso enabled the
expansion of the roles of our Chief Financial
Officer, Joe Lister, and Managing Director
of Property, Richard Simpson, Jos Lister's
roie expanded fo include People and
Communications and Richord Simpson's
o include Health and Safety, Procurement
and Asset Management. This has resutted
in the number of Exacutive Directors on
the Board reducing from four to three,

This focus on suceeassion planning and
talent development has enabled the
Executive Directars lo step up, with a
corasponding stepping up in the senior
leadership feam. On an ongoing basis,
the Committee reviews our talent pipeine
for future Board appointments as walias
reviewing the skilis we nead in our senior
leadership team. These reviews are
measured against our three core strategic
objectives. The Committes's focus
extends to developing high performing
individuals below Board lavel, ensuring

a deep talent pipgline to secure the
business's long term sustainability.

Phil White
Chalr — Nomination Committes
22 Fetwuory 2017

| Committee overview

Composition

The Commiltee consists entirely of
Nan-Executive Directors. The members of
the Committee are set out on page 57 of
the Carporate Governance Statement.
At the invitation of the Committee,

any other Director or other person may
be invited to aflend meselings of the
Committee if considered desrable in
assisting the Committee in fulfilling its role.

Role
The rote of the Committee is to:

> Ensure that appropriate procedures
are adopted and followed in the
nomination, selection, fraining,
evaluation and re-election of Directons
and for succession pianning, with due
regard in all cases to the benefits of
diversity an the Board, inciuding gender
> Regularly review the structure, size,
composition, skills and experience
of the Board and to make
recommendations with regard fo any
adjustments considered necessary
when it is ogreed that an appointment
to the Board should be made. liecd o
saelection process that is formal. rigorous
and tfransparert
Be responsible for identifying, reviewing
and recommending candidates for
oppeintment to the Board.

w

v

Activities in 2014

Succession planning

Reviewing succession plkanning ond
ensuring we have A clear falent pipeline
for future Boord cppointments — this
considers both Exacutive Directors as well
s the Non-Execufive Directors, Specifically
for 2014, thie succession planning led to
the appointment of our former MD of
Operations, Richord Smith, as our new
CEOQ, following Mark Allan's resignation.

As an integrol part of our executive
succession plarning, the Committee
oversees the senior leadership
development prograrmme [part of a
broader skills development programme)
10 ensure we are growing and nurturing
our falent and developing our high
potential, high performers.
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Review of Board compoasition

An ongaing review of the Board’s
composition 1o ensure it has the comect
baionce of skills, experience, ndependence
and knowledge. The Commiliee believes
ther Board has the correct balonce at

the moment, but is conscious of the
developments in digital, technology and
custorner experience and reviews this on
an ongaing basis.

Group Board Diversity Policy

We recognise thot diversity and inclusivity
at Board level and throughout the Group
is crifical component of our long-term
sustainaboility. We are proud of the diversity
of the Group as a whole, an organisation
made up of employees, who like our
customers, are frorm many different
backgrounds and countries and hgve
diverse experiences. perspectives

and skills,

Beyond the Boord room and within Unite
Students more generally, we have been
reviewing our approach to diversity and
inclusion during 2016, We recognise this
as a key building block of our people
strategy and that the UK workforce and
our students are increasingly diverse. To
remain competitive we need to develop
a diverse and inclusive workplace that
will in tum best reprasent and support our
customers in creating a Home for Success.

During G3 2014, we conducted an
anonymaous survey of our employees,
which has led not anly to a greater facus
on female representation at seniorlevels
within the business but ako broader
diversity and inclusion initiatives.
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This js translating into the following
actions and focus for 2017, being driven
by G senior leadership working group:

> We are widening our recruitment
channels 1o bring in increasad diversity

» We are training all recruiting managers
and the resourcing team on
unconscious bias to ensure that we are
recruiting the best person for the job

» We are ensuring that ofl customer
facing tearns are diverse and
appropriately representative of our
jocal community and our students

> We are actively supporting our high
potential femalke employaes

> We are ensuring that all leadership
roles have diverse candidates on the
short list

¥ Wae are actively working with
organisation such as Stonewall and
Business Disability Forum to raise
our awareness

> We are reviewing ol HR policies and
procedunes o be more inclusive with
reloted line manager training

As regards the Board itself, the Nomination
Committee considered during 2016
whather it wanted to set specific targets
for female representation on the Board.
The Commiliee believes the current
focus of diversity and inclusivity should

be on the Group os a whole with the
development of a diverse and inclusive
talent pipetine incorporaling the initiatives
outined above. The Committes is not
currentty considering setting diversity
fargets for the Board itself believing this is
not necessarily in the best interests of the
Group and its stakeholders, but gender
diversity, along with afl other aspects of
diversity and inclusivity, will be considered
along with its mone general remit to
consider the balkance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge when
reviewing appointrments 10 the Board.

45

ACCOUNTABILITY

Intemnol conirol

The Board has overall responsibility for
the Group's system of internal control.
However, such a system is designed to
ochieve business objectives and con only
provide reasonable and noet absolute
assuronce agaoinst material misstaterment.

The provisionhs of the Code inrespect of
internal controls requine that Directors
review and monitor all controks including
operational. compliance and risk
management, as well as financia!
controls. Through reports from the Board's
Committees, the Group's Risk Committee
and the Group's Business Units Boards
[Operations Board and Property Boord).
the 8oard has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal controls
for the period covered by the Annual
Report and Accounts and has concluced
that such controls were effective
throughout such period.

Further information on the Company's
internal control framework is set out in
the Audit Committee Report on the
following pages. The Board delegates
certoin of ity duties, responsibilities and
powers 1o the Audit Commiittee, so that
these can receive suitably focused
attention, but in so doing the Audit
Committee acts on behalf of the Full
Board, and the rmatters reviewed and
managed by the Audit Committee
ramain the responsibility of the Directors
faken as a whole.

Going concem

After making enquiries, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the
Group and the Company have adequate
resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.

For this reason, they confinue to adopt
the going concern basis in prepanng

the accounts.

Risk management

The Board, when setting the strotegy.

alsc determines the nature and extent

of the principal risks and its risk appetite
inimplementing this strategy. Each year
the Board reviews the effectiveness of the:
Group's fisk management systems and
how the Board did this curing 2014 is set
out on pages 22 to 25,

Business model
For a description of the Group's business
modsl, sea page 5 of the Strategic Raport.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Manjt Wolstenholme Chairman

Audit Commiitee Chair's overview
During 2016, the Audit Commitiee
continued its key oversight role for the
Boord with its specific duties os set out

In its terms of reference to reassure
shareholders that their interests are
properly protected in respect of the
Group's financial management

and reporting.

The Audit Commitiee works to o structured
progromme of octivities, with ogenda
itemns focused to coincide with key events
in the annual financial reporting cycie.
The Commitiee reports regularly to the
Board on its work.

During the year, tha Committee has
continued to monitor the integrity of

the Group's financial stalements and
supported the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the Group's risk
management and internal control
systems in fine with the enhanced
requirements under the Corporate
Govermnance Code. The Committee also
determined the focus of the Group's
intermal audit activity and reviewed its
findings and verfied that recommendations
weng being approprigtaly implemanted.
n addition, recognising the value of an
effective whistteblowing channel, the
Committee agein reviewed orangements
far ihe Group's employees o raise
concerms in confidence.

Further to the appoiniment of Deloitte

at the Group's auditors during 2015 and
subsequent to the completion of their first
cudit report in February 2016 the Audit
Committee undertook a full @valuation
of the audit approach 1o asceriain the
effectiveness of the external audit
function. Further fo the completion of the
avaluation of the exiemnal audit process
we are satisfied with both the auditor's
independence and audit approach and
hove recommended to the Board that
they be re-appointed in 2017,

As nofed in this Corporate Governance
Statermant, the Board delegates certain
of its dulies, responsibilities and powers
1o the Audit Committee, so that these
con receive suitabiy focused attention.
However, the Audit Committee acts on
behalf of the full Board, ond the matters
reviewed and monaged by the
Committee remain the responsibility

of the Directors as  whole.

Role of the Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee has delegated
qauthority from the Board set out in its
written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Audit Commitiee fake
nto account the requirements of the
Code and are available for inspection
at the registered office ond at the
Annyal General Meeting, and can

also be found on the Group website

at www.unite-group.co.uk/about-unite/
corporate-governance.

The key objectives of the Audit
Committee are:

» To provide effective governance and
control over the integrity of the Group's
financia! reporting and review significant
financial reporting judgements

> Tosupport the Board with its ongoing
monitoring of the effectiveness of the
Group's systermn of infernal controls and
risk management syiterms

> To monitor the effectiveness of the
Groyp's internat audit function and
review its material findings

> To oversee the relationship with the
externat auditor, inCluding making
recommendations fo the Boord in
relation to the appointment of the
external auditor and monitoring
the external auditor's objectivity
and independance,
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Composhtion of the

Audlt Commiltee

The members of the Committee are

set out on page 57 of this Corporate
Governance Statement. The Commiitee
membears are alt ndependent Non-
Executives and have been selected with
the airm of providing the wide range of
financial and commercial expertise
necassary to fulfil the Committee’s duties.
The Board considers that as a chartered
accountant | have recent and retevant
fingncial experience. (n addition, in
contempiaiion of a change in the
Corpomate Governance Code effective
for our next Annual Report, the
Cormmittea considered whether it as a
whole has competence in the student
accommodation sector. Having regard
1o the Audil Committee members’
experience in both the Higher Education
sector and their experience with Unite.
the Committee believes it does have the
required competence.

Meetings ore attended, by invitation, by
the Chief Financial Officer. the Deputy
Chisf Financial Officer and the Group
Financial Confroller.

1 also invite our external auditor, Deloitte,
t0 each mesting. The Commitice
regularly meets separately with

Deloitte without others being present.

As appropriate, | alsa invite our internat
auditot, PricewaterhouseCoopers [PwC],
to ottend the meetings. Deloitte and PwC
meet independently of maonagement to
ensure glignment, to upddte on
respective findings and consider the
Impact on the relative approaches of
their work.

Committea meelings

The Committee meets four times during
the year and atendance at those
maetings is shown on page 61 of this
Corporate Governonce Statemen.

Main activities of the Committee
during the year

Meetings of the Committee genemlly
take ploce just prior to g Group Board
meeting ond | report fo the Board as part
of a seporale agenda itern, on the
activity of the Committee and matters of
particular relevance to the Board in the
conduct of their work_ At its four meetings
during the year, the Committee focused
on the activifies described below.
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The Committee reviewed the haff year
and onnual finoncial staterments and
the significant financial reporting
judgements. As part of this review, the
Committee supported the Boord by
reviewing the financial viability and the
basis for preparing the accounts on a
@going concern basis as outlined pelow.
The Committee ako reviewad and
challenged the external guditor's
report on these financial statements.

As discussed above, the effectivenass of
the external audit funclion was considlened
during 2016, subsequent to the tender
and gppointment process of Deloitte in
May 2015. During the evaluotion process
the Committee considered: the
independence and objectivity of the
external auditor; the maka-up and
guality of the audit team; the proposed
audit approach and the scope of the
audit; the execution of the audit and
the quality of the cudit report to the
shoreholders; as well as uifimately the
fee structure.

The Committee discussed reports from
PwC as the Group's internal auditor on
their audit ond assessment of the control
environment, The Committee reviewed
and proposed areas of focus for the
internal audit progromme of review
including the approoch to ensure thot
the internal cudit activity is aligned to
the principal Group risks.

Financial reporiing

The primary focus of the Committee, in
relation to financial reporting in respect of
the yeor ending 31 December 2016, wos
o review with both management and
the external quditor the oppropricteness
of the haif year and annual financiol
statements concentrating on:

> The guality ond acceptability of
accounting policies and practices
¥ The clarity of the disclosures and
comptiance with financial reporting
standards and relevant financial and
governance repor fing requirements
*» Material areas in which significant
judgements have been appled
or where there has been discussion
with the external auditor
Whether the Annual Report and
Accounts, fgken as a whole, is fair,
baianced and understondabie and
provides the information necessary for
sharehalders 1o assess tha Group's
position and performance, business
model and strategy.

v

The Commitieg’s assessment of the
Annugl Report 1o ensure that it is fair,
balkanced and understandable took into
account the foliowing considerations:

> A raview of what foir, balonced and
understandable means for Unite
» The high level of input from the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer with early opportunities for the
Board to review and comment on the
Annuol Report
Ensuring consistency in the reporting
of the Group's performance ond
management information {as
described on pages 20-21). risk (o5
described on poges 26-29), business
madel and strategy (as described
on page 5)
> A cross-check between Board minutes
and the Annual Report s undertoken
fo ensure that reporting is balenced
> Whether information is presenied
in @ clear and concise manner,
illustrated by oppropriate KPis
fo faciitate shareholders’ access
to relevant information.

A

To akd our review, the Commitiee considers
reports from the Group Financial Conrolier
and alse reports from the external auditor
on the outcomes of their half year review
and annyal audit. As @ Commitiee,

we support Deloitte in displaying the
necessary professional scepticism their
role requies.

Significant issues considered

by the Committee

After discussion with both management
and tha external auditor, the Committee
determined that the key risk of missiaternent
of the Group's 2016 financial statements
related to:

» Property valuations
> Jaint venture accounting.

Property vaivations

The Group's princlpal assets ane
investment properties ond investment
properties under development that

are gither owned on bakince sheet or in
USAF or LSAY. The investment properties
are comied at fair volue based on an
appralisal by the Group's external valuers
who corry out the valuofions in accondance
with the RICS Red Book valuation guide,
taking into cccount ransactional
evidence during the year. The valuation
of property assets involves significont
judgement and changes in the core
assurnptions could have a significant
impact on the carrying volue of these
assets. Management discusses the

67
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undertying performance of each asset
with the external valuers and provides
detailed performance data to them
including rents, University lease
agreements, occupdncy, property costs
and costs fo compiate (for development
properties]. Management receives
detailed reperts from the valuers and
pearforms a detailad review of the
valuations to ensure that they consider
the valuations to be appropnate. The
valuction repaort is reviewed by the Chief
Financial Officer and Managing Director
of Property prior to sign-off,

During the year, the Committee and/or
the Board met with members of the
Group's valuers and challenged themon
the basis of thek valuations and their core
assurnptions, inCluding the yield for soch
property, rental growth and forecast costs.

The Committea questioned the external
vaiuers on market frends ana tronsocfional
evidence that supports the valuations.
The Committea was satisfied that the
Group's voluers were opproprictely
qualitiad and provided an independent
ossessment of the Group's assets.

The Commiltes wos satisfied that an
appropriate valuation proceass had taken
place, the core assumptions used were -
reasonable and hence the camying
volue of investment and development
properties in the financial statements
was appropriate.

The auditor expicined their audit
procedures to test the valuation of
investment and development properties
and the Group's disclosures on the
subject. On the basis of their audit work,
the auditor reported no inconsistencies
or misstaterments that were materialin
the context of the financial statements
as awhole.

34 Further analysis and detail
on asset valuations
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

Joint venture accounting

Two of Unite's significant assets are its
investrments in USAF and LSAV which the
Group has historically accounted for as
joirt ventures.

The Group odopled (FRS 10-12 from the
2014 financial yeor end which provides
guidance on how an investor shouid
account for its interests in other entities,
including a definttion of control and
guidance on how 1o classify and account
for jointly controlled amangements.
During the year, Management undertock
a detailed review of its classification

for both USAF and LSAV, and foflowing
that analysis concluded thot there had
been no material change in its onginal
assessment in 2014 that both USAF and
LSAV should be treated as joint veniures,
The Committee considened this and
agreed there was no material change
ond occordingly it was appropriote jo
continue Yo account for USAF and LSAV
as ajoint venture under IFRS 11, with Unite
recording its 23% share of the results and
net assets of USAF as a joint venture using
equity accounting, and likewise 50%

for LSAV.

Risk management

The Group's risk assessment process ond
the way in which significont business risks
are managed is a key ared of focus for
the Committee.

Our work nere was driven primarily

by performing an assessment of the
approach taken by the Group's Risk
Commitiea. The Ritk Committee is
responsibie for the delivery of the Group's
risk management framework. which

the Commitiee has approved, and the
Group's assessment of its principal risks
and uncertainties. as set cut on pages
22t0 2%

The Board aiso formaity raviewed the
Group's principal risks at two mestings
during the year. Thraugh thesa raviews,
the Committee considered the risk
management procedures within

the business and was satisfied that

the key Group risks were being
appropriately managed.

The risk assessment flags the mportance
of the irternal control framework fo
manage risk and 1his forms o sepanate
areqa of raview for the Committee.

Internal condrols

Led by the Group's risk assessrment process,
we reviewed the process by which the
Group evaluated its control environment,
Management i responsible for establishing
and maintgining odequate intemat
contiols. (nfemal controls ane designed ta
provide reasonobile assurance regarding
[among other things} the reliability of
fingncial reporting and the preparation
of the financial statements for external
reporting purpases. A comprehensive
strategic planning, budgeting and
forecasting process is in place. Monthly
finencial information and perfornonce
insight is reporfed fo the Board,

The Committee's work (o review the
eflectivenass of the internal controls was
driven by the Group Financial Controller’s
reports on the effectiveness of internal
conirols, supported by the work of the
internal guditor ond their reports fo the
Audit Committee. The feedback from the
Group's internal auditar on specific oreas
of control is tested on a periodic bosis
ond they request our extemal auditor to
provide specific feedbock and assessment
of the Group's financial controls

and highlight any areas of weokness.

No significant weaknesses were
identified through the course of the
Committee's reviews.

Internal audit

Tha Group engages PwC fo peifarm
internal audit activity, with this intemal
gudit function reporting directly to the
Audit Committee.

The Committee considered and approved
the scope of the internal audit activity to
be undertaken during 2016 and leoking
forward on g twelve-month basis to
ensure that the internal gudi approach is
more adaptable 10 the risk environment.
The Committee clso discussed and
challenged the output from the internal
audit raviews underiaken in the prior year
and concluded that the reviews provided
good support for staternents made by
management anc that the control
environment is solid in the areas lested
aver the last three years.

During the yeor, PwC focused thet internal
audit work on corporate tax, fund
management and revenue rmanagement.
All areas of internal audit were being
reviewed for the first time in 2016 and
overall PwC concluded that controls
were well designed ond are operating
effectively. Since PwC first reported on
internal controls in 2071, | was noted thot
in each subsequent reporting period
there has been an improvement in the
overall control environment,

External audit

The effectiveness of the external audit
process is facilitated by appropriate qudit
risk identification at the start of the cudit
cycie which we receive from Deloitte

in a detoiled auadit pkan, identifying their
assessrment of these key risks.

For the 2014 financial year the significont
risks identified were In relation fo

the valuation of properties and the
classification of joint ventures due to the
inherent management judgment required
in these areas. These focus areas were
discussed at the Committee and it was
agreed that they should be the principal
oreqs of focus as they represent the
areaos with the greatest level of
Judgement and malerially impoct the
averall performance of the Group.

These risks ore irnocked through the year
and we challenged the work done by the
auditor fo test management’s assumptions
and estimates around these areos.

We assess the effectiveness of the gudit
process in addressing these matters
through the reporting we receive from
Deloitte at both the half year ond year
end and aiso reports from management
on how thesa risks ore being addressed.
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For the 2014 financial yeor. the Committee
was satisfied that there had been
appropriote focyus and challenge on the
primary oreas of gudit risk ond assessed
the quality of the audit process to be
good. We hold private meetings with i
the external auditer at each Commiitiee
meeting o pravide additional opportunity
for open dialogue and feedback from .
the Committee and the auditor without
management being present. Motters
typically discussed include:

> The cuditor's ossessment of business

ond financial statement risks and

manogement activity thereof

The fransporency and openness

of interactions with management,

confirmation that there has beenno

restriction in scope placed on themn by

management and the independence

of thewr qudit

> How thay have exercised profaessional
scepticism.

v

Lalso meet with the aexternal lecd audit
partner outside the formal Committee
process throughout the year.

Independence and exiemal
avdit tender

The Committae considers the re-
appsintment of the external auditor,
including the rotation of the audit partner
which & required every five years, each
yaarand Gio assessas theirindependence:
on an ongoing basis. The Group tendered
the axternal audit in May 2015 and
appointed Deloitte as the external gudior
following a robust review; the 2015 year
end was the first year with Deloitte as the
Group auditors.

The Committee reviewed Deloitte’s audit
work and determined that appropriate
pians are in place to carry out an effective
and high quality audil. Deloitte confirmed
to the Committee that it maintained
appropriate infemal safeguards to ensune
its independence and objectivity. As part
of the Committee’s assessment of the
ongoing independence of the aquditor,
the Committee receives details of any
relahonships between the Group ond
Deloitte that may have a bearing on their
independence and raceives confirmation
that they are independent of the Group.

As discussed obove, an assessment of
Celoitte’s effectiveness, its processes,
oudit quality ond performance was
undertaken in May 2014 following

. completion of the 2015 audit.

Ouring the year, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the
Statulory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market investigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitiva Tender
Processes and Audit Commitiee
Responsibilities] Order 2014.

Non-audit services

To further safeguord the objectivity and
independence of the extemal auditor
from becoming compromised, the
Committee has ¢ formal policy governing
the engagement of the external auditor
o provide non-audit services. NG material
changes have been made fo this policy
during the year. This precludes Deloitie
from providing certain services such

as valuation work or the provision of
accounting services.

For certain specific parmitted services
{such as reporting accourtant activities
and compliance work}, the Committee
has pre-approved that Deloitte can be
engoged by management, subject to
the policies set out above, and subject
fo specified fee limits for individual
engagements and fee limits for each
type of specific service. For all other
services, or those permitted services
that exceed the specified fee limits,

1as Chairmaon, or in my absence
another member, can pre-approve
permitted services.

Throughout 2014, no fees have been
poid to the Group's auditor (Deloitte)

for non-audit services. During the year,
Deloitte charged the Group £0.3 milion for
audit services. The Committee approved
the feres for audit services for 2014 after
areviaw of the levei and nature of work
o be performed, including the impoct of
ocquisitions, and after being safisfied by
Deloitte thot the fees were appropriate
for the scope of the work required.

These fees are olso benchmarked against
other listed real estate cormpanies of
comparable size and complexity.

Committee evaluation

The Commitiee’s activities formed port
of the evaluation of Board effectiveness
performed in the year, Details of this
process can be found under
‘Performance evaluation'.

Manjit Wolsienholme
Chair — Audit Committee
22 Feloruary 2017
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

Sir Tim Wilson Choirman

Heatth and $afety Commitiee
Chair's overview

The Health and Safety Commitiae
ensyres effective governance of the
healih, safety and wellbeing of cur
empioyees, customers, controctors

and other visitors o our properties. It is
paramouni the business recegnises that
heaith and safety does not stand still,
there wil always be lessons to learn and
scope for continuous improvernent. | am
committed to ensuring that hegalth and
safety is at the heart of everything that
the business does and have visited

a number of our properties this year,
accompanying the city and health and
safety teams, understanding and seeing
for myself haw health and safety is being
implemented within fhe business and

a positive culture is being established.

Unite Students is home ta 49,000 students
and their safety, wellbeing and security
is imnperative. We work closety with
stakeholders including Universifies and
emergency services jo ensure that health
and safaty is at the heart of our most
trusted brand. It is recognised that fire

is the piggest hazamd 10 the cperating
partfolio ond the business i proactive

in its opprooch fo fire safety, setling up

a primary fire authority agreerment with
the Avon Fre Authority, which ensures
appropriate advice and guidance to
our strategic fire prevention decisions.

A successful fire safety campaign has
been delivered o students focusing on
cooking safely, This will diractly influence

their behaviours and prevent fire reksted
ncidents. Security can be a chatienge
and an extemal reviaw has been
undertoken to ensune that strengths and
waaknasses are identified and appropriate
measures designed and built in to protect
both student and employee alike.

During the year, we appointed the Brilish
Safety Council as our new safety guditor.
They are condycting an external review
of our HA&S Managemaent System to ensure
the appropriate syslems and procedures
are developed and being implemented,
This provides assurance that the
appropriote checks and measures are
being carried out.

Sir Tim Wilson
Chalr ~ Health ond Safety Commitiee
22 February 2017

Commiltee overview
Composition

» Sir Tim Wilson [(Chair)

» Elizabeth McMeikan

> Richard $mmith

Richard Simpson (Group Propery
Director), Stove Batley [Estatas Director),
Julie Jarvey {Head of Health and Safaty)
and Anthony Amold (Construction
Director] regularty attena meatings

of the Commitee.

Role
The rofe of the Health and Safaty
Committee is 1o

» Ensure that the Group's health anc
safety policies and procedures are
reviewed annually and efiectively
implementad lo ensure legal
requirements are met as well as striving
for best practice

Ensura that the busingss is gware of
regulctory changes and understonds
the mpact upon the business

Remain updoted on performonce
and any major heaith and safety
incidents so os o ensure monagemeant
identifies and implements appropriate
corrective actions.

v

v

Activities in 2014

There have been positive improvements
throughout the year to embed the Keep
u§ Safe ogenda to develop sofe and
healthy empioyees and custemers.

The most frusted brand is al the forafront
of durminds and our core vaiues are al
the heort of health and safety:

» We care about the health, safety and
welbeing of our employees and
cusiomers and it is ot the heart ol
everything we do

> We lead by developing robust systems
and promoting good practice

? We unite with stakehalders to develop
posifive engogement

> We dellver by olways seeking coniinuous
impraverment and good prociice.

The H&S Managerment Systerm {HSG 45)
has been developed and implementfed
to include robwst policies, procedures
and hazard contross. The scope of the
sysiem is to implement effective policies,
hozand controls, heatth and safety
training, equipment management,
effective communication, aocupational
health provision, auditing and review,
dacument contral as well as identifying
where legal compliance is required.

The Group HA&S Policy docurments the
Group's commitment to o safe working
environment and ensure the sofety of
our employees and anyone who may
be offected by our business os wes

as demonstrating compliance with
legisiative requirements. The policy is a
formal mechanism for the adherence
of the principles of the H&S Management
Systern [HSG 65) and sets out our aims.
details the structure of cur organisation
and how we will manage and promote
our health and sofety objectives.
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Along with embedding our H&S
Management System through HSG 65,
fhe key improvements this year have
included:

> The implementation of regional health
and safety committees to ensure
effective consultation with employees
> A full review and updatea of the
operations risk ossessments fo ensure
adequate hazarg control
> Revised contractor management and
permit o work system o manoge
hazardous work activities
» Improved induction troining plotform
which encompasses host videos ond
augmented reality learning and an
assaciated handbook. The videos
focus on driving for work, lone working.
safety signoge, housekeeping/
maintenance hazards such Qs
chemicals, machinery, asbestos and
personal protective equipment.
There is an interoctive game for
accident, incident and neor misses.
The ougmented realty technology
is based on hazard spotting and picks
up key areas of risk hat employees are
Ikely tc come across
¥ Updated property inspections with
menthiy city and quarterty feam checks
os well as additional developrment
site inspections
» Quoarterty health and safety reviews
with all three framework developrment
contractors which include directors
and health and safety reprosentatives
An external audit has also been
undertaken of property developrment
sites gnd encompassed the principa!
contractor and principal designer
Unite tranding has been ntroduced
on the deveiopment sites fo drive the
message from a client perspective
External benchmarking of site
inspection scores via Considerate
Constructor Scheme (CCS), and UKCG
Elevated Unite health and safety profile
by becoming a client pariner
of the CCS
Implemented a Yellow Card system
af the development sites to halt works
immediately if there is significant
concern over heaith and safety,

v

v

v

v

v

Extemal audit

The British Safety Council was appointed
to undertoke a best practice audit of the
H&S Management System [HSG 65) and
its effactiveness, The audit focused on key
areqs including: poficy and organisational
responsibilities, strategy and pianning,
impiementation and operation,
performarce mecsurement, evaiuation
and review. lkeadership and commitment.
It also benchmarked performance
indicators. which formed part of the
evaluation and included: continual
improvement. ieadership, stakeholder
engagement, risk management ongd
health and wellbeing. The H&S
Maonagement System was Qwarded o
three-star robing, with o number of oreos
of good practice identified as wall as
areas for continuous improvement fo
attain best proctice and strive fora
four-star rating next year.

The lead auditor was impressed with

the properties, commenting: “If my child
needed student accommodation | would
definitely ensure they stayed with Unite,"

The British Safety Council hos also
undertaken an audit for the property
development operations of their principal
caontractors and principal designer. visiting
three development sites and reviewing
appropriate documentation. As a resulf
of these aydits appropriate stakeholders
ore now baing consulted and regular
meetings set up to work fogether on
taking recommendations forward.

Security

WSP Parson Brinckerhoff undertock

an externgl securily review praviding
comprehensiva recommendalians for
continuous improvement. A sanior ievel
steering group is establishing the sirategy
with a clear roadmap for security to be
built into qur projects’ design, ([ayout and
customer impact. A business security
consultant is being oppointed !0 take
the lead and provide the necessary
advice ond guidance to ensure the
recormmendations are taken forward,

n

THE ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE WITHIN UNITE
STUDENTS AS A
BUSINESS WAS FOUND
TO BE OUTSTANDING, IT
WAS 0BVIOUS TO THE
SURVEY TEAM THAT ALL
STAFF THAT REPRESENT
UNITE STUDENTS ARE
COMPLETELY COMMITTED
TO THE ORGANISATION'S
FOUR CORE VALUES, IN
THAT THEY CARE, LEAD,
UNITE AND DELIVER

Security risk review repornt
WSP Parion Brinckerholf

Crisis management alse forms part of
this work and it is imperative to test our
emargency preparedness and response
plans ond procedures, Hence, an
emergency test took place atan
operating property in London, A review
of the exercise has enabled the sharing
of good proctice and iessons learmt. fo
drive further improvements and build
on the positive engagement with the
emergency services.

Hodas xBayus
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT

CONTINUED

FIRE SAFETY

Richard Bobruk joined us in August as
our Primary Fire Authority Lead Fire
Officer (photo above with Alastair
Weston, Health and Safety Manager
on the left and Richard Bobruk, Avon
Fira and Rescue on the right).

This will drive focus on fire security through:

> Integrating fire strategy decisions into
the development journey

> Fire Safely Management - policies and
procedures, risk assessments, fraining,
fire records

» Maintenance Regimes —testing and
planned preventative mointenonce

¥ Specification far new builds ang
developments,

We have completed a benchmarking
exercise and produced a fire risk review
which provides clear direction far
designing out risk and suggestions for
fire sofety strategies.

The external fire risk assessment
programme is being implemanted with
a three-year rofling cycile and internal
onnual reviews. Clearer risk ratings

have been established with prioritisation
and accountability.

Mental health and wellbeing
Mental health issues are of grave concern
o the Higher Education sector and also
to us ot Unite, especially since we are
thair home while at University. Employaes
receive mental heaith first aid training

to look for sigrs and signpost help. The
student support services team pravides
support to empioyees and studeants

alike and works closely with the University
support feams,

incidents

Opaeration

Incidents involving cur employees,
customers ar visitors:

» Five reportable injuries {under RIDDOR)
to ermnployees relating to injuring
themselves following a fall or knock

» 314 miner (non-reportable) incidents
{employees 186, customer 125,
contractor 23).

Devalopmeni

During 2014, there have been four
RIDDOR reportable incidents and 20
minor incidents in our developrnent
activity. This performance is within our
Unite Students internal benchrnarks -
beating the industry standard — as follows:

Incidants P Barchrmeark
4RIDDOR 023 0.30
20 minor 1.13 5.00

* KPicalculoted as; No. of ncidents x 100.000

hours/hours worked
Development incidents tor 2014
Nor-
RIDDOR reporiable
Project Hours Incdents nodents
Stopleton House 317.024 0 o]
Clympic way 345,810 1 1
Graetham 5t 281,443 0 2
Couseway End 239,000 1 4
For Gosford 150,849 0 1
Tara House 238,857 2 2
St Leonards 96.544 o] 10
Millennium View 79.515 0 Q
BRI Bristol 5,780 o 0
10TALS 1,746,912 4 20
Pdoiities tor 2017 The focus for continuous improvement by inifiating a contractor forum ta share

Qur vision for the next three years s
the journey to interdependence with
empowerment n day 1o day hegalth
and safety management at the core
of everything we do.

Qur gim is to ensure the health, sofety
and wellbeing of employees, and have
¢ posltive influence on custaomers

and contractors.

includes: prioritising and progressing

the fire risk review, crisis management,
sacurity review and external gudit
recormmendations and actions.

Specific topical prjects include
bespoke manual handling fraining and
assessment, integroting welibeing info the
management syslem, near miss reporting
campaign and engaging with our
stakeholders on health and safety

good practice, lessons learnt and ensure
the very best contractors work on
our properties.
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73

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

Etizabeth McMelkan Chair

Dear Shareholider,

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure
to present the Directors’ Remunerafion
Report for 2014,

As in previous years, this report is spiit into
three sections: this Annual Staterment, the
Policy Report and the Annuai Report on
Remuneration, Our Remuneration Policy.
detailed on pages 77 to 83, remains
corisistent with that approved by
shoreholders at the 2014 AGM, and

is reproduced in full for both ease of
refergnce and in order to provide context
to the decisions taken by the Committee
during the year.

As evidenced earker in this Annual Report,
2016 has been anather strong year for
Unite. Financial highlights have included
a 20% increose in adjusted EPRA EPS. o
total returmn of 15%, further reductions in
see-through LTV, a three pence increase
i aur annual dividend, and our 3-year
1SR continuing 1o gut perferm the FTSE 350
Rea! Estate Index. Operationally, we have
continued fo increase our number of beds,
while also maintaining high occupancy
rates, custorner satisfaction levels and
University trust scones. More broadly Unite
has continued to deliver against its sirategy.
with progress against the three pillars of
delivaring great service to students and
University partners, operating brilliant
buildings and maintaining high-quality
earnings and g strong capital siructure,
aiding our transition to REIT status effective
1 Jonuary 20172

The year also saw a change in the
executive team, with Richarg Smith,
formerty Managing Director of
Operations, taking on the Chief Executive
role further 1o the departure of Mark
Allan. There were changes too for our
other Executive Directors, as both Joe
Lister and Richard Simpson took on a
number of key additional responsibilities
as part of on overall sireamiining of the
axacutive team.

In light of the above, the Caommitiea's key
decisions during the yeor related o the
following areas:

Salaries for Executive Directors
During the sharehalder consultation

that preceded the 2016 AGM, the
Committee sat out its intention of increasing
the salarnes of Executive Dinectors by
between 6% and ?% for 2018, with a further
increase for the Manoging Directors of

up to 9% in early 2017. The fisi of these
planned increases was made with effect
from 1 March 2014 for each of Richard
Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson.
Mark Allan received a 2% increase.
consistent with general increases for
ermployees across the Company.

Following Mark's resignation, additional
salary increases were made to the
rermaining Executive Directors with effect
from | June 2016, details of which are set
out below.

Changes in leadership

In light of his promotion to CEQ, the
Commitiea reviewed Richard Smith's
solary against arange of factors and
elecied fo set it at a level of £430,000 per
annum, representing o ¢.3% reduction to
his predecessor, effective 1 June 2016,

Reflecting the key odditional responsibilities
taken on by the dther rermaining Execulive
Diractors, Joe Lister and Richord Simipson,
the Committee reviewed g number

of alemnative approaches for their
remuneration with the vitimate aim

of ensuting that they remain focussed

on delivering Unite's strategy during o
period of potenticl instabllity. Following
cdreful consideration of the alternatives
permitted within our remuneration policy,
and discussions with some of our major
snarehalders, the Committee determined
to Increcse each of thek bgse salaries

by ¢.20% to £350,000 and £325.000 per
annum respectively with effect frem

1 June 2016,

The remainder of each Executive Direclor's
remyneration package has stayed
consistent with that cutiined in last year’s
report, namely efigibility for an annucl
bonus of up 1o 144% Of sailary {with personal
objectives updated for new roles and/for
responsibifities). LTIP awards of 200% of
salory {made in June 2016} vesting on

i Unite's performance over three years
and subject to a two-year holding
period, pension contributions of 20% of
salary and Gther applicable benefis,

Further details of our considerations in
making these changes are setout in the
relevant section on poges 85 and 86.

Annual bonus ovicomes

for the financial year

Executive Directors will @ach receive
bonuses of 42.5% of salkary {¢f. @ maximum
of [44% of saiary] in respect of 2016
performance. Qverall bonus oulcomes
refiect sofid financial performance by the
Group and the individual contributions
made by eqch of the Executive Directors
over the last yeor. including significant
progress in their new gnd expanded roles.

Despite strong performance against
profit fargets, the overail bonus cutcome
is just below target and is some way
below that received in previous years,
which the Commitiee considers
appropricte in the context of a more
challenging year in terms of broader
business circumstances. Financial
performance was obove target under
baoth the adjusted EPS and net debt to
EBITDA rafio glernents but this was offset
by totol return performance being below
target and a set of stretching customer
satisfaction targets set by the Committee
at the start of the year being missed.
Reflecting ¢ transitionory period,

and desgite a number of nolable

. achievements, the Committee assessed

" each of tha Executive Directory’ individual

performance as ‘on target’, meriting

| @ 1.0x persenal performance muttiplier
[cf. the maximum 1.2x multipfier).

[ Further details, including onnual bonus

' fargets, oulicomes and details of personal
achievements are included on page 87.

poda oBsiong

AL

SERILRTE

)
=
[

SIUBLLI|OIS IDDUDMS

UOYOULU S840



)

THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2818

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Long-term Incentives

Executive Directors were each granted
an award unders the LTIP in June 2016
based on performance over the three
financial years to 31 Decermnber 2018.
These awards will vest to the extent that
challenging EPS, tolal return and relative
TSR targets gre achieved over the period,
with any award vesting required fo be
held for an additional two-year period.

Performance share awards made

in April 2014 vested on performance to
3 Decembar 2016. These owards wene
similarly based on EPS, Totat Returmn

and TSR cutperformance of the FISE3S0
Reol Estate Super Sector iIndex. The
Company exceeded maximum fargets
for each element, resulting in 100% of the
original oward vesting. The Commitiee
is satisfied that the implied vesting level
reflects the undertying performance of
the Company and the progress made
over the 1ast three years. Consistent with
the rules of the plan ¢t the lime of grant,
these awards shares will vest in franches
with two-thirds released on the third
anniversary of grantin April 2017, and
the remagining one-third released aftar
o further year-long holding period.

Overall pay for 2016

The Committee is safisfied that overall
pay outcomes ore appropriate and
reflect Unite's performance across the
various time horizons covared. Fixed pay
levels are competitive but not excessive
when taking into account simitar roles at
comparable companies, individuo!
coninbutions, experience ond overall
levels of responsibility. Annual bonus
outcomaes reflect o more challenging
financial year, with outcomes below
thase achieved in each of the (ast three
cycies, whilst the LTIP —which makes up
the majority of each Executive Birector's
single figure for the year - reflects strong
financial and aperotional performance,
and significant value creation over the
three-year measurement period.

Implementation of policy for 2017
The Commitiee has reviewed the cument
Remuneration Poficy and Is confident
that it continues to effectively support
Unite’s short- and long-term strategic
objectives and promote management
and shareholder alignment. We are
safisfied also thot the proposed
implementation is appropriale given the
Company's conversion 1o a REIT, which
bacome effective 1 January 2017

For 2017, the annua! bonus will operate on
the same basis as in previous years, save
for two minor changes. The non-financial
alement of the 'corporate’ scorecard,
currently based entirely on cusiomer
satisfaction, will be supplemented with
University Reputation, with each measure
weighted 12.5% in order to satisfy the

75/25 financial/non-financial split
permitted under our Remuneration POliCy.
The inclusion of University Reputation
recognises the equal importance of
Unite's retationships with Higher Education
partners together with the opinions of our
student custormens directly, and has been
used as one of our operational KPIs for

a number of years. The other change
relates to the individual performance
multiglier where it s proposed that the
majority of objectives will be shared
across each of the Executive Directors in
order to reflect the colloborative ethos

of the axecutive tearm. As always, the
Committee will provicle retrospective
disclosure on the key achievements

next year in order to allow shareholders
to make an informed voting decision.

Save for these minor changes, the
impltementation of policy for 2017 will

be consistent with that applied in recent
years. Further details, including proposed
salary and lee increases, are included
on page 90.

Leaver arangements lor

Mark Allan

mark Alian stepped down as Chiaf
Executive effective 31 May 2016 and
ceased being a director of the Company
from thea same date, remaining employed
in an advisory capacity with the Company
until 31 Oclober 2014. For the period

1 June 2014 to 31 October 2016, Mark
continued to receive base pay, pension
and other contractual benefits. He was
not eligible lo paricipate in the 2016
annual bonus and there was no payment
in liou of notice.

Fuil details of how the Committee freated
Mark Allan’s outstanding long-ferm
incentives are set out in the relevant
saction on page 90.

Areas for fulure consideration
The Commitiee will continue fo moniter
market rends throughout 2017 in order
to assess ongoing requirements for the
Company'sremuneration practices.
and will consult with shareholtders about
making chongeas should any significant
depaoartures from best proctice arse. We
are mindful of the continuing debate
anound Executive Director remuneration
and of the varkous updatas to shareholder
thinking in this area, and while we are
proposing no material changes for 2017,
this is something that we will continue

to take into occount as we review the
effectiveness of our amangements

each year.

Elizabeth McMeikan
Chair of Remuneration Committes
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Overview of Unite remuneration policy and implementation

Qvarvew of poficy Remunenation n respect of 2014 Implementation of pokcy in 2017
> Reviewed from time to time, > Salaries increqsed by between 2% » Salaries increased by 2% effective
with reference to salary levels and 9% effective 1 March 2016 ' March 2017, as follows:
for similar roles at comparable > Following role changes, salary of new > CEO, Richard Smith = £438,600
companies, to individual CEQ, Richard $mith, set at £430,000 ¥ CFO, Joe Lister = £357.000
3 conkibution 1o parformance; effective 1 June 2016. Salanes of Joe > MD Property, Richard Simpson
S and to the experience of Lister and Richard Simpson increased = £331.500
4 each Executive by ¢.20% to £350,000 and £325,000
o mspectively from the same date,
< reflecting significant increase in
respontibiities
77 Read more 85 Read more 9l Read more
> Pension contributionsof upto  » In line with policy » No change ta pension contribulion
- 20% of salary or an equivalent rates or benefits for 217
Q cash allowoance
3' 2 Benefits typically consist the
= provision of o company car
g of a car aliowance, and
g private health care insurance
é_'!
7 Reca more 85 Read morea Pl Read more
> Maximum annudal bonus > Annual bonuses of 62.5% of salary for ? Maximum annuai bonus opportunities
opportunity for all Executive each Executive Director (43.4% of to remain at 144% of sakary
Directors of 144% of salary maximum opportunity) based on: » Payments to be determined taking into
> Performance measures » acorporate scorecard autcome consideration a corporate scorecard
typically include both of 62.5% of sclary [out of 120%) based on 75/2% on financiol/non-
finoncicl and non-financial > Individual performance multipliers financial performance. and ofter
metrics, as well Os the of 1.0x {cf. 1.2x maximum) Gppiying an individual performance
achisverment of individual » Bonuses to be paid in cash in early 2017 multiplier of up to 1.2x
5 objectives > For 2017, ihe non-financiol element wil
2 > Paymenis delivered in cash, be supplemeanted with a measure of
=3 except where an individual University Reputation; individual
g has not met their objactives to be more team focussed
2 sharehokding guidefines,
= inwhich cose up
o 50% is deferred in shares
for three years
¥ Malys and clawback
provisions apply
76 Reod mora Bs Reod more 91 Read more
> Maamum aword size for all > 2014 UTIP vested at 100% based on: » Awards of 200% of salary to be mode
Executive Directoss of 200% of > 2016 adjusted EPS of 27.7p vs. o each Executive Director in April 2017
salary in normal circumstances a sitetch targel of 23.5p » Performance to be measured over the
» Awards vest subject to » TotolReturn over the period 2014-14 periocd | January 2017 to 31 December
performance over o of 21.3% p.a. vs. a stretch target of 2019 against EPS, fotalreturn and
three-yeor pariod. Vested 14.5% p.a.;and relativa TSR
5 shares are fypically subject > Relative TSR outperformance of the > Two-year holding period will apply
= o an odditional two-year FTSE350 Real Estate Index of 10% p.a. lo vesiad shares
holding pericd vs. astretch target of 9% p.Q.
> Molus and clawback
provisions apply

7% Reod more

88 Read more

92 Read more
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ANNUAL STATEMENT OF THE CHAIR OF
THE REMUNERATION REPORT COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

2014 Remuneration at a glance
2014 Single total figure of remuneration for current Executive Direclors

Bchorg o8 Richorg

Stk Uister Smpson
Satary 59417 3227202 298,347
Taxable benefits 15,256 15854 15,234
Pansion benefit 60,863 55979 55.604
Annual Bonus 27,083 203,385 188,802
LP 528559 584,742  52B.559
Other o] 0 0
Tolal 1191378 1,182,642 1,084,568
2014 Annual Bonus oulcomes
Corporate torgets

Threshoid' Tonget® Slreich’

0% % 100% 120% Vst Corporale
heasure V_Velgm of salary of sriary of sclary of soiary Actuol (% sy} vestng
Adjusted EPS 25% 24.7p 25.7p 27.2p 8.2 27.7p 27.5%

Total Return per share 25% 790 87p 100p T0Bo 83p 15.0% 42.5%
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 25% 6.5% 6.3% 6.0x 5.8x 6.2¢ 200% ’
Customer satisfaction 25% 83 B84 B4 a7 80 0%
Overall Overal banus gulcome

Corporate Pewsonal %of % of
!Enaculivo veshng mutipher sakary maximum £
Richard Smith 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 227083
Joe Lister 62.5% 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 203,385
Richord Simpson 1.0 42.5% 43 4% 188,802
2014-2014 LTIP ovtcomes
Targets

Threshola Stretch Overall
hMedasure Wesgn! 25% vest 100K vest Actud % vest % verst
2016 Adjusted EPS 1/3 18.1p 23.5p 27.7p 100%
Total Return p.q. (2014-2016) 112 8.5% 14.5% 21.3% 100% 0%
Index Index
Relative TSR outperformance 1/3 index +%%pa +I0%pa. 100%
Overall vesting
!Emculrve Overch T ves! Infermsts veshng Date veasting Eshmated voiue
Richard Smith 84,564 £528,559
. 10 Apwil 2017 {2/3)

Joe Lister 100% 95753 10 Al 2018 {1/3] £584,742

Richard Simpson 84,566 £528,559




THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2914

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of
the Large and Medium-sized Companies
ond Groups {Accounts and Reporls)
Regulations 2008 (as amended). It aiso
meets the requirements of the UK Listing
Authority’s Listing Rules and the Disclosure
ond Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the regulations, the
foliowing sections of the Remunerafion
Report ane subject to audit: the single
totat figure of rernuneration for Directors
and accompanying notes [pages 85

o B8}, scheme inerests aworded during
the financial year [poge 90). payments
to past directors (page 91), payments for
loss of office [page 82} and the statement
of Directors' shareholdings and share
interasts (poge BO). The remaining seclions
of the report are not subject to audit.

unite's Remyneration Policy was approved
by sharehoiders ot the 2016 Annual

» References o financial years have
been updated where appropriate

> Poy for performance scenario
charts have been updated to reflect
2017 sakaries

» Current Non-Executive Director
appointment expiry dotes have
been updoated

» Section on consderation of shareholder
vigws updated to reference consultation
on pay increases made during the year
fo reflecting changes in responsibilities

Direciors’ Remuneration Policy
The Group aims to bolance the need

o attract. retain and motivate Executive
Directors and other saenior executives of
an appropriate calibre with the need to
be cost effective, while at the same time
rewarding exceptional performance. The
Committee has designed a remunerotion
policy that baiances those faclors, faking
account of prevailing best practios, investor
expectations and the leve! of remuneration
and pay awards made generally to

In addition to the obove, the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors and

| other senior executives is bosed on the

following key principles:

|
¥ A significont proportion of
remuneration shoukd be tied o the
achievement of specific and stretching
performance conditions that align
remuneration with the creation of
[ shareholder value and the delivery
} of the Group's strategic plan.
|'y There shouid be a facus on sustained
long-term performance, with
performance measured over Clearly
specified timescales, encouraging
executives to take action in line with
the Group's strategic pkan, using good
business management principles and
taking well considered risks.
> Individuagls shouid be rewarded for
success, but steps shouid be taken,
within contractual obligations.
to prevent rewards for failure.

General Meeting. The report below employees of the Group. This section of the report setfs out the Policy
is s disclosed in the 2015 Drectors’ for Executive Directors, which sharehoiders
Remuneration Report save for anumbaer approved at the 2016 Annual General
of minor changes as follows: Meating and which came into effect
from that date.
Policy Tabie
Funclion Cparation Opportunity Performance matncs
Base salory Base salaries are reviewed from time to Any base salory incredses are applied in None
To recognise the  time, with reference to salary levels for line with the outcome of the review as port
individugl's skills  similar roles at comparable companies, of which the Committee also considers
and experience  foindividuol contribution to performonce;  overage inCreoses across the Group.
2?; i; prc?\fbde and to the expefience of eoch execufive. in respect of existing Executive Directors
petitive o -~ s
base reward. it is anticipated that sakary increases wil
genercily be in line with those of saiaried
employees as g whole. In exceplianat
circumstances {including, but not lienited
to, a material incredase in job size or
complexity] the Committee has discretion
> make appropriate adjustments to solary
levels to ersure that they remoin market
competitive. This was the cose for salory
increases awarded during the course
of 2016,
Pension Allexecutivas are either members of The Executive Birectors receive a pention None
To provide an Unite Group Personal Pension scheme contribution of 20% of solary or an
opportunity for or receive a cash pension allowonce. equivalent cash allowance.

exacutives to
build up income
upon refirement,

Salary is the only element of remuneration
that is pensionable.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

Funchon CGperalion Opportunity Performance metncs
Benefits Executivas recaive benefits that consist Benefits vary by role and individual None
To provide primarily of the provision of a company circumstancers; eligibility and cost is
non-cash car or a car allowance, and private reviewed pariodically.
benefits which heallh care insurance, although can . . . .
are compelifive  include any such benefits that the The Commme: r:hms fh'e d|scre!|on
in the market in Commitiee deems aporopriate, fo apprave a higher cost in c ertain
which the circumstances (e.g. relocation)
eyt or in crcumstances where factors
exgcutive is A ,
amployed. outside the com.pcny H cc:mtroi have
changed materiolly {e.q. increases
in insuranee premiums).
SAYE An HMRC-approved scheme whereby Savings are capped al the prevailing None
To encourage employees [including Executive Directors)  HMRC limit at the fime employees are

the ownership
of shares in Unite,

mzy save up to the maximum maonthiy
savings limit {as determined by prevailing
HMRC guidelines} over a period of three.
Cptions granted al a 20% discount,

invited to participate.

Funchon Opematian Opportunity Parformance metrics
Performance Performance measures. targets and For Executive Performance is assessed on an onnual
related weightings are set at the start of the year.  Directors, the basis, as measured against specific
annual bonus - . maximum annual objectives set ot the start of each yaar. The
To incentivise Tr?e sd'»s;megcs o dele:nerla_ts. a ‘;lepo":”e bonus opportunity 5 measures typically include both financial
and reward strong element ‘:G mcn md 'Vf":“ mu ﬂ:’ er 144% of base satary,  and non-financial metrics as well as the
performance elemeant. . € en °, @ year, F" comprising: ochievement of personal objectives.
against financial Remuneration Cormmitiee determines the
and non-financiol  xfent towhich fargets have been achieved. > A maximum Corporate measuras will be weighted
annuaitargets, Bonus payrments are delivered in cash bonus under appropriately each year according to
thus delivering unless an individual's shareholdin the corparate business priorties. Megsures may include,
volue 1o roquiroments hove not been mergin element of but are not limited to, odjusted EPS, fotol
omroses e sare dormeiaioons [ ZECUle el gout, e oo oftercety
and being payable to the relevant Director is satisfied on-fal e? weightings of individual measures TT;G
consistent with by an allocation of shares in the Company. erfo%cmoe va gbehgeen 0% a:g 50%, v:iih the rzn e
the deliveryof  which are heid in ifs Employee Shore e i e 9
the strategic plan. - Gwnership Trust warronis of performance required under each
e - bonus equivalent  measura calibrated with referance
Awards under the performance rekated to 70% of salary to Unite’s intema! budgets. Financial

annual bonus are subject to malus and
clowback provisions, further details of
which are included as a note to the
policy table,

> A maximum
multiplier under
ther individual
element of 1.2,
with a range
ofzeroto 1.2

For threshold level
performance, the
bonus will be S0%
of base salary.

measuras will make up at least 75%
of the total opportunity under the
corporate element.

The individual element is based on the
Commitlee’s assessment of an executiva's
personal performance over the course of
the yedar, os maasurad by the Performance
Development Programme: raview.

The Committee has discration fo adjust the
forrmutaic bonus outcomes both upwards
within the pkan imits) and downwards
{including down to zem) to ensure aligniment
of pay with performance., e.g.. in the event
of ane of the {argets under the bonus
being significantly missed or unforeseen
circumstances outside of management
control. The Committee gko considers
measures outside of the bonus framework
[e.g. H&S} to ensure there i na reward

for failure,

Further details of the measures, weightings
and targets applicable gre provided on
page 79,86 and 9.
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Funchon Operator Opportunity Pertormance matrics
Lne The LTIP comprises a Performance Share The LTIP provides for  Vesfting of LTIP awaords is subject to
To drive sustained  Plan (PSP) and an Approved Employee anawardup foa continued employment and performance
kong-term Share Option Scherme [ESOS). normal aggregate  agoinst three equally-weighted measures.
rformanc lirnit of 20 t which are cum s foll :
f;;,‘;uppmf The ESOS s used fo defvar aproporion 00 woﬁi‘éuﬁve 'Ch ently as folows:
the creation of tha LTIP in a tax-afficient manner, Directors, with an » adjusted earnings per share (EPS});
of shareholder ard is subject to the same performance overal fimit of > Total v_'eturn (TR): and
value. conditions as awards made under the PSP. 300% of salary > Relative tolal shareholder return (TSR}
Award levels and performance conditions  in exceptional the Commitiee has the discretion to adjust
are reviewed before each award cycle circumsfances. the performance measures fo ensure that
to ensure they remain appropriate and The curmentintention  they continue fo be linked to the delivery
no less stretching than the first cycle. is to gward each of Company strategy.
i Executive Director
Awords under the LTIP ore sublect o mols  quards equivalent  Under each measure, threshola
and clawbock provisians, further details to 200% of sakary. performance will result in 25% of
of which are included as a note 1o the maximum vesting for ihat element,
policy table. Awards may include  rising on a straight-iine to full vesting.
a grant of HMRC
opproved options Awards made under the LTIP will have a
not exceeding performance period of at least three years
£10,000 per annum, and a minimum vesting period of three
vatued on g fair years. lf no enfitliernant has been earned at
valua exchange the end of the relevant performance
{curently 50-60% period, awards will lkapse. A proportion of
of o PSP award). vested awards may, at the discretion of the
Commitiee. be subject 1c a mandatory
A payment equal holding period following the end of o
fo the value of three-year vesting pericd. The Committee’s
dividends which infention is tho! under future LTIP cycles, all
would have awards will be required 1o be held for an
accrued onvested  gddifional two-year pericd post-vesting.
shaores will be made
following the As under the Performance Related Annual
release of awards Benus, the Committee has discretion to
o participants; odjust the formulaic LTIP outcomes to
either in the form ensure alignment of pay with performance,
of cash o as i.e. to ensure the cutcoms is a true
additional shares. reflection of the performance ot
the company.
Details of the targets to be used in future
LTIP grants are included in the Annual
Report on Remuneration.
Notes to the policy lable a focus on totalretumn (also used in financial maasures, targets are

The Committee is satistied that the above
Rernuneration Policy is in the best interests
of shareholders and does not promote
excassive risk-taking.

Performance measure selection
and approach to target seiting
Measures used under the performance
reloted annual bonus and LTIP are
selected annually to reflect the Group's
main short- and long-term objectives and
reflect both financial and non-financial
pricritias, as appropriote,

The Committee considers that EPS (used
in both the short- and long-term incentive)
is an objective ond well-accepted
measure of the Company’s performance
which reinforces the strategic objective
of achieving profitable growth, while

both the short- and long-termincentive)

is consistent with one of our stated
objectives ond a key indicator of cormpaony
performance in the real asiale seclor. The
use of relative TSR Ts strongly aligned with
sharehokders and ensures that executives
are rewarded only if they exceed the
returns that an investor could achieve
elsewharg in our secior,

Targets applying to the pedormance
rakated annual bonus and LTIP are
reviewed annually, bosed on a number
of internai and external reference points.
Performance largets are set to be
stretching but achievabile, with regard
1o the parficular strategic priorities and
economic environment in o given year,
Under the bonus, target performance
typically requires meaningful irmprovernent
on the previous year's outtum, and for

typically in line with the upper end
of market consensus.

Remuyneration Pollcy

for other employees

Unite’s approach to annyal salary
reviews is consistent across the Group,
with conskieration given o the level

of experiance, responsibility, individual
performance and sakary levels in
comparable companies, The Company
is ¢riso now a fully accredited Living
wage emplover.

In terms of variable incentives, all
employees are gligible to porticipate in
an onnual bonus scheme with business
grea-specific metrics incorporated
where appropriate. Senior manoagers
{c.18 individuals} are eligible to
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

participate in the LTIP with annual awards
currantly up to 75% of salary. Performonce
conditions cre consistent for all participants,
while award sizes vary by level, Specific
cash incentives are alse in plage to
motivate. reward and retain staff below
Board level.

All employees are eligble to participate
in the Company's SAYE scheme on the
same terms.

Shareholding guldefines

The Committes continues to recognise
the impartance of Executive Directors
aligning their interests with shareholders

sharsholding in the Company.
Shareholding guidelines are in place that
require Executiva Directors to acquire

a holding {excluding shares that remain
subject to petformance conditions)
equivalent to 250% of base salary for the
Chief Executive and 200% of base sakary
for each of the other Execufive Directors.
Until the relevant shaoreholding levels are
acquired, up to 50% of the annual bonus
payabie to the relevant Director willbe
subject to defenal into shares and cre
transferable 1o the Director after three
years. Details of ihe Executive Direclons’
current personal sharehodings

are provided in the Annual Raport

Mafius and clawback

Awards under the Performance Relgted
Annuol Bonus and the LTIP are subject

o malus and, from 2016, clawback
provisions which can be applied to both
vested and unvested awords. Clawback
provisions will apply for a period of at
leqst two years post-vesting, Circumstances
in which rnalus and clawback may be
applied include a matenal misstatemeant
of the Company's financial accounts,
gross misconduct an the part of the
award-hoider and emor in calculating
the award vesting outcome.

through building up a significant on Remuneration,

Non-Executtve Direclor remuneration

Non-Executive Direclor Date of serwce confract
P M White 10 January 2009

R JTWilson 1 December 2000
M Wolstenhoime 1 Decemiper 2011
A Jones 18 Octabear 2012

E McMeikan T 13november 2013

Subject to annyal re-election by shareholders, Non-Executive Directors are appointed for an initial term of approximately three
years. Subsequent terms of three years may be awarded. Current appointments will expire at the Annual General Meeting in 2017
in the case of Elizabeth McMeikan and Sir Tim wilsor: af the 2018 Annual General Meeting in the case of Phil White and Manjit
wolstenholme, and at the Annual General Meeting in 2019 in the case of Andrew Jones. The appointment and re-appointment
and the remuneration of Nan-Executive Directars are matters reserved for the full Board.

The Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in the Company's parformance related bonus plan, long-term incentive

plans or pension amangements.

Delois of the policy on fees paid fo our Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table below:

“unclion Tpemiion Opportunity Performance metncs
Fees Fee [evels are reviewed annuolly, with any  Non-Executive Dvector fee increasesare . None
To attract adjustments effective 1 January in the year opplied in line with the outcome of the

and retain foliowing review. annual fee neview: Feas for the year
Non-Executive The . Chai commencing 1 January 2017 are set out

Diractors of the & faes paid 1o the Choirman are in the Annuol Repart on Remuneration.

highest calibre determined by the Comma-ﬂee. )Nhﬂs? ) )

with broad the fees of i_he Non-Executive Drectors qu levei; will be next reynewed during 2017,
commercialand € determined by the Board. with ony increase effective 1 lonuary 2018,

other experience  Additional faes are payable for acting it s expected that increases to non-

relevant to as Senior Independent Director and as executive director fee levels will be infine

the Company. Chairman of any of the Board's Commiittees  with salaried employees over the life of

[Audiit, Remuneration, Norination and
Health and Safety].

Fee levels are benchmarked agains! sector
comparalors and FISE-listad companias

of similar size and complexity. Time
commilment and responsiblity are taken
into account when reviewing fee levels.

the policy. However. in the event that there
is @ maoterial misglignment with the market
or o change in the complexity, responsipility
or time commitrment required to fulfil

a Non-Executive Director role, the Board
has discretion to make an appropriate
adjusiment to the fee level,
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Pay for performance scenarios

The charls below provide an illustration of the potential futuse reward opportunities for the Executive Directors, and the potential
spiit between the different elements of remuneration under three different performance scenarios: Minimum, On-target

and Maximum.

Potential reward opportunities are based on Unite's Remuneration Policy, applied to the base salories effective 1 March 2017, The
annual bonus and LTIP are based on the maximurm opportunities set out under the Remunearation Policy for normal ciccurmnstances;
oeing 144% of salary and 200% of sakary respectively. Note that the LTIP awords granted in a year do not normally vest until the third
anniversary of the date of grant, and the projecled value is based on the face value at award rather than vesting [i.e.. the scenarios
exclude the impact of any share price movement over the period).

The Minimum scenario reflects base salkary, pension ond berefits (Le.. fixed remunaration} which are the only elements of the

Executive's remmuneration packages not linked to performance. g’
5]
2
The On-target scenario reflacts fixed remuneration as above. plus bonus payout of 70% of salary and LIIP threshold vesting ot 25% S
of maximum award, g,
The Maximum scenario reflects fixed remuneration, plus full payout of ail incentives. g
Approach lo recruitment remuneration =
Extermnal appointment lo the Board
In the cases of hiring or appointing o new Executive Director from outside the Company, the Remuneration Committee may make
use of all the existing components of remuneration, as follows:
Mgumum-ann.ol
Comporant ApPproach grantvele
Base salary The base sakaries of new gppointees will be determined by reference to relevant market
data, experience and skills of the individual, internal rekstivities and their current basic
solary. where new appointees have initial basic sakaries sef below market, any shorifall
may be managed with phased increases over a period of two fo three years subject to
the indivigual's development in the role. o
Pension New appointees will receive pension contributions or an equivalent cash supplement §
nof greater than fhe exisfing policy. g
Benefits New appointees will be efigible to recaive benefits which may include (but are §.
not limited to) the provision of a company car or cash aiternative, private medical b4
SAYE insurance and any necessary relocation expenses. New appointees will alsa be
eligible to participate in oll employee share schemes.
Perfoimance The structure described in the policy table will apply 1o new appointees with the 144% of salary
Related Annual relevant maximum being pro-rated o refiect the proportion of employment over the
Bonus year. Targets for the individual elemant will be tailored 1o each executive.
LiiP hNew appcintees will be granted awards under the LTIP on the same terms as other 300% of satory

axecutives, os described in the policy table. The normal aggregate limit of 200% of
salary will apply, save in exceptional circumstanceas where up to 300% of salory may be
awarded.




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTINUED

In determining appropriate
remunaration, the Remuneralion
Committee will Joke into consideration all
relevant fociors (including quanium,
nature of ramuneration and the
jurisdiction from which the candidate was
recruited) to ensure that amangements
are in the best interests of both Unite and
its shareholders, The Committee may
make an award in respect of a new
appaintment to buy- outincentive
arangements forfeited on leaving a
pravious employer on a like-for-ike basis,
which may be owarded in gddition to
the remuneration structure outlined in the
lable above. In doing so. the Commitiee
will consider relevant factors including
firne to vesting, any performance
conditions attached to these awards and
the likelihood of those conditions being

met. Any such buy-out awards will
typically be made under the existing
annugl bonus ond LTIP schemes,
although in exceptional circumstances
the Committee may exercise the
discretion ovaitabie under Listing Rule
9.4.2 R to maoke awards wsing a different
structure. Any buy-oul awards would
have a fair value no higher than the:
awards forfeited.

Internal promotion to the Board

In cases of appointing a new Execufive
Director by way of internal promotion, the
Remuneration Committae and Board will
be consistent with the policy for external
appointegs detailed above. Where an
individual has contractual cornmitrments
madte prior to their promotian to
Exexcutive Director level, the Compony

Service contracis and treatment for leavers and change of control

THE LWITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPCRT AND ACCOUNTS 2016

will continue to honour these
arrangements, The Remyunerghion Policy
for ather employees is set out on page 79.
Incentive opporiunities for below Board
employees are typically no higher than
Executive Directors. but measures may
vary 1o provide better line-of-signt.

Non-Executive Direclars

In recruiting a new Non-Executive
Director, the Remuneration Commitee
will utilise the policy as set out in the table
on page 79, A base fee in ne with the
prevailing fee schedule would be
payable for Board membership, with
additional fees payable for acting as
Senior Independent Director andfor as
Chairmon of the Board's Committees.

Executive Date of sarace contrac!
13 Lister 28 March 2002
® C Simpson 28 September 2011 -
R S Smith 28 september 20011

Execufive Director service contracts,
Inchuding ormangements for early
termination, are carefully considered by
the Committee. In accordance with
genergl market practice, each of the
Executive Directors has arolliing service
cantract requiring 12 months' notice of
termination on either side. Such contracts
contoin no specific provision for
compensatian for loss of office, ather
than an obligation to pay for any notice

perniod waived by the Company, where
pay is defined s sakary, banefits and any
other statutory payments only. Executive
Director service cantracts are available
1o view at the Company's registered
office.

The Remuneration Committee will
exercise discreticn in making oppropriatle
payments in the context of outplacerment,
setting legal cloims or potential legal

claims by o departing Executive Director,
including any other amounts reasonably
due to the Executive Director, for
exampie to meet the legal fees incurred
by them in connection with the
termination of employment, where

the Company wishes to enterinto o
seltliement ogreement and the individuol
must seek independent legol advice.
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When considering exit payments, the Commitiee reviews all potentialincentive outcomes fo ensure they are fair to both shaneholders
and porticipants. The fable below summarises how the awards under the annual bonus and LTIP are typically treated in specific

circumstances, with the final reatment remaining subject ta the Committee's discretion:

Reason for isaving Calcuation of vesting/pcyment
Anmnual bonus
Resignation Na annual bonus poyable.
'Good” leaver Cash bonuses will only be paid to the extent thot financiol and individual objectives set
Change of conirol ot the baginning of the plan year have been met. Any resulting bonus will be pro-rated
for fime sarved during the year.
4[4
Resignation Outstanding awards lopse
‘Good’ leaver’ The Committee determines whether and 1o what extent putstanding awards vest
Change of control based on the extent lo which performance conditions have besn ochieved and the

proportion of the vesting period worked.

The determination of vesting will be made as soon as reasonably practicat following
the end of the performance period or such earlier date as the Commitiee may agree

[within 12 months in the event of death).

In the event of a change of control, Unite owards may alternatively be exchonged
for new equivaient awards in the acquirer where appropriate,

' *Good' legver’s defined as a participant cecsing to be employed by Ihe Group by reason of death, disabilty. Il health. redundoncy, retirement
or any cther reason that the Committee determines in its obsolute discretion.

The reatment of shares subject to defemral
or hokding periods will be subject to the
Remunaration Committee’s discrefion
and will take into account the
circumstances at the time.

External appointments

With the opproval of the Board in each
case. ond subject to the overriding
requirements of the Group, Executive
Directors may cccept extemnal
appointments as Nan-Executive Directors
of gther companies and retain any lees
received. Joe Lister is cumently a member
of the Council of the University of Essex
for which he does not receive o fee.
Richord Simpson joined the Board of
Citywest Homaes at the beginning of 2017,
Richard Smith does not currently hokd

an extemnal appointment.

Conslderation of conditions

elsewhere in the company
When making decisions on Executive
Director remuneration, the Commitiee
considers pay and conditions across
Unite. Priar ta the annual salory raview,
i the Group People Director provides the
Committee with a summary of the
proposed level of increase for overall
employee pay. The Remuneration
Committee does not formally consult
wilh employees on the executive
Remuneration Policy and Framework.

‘ Consideration of shareholder views
The Remuneration Commitiee maintains
aregular dialogue with its major
shareholders, and is encouraged by

the support received ol the 2006

Annual General Mesting for the new
Remuneration Palicy. During 2016 we
consuited with shareholders representing
around two-thirds of Unite's issued share
capital regarding Executive Director
salaries following the role changes arising
as a result of Mark Allan's resignation

and subsequent neorganisation of
responsibilities. The Committee wil
eontinue o monitor trends and
devealoprments in corporate governance
ond market practice fo ensure the
structure of the executive remuneration
remains appropriate.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

The following section pravides delails
of how Unite's Remunemtion Policy was
implemented during the financial year
ending 31 December 2014

Remuneration Committee

membership In 2014
The primary role of the Committee is to:

» Review, recommend and monitor the
level ond structure of remuneration
for the Executive Directors and other
senior executives

> Approve the remuneration packoges
for the Executive Direclors and
ensyre that pay outcomes refiect
the performance of the Company

> Determine the bolonce between
base pay and performance related
elements of the package so as
to align Diractors' interests to those
of shareholders.

The Committee's terms of reference are
set out on the Compony's website. As of
31 Dacember 2014, the Remuneration
Committee comprised five independent
Non-Executive Directors.

» Elizabeth McMeikan (Committee Chairf
» Phil White

» Sir Tim Wilson

¥ Manjit Wolstenholme

> Andrew Jones

During the yegr, Patrick Dempseay, who
joined the Baard effective 1 March 2016
ondresigned effective 31 August 2014,
oiso served on the Remuneration
Committee. Certain executives, including
Richagrd $milh (Chief Executive},

Mark Allan (former Chief Executive)

and Ruth Gearge {Group Peopte Director}
have been, from lime to time, invited

o attend meetings of the Committee.
ond the Compony Secretary, Christopher

Szpoinarowicz, octs as secretary fo the
Commitiee, No individuats are involved
in decisions reloting to their own
remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee met five imes during the year
and deteils of members’ attendance ot
meetings o provided in the corporote
governance section on page 41.

Key activities of the Remuneration
Commitiee in 2014 included:

> Reviewed and cpproved the Executive
Directors' performance against annuot
objgctivas and LTIP fargets; delermined
bonuses payable {including tbalance
between cash and shares), and
apgroved LTIP vesting

Determined leaver treatment for
Mark Allan, including treatment

of outstanding incentives

» Reviewed Executive Director
retmuneration following role changes
and rearganisation of responsibiities.
and undertock consultation with
magjor shareholders on proposed
changes fo Exacutive Director salaries
Confirmed treatment of Mark Allan’s
incentives following end of
employment and reaffimation of
dufles confained in compromise
agreement. Followed up with
shareholders summoarising changes
made during the year

Considered remuneration

market trends and corporate
governance developments

> Ravigwed and approved salary
increqases for tha Executive Directors
andg senior monagement for 207
Determined the Executive Directors'
bonus and LTIP performance targets
for 2017 in line with the strategic plan
» Reviewed and opproved the
Chairman's fee

Prepared the Dwectors’
Remunerction Report.

v

v

hd

v

v

Summary of shareholder voling at the 2016 AGM
The foliowing table shows the results of the binding vote on the forwarnd-looking Remuneration Policy and of the advisory votes on
the 2015 Annual Report on Remuneration and the amendments 10 the 201) Performance Shere Plan ot the 2016 AGM:

Advisers

Kepler Associates, a brand of Mercer
['Kepler') were appointed as the
Committee's independent adviser
following a competitive tender process
in 2014, and were retoined during the
year, The Commiitee undertakes due
diigence periodically to ensure that
Kepler remains independent and that
the advice provided is impartiol and
objective, Kepler & ¢ founding mermber
and signatory of the Code of Conduct
for Remuneration Consultants,

details of which can be found ot
www.remuneraticnconsuliantsgroup.com.
in 2016 Kepler provided independent
advice on revisions to Unite's
Remuneration Poficy, updates on the
extemal remuneration envircnment;
performance testing for long-term
incentive plans; and support during
the sharehotder consuliation process.
Kepler reports directly fo the Chairman
of the Remunaration Committee and
does not advise the Company on any
other ssues. Their total fees for the
provision of remuneration services to
the Committee in 2016 were £64,775

orn the basis of timea and malenals.

Remunaration Arnryagl I?emﬂ Amandments to
Poicy on Remuneration 201 PSP
For lincluding discretianary] 186,101,530 P9% 187,241,043 P9.7% 18528599 98.3%
Against 2,088,144 1% 591,183 03% 3170079 7%
Total vates cas! (excluding withheld votes) 188,189,674 187.832.226 188,457 069
Votas withheld 300,425 457,873 33,030
188,490,099 188,490.099 188,490.059

Tolal votes cast {including withheld voles)
AR
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Single tolal figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)
The lable below sets out a single figure for the total rermuneration received by each Director for the year ended 31 December 2016

and the prior year:
Richard Smith Jos Lister Rchord Simoaan Mark Allan!
204 2005 2014 05 - 015 0% 2015
t £ £ £ t £ [ £
Sakiry 359417 244,692 322702 273483 9837 244492 183003 432233
Taxcble benefits? 15,258 14,064 15,854 15,286 15,236 13,894 7,494 23,319
Pension benefit? 60,843 47,336 55919 49,147 55,604 43,355 32,162 75964
Annuol Bonus? 27083 314579 203385 348742 188802 314579 0  551,i80
LEIpas 528,559 748,451 584,742 828,041 528,559 748,451 0 1.299,189
Other’ 0 4,499 o 2.249 0 0 [} 2]
Total LI91L378 1375620 1,1824462 1.516928 1,084,568 1364970 222,840 2381885

Mark Alkan stepped down effective 31 May 2018 and ceosed being a director of the Company from tha same date He remoined employedin an
advisory capacity with the Company until 31 Oclober 2006. Amounts above reflect rermunerotion received as o result of his role as Chief Executive,
with details of remuneration recelved for the period 1 June to 31 October 2016 disclosed under "Exit payments' secion on poge 90.

?* Taxable benefils for 2016 consist prmanly of company car or car alowance and private health core insurance.

The figures above include car benelits of £14,187, £14,583, £14,167 and £7,223 for Messrs. Smith, Lister, Simpson and Allon respeclivety.

*  Pension figures include cortributions fo The Unite Group Personal Pension Scheme and cash allowances. where appicable.

+ Payment for performonce during the yeor. Having akeady reached their share ownarship guidednes, each Execufive Direcior will receive 100%
of their 2016 bonus award in cash. Mark Allan was not sfigible for a 2016 onnual bonus paymeni. Sea following sections for further detalss.

3 2015 figures: LTIP awonds granted in 2013, and wiich vested pased on perfomance to 31 December 2015, are volued using the marked prices of
the dote of vesting |10 Apil 2018) of 636p. These amounts hove been Ievised from |ost year's report to reflect the acluai share prices on the dotes
of vesting.

s 2014 figures: For the 2014 awards. the market prica on the date of vesting is culrently unknown ond so the vaiue shown is estimated using the

qverage market value over the last quarter of 2016 of 575.9p, Mork Allan's unvested 2014 awards lapsed on his resignation from the Company.
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See following sections for further detolls. LTIP figures ake include cosh payments in feu of dividends for vested awars. '2"
7 'Other includes ine embedded vaiue of SAYE options at grant. 2
2
Single tofaf figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Direciors (audited) &
The table Below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Non-Executive Directar for the year ended T
31 December 2016 and the prior year: 3
Basa tee Commitiee Chow fees SID fem Total -
200 25 0% x5 201 a5 % 215
£ £ t £ L £ £ [
P M White 129,450 127,100 - - - - 129,650 127.100
R 1 TWilsan 45,000 44,100 $,600 6.475 - - 51,600 50,575
M Wolstenholme: 45,000 44,100 92.350 2,150 5250 5125 59,600 8,375
A Jones 45,000 44,100 - - - - 45,000 44,300
E McMeikan 45,000 44,100 9.A50 9.150 - - 54,350 53,250
P Dempsey’ 22,500 - - - - - 22500 -
Q
Patrick Desmpsay jored the Board on | March 2016 and resignex affective 31 August 2016, during which lime he sarved as a member of the a
Remunenafion and Heatth and Safety Commyttees. 5
g
Remuneration outcomes for the year ended 31 December 2016 (audiled) 3.

As foreshadowed in last year's report, salary increases of between 6% and 9% were made with effect from 1 Morch 2016 to each of
Richard Smith, Joe Lister and Richard Simpson. Mark Allon received a 2% increase. consistent with general increases for employees
across the Company, from the same date.

Foliowing his promation to CEQ, the Commitiee reviewed Richard Smith's salary ogainst a range of internal and externat fociors
and elected to set it at a level of £430,000 per annum effective | June 2016. For the other remaining Executive Directors, Joe Lister
and Richard Simpson, the Committee reflected on the intention fo operate with a smaller management team going forward, and
the additional key responsibilities taken on by each individuct. Specifically. Joe Lister will now lead investor rekations and has line
management responsibility for the Corporate Affairs and People direcicrates, while Richard Simpscn has been tasked with heading
up Unite’s Health and Sofaty, Maointenance and Lifecycle and Asset Management functions.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Considering these significant role changes, and mindful of the need to relain successful, experienced and well-regarded Executive
Direcfors in o competifive seclor, the Committee reviewed a number of affernafive approaches for the remunerafion of foe Lister
ond Richand Simpson to ensune they remain focused on detivering Unite's sirategy during o period of potential instability.

Fallowing careful consideration of the alternatives permitted within the recently approved remuneration policy, the Committee
determined to increase the base salaries of Joe and Richard by ©.20% to £350,000 and £325,000 per annurn respectively with effect
from 1 June 2014. In laking this decision, the Committee nated the atemative of making exceplionat LTIP awards but conciuded that:

» Salary levels were the element of remunenation most significantty below market {particularty taking into account the additional
responsibilities), whereas kong-term incentfive opportunities. of 200% of salary. are market competitive

> Anincrease in long-term incentive opportunities hod oiready been implemented for 2016 from 150% to 200% of sakary: and

> Maintaining the current ratio between fixed/variable pay and short-term/long-term pay is important so as not to incentivise
excessive rsk-taking.

Detafls of the evoiution of each Director's role and salary over the course of the year is summarised in the table below:

Bose saiary from
Bose saary 10 | March 2016 Barsa salary
28 Feruary o3> May Percanioge from 1 June Parcenioge
Exncutive Drectar Role 216 4] P8 change 2014 chonge
MD, Operations £247,700 £270,000 %
R § Smith 5%
(3% below
Chief Execulive . £430,000 predecessor)
1 J Lister Chief Financial Officer £274,600 £291,000 5%
Crief Financial Officer+ £350,000 L%
| %
R C Simpson MDD, Property £247,700 £270,000
Group Property Director £325.000 0%
MC Allan Chief Execulive £434,000 £442.680 2%
Total Boord £1.204,000 £1,273.680 5.8% £1,105,000 -13.2%

rerformance related annual bonus in respect of 2016 performance

The 2016 annuai bonus consists of two elements, corporate and individuail. The corporate element of the bonus is calculoted on @
sliding scale up to © moximum of 120% of base salary. in accordance with which on-target performance by the Group resultsina
corporale bonus of an amouni equivalent to 70% of base sclary. To determine the octual bonus payment lo an Executive Director,
a multiplier {being the individual element of the scheme), ranging between zerc and 1.2 & opplied against the corporate bonus.

Applying the maximum individual mulfiplier (of 1.2), against the maximum corporate bonus {of 120% of base salary), results in a
maximum annual performonce related bonus opportunity of 144% of base salary. However, bonus payments at that level would
only be made subject to the gchievement of extremaly strelching corporate performonce targets and exceptional individual
performance by the relevant Direclor. Target performance typically requires meaningfulimprovement on the previous year's
outturn, and for financial measures. targets are typically in line with the upper end of market consensus,

The performance related bonuses awarded in respect of 2014 reflect corporate bonuses of §2.5% of base salary. After applying
individual multipliers, actual performonce related bonus payments awarded to the Executive Directors were 62.5% of their
respective base salaries (43.4% of their maximum bonus cpportunities). Further defails, including the fargets set and performance
against each of the melnics, are provided in the tables below:

Corporate slement oulcomes
Onginal parformance targels
“Threshaokt' Tonget’ “Strechy
Rt 20%of 100% of 120% o Vest
Maasure Weight salary sakry saiary sakry Actuat % salory|
Financial Adcfjusted EPS 250% 2470 2570 27.2p 28.2p 27.7p 275%
Totaireturn 250% 790 87p 100p 108p 83p 15.0%
per share
Net debt to 250% 6.5x &3 6.0x 5.8 6.2x 20.0%
EBITDA ratia
Non-financial  Customer 25.0% 83 84 86 a7 80 0%
satisfaction

Total corporate vesting (% of salary) 62.5%
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Individuol element outcomes
Execufive Achievernants durmg the year includad: Parsonal mulipeer

> Successful delivery of Operations and Group KPIs covering both roles as Managing
Director, Operations and Group Chief Executive.

» Compfeted an effective fransition fo the Group Chief Executive rofe, providing Clear
ond volued leadership to the Group in the second half of the year.

R § Smith > Effectively delivered a realignment of roles and responsibilities across the other wo 1.0x

Execulive Directars ond wider senior monagement team ensuring the continued
delivery against the wider Group's KPls and the retention of the Group’s key talent.

» Led the evolution of the Group strategy, focused particularly on the development
of our brand and earning focus.

> Successiul delivery of finance related KPls and our capital operating guidalines.
» Successful execution of the REIT conversion pkan.
> Execution and evoiution of a debt financing, fundraising and hedging strategy oliowing
J dister the Group 1o take advantage of kow interest ratas while retaining appropriate baiance 1.0x
sheet strength and flexibility.
> Embraced new areas of responsibility including the Group's People and Cormmunication
agenda folowing the management change in mid-year.
> All Property related KPlIs successfully delivered for the year.
> Delivery of high quality growth through a secured development pipeline in an
increasingly competitive market.
> Oversaw product development and design innovation activities, allowing the Group 1.0x
to mainiain atiractive retums on Nnew development. )
3 Ermbraced new areas of rasponsibility including the Group's health ond safety
and muintenance and procurement agendo following the management chonge
in mid-yecr.

EN-R (G FT-To

i
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R C Simpson

Individugl cbjectives were updoted following the changes in roles and responsibilities, with odditionol sirefching gools set to test
executives in their new roles. The ratings above reflect a holistic view by the Commitiee of the extent to which each individual has

b
pertormed in their exppanded role aguring the year, guided by these new objectives. 3
3
1]
Overall bonys outcomes a
Overall bonus outcame @:
Executive Componate vesting Personal mutlipéer (% of ;alory) % af maximum) . £ é
R 8 Smith 1.0x 52.5% £3.4% 227,083 E3
ARl I AN z
J JLister 625% 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 203,385
R C Simpson 1.0x 62.5% 43.4% 186,802
The Committee is satisfied that the overall bonus outcomes ore appropxiale. The Company's strong financial performance,
parficulary under the adjusted EPS ond net debt to EBITDA ratio elements, is testament ta both management and the broader
employee population, and while executives fell short of the stretching customer satiskaction targets. the 20146 rasuit still places
Unite in the upper quintile of our benchmork.
Each of the Executive Directors has been a signfficant contributor fo the achievernent of key business objecfives, whike confinving
to demonsiraie both strong personal progressich and exceptional teamwork despite o year of significant change. The proposed o
On-farget individual multipliers of 1,0x reflect our satisfaction with the progress that each individual has maode in their new roles and 5
wea will look for this jo be progressed further as we move info 2017 i
=]
. . . g
Having already reachad their respective share ownership guidelines, each Executive Director will receive 100% of their bonus 3
awards in cash., i
i
= |
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2014 LTIP vesting (vasted on performance o 31 December 2014}
Awards in 2014 were made under the new LTIF, consisting of the Unite Group plc Performance Share Plan and the Unite Group pic
Approved Employee Share Option Scheme. Vesting of ihe awards was dependent on three equally-weighted measures over
4 three-year performance period; total return per share, Earnings per share and TSR outperformance of the £TSE 350 Real Estate
Super Secior Index. There was no retest provision. Further details, including vesting schedules and performance against each
of the metrics are provided in the table below:

Maasure Wesghting Targeis Oulcome Vest %

O% vesting below 18,1 pence 27.7 pence 100%

25% vasting for 18.1 pence
100% vesting for 23.5 pence or more;
Straight-line vesting between these points

2016 Adjusted EPS 12

0% vesting below 8.5% 21.3% 100%
TR per share p.a. A 25% vesting lor 8.5%
{2014 - 2016} 100% vesting for 14.5% or more:
Straight-line vesting batween these points
TSR 0% vesting if Group underperforms the Index Index +10% p.a. 100%
outperformance 25% vesting lor matching the index (55.6% roturn)
of the FTSE350 i3 100% vesting for outperfoming index by 9% p.a.;
Redai Estate Super Straight-line vesting between these points
Sector index
Total LTIP vesting {sum product of weighting and vest %) 100%

The performance periad for the each of the elements endad on 31 December 2016, Two-thirds of awards will vest on the third
anniversary of the dote of grant, with the remaining one-third vesting affer an additional holding period of one year.

Intgnests Interests. Da'e Asumed Estroted

Exocutive Drecior heid veshng % versting vashng marken price vohae

R 5 Smith B6.586 86,566 O APl 17 (2/3) £498,572
H ) — 10 Apl 2017 —_— T

J JLister 95,753 100% 95,753 10 Apri 2018 (1/3] 575.9p £551,484

R C Simpson 84,566 84,564 £498,572

In line wilh regulations, the value disclosed above and in the singie total figure of remuneration table on page 85 captures the full
number of interests vesting [i.e. exciuding the one-year holding period]}. As the market price on the dote of vesting is unknown at the
fime of reparting, the value is estimated using the overoge market value over the last quarter of 2016 of 575.9p. The actuol value ot
vesting will be trued-up in the 2017 Annual Report on Remuneration, Executives ako became entitied 1o cash in lleu of the dividends
payable on vested LTIP shares over the three-year performance period. These payments arg included in the row entitied *LTIF" in the
single iotal figure of ramuneration table an page 85. and amounted to £29,987, £33,258, and £29.787 for Messrs. Smith, Lister ang
Simpson respectively.

Peicentiage change in CEO remuneration
The fable below shows the perceniage chonge in CEQ remuneration from the prior year compored 1o the overoge percenlage
change in reruneration for all employees.

The CEQ's remuneration includes base salary, toxable benefit and annual bonus and for 2014 is colculkated as on aggregate of the
remuneration of Mark Allen until 31 May 2016 and of Richard Smith thereafter (annual bonus relates o Richard Smith full year). The
pay for all ather empiayeas is calculoted using the increase in the earnings of fulk-time employees for tax years 2015 and 2014. The
analysis excludes part-fime empioyees and is based on a consistent set of employees, i.e. the same individuals appear in the 2015
and 2016 populations.

CEQ Al armployeas
018 M5  %change % chonge
[4 L 15=16 W15-15
Base salary 433837 43221 0.0% 20%
Taxabie benefits 17.07y 23,319 (26 8|% 4.4%

Annual bonus 227,083 551,180 (58.8)% [58.4)%




THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2914 ]
] e

woday oBajous

Relofive importance of spend on pay
The table below shows shareholder disiibutions {i.e. dividends and share buybacks) and totol employee poy expenditure for the:
financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, along with the percentage change in both.

2004 a8 % change
Em Em 2015-14
Total employee pay expenditure 9.2 43.7 103)%
Distributions to sharaholders 35.3 332 6.3%

The Directors are propaosing @ final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2016 of 12 pence per ordinary
share, Employee remunergtion excludes social security Costs.
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Review of past performance

The following graph charts the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index over the eight-yeor period from
1 January 2009 to 31 December 2016, While there is no comparator index or group of companias that fruly reflects the aclivities of
the Group. the FTSE 350 Reol Estate Super Sector index (the constituent members of which are all property holding and/or
development companies or real estate investment frusts within the UK}, was chosen as it reflects trends within the UK property
market generally and tands to be the index against which analysts judge the performance of the Company. The table below
defails the Chief Execufive’s single figure remuneration over the same period,

Historical TSR performance
iyt Shpusticenrnie 8y pothetlcal £100 holding over the 8 years to 31 December 2016.
Growth in the value of a hypothefical £130 holding over the 8 years to 31 December 2016

SHUBLISIO|S |DIDUDUY

(@]

209 00 o0 012 2013 w4 205 16 g

[ 3

MCAlon  MCAKin  MCAlan  MCAdan  MCAln  MCAkn  MCAllan  RSSmith g

CEQ single figure: of £222 840 a

ramuneration [E000) £645313 £887.175 £),475,577 £993754 £).943.734 £2.987,402 £3381,885 £1,19).378 g'
37Tl award rates against nla
raximum opportunity 420% 43.4% 75.8% $3.4% B4R 89 4% 8B.2% 43.4%
LTt award rates against nfa
maxirum opportunity 0.0% 0.0% 82.4% 26.3% 83.1% 95.2% 100.0% 100.0%
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Scheme inferests owarded In 2015 (audited)

me

in June 2016, Executive Directors were granted gwards under the LTIF with a maximum face value of ¢.200% of their respective
sataries. The three-year performance period over which performance will be measured began on 1 Jonuary 2016 and will end
on 31 December 2018. Any awards vesting for performance will be subject fo an additional two-year holding period.

Shares Cver wich Market pnce of
Exscu've Dwector Date of grant awards granied' daie of award Foce walve
R § Smith T 134882 £865.248
13 Lister 23 June 2016 109,941 441 5p £705272
R C Simpson 102,147 £4355,273

' Combination of HMRC approved options under the ESOS (935) and nil cost ophons under the PSP calcuioted using a share price of 441,5p. being
the closing mid-market price on the day the awards were caiculated.

Vesting of 2016 awards is dependent on three equally-weighted measures over a three-year performance period; total return per
share. earnings per shara and TSR autperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate Super Sector Index. There is no retest provision. The
Committee considers that the targets applying under each of the performance measures are na less siretching than in pravious
years. Details of the vesfing schedules are provided bekow:
Measure Wesghiing Targets o
2018 Adjusted EPS 1/3 D% vesting below 30 pence;
25% vesting for 30 pence;

100% vesting for 38 pence or more;
Straighl line vasling batween these points

TR per share p.a. 1/3 0% vesting below 9% p.a.;
{2016 - 2018) 25% vesting for 9% p.Q.;
100% vesting for 15% p.a. of more;
Straight line vesting between these points.
T$R outperformance of the FTSE 350 Real Estate {Super  1/3 0% vesting If Group underperforms the index:
Sector] Index (2015 - 2017} 25% vesting for matching the index:
100% vasting for outperforming index by $% p.a.;
Straight-line vssfr_ng batween these points.

SAYE
Duyring the year under review, no new SAYE awards were granted to the Executive Directors.

Exit payments made in the yeor (audited)

The terms of Mark Allan's exit were set out in an agreemant at the time he gave notice to the Compxany. In formaiising this agreement,
the Committee sought 1o ensure that the outcomes were fair to sharehoiders. to the Company and fo Mark Allan, kaking into account
the terms of his departure and his service to Unite over his 17 years of empiayrment with the Group, including almost 10 years as
Chief Executive. The agreement akso set out some additional undertakings which included rermnaining with the business in an advisory
capaciy until 31 October 2014 1o support the new Chief Executive, as well as strengthened non-compete and non-pooch amangements,
all of which were Considered to be in the interests of the Company and of our shareholders.

For the period 1 June 2014 to 31 Octaber 2016, Mark Allon continued 1o receive base pay (£201,476), pension [£32,417) and other
contractual benefits (£7.854) totalling £241.777. He was not eligible 1o participate in the 2016 annual bonus and there was no
payment in ieu of notice.

For the purposes of outsianding long-term incentives, Mark Asan was not considered a 'gooed’ ieaver, with the detault policy posifion
dictating that all of his autstanding awards would lapse upon leaving the Company, uniess the Committee would determine otherwise.
Reflecting o number 6f considerations set cut pelow, the Commitiee exercised discretion to ailow veasting of LTIP awards that hod
already baen performance tested and were wilhin a few days of vasting ot the time he made his announcement. This use of
discretion tock intd otcount that:

» The relevant awards wayld hove ordinarily vested three days after the official announcement of tha change in Chief Executive
{i.e. 10 April 2014), but that Mark elected to announce as early as possible i order 1o permil an orderly handover of his duties

» The appiicable performance periods had been completed and vesling was strong under each cycle and

» Other elements of Mork's package ware minimised under the terms of the compromise agreerment. Namely no annual bonus
would be payable in respect of 2016, and the praviously announced §% salary increase would instecd be kept in ine with general
increases across the group at 2%.
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As aresult, and having honoured his obligation 1o rermain employed with the Company in an advisory capacity through to 31 October
2016, the final third of Mark's 2012 LTIP award {which vasted as to 95.22% of maximum tbased on performance o 31 December 2014)
and the first two-thirds of his 2013 LTIP awaord {which vested in full based on perfermance fo 31 December 2015} were preserved and
become capable of exercise, subject to malus and clawback provisions, from 1 November 20156 and 1 April 2017 respectively ~ in
both cases being an increased deterral period from the origingl vesting dote. All other outstanding and unvested awards {i.e. the
final third of his 2013 LTIP awards, and each of the 2014 and 2015 LTIP gwards) kapsed following Mark's resignation, Details of the
presetrved awards are incliuded in the table below:

Iterests Original Revisad Market pnce
Award cycle wveshing vashng date veshng date aN vesting value
2012LTP 104,725 1 Novermnbes 2016 549, £574,940
o4 10 Apri 2016 L
2013LTiF 131,209 1 Aprit 2017 37590’ £755.633

' AS the market price on the date of vesting is unknown at the fime of reporting. the volue Is estimoted using the aoverage market value over the last
quarter of 2016 of 575.9 pence.

Payments to past directors (audited)
Save for Mark Allan's remuneration detailed above, thene were no further payments to past directors during the year.

implementation of Executive Director remuneration policy tor 2017
Base solary
The Committee has approved the following solory increases with effect from 1 March 2017:

Base salory from Base saiory from
| June 0141028 1 march 20171028 Percenioge
Execunve Drector Fabryary 2017 februosy 2018 norecse
R S Smith £430.000 £438,600 2%
+J Lister £350,000 £357,000 %
R C Simpson £325,000 £331.500 2%
T
Proposed salary increases are consistent with the average increase applied across the Group {¢.2%). %
2
Pension g
Executive Direclors will cantinue ta receive a pension contribution of up fo 20% of salary or an equivaient cash aliowance. T
Performance related annual bonus §
Corporate
i measures wgt
Financial (75%} Adjusted EPS 25.0%
Totol return per share 250%
Net debt to EBTDA ratio 250%
Non-financicl (25%) Customer satisfaction 12.5%
University Repulation 12.5%
The performance related annuol Bonus for the 2017 financial year will operate on broodly the same basis as in 2014, The Comimittee
has approved an unchanged maximum bonus opportunity for each exacutive of 144% of salary. consisting of a maximum of 120% g
of solary under the 'corporate’ elemsent and g maximum individual multiplier of 1.2x. @
=
For 2017, the 'corporate’ slement of the annua! bonus wil continue to be bosed on a combination of financial and non-financiat g
measures, weighted 75% and 25% respectively. The Committee infends o supplement customer satishkaction with @ measure based a
an University Reputation, with each weighted 12.5%. Tha inclusion of University Reputalion recognises the equalimportance aof 2:5

Unite's relationships with Higher Education partners, together with the opinions of our student customers directly. and has been used
as an opembonal KPI for a number of years. it is also intended that the majority of 2017 objectives under the individual performance
multiphier will be shared across each of the Executive Directors. Proposed target levels have been set to be challenging relative

o businass pian, afthicugh specific targets are deemed o be commercially sensitive ot this time. 1t is the Commitiee’s curent
intention to disclose these targets. and the key achievements by each Executive Dector, refrospectively in the 2017 Directors’
Rermuneration Repart.

Annual bonuses will continue 1o be paid in cosh, unless the recipient has not met their snareholding guidelings, in which cdse up
to 50% of the amount payable will be satisfied by an allocation of shares in the Company, deterred for three years, Clawback and
malus provisions apply to all awards,
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For 2017 the LTIP will confinue to operate broadly on the some basis as in the 2014 financial year. The Committee. having considered
the performance of the Company and other relevant factors, intends that Executive Directors will each receive on award
equivalent to a maximum of 200% of salary delivered through a combination of the PSP and ESOS, with the final levet of vesting
depengent on the achievemen! of three-year performaonce targets relating to EPS, TR and TSR, as follows:

Maeaasure Waghting Targets
2019 Adjusted samings /3 0% vesting betow 38 pence
per share (EPS) 25% vesting for 36 pence

100% vesting for 42 pence or mone;
Straight line vesting between these points

Total return (TR] per share 1/3 0% vesting below 7% p.a.

pa. (2017 - 2019} 25% vesting for 7% p.a.
100% vasting for 13% p.0. or more;
Straight line vesting between these paints

TSR outperformance of the  1/3 0% vesting if Goup underperforms the Index
FTSE 350 Real Estate Super 25% vesting for matching the index
Sectorindex (2017 - 2019} 100% vesting for outperforming Index by 9% p.a.;

Straight ine vesting between these points

Targets have been set with reference to internal and external reference points, inCluding our strategic plan and broker consensus
estimates, and are designed 1o be stretching but achievabie for participonts. Full vesting under each element will reguire continued
axceptional performaonce over the next three years. Any awards vesting for performance will be subject fo an additional two-year
holding period, during which time clawback provisions will aise opply. Further details of the grant date and number of interests
awarded will be disclosed in the 2017 Annual Report on Remunenation.

implementation of Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy for 2017

Chairman ond Non-Executive Director Fees

During the final quarter of 2014, the Board undertook its onnuat review of Non-Executive Diractor tees. Following consideration of
salary increases across the Group and indicative fee increases ot sector and FTSE comparators, the Board determined that the
basic fee should be increased from £45.000 p.a. to £45.900 p.o. and thal additional fees should be increased by a similar rate,

in both cases being broadiy in line with increases for the broader employee population.

In respec! of the Chairman of the Board, Phil White, the Committee determined that with the new executive leadership structure
now in place, and given the significant increase in the size of the Compony in recent years, the timing was appropriate to underiake
Q full morket assessment of the Chairman rote. Having considerad a number of reference points, including data for sector and size
comparators and time commitment, the Committee recommended on increase in the fee payable to the Chairman to £185,000 p.a.
which will position him around lower quartile against the blended market assessment. The Committee considers this increase
appropriate given Phil's significant experience and leadership of the Company over his tenure to date.

A summary of the fee increases, which are effective 1 January 2017, is set out in the lable below.

Posihon 2015 fmes. D46 lees 2017 feas

Base fees

Chairman £127.100 £129.650 £185,000

Non-Executive Director T £44,100 £45,000 £45,900

Additional fees

Serior Independent Director £5.125 £5,250 £5,400

Audit Committee Char £9,150  £9.350 £9.550

Remunemation Committee Chair £9,150 £9.350 £9.550
_ Nomination Committeg Chair nfa n/a nfa

Health and Safety Committee Chair £6,475 £6,600 £4,750

" As Cha¥rman of the Board. Mr while does not receive ary additional fee in respect of chairing this Committee.
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Directors' inferests (oudited)

L]

Orcinary Shores  Ordinary Shares

of 25p sach ot of 25peachat

31 Dacamber 31 Cecember

018 2015

R $ Smith 166,344 81,313
JJiister 410,936 430,98]
R C Simpson 159,026 75,625
P M White 10952 !9,952
R J Twilson o . 6275 6,275
M Wolstenholme . ) . 7,995 7,995
A jones 15,000 15,000
E McMeikan 5,000 5,000

A tabie setting out the beneficial interests of the Diractors and their families in the share capital of the Company as at 3 December

2016 is set out o the right.

None of the Direclors has a beneficial interest in the shares of any other Group company. Since 31 Decembear 2014, there have been

no changes in the Directors’ interests in shares.

Details of Direclors’ share options are set out in the fables below.

Share price information

As at 31 December 2016 the middie market price for ordinary shares in the Company wos $06p per share. During the course of the
year, the market price of the Campany's shares ranged frorm 543.5p to 843.5p per ordinary share.

Executive Directorns’ shareholding requirements (audited)
The table below shows the shareholding of eoch Executive Director ogainst ther respective shareholding requirement as at

31 December 2016:

Inlenests
Sumectlc  Urvased analor Shorehoing Current

Owned deleroimolding  sibyectioper).  requiement®  sharenclang % Requrament

outnght pencd’ condtions salaryflee solaryftee? met®?

R S Smith 166,346 99.249 286,627 250% 0% Yes

J J Lister 410,936 41,827 277,788 200% 750% Yes

R C Simpson 159.026 70,088 253,892 200% 366% Yes
P M White 10,952 51%
R J T Wilson 8,275 85%
M Waoistenholme B 7.995 108%
A Jones 15,000 07%
E McMeikan 5,000 67%

' Includes shares subject o o holding penod under the 2013 LTIP and delermed Donus shares, where apphcable.
2 Based on share price as at 31 Decemibber 2016 of 404p. Shaves subject to defemal/holding penods are taken on a 'net of tax' bass for the purposes

of the current shareholding calculation,

1 Asof the gate thot he steppea down from the Bowrd, Mark Allan had exceeded the applicable shareholding guideline of 250% of salary.
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Direciors’ Interests in shares and options under Unife iIncentives (audited)

Detferred bonus
interests haid Inlerests heid of
at 1 Januory Gronled during  Market pnos per Ienasis vested interssts iopsed 3! December Deteral
Expcuive 0% the yaor share ot grant dunrg e yeor chyring the yeor 06 penog
R C Simpson 0,790 - 3100p 30,750 - - 07.03.13
—-06.03.16
32,277 - 4420p - = 32,277 07.03.14
—-06.03.17
63.067 - - 30,790 - nan -
R 5 Smith 33,849 - 31000 33.849 - - 07.03.13
-0603.16
2277 - 4420 - - 32277 07.03.14
-0603.17
29161 - 333.5p - - 29,161 24.02.15
-2302.18
$5.307 - - 33,869 - 41,438 -
LTIP awards
Outsanaing at
Inlprasts wardad 31 Dacember
QNG the yaar 2014 [onfinary
{onihary Shares  Marike’ pNce per Irderests vesisd shanes of 250 Period of
Inferests paid  of 25 &ach in The s\grewren  forperformanos  Irterests kapsec oaCh In e quatklying
Exmcutive Q' D10 16 Cormpary] awandec dunng tha yeor dunng the year Compony) conaiicns
J JLister 125,482 - 319.0p 125.482' - - 10.04.13
-1004.14
95753 - 420.6p - - 95,753 10.04.14
' -10.04.57
72,094 - 583.5p - - 72094 02.04.15
-02.04.18
- 109,941 441.5p - - 109,941 2306.16
-23.0619
293329 109.941 - 125482 - 277,788 -
R C Simpson 113.432 - 319.0p 113,432 - - 100413
- 100416
85,564 - 428.6p - - B&,566 1004.14
-10.04.17
65,179 - 583.5p - - &5,179 0204.15
~ 020418
- 102,147 641.5p - - 102147 23.06.16
~23.06.19
245177 102147 - 113,432 - 253,892 -
R § Smith 113,432 - 3190p 113,432 - - 1004.13
-10.04.16
85,566 - 428.6p - - 86,566 1004.14
~10.04.17
45,179 - 583.50 - - 65179 G2.04.15
-0204.18
- 134,882 641.5p - - 134,882 23.06.16
- 2306.19
2658177 134,882 - 113,432 - 284,627 -

Ooe-third of awards vested for performaonce are subject to an additional one-year hokling period, 1.e. 41,827, 37.811 and 37,811 shores in respact
of Messrs. Lister, Simpsan and Smith respectivety.
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Cphons held Optlions haid at
al 1 january Gronted dunng Exercised Oplion pnce 31 Dacermbear
Execulive 2014 the ymar dunng fhe year per shore 2016 Matunty date
. 7.299 - - 205.50 7.299 01.12.17
JJ Lister
- 1,706 - 527.4p 1,705 01.12.18
R C Simpson 5216 - - 3451p 5216 0217
R S Smith — 3,411 - 527 .60 3411 01,1218

Thea highest, lowest ond closing share prices for 2014 are shown on page 93,

Detcrils of the qualifying performance conditions, in relation fo the above referred fo awords made in 2014 and in 2014, are set out
eqrlerin this report. Those details shoulkd also be taken as forming part of the ‘auditable part” of this report. Details of performance
conditions applying to the 2015 awards were set out in the 2015 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Awards rade in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 tock the form of a caornbination of nil cost options under the PSP and HMRC approved
options under the ESOS. No variations have been made fo the 1erms or conditions of any awards.

The fair vaiue in respect of Directors’ share options and LTIP awards recognised in the Income Statement is as follows:

04 s
Executive £ 1)
4 J Lister 32,136 41585
R C Simpson 337,897 429956
R § Smith 407570 470354
M C Allan (489.737) 654.775
The Directors’ Remuneration Report has been approved by the Remuneration Committee and signed on its behalf by: g
=3
Elizabeth McMelkan 9
Chair, Remuneration Commities VET
22 February 2017 @
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

As ol 22 February 2017 the Company had
received notifications from the following
companies and institutions of the voting
interests of themselives and their clients in
3% or mare of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company.

Peeantoge
of Shame
Sharehokier Caphol
BlackRock Inc 8.01
APG Asset Management NV 6.36
Cohen & Steers inc 438
Aberdeen Asset
Management Group 395
Old Mutual ple 3.79
RoyalLondon
Asset Management .40
Invesco Lid 3.50
Principal Financial Group 331
Norges Bank
309

Investment Management
—

Share capital

Af fhe date of this report, there are
222,048,787 ordinary shares of 25p eachin
issue, all of which are fully paid-up and
quoled on the London Stock Exchange.

During the year and through to the date
of this repor, a total of 65,408 ordinary
shares of 25p each were allotied and
issued pursuant fo the exercise of opfians
under the Unite Group plc Savings
Related Share Option Scheme ond

a total of 72,448 ordinary shares of 25p
each were allotled and issued pursuant
1o the exarcise of options under the
Approved Scheme.

The rights attaching to the Company's
ordinary shanes, as well as the powers of
the Compaony's Diractors, are set outin
the Company's articles of associatfion.

There cre noreskictions on the transfer

or voting rights of ordinary shares in the
cagital of the Campany {other than those
which may be imposed by low from time
to fime or as set cut in the Cormpany's
articles of association).

In occordance with the Market Abuse
Regulations, certain employees are
required to seek opproval 1o dealin
the Compaony’s shares.

The Company is not aware of any
agreements between shareholders that
may result in restrictions on the transfers of
securities and/or voting rights, No person
nolds securitias in the Company camying
special ights with regard fo control of the
Company, Unless expressly specified fo
the contrary, the Company's articles of
association moy be omended by speciol
resolution of the shareholders.

Change of control

All of the Company's share schemes
caontain provisions relating to a change

of confral. Outstanding rewards and
options would norrmailly vest ond become
exercisoble on a chonge of contmol, subject
to the safisfaction of any performance
conditions. Qther than certain of the
Group's banking facilities, there are na
other significant cgreements 1o which the
Company is o party that affect, alter or
terminate upon a change of contral of
the Company following a takeaver bid.
Nor are there any agreements betwean
the Company and its Directors of
employees providing for compensation
for ioss of office or employment that
occurs becouse of a takeover bid.

THE UNITE BROUP PLC ANNUAL REFORT AND ACCOUMTS 2814

Following a change of controt of the
Company, the convertible bonds issued
by Unite Jersey Issuer Limited and
anncuncad on 3 October 2014 become
redgormable and/or convertible into
ordinary shares of the Compony [af the
option of the holder].

The Directon have no outhority fo buybock
the Company's shares.

Cetals of proposals to be put 1o the Annual
General Meeting in relation lo the power
of Directors 1o issue shares in the Compaony
are sef out under the heading "Annuat
Ganeral Mesting',

Going concem and
viabliity statlement

The going concem statement and
viability statement is set out on pages 65
and 25 respectivaly and i incorponted
into this Directors’ Report by refarence.

Disclosure of informalion

fo auditors

The Directors who held office at the
data of approval of the Directors’ Report
confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, theve is no relevant oudit
information of which the Company's
avditor is unaware; ond each Director
has taken oll the steps that he ought to
have token as a Direclor to make himself
aware of any relevant audit informafion
and to establish thot the Company’s
auditors are aware of that information.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Company has procedures in ploce
for managing conflicts of interest, A
Diector s o nolify the Chaimman [ond
the Chairman notifies the Chief Executive}
if they become aware that they, ar any
of their connected partias, may have

an intefest in an existing or proposed
transaction with the Company or the
Group. Directors have a continuing duty
to update any changes to these confiicts.

Polifical donations
No political donations were made during
the year ending 2016.
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Other information

incorporated by reference

The foliowing information in the Strategic
Report is incorporated inlo this Directors’

Report by reference:

Results and dividend Page |
Post balance sheet events  Page 109
Greenhouse gas emissions  Poge 47

Financial Instruments and
financial risk manogement Page 29

Employment of disabled

persons/Employee
involvement

Page 44

The Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 50 to 95 and the Statement of
Diractors' responsibilities on page 9% are
incorporated into this Directors’ Report
by reference.

Management Report

This Directors' Report together with the
strategic report and other sections from
the annual report forms the Management
Report for the purposes of DIR 4.1.8R.

Annual General Meeling

The Annuat General Meeting of the
Company will be held at 3 Rivergate,
Temple Quay, Bristol BS1 6GD, ot 10,00 am
on 1t May 2017, Formal notice of the
meeting is given on pages 155 to 159.

Resolution 14:

Authority fo allot shares

In addition to the crdinary business of the
meeting, Resolution 14 will be proposed
as an ordinary resolution io grant the
Directors authority to allot shares in the
Company, and grant rights 1o subscribe
for of to convert any security into shores
of the Company, up to an aggragate
nominal value of £18,505.732 [representing
approximately one third of the issued
share capital of the Company as ot the
date of this report). In accordance with
guidelines issued by the Investment
Astociation, this resclution also grants the
Directors authority to allot further equity
securities up o an aggregate nominak
vailue of £18,505,732, again representing
approximately one third of the nominat
volue of the issued share capital of the
Company s of the date of this report,
This additionat authority may only be
appiied to fully pre-emptive rights issues.

Resolulions 15 and 14:
Disapplication of pre-emption
rights resolutions

If the Drectors wish to qliot new shares
and other aquity securities for cash {olher
than in connechion with an empioyae
share scheme), company faw requires
that these shares are offered first to the
sharehoilders, in proportion fo their existing
hoidings. The Drectors consider it desiable
o have the maximum Rexibilty permitied
by corporate governance guidelines

o respond to market developments

and fo enale aliotments to fake pkace
fo finance business opportunities without
making a pre-emptive offer o existing
shareholders. This cannot be done under
the Companies 2006 Act unless the
shareholders have first waived their
pre-amption rights, The purpose of
Rasolutions 15 and 14 [together the
‘disapplication of pre-emptions rights
resolutions’) is to enabie shoreholders

i 50 waive their pre-emption rights.

Resclution 15 guthorises the Directols o
aliat new shares pursuant o the authority
given by Resolution 14 {the allotment
resolution) for cash:

{a} In connection with a rights issue
or pre-emptive ssue; and/for

{b) Otherwise up to @ nominal value
ol £2,775,859, equivalent to
approximately 5% of the fotal
ssued ordinary share capital of
tha Company as ot the date of this
report, in each case without the
shares first baing offered to existing
shareholders in proportion to their
existing holdings.

Rasolution 16 cdditionally authorises the
Directors lo aliot new shares for cosh,
without the shares first being oHered 1o
existing shareholdars In proportion ta their
existing holdings. in connection with the
financing {or refinancing, if the authority
is o be used within six months after the
criginal transaction) of an acguisition

or specified capital nvestrment which

s announced contermporaneously with
the aliotment or which has taken ploce
in the preceding six-month pericd and

is disclosed in the announcement of the
gllotment, The authority under Resolution
16 s fimited fo a nominal value of
£2,775,859, equivalent to approximately
5% of the nominal value of the ordinary
share capital of the Company in issue

as at the date of this report.

97

Taken together, these disapphication of
pre-gmption rights resolutions will allow
the Directors fo issue new shares for
cash without offering the shares first

to existing shareholders in proportion to
ther existing hoidings under Ihe
following circumstances:

¥ In connection with arights issue or
other pre-emptive issue, with a nominal
value eéquivalent to two-thirds of the
present issued share capital {(which will
allow the Directors to make exclusions
or such other arangements os moy be
appropriate to resolve legal or
practical problems which, far example,
might arise with overseas shareholders);
> Forany other purpose, with a nominal
valye egquivalent to 5% of the present
ssued share capital; ang
In connection with the financing
orrefinancing of an acquisition ar
specified capitalinvestment which is
announced contermporaneously with
the allotment ar which has taken place
in the preceding six-month period and
is disclosed in the announcement of
the allotment, with @ nominal value
equivalent o 5% of the present issued
share capital but subject to an
overall aggregate limit equivalent
o two-thinds of the present issued
share capital,

v

The Directors intend to adhere o the
provisions in the Pre-Emption Group's
Staternent of Principles, as updated in
March 2015, and not to allot shares for
cash on a non-pre-emptive basis
pursuant to the authority in Resolution 15
either in excess of an amount equal to 5%
of the total issued crdinary share capital
of the Company or in excess of an
amount equal to 7.5% of the total issued
ordingry share capital of the Company
within a rolling three-year pericd, without
priar consultation with sharehoiders.
Even though odherence to the principles
would not precluda issuances under the
authority scught under Resolution 14, the
Directors curmently do not infend to use
such authority without prior consuttation
with leading shareholders.

The aliotment and the disapplication

of pre-emption rights resolutions comply
with the Share Capital Management
Guidelines issued by the investment
Associationin July 2016 and the
disapplication of pre-emption rights
resolutions follow the resolution templates
issued by the Pre-Emption Group in

May 2014,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUED

if the resolytions are passedi, tha authorities
will expire ot the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company
or, if earlier, 10 August 2018, this being the
date 15 months from the passing of the
rasolutions, whichever is the earfier.

Resolulion 17
Amend Asticle 4 (Directors’ fees)
of the Anticles of Assaciation

Reasolution 17 is a proposal to amend
Article 94 of the Articies of Association

to increase the limit an Directors’ service
fees [as distinct from solary, remuneration
and other payments to thg executive
directors} from the current £500,000 to
£750.000 per annum. This is to ollow the
Company some headroom in relation to
any furthet appointments of Non-Executive
Directors arincreases in Directors' fees.
There is no current intertion 1o utilise the
proposed increased limit and the level of
fees paid to the Non-ExeCytive Directors
wilt continye to be monitored by the
Boord. which intends that all such fees
should be in line with market practice.

Resolution 18:

Nolice of Generat Meetings

The Companies (Shareholders' Rights)
Regulations 2007 (the Shareholders'
Rights Regulations). increased the nolice
periocd for general meetings of the
Compony to 2} days uniess shareholders
aporove a sharter notice period, which
cannot be less than 14 clear days, At the
annual general meeting of the Company
held in 2015, shgreholders authorised the
calling of general meetings, other than
an annual general meeting, on not lass
than 14 clear days' notice. Resotution 18
eeks the apgraval of shareholders to
renew the authority fo be able te call
general meetings (other than an annual
general meeting) on 14 Clear days’
notice. The flexibility offered by Resolution
18 wil be used where, taking inlo account
the circumstances, the Directors consider
this oppropriate in relation to the business
of the meeting and in the interests of the:
Company and shoreholders as o whole,
The Company undertakes to meet the
requirements for electronic voting under
the Shareholders' Rights Reguiations
before calling a general meeting on 14
clacr days' notice. If given, the approval
will be effective until the Company's

next annual general meaeting, whenitis
intended that @ similar resolution will

be proposed.

By order of the Boand
Christopher Szpojnarowicz

Company Secrefary
22 February 2017
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts and the
Group and parent company financial
sigtements in accondance with opplicable
law and regulations.

Company law requines the Directors

o prepare Group and porent company
financiol statements for each finoncicl
vear, Under that kaw they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs as adopled by
the EU and applicaoble low and have
ejected to prepare the parenf company
financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law, the Directors must
not approve the financiol staterments
uniess they are satisfied that they give

@ true and kair view of the state of affairs
of the Group ond parent company and
of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and
parent company fingncial statements.
the Directors are requined io:

¥ Select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistentlty

> Make judgments and estimates that
ane reasonable and prudeant

> State whether they have been prepared
in accordance with IRSs as adopled
by the EU

» Prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis untess it is
inappropriale to presurne that the
Group and the parent company
will continue in business.

The Directors are responsinie for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with
reqsonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the paren! company
and enabie them to ensure thatits
financial stotements comply with the:
Companies Act 2006, They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are
recisonably open fo them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevant
and detect froud and other irregularities.

Under applicable low and regulations,
the Diractors are akso rasponsible for
preparing a Directors' Report, Directors’
Rermuneration Report and Corporate
Govermance Statement that comply
with that low and those regulations.

The Directors are responsitle for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Compony's website.
Legisiation in the UK goveming the
preparation and dissemination of
financial skatements may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Each of the Directors, the name of whom
are set out on pages 54 and 55, confims
that to the best of his or her knowiedge:

» The Annual Report and accounts faken
as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for sharehoiders
o assess the Company's position
and performance, business moded
and strategy

> The financiol siaterments, prepared in
accordence with the applicable set of
cooounting standards, give a tue and
fair view of the assets, kabilities,
fincincial position ond profit and loss
of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken
as awhole

? The Directors' Repartincludes
a fair review of the development
and pearformance of the business
and the position of the issuer and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
fogether with g description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

R Smith J Lister
Diraclor Director
22 February 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

Opinion on financial stalements of The Unite Group plc
Qur opinion on the financiai statements is unmodified

It our opinion:

> the finoncial statements give a true and fair view of the siate of the Group’s and of the parent company's affqirs as
at 3! December 2014 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
standards (IFRSS) as adopted by the European Union;

> the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs os adopted by the
Eurapean Union arnd as applied in occordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ond,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

The financial staterments comprise the Consolidated ond Company balance sheets, the Consclidated incorne statement, the
Consolidkated slatement of comprehensive income, the Consofidated and Company siatement of changes in shareholders” equity.
the Consolidated and Cormpany statements of cash flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in her preparation s appicable kaw and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regerds the parent company
fingncial statements, as applied in occordance wilh the provisions of the Comparies Act 2004,

Going concem and the directors' assessment of the principal risks that would ttweaten the solvency

or iquidity of the Group

Asrequired by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the direclors’ statement regarding the approprioteness of the going concem basis
of accounting contained within the Regulatory disclosures section of the Governance report to the financial staternents and the
drectors’ statement on the longer-terrn viability of the Group contained within the strategic report on page 25.

We have nothing material to odd or draw attention to in relation to:

> thedrectors’ confrmation on page 99 that they have corried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those fhat would threaten its bysinass mode, fufure performance. solvency or liquidify;

> the disciosures on pages 26 to 29 that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated:

> the directors’ statement in section 1 1o the financial statements gbout whether they considered it appropriate 1o adopt the
going concem basis of accounting in preparing them and ther identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's
ability to continue to do so over a period of at east twetve maonths from the date of approval of the financial statements;

> ihe director's explangation on page 99 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they
have done so and why they consider that period lo be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expeciation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities os they fall due over
the period of ther assessment. including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
or ossumptions,

Wae agreed with the directors’ adoption of the going concem bask of accounting and we did not identify any such material
uncertaintias. However, because not all futwee events or condifions can be predicted, this staterment is not a guorantee as to the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem.

independence

We are required to comply with the financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors and we confimm that we are
independent of the Group and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsiolliies in accordance with those standards. We also confirm
we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit services refermed to in those standards.

OQur assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of material misstaterneant described bealow are those thot had the grealest effect on our audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the oudit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Last year cur report ncluded a risk around the recognition of defarred tax assets, which i not included in ow report this year. We have
identified a new risk relating to the impact of the Group becoming a REIT on 1 January 201 7 as the REIT fransition has had a significant
impact on the measurement and presentation of delered tax assets and liabifties.

The description of risks below shaukd be read in conjunclion with the significant ssues considered by the Audit Commiliee discussed
on page &6.

These matters ware addressed in the context of our oudit of the financial stolements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk: investment and development property valuation (£2,276.6 miflion)

The Group's pancipal assets are investrment properties and investment properties under davelopment that are gither owned on
balance shaet or trough the investments that the Group holds in LSAV and USAF. The invesiment properties are camied at fair value
based on an appeaisal by the Group's independent exdernal valuers who Santy out the valuations at si-rmionthly intervals for the Group
n accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation - Professionad Standards (the 'Red Book'), faking into
gecount fransactional evidence during the veaaor.

Management conduct a detaied exercise in the assessment of the valuation of the Group's property portiohio. The valuation of these
properties & underpinned by 0 number of jJudgements and assumptions, such as property yields, rental growth, occupancy and
property management costs. A small change in these assumptions could have a significant mpact on the valuation of properties
and, with respect to the valuation of the USAF properties, could also have a significant impact on a key input fo the calculation of
the performance fee recognisad for the year ended 31 December 2014 as this § based on the net asset vaiue of the fund.

With regards to the investrnent properties under development, additional judgement is required to forecast giscounted cash fliows
with o deduction for construction costs o complete.

Refer to Section 3.1: Whoty owned property Qssets

How the scope of our qudit responded to the tisk
We performed festing on the property valualions and ariticaly assessed the judgements and estimates that had been made.
This work included:

» Understanding and documenting the underlying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectivenass of the relevant controls;

> Understanding and challenging the assumptions taken in relation to key drivers such as rental incorme and growth,
ocecupancy, yiekds and costs with reference to the frends at the end of the year and the following year's budget and
Group's strategic plon;

> Meeling with the Group's valuers to understand the assumptions being taken and consistency of the judgements
with price year

> Working with our valuation specialists within our Deloitte Real Estate tear to volidate the assumptions used against
market data:

» Assessing the Group’s development appraisal process through meeting with the development teom and assessing
the forecast cost to complete against budget and substantive testing of costs incured to date: and

> Use of data anolytic tools to determine whether there were any anomalies in the valuation spreadsheet data sent
1o the valuers,

Key observations
We are satisfied with the opproach ond methadology aodopled in valuing the property portfolio and consider the valuotions to be
suitable for inciusion in the financial statements at 31 December 201 6.

Risk: accounling for joint ventures (£692.9 million)

A sigrificant proportion of the Group's assets are held within USAF and LSAV which are jointly owned entities that are accounted for
as joint ventures. At 31 December 2016 Unite hod a 23% ownership in USAF and 50% ownership in LSAY, and acts as manager of both
joint venture vehiclas.

Due to the complexity ot the contractual arangements, and the Group's role us nranager of the joint venture vehicles, the
assessment of confrol involves judgements around & number of significant factors, parficukary with regards to USAF given that it s a
multHnvestor fund and the Unite ownership stake s subject to change. In accordance with IFRS 10, there i a need fo assess control
with regorcis to the abiity 1o direct relevant actlivities, have exposure o variable retums and the abilty to use power to offect retums

at each reporting period.

Refer to Section 3.4: Investments in joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY

CONTINUED

How the scope of our audil responded 1o the risk

Qur oudil procedures on this orea focussed on assessing the activities of the businesses, understanding the confractual agreements
n place and identifying the methodology opplied by management in reaching ther business decisions in order fe consider the
appropriateness of the classification of these arangements as joint ventures in accordance with the requrements of IFRS 10.

with regards to both USAF and LSAV, we have:

>  Undenstood and documented the underying business process and evaluated the design, determined implementation
and lested operating effectiveness of the relevant contrals;

> criticalty assessed the kay activities and how they impact the returns to the Group from the funds and challenged
Management's own consideration of these factors in thelr application of IFRS 10: and

> assessed the Group's monitoring of its role and the three key factors relafing to control and its exercise in accordance
with the judgement required under IFRS 10.

Given the parficular focus on USAF, we have:

> assessed the role of the USAF Advisory Committee (which represents the interests of all unitholders) on an on-going basis,
including obbtaining evidence as 1o how it has caried out its dulies and evaluated where decisions were taken that did
nct involve the Committee os to indications of the ability of the Group to exercise control; and

> critically evaluated the impact of the percentage ownership on a regular basis.

Key observafions

There has been no change to the structure and underlying assumptions on determination of control of USAF and LSAV in the
period and the role played by Unite gs investor and asset/development manager.

We consider the freatment as joinl ventures to be appropriate.

Risk: RE fransition

The Group possesses significant potential defered tax fiabilities in relation to future gains on investmant properties and unit trusts
and also significant potential defered tax assets in respect of tax losses. The recognition of both ligbilities and assets depend

on an assessment of forecast taxable profits, forecasts thamselves primarily dependeant on the conversion to REIT status on

1 January 2017. The recognition of both deferred tax assets and Jiabilities in this period therefore involves judgements regarding
their appropriate freatment on REIT conversion and assessment of the certainty of conversion and ongoing mointenance of
REIT status.

Refer to Section 2.5: Tax

How the scope of our audit responded to the risk
Our audit procedures micluded:

> Understanding ond documaenting the undertying business process and then evaluating the design, determining
implementation and testing operating effectiveness of the reievant controls;

> working closefy with our tax audit specialist teamn, including newly introduced REIT speciatists, to ensure that the key
judgements relating o REIT fransition are understood:

> considering the clarity and presentation of the Group's disclosures of its tax balances and effective tax rate reconcifiation;
and

> testing the Group's curent and forecast compliance with the REIT regime rules.

Key obseqvalions

We are salisfied with Management's assessment of the impact of REIT conversion on the defermed tax position of the Group and ogree
with the resulting credit of £3%.8m on the derecognition of deferred tax previousty recognied on revaluation of investment properties,
accelerated capital alowances and property business tax losses. We consider the presentation of the disclosuras of the tax bakances
and effective tax rate reconciiation to be aoppropnate.
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Our appiication of materiality

We define materiaity as the magnitude of missiatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiaiity both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluafing the results of our work.

We determined materiaiity for the group to be £14.8 milon [2015: £2.3 million}, which 5 1.0% ¢f net assets {2015: 1%, of net assets),

In addition to net assets, we consider the EPRA eamings measure 10 be a critical financial performance measure for the Group and
we have applied a lower threshold of £3.0 million (2015: £3.1 millon) based on 5% of EPRA ecrnings (201 5: 5% of EPRA eamings) for
tasting of revenue, cost of sales, operating expenses, kean interest and sirmiar chorges, finance income, share of joint venture profit
and toxation.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we wouid report to the Committee off audit differences in excess of £1 53,000 (2015
£185,000], as well as ditferences below that threshold that, in our view, woaranted reparting on qualitative grounds, We also report
to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Ouwr group audit was scoped by oblaining an understanding of the Group and its environment. inCluding Group-wide confrols, and
assessing the risks of material misstaterment at the Group level. The Group is oudited by one audit team, ied by the Senicr Statutory
Auditor. The audit is performed centralty, as the books and records for each entity within the Group are mantoined ot head office.
We also tested the consoldation process and camed out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no
significant risks of material misstcterment of the aggregated financial information. We qudit gt of the Group's subsidiaries and jaint
ventures which are subject to audit at siatutory materiality level, which in many cases is substantiaty lower than Group materiality .

Opinion on other matters prescrbed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion:

92unLIBACE ILICAIOD)

> the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report 1o be qudited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006; and

> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
stotements are prepared is consistant with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by excepfion

Adequacy of explanations recelved and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requirad fo repor 1o you i, in our opinion:

> wa have not received all the information ond explanations we require for our audit; or

> ogdequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

*  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retuns,

Wwe have nothing to report in respect of these motiers.

Directors’' remuneration

tUnder the Companies Act 2006 we are ako required to report if i owr opinion certain disckoswes of direciors’ remuneration have not
been made or the part of the Direclors' Remunerclion Report o be audited is not id ogreerment with the accounting records ond
retums, We have nothing to report arising from these matiexs.

Cormporate Govemance Siatement
Under the Listing Rules we are ako required o review part of the Corporate Governance $totement relating to the company’s
corngiance with certain provisions of the UX Comporate Governance Code. We have nothing 1o report arising from our review,

Q
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE UNITE GROUP PLC ONLY
CONTINUED

Our duly to read other informatlion in the Annual Report
Under Infemational Standards on Auditing (UK and rekand), we are required 1o report to you if, in aur opinion, nformation in the
annual report is:

> matariaily inconsistent with the information in the qudited financial statements; or

> apparentty matenally incorrect based on. or materiaily inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
counse of performing aur audit; or

> otherwise misleoading.

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have idenfified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired duing
the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the annual repornt is far, balonced and understandable and whether the
annudl report appropriotely discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have
been diclosed. We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsitencies of misleading statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and audltor

As explained more fuly in the Drectors’ Responsibilifies Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Infemational Standards on Auditing (UK and reland). We aiso comply
with Intemational Standard cn Quality Cantrol | {UK and ireland). Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our qualilty
control procedures are effective, undersiood and applied. Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated professional
standards review teom and independent pariner reviews,

This repott is made solely to the company's members. as a body, in accordonce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
Ouwr audit work has been undertaken 5o that we might state to the company's members those matiers we ore required lo state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fukest extent permitted by taw., we do not accept or assurne responsibility
to anyone ather than the company and the company's memibpers as a body, for our audit work, for Ihis repont, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial stafements

An audit involves obidining evidence about the amounis and disckosures in the finoncial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or eror, This inciudes an
assessment of: whether the accounting pofickes are appropriate to the group's and the parent company's crcumstances and have
been consistently appied and adequately disclosed: the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors:
and the overall presentation of the financial statements, In addition, we read all the finoncial and non-financial information in the
annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financlal statements and to identify any information that is
apparentty moterially incorect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit, if we become aware of any apparent material misstaternents or inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report,

NS

Judith Tacon {Senlor siatulory audilor)

for and on behall of Deloltte LLP

Charterad aAccountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 February 2017
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Thess financial sialements are prepared In accordance with IFRS. The Board of Direclors aiso present the Group's pedommaonce
o on the basls recommended for real esigle componies by the European Public Real Eskole Associotion (EPRA}. The reconcRalion
between [FRS pedormaonce measures and EPRA performance measures ¢con be found in Section 22 b} for EPRA eamings
and 2.3 c) for EPRA net asset value (NAY). The adjusiments to the IFRS resulls are intended fo help users in the comparabiity
of these resulls across other listed reol estale companies in Europe ond reflect how the directors monttor the business.
We have grouped the notes to the financia statements undler six main headings:
> Resulls for the year, including segmental informalion, EPRA samings and EPRA NAV
> Asset management
> Funding
>Working capilal
>Key muncogement arndd smployse benefils
> Company swbsidicries and Joint ventures 8
Each section sets oul the relevant accounting policies applied in these financial stotements together with the key §
Judgements ond estimales used. o
1o
Primary sialements §
Consoldated income statement 3
Consoldated statement of comprehensive income a
®

Consoidated balance shaet
Company balonce sheet
Consoldated sfatement of changes in sharehokders’ equity
Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Statements of cash flows
Section 1: Basis of preparation
Section 2: Resulls for the year

2.1 Segmental information

2.2 Eamings

2.3 Net assets

2.4 Revenue and costs

2.5 Tax

2.6 Audit fees
Seclion 3: Asset management

3.1 wholly owned property assets

3.2 Inventories

3.3 Other non-CLment assets

3.4 Investments in joint ventures

3.5 Investments in subsidiaries
Section 4: Fundiing

4.1 Borowings

4.2 interest rate swaps

4.3 Net financing costs

4.4 Getring

4.5 Firancial fisk factors

TN

4.6 Operafing leases §

4.7 Caopital management
4.8 Equity 5
4.9 Dividends g
Section 5: Working capital %
-

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

5.2 Trade and other receivables

5.3 Credit risk

5.4 Trade and other payables

5.5 Transactions with other group companies
Section &: Key manogement and employse benefils

6.1 Staff numbers and costs

4.2 Key management personnel

4.3 Share based compensation
Section 7 Events after the balonce sheet dote
Seciion & Company subsidiaries and joint ventures —
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2016

x4 015
) Em £m
Rental ncome 2.4 7.1 9340
Property sales and other income 2.4 23.6 115.8
Totol revenue 120.7 2088
Cost of sales 2.4 (44.9) {114.9}
Operating expenses (25.0) {28.5}
Results from operating activities 508 65.4
Profit/{Loss) on disposal of property a4 0.6}
Net valuation gains on property A 772 164.8
Proftt before net finoncing costs 128.4 xXM9.5
Loan interest and similar charges 43 (20.9) {22.6}
Mark to market changes in interest rate swaps 43 - {06}
Swap cancelition costs 43 (1.0} -
Finance costs 43 (219 123.2)
Finance ncome 43 0.1 0.2
Net financing costs 43 (218 (23.0)
Share of joint venture profit 340 4.8 181.8
Profit before tax 2004 so.4
Current fax 25 2.3) [+.6}
Defened tox 2.5 27.3 (3t.1}
Profit for the yeor 2284 3557
Profit for the yeor alirbulabie to
Owmens of the parent compony 22¢c 224.0 3519
Minority interest 24 a8
2244 355.7
Eomings per share
Basic 22c 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted 22¢ 4.7p 150.3p
All results are derived from continuing activities.
For the year ended 31 December 2016
2014 s
Nobe £m £m
Profit for the year 2244 355.7
Mavements in effective hedges 42 9.2) 1.9}
- Defemred tax in relation to movements in effective hedges 2.5d (1.1 1.0
Gains on hedging insiruments fransferred o income statemeant within mark to market
changes in interest rate swoaps - 0.3
- Defemed tax in relation to hedging instuments transferred o income statement - 0.0}
Share of joint venture movements in effective hedges 34b (1.4) 0.6
— Defemed tax in relation to share of joint venture movements in effective hedges 254 (0.5) 0.1}
Other comprehensive income for the year (122) 0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 214.2 3555
Alributable to
Owner of the parent company 211.8 3814
Minority interast 24 3.9
2142 3555

All other comprehensive income may be clossified as profit and loss in the future.
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]
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET )
a
At 31 December 2016 &
{
ams i35
Nole m £m
Assels
Invastment property 3 1.061.6 1.024.4
Investment property under development 31 184.6 1498
Investment in joint veniures 3.4k 692.9 4106
Other non-cument assets 33 298 245
Deferred tax asset 2.5 -~ 1.0
Toldl non-curent assels 1.948.9 1,810.3
inventories 32 2.9 34 0
Trade and other receivables 52 77.9 83.0 S
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 42.7 270 é
Totol curment oasets 1235 136 &
Total assels 20924 1,923.9 §
g
Uablities )
Bormowings 4. .3 (3.3
Trade and other poyabiles 54 1237 [115.5)
Current tax ligbiity (24) [2.3)
Total cusrent Habliiltes (127.4) (149.1)
Borrowings 4.1 {473.5) (443.8)
Interest rate swaps 4.2 {11.8) (2.3
Deferred tax liability 2.5d {4.4) {31.0)
Total non-cumrent kabilifies {489.5) (477.1)
Total iabiites {614.9) (626.2)
Net assefs 14755 1297.7
Equity
Issued share capital 4.8 555 555
Share premium 48 493.6 493.3
Merger resarve 40.2 402
Retained eamings 847.9 679.5
Hedging raserve {15.0) 2.8}
Equity portion of convertible instrument 4.1 94 2.4
Equily aliributabie to the owners of the parent compoany 1451.6 12753
Mnorty interest 23.9 22.4 o
Total equity 14755 1,297.7 3
5
These financial statements of The Unite Group pic. registered number 3199160 were approved by the 5
22 February 2017 and were signed on its behalf by;
3
RS Smith 1) Lister .
Director Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2016

04 F:1H

Nole e £im
Assoh
Investments in subsidiories a5 7254 648.3
Totalinvestments 7254 6483
Loan to group undartaking s 179.9 179.9
Total non-cusrent atsets 905.3 s28.2
Armounts dug from group undertakings 52 4864 6393
Cash ond cash equivalents 5.1 - -
Total current assels s86.4 4393
Jolal assels 1.59.7 14575
Currenit hobiitles
Borowings 4.1 (0.1} (1.4)
Amounts due fo group undertakings 54 {1.3) [58.2)
Other payables 54 (3.0} {2.7)
Total curent licbiifies {44) (62.%
Bomowings 4.1 {175.3) (1730
Totol non-curert Sobilliles {175.3) {173.0}
Yofal iabiifies (179.7) (235.3)
Net assels 1,4120 1.2322
Equify
Issued share copital &5.5 555
Share premiym 493.6 493.3
Merger raserve 402 402
Relaired sornings 813.3 6338
Equity portion of intercompany loan 4 9.4
Total aquity 14120 12322

Total equity is wholly atiributabie to equity holders of The Unite Group pic.

These financial statements of The Unite Group plc, registered number 3199140 were approved by the Board of Directors on
22 Februcry 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

R 5 Smkh J 4 Uister
Director Director

T A
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-——
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES ;
'
IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY g
9.
For the year ended 31 December 2015 %
losued Share Naiphr Retained Hedging  of converibie 1o owres Minorly
share caplial p o rasenve insirument of the parent Inlerest Tolal
tm £m tm m £m £m £m m £m
Al 1 Jonuary 2016 855 4933 40.2 &TV.5 (2.8) 4 1,275.1 2.4 1.297.7
Profit for the yeor N - - 240 - - 2240 24 244
Movements in effective | ;
hedges [net of ! '
associated deferedtax} . - - - - (122) - (122) - (122).
Tatal comprehensive
income for the year - - - 2240 {122) - 2.8 24 2142 o
Shares issued - 0.3 - - - Q3 - 03 Q
Deferred tax on share 8
based payments - - - (0.1) - - (o.1) - {0-1) g.
Far value of shore based Q
paymertis - - - 1.2 - - 1.2 - 1.2 %
Own shares acquired - - - 2.5 - - {25) - (2.5} 3
Dividends paid to owners a
of the parent company - - - (34.2) - - (342) - (342) - ®
Dividends to minority
interest - - - - - - - (1.1) (1.1)
Al 31 December 2018 55,5 493.6 40.2 857.9 {15.0) 9.4 1,451.4 23.9 1,475.5
Eyusty porhon Aftnouiatle
Issued Shore Merger Retained Heagng  of converible o cwners hanomy
shore Sapifol premivm raserve ecrIngs ressrve T nent of the parent Wolenest Tt
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m
Al Y Jonuary 2015 504 3858 402 3592 (2.5) .4 8425 19.8 8423
Profit for the year ) Z _ - 3519 - - 3519 38 3557 |
Other comprehensive |
income for the year ‘ - - - - 0.3 - 0.3} o1 0.2} |
Total comprehensive
income for the yeor - - - sy {0.3) - 3816 ae 355.5
Shares issued 5.1 107.5 - - - - 1126 - 1124
Deferred tax on share
barsed payments - - - o]} - - 08 - 08
Fair value of share based
poyments - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Own shores acquired - - - (3.4} - - {3.4} - (3.4}
Dividends paid lo owners
of the parent company - ~ - [31.9) - - (31.9} - {31.9)
Dividends to minority
interast - - - - - - - {1.1) (1.1}
Al 31 December 2015 55.5 493.3 40.2 4795 (2.9) 24 1,275.1 246 1.297.7

The notes on pages 112 to 153 form part of the financial statements,

Q
o
X
3
g
3



1le THE UNITE GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2015

ed Share Marger Retgined Equity portion of
here copiial previum revarve eaTiE  inlercompany loan Tokal
tm £m im tm &m m
At 1 Januory 2014 555 49313 402 6338 94 1.2322
Profit for the year & other comprehensive income - - - 2137 - 2137
Shares ssued - 0.3 - - - 0.3
Dividends to sharehokiers - - - (34.2) - (34.2)
A? 31 December 2014 585 493.4 402 8133 24 14120
Hsuad Share Marger Relanec Ecawty porkon o!
share copok premium ressrve aanngs  miercompany oan Tomal
£m £Em £m £m £m £m
Al 1 Joswary 2015 504 3858 402 3758 9.4 8518
Profit for the yeor & other comprehensive income - - - 289.9 - 289.9
Shares ssued 51 107.5 - - - 1124
Dividends to sharehoiders - - — [31.9} - [31.9)
At 31 December 2015 55.5 493.3 402 6338 7.4 12322

The nates on pages 112 1o 153 form part of the firancial staterments.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2015

I3 bY

Group Company
o 015 26 s

Nede tm £m tm £m
Cash flows from operaling aclivities 5.1 70.3 1208 (2.4) {2.2)
Cash flows trom taxalon (22) (0.3) - =
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investment property 126.1 [0.8) - -
Paymaents to/on behalt of subsidiaries - - {157.4) [174.9)
Payments from subsidicries - - [1A] 544
Repayment received of joint venture investment loan - - - -
Loan to joint ventures - {30.5) - -
Dividends received 292 229 132.3 557
Interest received 0.1 0.2 - -
Investment in joint ventures - (52.4) - -
Acquisiion of infangible gssets (8.2) 7.7y - -
Acquisition of property nno (96.3) - -
Acquisition of plant and equipment {3 sy - =
Cash flows from investing aciivities 131 (168.5) 410 (84.8)
Financing acliviies
Interest paid in respect of financing octivities (237 (218 (5.5) {5.5)
Ineffective swap payments - [2.3) - -
Swop cancedation costs (1.0) - - -
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 0.3 1124 0.3 1126
Payments fo acquire own shares 25 {3.4) - -
Froceeds from non-curent borowings 9.0 17.6 23 1.8
Repayment of borrowings {102.3) {36.1) - -
Dividends paid to the owners of the parent company {34.2) {31.9) (34.2) (31.9)
Dividends paid to minority interest (AR} {11y - -
Cash flows from financing activilies (65.5) 334 (3r.1) 70
Net (decreass)/Increase in cash ond cash equivalents 15.7 (14.4) 1.3 {100
Cash and cash eguivalents ot start of yeor ) 270 414 o4 8.6
Cash and cath equivalents at end of year 5.1 427 27.0 {0.1) (.4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 1: Basis of preparation

This section lays out the Group's accounfing poicles that relate to the financia stalements as a whols. Whete on accounfing
policy i speciic to a particular note 1o the financial staolements, the policy Is described In the nole to which it relates ond has
been clearly idenified In a box.

The financial statermnants consolidate those of The Unite Group plc. {the Company) and s subsidiaries (together referred 10 05
the Group] and include the Group's inferests in jointly confrofled entities. The parent company financial statements present
information abcut the Company as a separate entity and not as a group.

Both the parent company financial siatements and the Group financial statements have been prepored in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU [Adopted IFRS] and approved by the Directors. On publfishing
the parent company financial statements here togethar with the Group financial staterments, the Company & foking advantage
of the exerplion in s408 of the Componies Act 2006 not to prasent its individual ncome statement and relcted notes.

The accounting policies have been applied consstently to all penods presented in these consolidated financial staternents.
The Company is domicied in the United Kingdom.

Going concem

The Group's business activities, together with the factors fkely to affect ifs future development and position are set out in the Strategic
Report on pages 1 to 49. In addition, section 4 of these Notes to the financial staterments includes the Group's objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital; detais of its bomowings and interest rate swaps; and in note 5.3 its exposwe to credit dsk.

The Group has prepared cash flow projections trree years forward to Decemier 2019 and the Group has sufficient headroom

to maet all its commitments. The Group added £100m to an exsting faciity during 201 6 and this together with existing facilties will

be sufficient to fund fhe Group's commilments over the next three years. The Group maintaing posifive refationships with ifs lending
banks and has historicaly secured new faciifies before maturity dates and remained within its covenant leves. The Group s in full
compliance with its covenants at 31 December 2014. Owr debt faciities include koan-to-value, interast cover ond minimum net worth
covenants, il of which have a high level of headroom. In order to manage futwe financial commitments, the Group operate a
formal approva process. theowgh its Major Investment Approvals committee. to ensure appropriate review i undertaken before

dny transactions are ogreed.

The Drectors consider that the Group has adequate resowrces 1o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,

Measurement convention
The Snancial statements are prepared on e histoncol cost basis except for mvestiment property, nvestment property under
development, investments in subsidianies and interest rote swaps ol of which are stated at their far value.

Basks of consolidafion

Subsiclicries ore those entities conirobed by the Company, Control exists when the Company has an exdsting night thot gives it the
curent abiity to direct the relevant activities of the subsidiary, has exposure or right to variable retums from its involvernent in the
subsicliary and has the ability to use its power to affect its retums. The financial statements of subsiciaries are incluaed in the
consolicdated fingncigl statements from the date that control commences untl the date that control ceases.

Infra-group balkances ond transactions, and any unredised gains and losses arsmg from intra-group fransactions. such as praperty
disposal and management fees, are efiminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Urvedlised gains arising from
fransactions with joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's refained interest n the entity. Unrealised losses are
aelminated in the same way as urreqiised gains except where the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisalble
valsa of curent assets or an impament in value of fixed assefts.
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Section 1: 8asis of preparation confinued

Impact of accounding standards and inferpretations in Issue but not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial staterments, the Group has nat applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have
been ssued but are not yel effective and in some cases had not vet been adopted by the EU.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments”:

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

IFRS 16 'Lecses’;

IFRS 2 fomendments) ‘Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction’

[AS 7 (omendments] 'Disclosure Initiative’

IAS 12 [amendments) 'Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

IFRS 10-and |1AS 28 [amendments) ‘Sale of Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture':

VVvvVYVyvwvyy

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards ksted above will hove a material impoct on the financial stolements
of the Group in future periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments, IFRS 15
may have an impact on revenue recognition and related disclosures and IFRS 16 will impact the reatment of leases. Duiing 2014 the
Group confinued {o monitor the potential impact of these changes. Beyond the information above, it is not practicable to provide
areasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 unti g detaied review has been completed.

Accouniing estimates and judgemenis

The preparation of financial staternents requires monagement 16 exercise judgement in applying the Group's accouniing poicies.
It abko requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiities, ncome and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumplions are bosed on historical experience ond various other factors that are believed to be
recsanabie under the circumstances, the rasulls of which form the basis of making judgements about canying values of assels

and labilities that are not readily apporent from other sources. Actuat results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates ond assurmptions ore reviewed on an ongoing basis with revisions recognised in the period in which the estimates ore revised
and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement of compiexity ares s&t out below and are explained in more detailin the refated
notes 1o the finoncial statements.

The areds involving the most sensitive estimates and assumpfions that are significant to the financiat statements are set out below and
in more detailin the rekated notes:

> valvation of investment property and investment property under development (note 3.1)
The accounting policy descriplions set out the areas where judgement needs exercising. the most significant of which is os follows:

> classification of joint venture vehicles {note 3.4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year

This seclion focuses on the resulls and performance of the Group and provides a reconcilation beiween the primary
o sialemenis and EPRA performance meauxes. On the foliowing pages you will find disclozures sxplaining the Group's

results lor the year, segmental Informalion, taxalion, eamings and net assel value per share.

The Group uses EPRA eamings and NAY movement o3 key comparable indicalors across ather real estate companies

n Europe.

Pedformance measures

~ofe 08 215
Eamings basic 22¢ £224.0m £351.9m
Earnings diuted 2.2¢ E227.7m £351.9m
Basic eamings per share (pence} 22c 101.3p 164.2p
Diuted earnings per share [pence) 2.2¢c M.7p 150.3p
Net assets Basic 2.3c £1,451.6m £1,275.m
Basic NAV per share [pence] 234 453p S74p
EPRA perffommance measures

Note 2016 x5
EPRA eamings 22a £62.7m £41.3m
EPRA eamings per share (pence} 22c 284p 28.6p
Adjustect EPRA ecrnings 22a £41.3m £49.5m
Adjusted EPRA eamings per share [pence| 22¢c 27.7p 23.1p
EPRA NAV 23a £1,557.3m £1,.374.4m
EPRA NAV per share (pence] 23d Sdp 5790
EPRA NNNAY 23¢ £1.517.3m £1,330.2m
EPRA NNNAV per share (pence) 2.3d 430p 552p

2.1 Segmental information
The Board of Drectors monitor the business along two activity ines, Operations and Properly. The reportatie segments for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 are Opéerations and Property.

The Group undertakes its Operations and Property activities directly and through joint ventures with third porties. The joint ventures
are an integral part of each segment and are inciuded i the information used by the Board to moniter the business.

The Group's properties are kncated exclusively in the United Kingdom. The Group therefore has one geographical segment.

2.2 Eamings

EPRA ecanings armends IFRS measures by removing principally the unrealised investment property valuation gains and losses such
that users of the financials are able 16 see the extent to which dividend payments [dividend per share) are underpinned by eamings
arising from purely operational activity. The reconciliofion betwaen Profi otfibutabie to owners of the parent company and EPRA
eamings is available in note 2.2 {b).

The Operotions segment monages rental properties, owned drectty by the Group or by joint ventures. Jis revenues are derived from

rental income and asset management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Opernations segment adds voe to the
pusiness is set outin the Operations review on pages 30 to 33, The Operations segment is the main confributor to EPRA eoamings ond

EPRA EPS and these are therefore the key indicators which are used by the Boord to monitor the Operations business.

The Board does not manage or monitor the Operations segment through the balance sheet and therefore no segmental information
for assets and liablifes is provided for the Operations segment.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued
2.2 Eomings continued
a) EPRA eamings
2014
Group on
EPRA
UNITE Shawe of joint veniures bonls
Total USAF 1SAY Tokal 1obal
£m £m £m fm tm
Rental ncome 97.1 3.9 25.1 620 159.1
Property operating expensas (29.3) 0.7 {2.8) (13.5) {42.8) §
Net opercting income 67.8 262 23 485 1143 g
&
@
Management fees 208 2.8 (4.0) (6.8) 140 %
Operating expenses (22.4) {0.4) (0.3) (1] (23.1) g
=]
(8]
Operating lease reniaks” (13.5) - - - (13.5) ®
Net financing costs {20.8) (5.7) (5.9) {11.6) {32.4)
Operations segment rasull nye 173 121 294 813
Property segment result {1.0) - - - 1.0)
Undaliocoled fo segments 24 - - - 24
EPRA eamings 333 173 12.1 294 827
Yield related USAF performance fees (1.4) - - - (1.4)
Adjusted EPRA eamings 3.9 17.3 121 294 613

* Operoting lease rentok arise from propertes which the Gioup has sold and is now leasing bock. These properties were sokd to generate finoncing and
they now cantiibute to the Group's rental income ond incur property openating expenses. Therefore the Group consider these fease costs fo be a fom
of financing.

Included in the albove is rental ncome of £18.5 million and property operating expenses of £5.9 milion relating to sale and
leaseback properties.

The unallocated to segments balonce includes the for value of share based payments of (£1.2 million), UNITE Foundation of
[£1.0 milion), fees received from USAF relating to acquisitions £0.4 milion, net USAF performance fee of £6.5 milion, defered tax
of {£0.3 mikon) and cunent tax charges of (£2.0 milion).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulis for the year continued

2.2 Eamings confinved
a) EPRA somings confinued
2015
Group on
EPRA
UNITE Share of ont ventures boks
Total USAF 1SAV Tota) Testat
£m &m £m £m Em
Rentalincome 930 316 19.7 51.3 144.3
Property aperating expenses (28.2) 19.3) (2.3) {11.6) (39.8)
Net opeialing income 4.8 23 17.4 n7 104.5
Management foes 17.5 22 13.3) (5.5} 120
Operating expenses (21.3) 0.3) 0.3) {0.4) {21.9}
61.0 128 13.8 33.6 94.6
Operating lease rentals” {14.5) - - - [14.5}
Net financing costs [23.8) 15.6) {4.4) {10.0} {33.6)
Operafions segment resull 29 142 9.4 23.6 4.5
Properly segment resull (1.8} - - - {1.8)
inollocated io segmenls 144 - - - 16.6
EPRA eamings 77 14.2 9.4 236 413
Yield reigled USAF perfformance fess {11.8) - - - (11.8)
Adjusted EPRA samings 259 142 7.4 2346 49.5

* Operating kedse rentals arse from properies which e Group has sokd and s now leasing back. These properhies were sold to generate financing and
they now contrioute to the Group's rental ncome and incur property 0peratng expenses, Therefore the Group condder these lease costs to be a form
of financing.

Included in the above is rental income of £20.3 milion and property operafing expenses of £6.6 milon reialing to sale and
leaseback propertfies.

The unaliocated to segments balance inckides the foir value of share based poyments of (£2.9 milion). UNITE Foundation of
(£1.0 miion), fees received fram USAF relafing 1o acquisitions £1.8 milion, net USAF perforrmance fee of £20.2 milllon, defemed fax
of [£0.F mifon] ond cument tax charges of (£1.4 milion),
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Secfion 2: Resulis for the year continved

2.2 Eamings continued

b} IFRS reconcliation to EPRA eamings

EPRA eamings excludes movements relating to changes in values of investment properfies and interest rate swops, profits from the
disposal of properties and property impairments, which are included in the profit reported under IFRS. EPRA eamings reconcile to the
profit atributable to owners of the parent company as follows:

2016 2015

hote £m £m

EPRA eamings 22a 627 61.3
Net vaksation gains on investrment property al 771.2 1648
Property disposak and wiite downs 0.3 68
Share of jont venture gains on investment property 3.4b 58.8 152.7
Share of joint veniture property disposals and write downs - 0.3
Mark fo market changes in interest rate swaps* 43 - [C.6}
Interest rate swap payments on ineffective hedges” - 1.2
Swap concellation costs {1.0) -
Share of joint venture swap cancebation costs 34b - (0.3
Deferred tax retating 1o ntersst rate swap movement - {02}
Deferred tax relafing to properties 27.6 {30.9)
Minority interest share of reconclling iterms™ {1.8) 3.2
Profit aliributable fo awnen of the parent company 224.0 351.9

* Swops ore designated as hedging insiruments within hedge rekalforships concludied to be effective for the year ended 31 Deceamiver 2016 and 5o are
reported within Other Comprehensive income for the year. In the prior year certain hedging relafionships were conciuded to be ineffective and hence
the for value movemend of the swops desgnated s hedging Instruments I those relationships were recorded within the iIncome statement rather thon
Ofher comprehenave income.,

= The minodly interest share. or nor-controling interest, anses as aresutt of the Company not owning 100% of the share capitc] of one of iis subsdianes,
USAF (Feeder] Guemsey Ltd. More detall is provided in nofe 3.4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Seclion 2: Results for the year continved

2.2 Eamings continved

<) Eamings per share

The Basic EPS cakeulafion is based on the eamings atributable to the equity shareticlders of The Unite Growp pie and the weighted
average number of shares which have been in issue during the yeor. Basic EPS s adiusted in ine with EPRA gudelines in order to alliow
users o compare the business performance of the Group with other [sted real estate companies in a consistent manner and fo refiect
how the business is managed ond measwed on a day to day basis. EPRA EPS and EPRA EPS pre vield related USAF performance fee
are cokculated using EPRA eomings.

The cakzukations of basic and EPRA EPS for the year ended 31 December 2016 5 o follows:

2004 s

rote tm £m
Eomings
Basic 240 519
Diluted 227.7 ase
EPRA 2.2a 62.7 613
Adjusted EPRA (exchuding yield rekaited USAF perfonmance fee) 2.2q 61.3 495
Weighied average number of shares (thousancis)
Basic 2103 214,304
Dilutive potenfial ordinary shares [convertile bond and share options) 19,315 19,877
Diuted 240,328 234,181
Eamings per shore (pence)
Basic 101.3p 164.2p
Giuted 4.7p 150.3p
EPRA EPS 28.4p .5p
Ad]usted EPRA EPS (exciuding yleid relaled USAF performance fee) 7P 2.p

Movements in the weighted gverage number of shares hove resulted from the issue of shares arsing from the employee share based
payment schemes.

Excluded from the potential diutive shares [share options). in 2016, are 16,838 [2015: 191,000 options which do not affect the diluted
waighted average number of shares.
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Section 2: Results for the year continued

2.3 Nel assets

EPRA Net Asset Value per share makes adjustments to IFRS meaosures by principally removing some items that are not expected to
matericiise in normal cireumistances fike items of deferred tax and the fair value of financial denvatives. The reconciiation between
IFRS NAV and EPRA NAV is gvaiable in note 2.3 ().

The Group’s Property business undertakes the acquisition and development of properties. The Property segment’s revenue comprises
revenue from development management fees eamed from joint ventures. The way in which the Property segrment odds value to the
business is set out in the property review on pages 34 to 39,

O
a) EPRA nef assets §-‘
200 015 g
wholly owned Share of Ivs Tolal Wholly owned Share of Jvs Total o
m £m o"n £m £m £m [ie]
Investment properties 1,061.46 1.023.2 2,0848 1,024.4 8108 1,835.2 g
Investment propertfies under development 184.6 72 178 149.8 B02 2300 a
Total property portiolio 1.246.2 1,030.4 2,276.4 1,174.2 891.0 2,065.2 3
Debt on properties (474.8) (346.8) (841.6) {475.1) {304.5} {779.7)
Cash 27 23.1 5.8 270 220 490
Net debt (432.1) (343.7) (775.8) (448.1) (282.4) (730.7)
Other assets/(iabiities) (14.8) {14.3) (28.9} (4.9) (183 (23.2)
EPRA net assels (pre converifble) 799.5 8724 14719 7212 590.1 13113
Convertible bondg* 85.4 - 854 83.1 - 83.1
EPRA net aszets 8849 4724 1557.3 804.3 5%0.1 1.3%4.4
Ltoan lo value B% 3% % 8% % 5%

* Under the terms of the Convertibie Bond, eary conversion of the debt into equity can be inggered if the share price frades over 1.3 times the
corversion prce for a period of time. see more detaltin Note 4 5b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 2: Resulfs for the year confinued

2.3 Nel assets confinued
b) Movement in EPRA NAV during the year
Confributions 1o EPRA NAV by each segment during the year is as follows:

2016 Group on
BrA
UNTE Share of oint verdures bemis
fokal USAF LAY Tkl Tokat
tm tm tm £m £m
Operations
Operations segment resul? 3.y 17.3 121 294 613
Property
Rental growth 358 148 120 24.8 82.6
Yield mavement 49 7.2 7.5 147 19.4
Diposok and acquisiion gains 1.0 - - - 10
Investment property gains 41.7 220 195 41.5 832
Development property gains 38.5 04 14,5 149 51.4
Fre-contract/other development costs {1.0) - - - {1.0)
Total property 772 224 340 564 133.6
Unaliocoled
Shares issued 03 0.3
Investment in joint ventures 33 73 (10.4) 3.3) -
Convertibie bond 23 - - - 23
Dividends paic {342} - - - (34.2)
USAF performance fee 65 - - - 6.5
USAF property acquisition fee 0.4 - - - 04
Swap cancekation costs n.om - - - 0.0}
Other (6.3} - - - (6.3)
Total unallocated (28.7) 73 {10.6) (3.3) (32.0)
Tolal EFRA NAY movement in the year 804 44.8 355 a23 142.9
Total EPRA NAV brought forweord 804.3 308.3 284.8 590.1 13744
Toldl EPRA NAV convied forward 884.9 3521 3203 6724 1,557.3

The £6.3 milicn charge that comprises the other balkance within the unatiocated segment includes a tax charge of £2.3 milion,
fair value of share options charge of £3.0 miion and £1.0 milion for the UNITE Foundation.
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Section 2: Resulis for the year confinued

2.3 Net ussels confinued
b} Movement in EPRA NAY during the year continved

Group on
EPRA
2005 UNTE Share of jomnt ventures Dosis
Tetot USAF LSAV Total Tatal
£m £m Bm £ £m
Operclions
Operations segment result 229 142 94 234 4.5
o)
Property 2]
Rental growth 216 58 222 28.0 494 §
Yiekd movement 97.8 370 411 78.1 175.7 T
Disposals and acquisition cosls {17.3} 0.1 02 0.3 {17.0} 3
Investment property goins 101.9 429 635 106.4 2083 2
Development property gains 457 - 36.1 36.1 813 9
Pre-confract/other development costs (18) - - - (1.8 o
Total property 1458 429 9.6 1425 258.3
Unallocated
Shares ssued 112.4 - = - 1124
Investment in joint ventures [57.8) 414 16.2 57.8 -
Converticle bond 83.1 - - - 83l
Dividends paid (31.9) - - - i319)
USAF performonce lee 198 - - - 19.8 ‘_
USAF property acquisifion fee 1.7 - - - 1.7 b
Swap losses and debt exit costs 1.1} {0.3) - 0.3} (1.4 E
Crher {5.4) - - - (5.4) °
Total unalocated 121.0 /a3 16.2 57.5 178.5 :
Total EPRA NAV movement in the year 2897 o84 125.2 2234 5133 =
Total EPRA NAV brought forward 514.6 2069 159.6 3665 881.1
Total EFRA NAV camed lorward 804.3 305.3 284.8 5901 13944

The £5.4 milion charge that comprisas the other balance within the unalocated segment includes a tax charge of £1.5 mikion,
far value of shere options charge of £2.9 million ong £1.0 miion for the UNITE Foundation,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 2: Resulls for the year coniinued

2.3 Net assels continued

<) Raconcilalion to IFRS

Tes determine EPRA NAV net assets reported under IFRS are amended 10 exclude the mark 1o market valuafion of swops, defered tax
kabilities and 1o recognise ok properties at market value.

The Group also manages NAV using EPRA NNNAVY, which adjusts EPRA NAY to include the fair value of swaps and det, Under EPRA
best practice guidelines this is considered to give stakeholders the most relevant comparalle information on the curent for value of
all the ossets and kabilttes in the Group.

The Net Assets reported under IFRS reconcie to EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAY as folows:

w6 018
_ Nole tm £m
Net asset vaiue reported under IFRS 14516 1,275
Mark to market interest rate swaps 14.9 4.3
Defered tax 5.4 e
EPRA NAYV (pre converiible) 2.3a 1.471.9 1,313
Convertibie bond 85.4 83.1
EPRA NAV 1.587.3 1,3944
Mark to morket of fixed rate debt {1%.7) {28.0)
Mark to market interest rate swaps {14.9) {4.3)
Cetered tax N {5.4) {31.9)
EPRA NNNAV 1,517.3 1,330.2

d) NAY par share

Basic NAV i based on the net assets atiribulable to the equity sharehoiders of The Unite Group pic and the nurmber of shares in issue
at the end of the yeor. The Boord uses EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAV to moniter the performance of the Property segment on g day
to day basi.

anle 2005

Note &m £mn
Nat cssets
Basic 23c 1.451.46 1.275.1
El_’fi B 23a 15573 1,394.4
EPRA diuled i 1,559.9 1,396.7
EPRA NNNAY (diuted ' 1,520.0 1.332.5
Number of shares (thousands)
Basic 122248 222.051
Convertioie bond shares 18,424 18,124
Quistanding shore oplions 762 1,027
Diuted 241,454 241,202
Net asset value per sthare (pence)
Bosic 453p 5740
EPRA &47p 58ip
EPRA (fully diuled) S4bp sMp

EPRA NNNAY {fully dluled) 430p 552p
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Section 2: Results for the year continved

2.4. Revenue and costs
The Group eams revenue from the following activities:

2% 015

Notes m £m

Rentalincome Operations segment 22a 7.1 230
Managesnent fees Operations segment 140 152
Development fees Property segment 1.0 1.9
Property sales Unallocated - 770
USAF performance fee Unallocated 7.0 22.4
1211 209.5

Impact of minority interest on management fees (0.4} (C.7)
Tolal revenve 1207 208.8

The cost of sales included in the consolidated income statement includes property operating expenses of £30.3 milion (2015:
£28.9 million), operating iease rentals of £13.5 milion (2015: £14.5 milion). costs associoled with development tees of £1.1 milion
{2015: £1.9 milion} and the camying value of property sales of £nil {201 5: £69.6 milion).

aououwieact sjoodiny

There were no disposak of properties held as trading properties during 2016 and therefore no revenue was recognised. During 2015,
Stratford One. a trading asset, was sokd 10 LSAY resulting in £77.0m of revenue.

Accounting policles
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

Rental Income

Rental income from property leased out under operafing leases ({comprising direct lets to students and leases to Universities and
commercial tenants) is recognised in the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives are
sometimes granted on commercial units; these are recognised as an integral port of the total rental income and spread over the
term of the lease.

Propeity soles
Income relating to the sale of frading properties is recognsed once contracts for sale have been unconditionaily exchanged.

Management and parformance fees

The Group acts as asset and property manager for the joint ventures and receives manogement fees in relation fo these services.
In addition. the Group is entitied fo performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform certain benchmarks.
The Group raceives an enhanced equity interest in the JVs as consideration for the performance fee.

Management and pexfarmance fees are recognised, in line with the management confracts, in the period 1o which they rekate
as services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section 2: Results for the year confinued

2.5Tax
The Group has not paid any cofporation kax in the recent past due to the avaiability of capital allowances. indexation and brought
forward kosses. However, it does pay UK income tax on rental income that arises from investments hekd by offshore subsidiares,

Accounting policies
The tax charge for the year is recognised in the income stalement and the stalement of comprehensive income, according to the
occounting freaiment of the rekated transaction. The tax charge compiises both cument and deferred fax.

Current fax is the expected tax payoble or receivable on the taxoble ncome or loss for the year and any odjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years. The curent tlax charge is based on tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted at the yeor end.

Defemred tax arses due to certain temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and kabfities for financial reporting
purposes and thase for taxaion punposes, Temporary differences redating to investments in subsidianes ond joint ventures are not
provided for 1o the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseadabie future. The armount of deferred tax provided » based
on the expectad manner of reqlisation or settlement of the canying amount of assets and liabilities.

During the year. the Group elected to become a REIN with effect from 1 January 2017. As & RET, rental profits and gains on disposal of
nvestment properties wil be exempt from corporation tax. As a result, no deferred tax provision has been recognised ot the balonce
sheet date in respect of property assets (revalation and capital alowances). and the provision for defered lax kobiity On property
business assets of £41.1m at 31 December 201 5 has been fully relecsed.

The Group's investments in unit trusts are not exempt from tox as a REIT and. where they remain within the charge to tax, a defered tax
fability has been recognised as appropriate. The Group wil be able fo utise its tax adiusled losses agairst gains orising on the disposct
of its invastrments in unit frusts, As the defered tax iability on non-property business investments exceeds the asset relating to the losses,
the deferred tax asset in respect of the tax adpusted losses has been recognised in ful.

q) Tax - income siclement
The total taxation charge/(credit) In the incorne statement is analysed as follows:

04 o's5

tm £m

Income tax on UK rental income arksing in non-UK companias 23 1.6
Cusrent tax charge 23 1.4
Reversal of deferred tax provision in respect of REIT property business assets (39.8) -
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 137 27.2
Effect of change in tax rate 1.2) 4.1)
Recognition of previously unrecognised asset - 8.0
Deferred lax charge/(credlt) (27.3) 31.1
Tolal lox (credit)/charge inincome stalement {25.0) 27

During the year, the Group eiected to be taxed as g REIT with aeffect from i January 2017. As a result of this, the Group's
investment properties are exempt from tax and no defered tax is required on the balance sheet. Accordingly the Group's
defemred tax now only relates to non-property investments {being primorily ifs interests in joint ventures) and historic tax lasses.
The remaval of the deferred lax provision in respect of REIT property business assets is comprised of credits of £29.2m in relation
ta invesirment properties and £11.3m in relation to accelerated capital alowances, and a debit of £0.7m tor tax adjusted losses
extinguished on conversion.

The movernent in deferred tax provided & shown in more detall in note 2.5 d) below.
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Section 2: Resuls for the yeor confinued

2.5 Tax continued

a) Tax - income sialerment continued

In the income statement, a tax credit of £25.0 milion arises on a profit before tax of £201.3 milfion, the taxation charge that would arise
ot the standord rate of UK corporation tox i reconcied to the actual tax charge as follows:

014 0158

£m £m

Profit before tax 2014 388.4
Income tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 20% {2015: 20.25%) 40.3 787
Release of defered tax bokances due to REIT conversion {32.9) -
Property revaluations not subject 1o tax (20.4) (28.4)
Effect of ndexation on investments [2.1) (3.4}
Effect of statutory fax refiefs (1.5 29
income due o Unite Foundation (1.0) -
Effect of tox deduction fransterred to equity on share schemes 04 A
Rale difference on defened tax {F)) 4.1
Movement on unprovided defered tax asset - 0.6}
Recognition of previcusly unrecognised defemred tax asset - (7.4)
Pricr years adjusiments 0.3 0.3)
Totdl tax charge in income sitlement {25.0) 27

The main rate of corporation tax reduced from 21% to 20% with effect from 1 Apil 2015. Accordingly, the reconciliation above has
been calculated at a rote of 20% (201 5: 20.25%).

Following the Group's election to become a REIT {efective 1 January 2017), deferred tax on its REIT property Dusiness assets is no
longer required. Accordingly. the Group has recognised a credit of £39.8m in the Income Statement reversing the provision for
deferred tax inbilfies and assets recognised ot 31 December 2015 relating to the revaluation of investment property. accelerated
copifal alowances, and propearty business tax losses,

Deferred tax is an accounting adiustment intended to reflect fax that the Group may have to pay in the future i certain events occur,
ond i distinct from the Group's cument tax charge [the katter being the 1ax actuadlly paycbie to HM Revenue & Cusioms for the year).
Accordingly. the release of the deferred tax provision s on accounting onty adjustment, and does not result in the Group receiving o
tax credit or refund. The curent tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2016 is unaffected by the election to become a RETT.

b) Tax - olher comprehensive Income
Within other comprehensive income a tax charge totaling £1.6 milion [2015: £0.8 milion credit] has been recognised represanting
deferred fax. An analysis of this & included in the defemed kax movement on page 126,

¢) Tax - statemnent of changes in aquity
Within the statement of changes in equity a tax charge totaling £0.1 milion {2015: £0.8 milkon credit) has been recognised
representing defered tax. An analysis of this is included in the defered tax movement on page 126.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Sectfion 2: Results for the year continuect

2.5 Tax continved

d) Tax - balonce sheet

The fable below outlines the deferred tax liabilties/ (assets) that are recognised in the balonce sheet, together with thewr movements
in the year.

2016

Al 31 Decerrper (Crected) Chargect A 31 December

' Transters N ncome n equity %

£m im £m £m tm

Investments 14.7 - 25 - 172
Investrent property {RET property business assets) 4.1 - {41.1) - -
Property, plant and mochinery 0.3 - Q.2 - Q1)
Share schemes 1.8) - 0.1 0.5 (0.9)
Interest rate swops r.n - 1.1 -
Interest rate swaps relating fo joint ventures 10.5) - 0.5 -
Tax value of carmied forward kosses recognised 122.3) - "o [©.4) {11.8)
Net tax (assets) Mabifles 30.0 - (27.3} 17 44

20135

At 31 December (Crectited) Charged Al 3! December

014 Transters mincome in ecuaty X5

£m £m £m £m £m

Investment property 17.3 - 16.7 - 34.0
Property, plant and machinery 0.6} - 0.3 - {0.3)

Investrments in joint ventures 10.7 - 111 - 218
Share ophons {1.5) - 0.2 0.1 1.6}
Intorast rate swaps {0.3) - 0.2 1.0} {1.1)
Interest rate swaps rekating fo joint ventures {0.6) - - 0.1 Q.5)
Tax value of camed forward losses recognised [24.4) - 3.0 {0.9) [22.3)

Net tax (assets)/Rablilfles 0.6 - EIA (L.7) 30.0

A reduction in the UK carporafion tax rate from 19% o 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was subsfantively enocted on 26 September 2014,
This will reduce the Group's fulure curent tax charge accordingly. The defermed tax fiability at 31 December 2014 has been cakculated
based on the rale at which it is expected to reverse,

Following the Group's election to becorne a REIT, disposals of nvestiment property will be exempt from tox and as a result no deferred
fox lability has been recognised n relation to these assets. The movement of £41.tmin the year s made up of a combination of in
year movement and reversal of the rermaining provision. The Group's investments in property unit trusts (being pamor—ily its inteyests

in joint ventures) ore not exempt from tox as a RET. Where the interes! in join ventures rermains subject 10 tox, o defered fax hiakility
has been racognised on the excess of the market value of these assets over thair historic lax base cost. At 31 December 2016 the
deferred tox liability in relafion to these investments was £17.2m.

Company
Deferred tax has not been recognisad on temporary differences of £118.9 millon {2015; £104.% mifion) in respect of revatuation of
subsidiaries and investment in joint ventures as it is proboble that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.6 Audii fees
Disclosures in respect of fees paid fo the auditors con be found n the Audit Com ritiee Report, page 64.
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Secfion 3: Asset management

The Group hokls #3 properly portfolic directly and through its joint ventutes. The perfformance of the propesty porifolio

o whathe: wholly owned or in joint ventures ks the key factor that drives nel asset value (NAV), one of the Group's key
perdomance indicalors, The following pages provide disclosures about the Group's investmends in properdy assels
and joinl ventures and thelr perfformonce over tha yecor.

3.1 Wholly owned property assels
The Group's whally owned property portfolio is held in two groups on the balkance sheet at the camying values detaied betow.
In the Group's EPRA NAV, gll these groups are shown at market value.

1) ivestment propery (xed assels)
These are assets that the Group infends to hold for a long period to eam rental income or capital appreciation. The assets are held
at far value in the balance sheet with changes in far value laken to the income siatement.

) Invesiment property under development (fixed ossels)
These are assets which are cumently in the course of construction and which will be transfered to ‘Investment property”
on compietion. The assets are held at far value in the balance sheet with changes in foir value taken to the income statement.

Accounting policles
Properties hekd under operating lecses are not ncluded in assets, but the future payments due in respect of these properties are
disclosed in note 4.4a.

investrent property and investment property under development are held ot far value.

Completed properties, properties under development and inventores are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net reglsable value is the estimated sefing price in the ordinory counse of business less the estimated costs of completion and sefling
expenses. All costs directty associated with the purchase and construction of a property. and at subsequent quolfying expenditure
is capitalised.

The recognition of acquisitions and disposats of investrment and other property occurs on unconditional exchange of contracts.

Bomowing costs are capitalsed if they are drectly aliributable 10 the acquisifion and construction of a property asset. Capitalsation
of borrowing cosls commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing Gosts are
being incured. Capitafisation of bomowing costs confinues untit the assets are substantially reody for their intended use but stops if
daveilopment activities are suspended. I the resulting camying amount of the osset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impaiment
loss is recognised. The capitalisation rate is amived at by reference to the actual rate payablie on bomowings for development
purposes of, with regard to that part of the development cost financed out of general borrowings, to the average rate. Dunng the
yeaor the average capitalsation rate used was 6.4% (2015: 5.4%).

The vasation of property assets involves significont judgement and changes to the core assumptions: marked conditions, rental
income. occupancy and property manogement costs, could have a significant mpact on the camying value of these assets.

Valyalion process

The valuations of the properties are performed twice a year on the basis of vakiation reports prepared by extemal, independent
valuers, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification. The: fair values are based on market volues as defined in
the RICS Appraisal and Vaiuation Manual. issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. CB Richard Ellis Ltd, Jones Lang
LaSalle Ltd and Messs Knight Frank, Chartered Surveyors were the valuers in the years ending 3) Decermbaer 2014 and 2015,

The valuations are based on both:

> Information provided by the Group such as cumrent rents, occupancy, operating costs, terms and conditions of keases and
nominotion agresments, capital expenditure, elc. This information is derived from the Group's financial systems and is
subject to the Group's overall contral environment.

> Assumptions and valuahion modets used by the valuers - the assumptions are typically market related, such as yield and
discount rates. These are based on their professional judgement and market obiservation.

The mformotion provided to the voluers - ond the assumptions ond the valuotion moedels used by the voluers - are reviewsd by the
Property Boord and the CFRO. This includes a review of the far value movements over the yeor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Seciion 3: Asset management confinued

3.1 Wholly owned propetly assefs confinved

The movements in the canying value of the Grou's wholly awned property portfolic during the year ended 31 December 2014
are shown in the table below. While completed property is held at cost on the balance sheet, the Group manages the assets
based on ther market value (far value). These properties are included in EPRA MAY at their far volue, valued on the same basis
as for investrnent properfy and investment property under development. by external valuers. The far value of the Group’s wholly
owned properties at the year ended 31 December 2016 are ako shown below.

2014
Investment
Mvasirerl  propedy under Compieted
propery davelopmen proparty Tolat
m £m £ ™

At 1 January 2016 1,024.4 149.8 - 11742
Cost capitalised 1.8 1017 - 109.3
Interest capitolised - 59 - 59
Transfer from mvesirment property under devetopment 34.4 {38.8) - -
Transfer from work in progress - 8.0 - 8.0
Disposats L g @y - (24
Valuaticn gains < ALy a0z - 8
valuation kossos . (7.9) 1.0 - (_sﬂJ
Net vaiuation gains . 370 40,2 - 72
Conying value of 31 Mmmlé 1.061.6 184.6 - 1,244 2
Valuafion gains nat recognised undar IFRS but included in EPRA NAY - - - -
Brought forword - - - -

Market value at 31 Dacembaer 2016 1.041.6 184.4 - 124462
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Section 3: Asset management continved

3.1 Wholly owned property assets continued
The moverments in the camying volue of the Group's whoty owned property portfolio during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the fair value of the Group's whotly owned property portfolic at the yeor ended 31 December 2015 s as follows:

2015
rrvmeimant
feveshmand property under Completed
propety cheveloprent property Tokal
tm tm tm tm
At 1 January 2015 850.5 49.2 70.1 9498
Cost capiafsed 86 97.4 - 106.0 o
Interest capitaised - 27 - 27 é
Transfer from invesiment property under development 41.2 (41.2) - - %
Transfer from work in progress - 1.0 - 1.0 Q
Disposals - - {70.1} {70.1} 3
Valuation gains 126.4 410 - 187.4 | 2
Valuation losses , [23) 10.3) - (2.6} §
Net vakiation gains 1241 40.7 - 1648
Canying vaue ot 31 December 2015 1.024.4 14%.8 - 1,174.2
Valuation gains not recognised under IFRS but included in EPRA
NAV
Brought forward - - N2 312
Disposals - - (31.2} 131.2)
Market value of 31 December 2015 1.024.4 1498 - 1.174.2

Inchsded within investment properties at 31 Decernber 2014 are £31.5 miliion (2015: £41.6 milion} of assets held under a long leasehoid
and £3.9 milion {2015; £10.5 rmilion} of assets held under short leasehold.

LSV NI

Total interest capitalised in investment and development properties at 31 Decembper 2016 was £34.9 milion (2015: £35.4 milion)
on a cumuiative bgsis. Total intemal costs relating to construction and development costs of Group properties amount to £51.1 milion
at 31 December 2014 (201 5: £49.4 millon) on a cumulative basis,

-
-

Recuring tair volue measrement

Allinvesiment and development properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. while completed property and property
under development are hald at costin the balance sheet. the Group discloses the far value of these assets and includes them at far
valye in EPRA NAV, Completed property and property under developrment far value measurements ane categorised as Level 3in the
far value hierarchy and ther far value is measured using the same techniques as for investment properties and investment properties
under development.

UOUOULIYUL BYLD
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NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3; Asset management continued
3.1 Wholly owned propetty assets conlinved

04 18
Class of assat m £m
Longon - Renta! propertias A424.% 4094
Major provingial - Rentol properhes A40.2 4211
Other provincial ~ Rental properties 196.5 1839
Maijor provincial - Deveiopmen! properties 1584 94,2
Other provincial - Development properties 262 55.6
Market value 1.246.2 1,174.2

The valuation technique for investment properties s a discounted cash low using the following inputs: net rental income, estimated
future costs, occupancy and property moanagerment costs.

Where the asset is leased to Q university, the valuations afse refiect the length of the lease, the allocation of maintenance
and insurance responsibiities between the Group ond the lessee. ond the maorket's generol perception of the lessee’s
credit worthiness,

The resulting valuafions ore cross-checked ogainst the initial yields and the capital value per bed derived from actual
maorket fransactions.

For development properties, the fair value i usually calculated by estimating the fair vatue of the compieted property
{using the discountea cash fiow meitnod) tess estimated costs to compietion.

Fak value using unobservable puts (Lavel 3)

20M% 015

£m £m

Opening far value 11742 1.001.0
Gains and losses recognised in income statement 772 164.8
Gains and losses not recognised on properdies unger development - -
Acquisitions - -
Capital expenditure 1241 109.7
Disposals (1293 (101.3)

Clesing fokr volue 1.245.2 1,174.2
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Section 3: Asset management confinved

3.1 Wholly owned propetly assels continved
Quaniitative information about fair value measurements using unobseivable inputs (Level 3)

2014
Fulr value Valualion Weightad
tm chnicpe Unobservable iInpuls flange aIage
London Discounted Net rentalincome (£ per week|) £179 -£327 £249
—rental properties 4249 cash flows Estimaied future rant (%) 1% - 6% 4%
Discount rate [yield) (%) 4.5%-52% A4.7%
Major provincial Discouniec Net rental income (£ per week) £105-£142 £12¢ 9
- rental properties 4402  coshflows Estrmated future rent (%) 1%-7% 4% g
Discount rate (yield) (%) 52% -7.0% 5% a8
Other provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per week| £95-£153 £126 2'
—rental proparties 1945  cashflows Estimated futuee rent (%) 2% -8% 3% 2
Dicount rate [yield) (%) 5.5%-120% 2% §
Maojor provincial Discounted  Estimated cost fo complete (£m) E10.5m-£59.5m  £34.1m 3
- development properties 1584 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 3% % e
Dicount rale {yield) (%} 4.8% - 5.9% 5.6%
Other provincial Discounted Estimated cost 1o complete (£m) £12.3m - £26.5m £20.1m
- development praperties 262 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) % %
Discount rate {yield) (%) 5.7% -5.8% 5.7%
Fair value of 31 December 2018 1,246.2
2015
Far vake viguahon eighted
£m technkue Unobservable inpuls Range: avercge
Lendon Discounted Net rental income (£ per week| £i90~£326 £244
- rental properties 4074 cash flows Esfimarted future rent (%] 2%— 4% 3%
Discount rate {yield) (%) 4.6% - 52% 4.8%
Maijor provincial Discounted Net rental income (£ per week) £95-£144 2120
- rental properties 4311 cash Aows Estimated future rent (%) 1%-6% 4%,
Discount rate {yield] (%) 5.2% - 70% 58%
Other provincial Discounted Net rentalincome |£ per week) £77-£135 ARV
- rental properties 183.9 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 2% - 6% 4%
Discount rate (yield) {%) 58% - 9.4% 63%
Major provincial Discounted Estimated cost fo complete (£m)]  £7.4m - 47.6m £31.6m
- development properties 94.2 cash fliows Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yiekd) (%) 5.2% - 58% 5.6%
Other provinciol Discounted  Eshimoted cost fo complete {£m) £89m-£10.5m  £10.1m
- development properties 55.6 cash flows Estimated future rent (%) 3% 3%
Discount rate (yield] (%) 58% - 59% 59%
Fair value at 31 December 2015 1.174.2

A decrease in net rental income., estimated future rents or occupancy will result in o decregse in the far value, whereas a decreose in
the discount rate [yield] or the estimated costs to complete will result in an increcse in ko value. There are interrelationships between
these rates as they are partially determined by market rate conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinued

3.2 Inventories
018 018
tm Em
Interasts in land 0.8 09
Other stocks 2,1 2.7
Inventodes 29 3.4

At both 31 December 201 6 and 31 December 201 5 the Group only has inferests in one piece of kand.

3.3 Other non-cument assels

Accounling policles

Fropedy, plant and equipment

Other than land ond buidings: property. plant and equiprment are siated ot cost less accumulkated depreciation and impairment
losses (see balow). Land and buldings are stated at fair value on the same basis as investment properties. Property, plant and
equiprment mainly comprise leasehold improvements at the Group's head office and London office as well as computer harcware
and software at thase sites.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on o skaightine basis over the estimated useful lives of tems of property.
plkant and equipment. Freehold lond is not depreciated. The estimatea useful ives are as folows:

> Leasehald mprovements Shorter ife of lease and economic ifa
> DOther assets 4-20 yeors
Intangible assefs

intangible assets precdomnately cornprise intemally developed computer software which allows cystomers to book online and
processes fransactions within the sales cycle. The expenditure capitaiised includes the cost of materiak, direct lobour and an
appropiate proportion of overheads. Expenditure on research octivities is recognised in the ncome statement as an expense
incured, 2016; £NI, {201 5; £N1). The assets ore amartised on a straight-ine basis over 4 to 7 yaars being the estimaled useful lives
of the intangible assets, from the date they are avolable for use. Amortisation is charged fo the income stolement within
operating expanses,

The Group's other non-current assets can be analysed as follows:

016 015
Proparty, plant ndorgitie Propesty. phant Iritangible
o adrapTumnt anets T and equprment assats Total
tm &m m £m £m £m

Cott of valugtion
At T Januory 18.9 331 £2.0 148 254 40.2
Additions 31 82 1.3 4.4 7.7 11.8
At 31 December 20 413 3.3 189 331 520
Depreciaion, amodisalion and
Impoiment losses
At 1 Jarwary 2.4 181 275 8.2 147 249
Depreciation/amortisation charge
for the year 14 28 44 1.2 1.4 24
Impament® 1.6 - 1.6
At 31 December 126 209 335 9.4 1a.1 27.5
Canmrying value at | January 7.5 15.0 24.5 6.6 87 153
Carrying amount of 31 Decamber 94 20.4 9.8 9.5 50 24.5

* Baing wiite down of leasehold smprovements ¢n varahon of lease.

Intangible assets include £3.9 million (20135 £10.1 milion) of assels not being omortised as they are not yet ready for use. Property. plant
and equipment assels include £1.1m (2015: £nil} of assets not being depreciated as they are not ready for use. At 31 December 2006
the Group had capital commitments amounting to £1.0 miion reloting to intangible assets and £1.8m relafing fo Property, Plant &
Equipment.
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Sectiion 3: Asset management confinued
3.4 Investments In joint ventures (Group)

Accountfing policies

Joint ventures are those entities Over whese activities the Group has joint conrol, established by conlrochual agreement. The
consclidated financial statermnents include joint ventures initially ot cost subsequently increased or decreqsed by the Group's share of
total gains and losses of joint vertures on an equity basis, interest free joint venture investment loans are initially recorded at far value
- the difference between the nominal amount and far vaiue being treated as an mvestment in the joint venture. The impled
discount 5 amortised over the confracted life of the investmeant loan.

The Drectors consider thot the agreemeants integral to its joint ventures result in the Group having jont control: @ significant degree
of judgement i exercised in this assessment due to the complexity of the contractual arangements.

USAF and LAV are jointly owned entities thatf are accounted for as joint ventures. Due to The compiexity of the confractual
arangements and Unite's role as manager of the joint venture vehickes, the assessment of joint control following Changes to
accounting standards [IFRS10) involves judgements around a number of significant factors. These factors include how Unite as fund
manager has the ability to drect relevant activifies such as acquisitions, disposals, capital expenditure for refurbishments and funding
whether through debt or equity. This assessment for USAF s complex becouse of the number of unitholders ond how ther rights are
represented through an Advisory Committee. For some of the activities it is not clear who has definitive confrol of the acfivifies. n
some scenanos the Group can confrol, in others the Advisory Committee. However, for the octivities which ore considered to have
the greatest impact on the retums of USAF, acquisitions and equity financing. it has been determined that the Group and the
Advisory Committee has joint power in directing these activities and that on balkance. it is appropriote to account for USAF as a joint
venture. The assessment for LSAY s more straightforward because the Group and GIC each own 50% of the joint venhure and there
is therefore much clecrer evidence that control over the key activitios & shared by the two parties.

aouDwaAcb ejicdioD

The Group has two joint ventures:

Group's shame
of assety/resulls Legal ently i winch
Joini venture D415 Otjectve Partner Group has inlerest
The UNITE UK Studlent 24.6%" (23.0%} Invest and opercte Consortium of inveskors UNITE UK Student
Accommaodation Fund student accommadation Accommedation Fund,
{USAF) throughout the UK a Jersey Unit Trust
Landon Student 50% (50%) Develop and operate  GIC Real Estate Pte, Ltd  LSAV Unit Trust, a Jersey Unit
Accommodation Veniure student accommodation in Reql estate Trust and LSAY [Holdings)
{LSAV) London investment vehicle  Lid. incorporated in Jersey
of the Government
of Singapore

* Parl of the Group's Intexest s heid through o subsdialy, USAF (Feeder] Guemsey Lid, in which there is on extemal investor. A minority interest therefore
occws on cornsobaaton of the Group's results representing the extemal investor's share of profits and assets relaofing fo s investment in LUSAF,
The ordinasy shareholclers of The Unite Group plc are beneficiolly interested in 23.0% (2015: 21.4%) of USAF,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinued

3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) confinued
¢) Net assels and resulls of the joint venhures
The summcrised balance sheets and results for the yeor, and the Group's share of Ihese joint ventures are as follows:

2004
USAF 1SAY Tolal
. im tm tm
Gros Share Grow Share Gros Show
Investment property 22879 5621 1.00% 504.5 3.294.9 1.066.6
cash 4.8 10.3 270 138 438 238
Debt {755.5) (185.6) (381.4) {190.7) {1.136.91 {374.3)
swap liabiities 0.7 02 vA)) {3.5) (6.4) 33
Other curent assets s 0.8 08 04 43 1.2
Other curent iabilties (55.3) . (14.8) {7.4) {70.1) (19.1)
Net assets 15231 376.1 4315 3168 2,1586.4 4929
Profit/(ioss) for the yeor 1647 423 970 485 2817 948
EPRA net assets 1.547.1 asn 540.6 3203 22077 8724
2015
USAE (5Av Tokad
£&m £m £m
Gross Share Gross Shaxe: Gross shove
Invesiment property 2,0742 477 4 8944 4472 1.968.6 9246
Cash 36.6 8.4 28.4 142 650 226
Debt {£38.3) (146.9) (336.0) 1168.0] (974.3] (3145
Sswap kabilities - - 3.9} (2.0) 3.9 {20)
Gther curenf assets L.y 05 0 Q.5 29 1.0
Gther current liabiities 66.2) (11.6) 18.2) (9.1] {84.4) 207}
Net assets 1,408.2 3278 565.7 7828 1,.973.9 610.6
Profit/(loss) for the year 2343 63.7 2361 nat 4704 1818
EPRA net aszets 14082 305.3 569.5 284.8 19778 590.1

Net assets and profit for the year gbove inciude the minority interest, whereqs EPRA net assefs exclude the minority mterest.
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Section 3: Asset management confinuved

3.4 Investments in joint ventures (Group) continued

b) Movement in camying value of the Group's invesimenis in joinl venhaes

The camying value of the Group's investment in joint veniures has increased by £82.3 milion during the yeor ended 31 December 2016
(2015: £226.8 milion), resutting in an overal comying value of £492.9 milion {2015: £610.6 million}. The following table shows how the
increase has been achieved.

2% 2015

Recognised in the Income stalement:

Operations segment result 294 236 o

minority interest share of Operations segment result 12 1.2 g

Management fee adjustment related to fraging with joint veniure 54 4] g

Net revoluation gains 588 1527 g

Deabt exil costs - - =]

Loss on cancelation of interest rate swaps - 0.3) é

Loss on disposal of properties - 0.3 g

Other - 0.2 ]
948 1818

Recognised In equity:

Movement in effective hedges {1.4) 0.4

Other ocjusiments to the canying value:

Profit adjustment related to frading with joint venture (8.3) (11.9)

Increqise in koan 10 USAF - 30.5

Additional capital invested in USAF - 2.1 2

Performance fee units issued in USAF 254 - z

Additional copital invested in LSAV - 233 o

USAF performance fee 02 {37) s

Distributions received (292) [22.9) ;

Increase/(decrease) In camying value 82.3 2248 =

Camying value at 1 January 610.6 3838 ‘

Canying volue at 31 December 4929 4106

3
g
2
|
g
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 3: Asset management confinued

3.4 Investiments In joint ventures (Group) continved

b} Movemaent in camying value of ihe Group’s invesimenis in joint venhures confinved

In addition to its equity shares, the Group has abo provided interast free invesiment loans to some of the joint veniures, These were
pemnarily provided on the setting up of the joint venture 1o provide capital to ocquire iInvestment properties. As a result of being
provided interest free, the loans were discounted on recognition to reflect the far value, the unwinding of the discount is reflected
in the Group's finonce income.

€) Tramsactions with joint veniures

The Group acts as asset and property mangger for fhe joint ventures and receives managermenl fees in rekation to these services.
In addition, the Group is enfitied to performance fees from USAF and LSAV if the joint ventures outperform cerain benchmarks.
The Group receives on enhanced equily interest in the joint veniures as consideration for the performonce fee. The Group has
recognised the following fees in its resutts for the year.

2014 VIS

tm £m

USAF 128 8.5
LSAV 40 4.7
Assst and propedy management fees* 2048 132
LSAV 1.0 1.4
Development management fees. 1.0 14
USAF performance fieg &1 25.6
USAF acguisition fee 0.5 21
Invesiment management fees™ 846 77
Total fees 30.3 223

* 2016 asset and property mancgement faes are shawn gross. 2015 Asset ond property managermnent fees are shown s reporied, net of rading
with (ot ventures_ The equivalent gross kigures in 2015 ware £10 7m for USAF and E6.6m for LSAY.

* Included in ihe mavament in EPRA NAV is &1 USAF performance fee of £6.5 miion {2015: £20.2 mikon). This is tha gness fee of £8.1 mikon (2015:
£25.6 milion) paid by USAF net of advisory fee costs of £0.5 milkon [2015° £2.2 millon) and ¢ £1.1 millon (201 5: £3.2 rmiion) odjustment relaled fo
frading with jomt ventures. The USAF performance fee will be seftied in units in Tha UNITE UK Student Accormmadaton Fund rather Ihan cash.
Full detals of the LSAF performance fees are set out in the Sirategic Report on pages | 1o 49.

Included in share of joint venture profitin the income staternent is o share of joint venlure property management fee costs of

£1.6 milfion {2015; £1.4 milion). On an BPRA bosis these coshs are deducted from the property management feas shown above, plus
an adjusiment for the minority interest of £0.4 million [2015: £0.2 miNion}. This results in the net fees included in the Operating Segment
result [note 2.2a) of £14.0 milfion [2015; £12.0 milion}. Development management fees are included in the Property Segrment resuit
[note 2.2a). Investment management tees are included within the unallocated to segments (note 2.2a).

included m the movarnant in BPRA NAV is a USAF property acquistion fee of £0.4 mikon {2015: £1.7 million). This is the gross
fee of £0.5 miion (2015 £2.1 millon] paid by USAF net of a £0.1 milion (2015: £0.4 milion) adjustment related to frading with
joint ventures.

During the yeor the Group hos paid oparafing lease rentals to USAF rekating to two properties under a sale and leaseback
agreement amounting to £2.2 miion [2015: £2.7 milkon).
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Section 3: Asset management confinved

3.4 investments in joint ventwres (Group) conlinved

) Transactions with joini veniures confinued

During the yedr the Group sold two properties to USAF for £88.4 million. Both properties were held on the balance sheet s investment
property under development within non-curent assets, the proceeds and camrying value of the property are therefore recognised in
profit on dsposal of property and the cash flows in investing activifies. One property was sold to LSAV in 2015. The profits retating to
sales and associated disposal costs and related cash flows are set out below:

Prol and loss Profit and loss

2016 2015

LEAY LSAV

& £m

Inciuded in property soles and other income [net of joint venture trading adjustment) - 77.2

Included in cost of sales - (70.1)
Profit on disposal of property - 7.1
Pl cand s Profi and loss

nis 15

USAF USAF

m Em

included in profit on disposal of property {net of joint venture frading odjustment) 32 -
Profft on disposal of propaerty 32 -
Cah low Cash fow

06 015

LSAV LSAV

£m £m

Proceeds - 843
Net cash fiows inciuded In cash flows from operaling activilles - 84.3
Cash fow Coxt how

il M5

USAF USAF

em Em

Gross proceeds 88.4 -

Net cash flows included In cash flows from investing activilles 88.4 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 3; Asset management confinved
3.5 investments in subsidiaries {(Company}

Accounling policles .
In the financial statements of the Company, nvestments in subsidiones are held of far vaive, Changes in far vaiue are recognised
in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve in equity.

Canying value of invesiment in subsidiores
The movements in tha Company's interest in unfisted subsidiones and joint ventures during the year are as foliows:

mvasiment in suDSIChanes

s 15

Em £

At 1 January 448.3 4120
Revaluation LA 2346.3
Af 31 December T25.4 648.3

The camying value of investment in subsidianes has been calcuiated using the equity atiiibutable to the owners of the parent
company fram the consolidated balance sheet adjusted for the far value of fixed rate loans and properties under development. This
includes investment property, investment property under development and swaps at a far value calcuiated by a third party expert.
Al investment properties and investment properties under development are classified as Level 3 in the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and
have bean discussed on page 129. The fiwed rate loans range between Level 1 and Level 2 in the IFRS 13 far vaiue hierarchy and
have been discussed further on page 129,

In addition 1o the equity invesiment in subsidianes and joint veniures, the Company has provided o loan with inferest chorgeable of
6.125% 1o LDC {Hokdings) pic. The carmying value of the loan to LOC (Holdings) plc was £90.0 mifion (2015: £20.0 milion). A further loan
of £89.9 million [2015: £8%.9 milon} was provided to LDC (Hokdings) plc with interest chargeable ot 5.0%.

A fuil list of the Company's subsidicries and joint ventures can be found in note 7.
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Secfion 4: Funding

The Group finonces ifs development ond invesiment activities through a midure of refained samings, borrowings ond
o equily. The Group confinuously monttors s financing arongemants to manage Is gearing.

Interest rale swops are used fo manage the Group's risk to fluctuations in inlerest rate movements.

The following pages provide disclosures about the Group's funding posifion, including borrowings, gearing

and hedging inshymenis: iis axposure to marke risiks; and s capltal monagement poficies.

4.1 Bonrowings

Accounling policies

Interest bearing bomowings are recognised inifially ot far valkue, less atirbutable ransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest beoring bomowings are stated at amortised cost with any diference between cost and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the period of the bomowings on on effective interest basis.

On 10 October 2013 the Group issued a convertible bond. The unsecured instrument pays @ coupon of 2.5% until 10 October 2018.
In occordance with IFRS, the equity and gebt components of the bond ore accounted for separately ond the far volue of the debt
component has been defermined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. As @ result, £80.3 million was
racognised as a licbiiity in the bolance sheet on issue and the remainder of the proceeds. £9.6 milion. which rapresents the eGuity
component, was credited to reserves. The difference between the far value of the liabiity and the principal value is omorised
through the income skatement rom the date of issug. Issue costs of £2.0 rmillon were allocated between equity and debt and

the element reiating to the debt componrent is being amortised over the life of the bond. The ssue costs apportioned to equity

of £0.2 milion are not amortised.

The table below analyses the Group's borowings which comprise bank and other lkeans by when they fall due for payment:

Group Cormpary
2014 015 S 2015
Camying Camrg Camying Canryirg
value Falr value valse For vae vohe value
tm im £Em £m £m £m
Curvent

in one yeor or less, or on demand 1.3 1.2 31.3 3.2 01 1.4

Non-curent
In more than one year but not more than two yeors 108.1 1322 1.5 1.4 85.3 -
In maore than two yeors but not maore than five yeors 126.3 1258 202.2 240.4 0.0 83.0
In more than five years 239.1 223.0 240.) 225.5 - %00
4735 481.0 443.8 467.3 175.3 1730
Total borowings 4748 4522 4751 498.5 175.4 174.4

in addition o the borowings currently drawn as shown above, the Group has avaiable undrawn facilities of £245.0 million
{2015: £174.0 million). A further overdraft facility of £10.0 milion (2015: £10.0 mikion) is olso avaikable.

The carying vaiue of borowings is considered to be approximate to fair value, except for the Group's fixed rate loans camed

at £330.3 milion (2015: £331_4 milion] and the convertible bond camied at £84.2 milion {2015: £84.3 mikon). The convertible bond and
£90.0 milon (201 5: £90.0 milion) of the fixed rate loans are classified as Level 1 in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy and have o fair value
of £212.5 rmillion (2015: £218.4 milion). The IFRS 13 Level categorisation relates to the extent the far value can be determined by
reference to comparatle market vakes. The classifications range from Level 1 where instruments are quoted on an active market
through to Level 3 where the assumptions used lo arive at fair value do not have comparable market data.

The remaining £240.3 milion {2015: £241.4 million] of the fixed rate loans are classified as Levei 2 in the IFRS 13 tair value hierarchy.
The: fair value of these fixed rate kons has been calculated by a third party expest discounting estimoted future cash fiows on
the basis of market expectations of future interest rates. The far value of these loans is £215.1 million (2015: £224.4 milion).

Properties with a carying value of £998.0 million {2015: £993.6 milion) have been pledged as security against the Group's dravwn
Jdowr bormowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 4: Funding continued

4.2 Interest rate swaps

The Group uses inferest rate swaps fo manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations. In occordance with the
Group’s freasury policy, the Group does not hokd or issue interest rale swops for frading purpeses and only holds swaps which
are considered 10 be commercially effective.

Accounfing policles
Interest rate swaps are recognised inifialy and subsequentty at far value, with mark to market moverments recognised in the incorme
statement unless cash flow hedge accounlting s opplied.

Hedge accounting. as defined in iIFRS. s when the interest rate swap is designated as the hedging instrument in o hedge of the
vorqbility in cosh flows atiributoble 1o the Merest risk OF borowings. The effective porlion of chonges in far value of the interest rate
swap s recognised in other comprehensive ncome and prasented in the bedging reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of
changes in the fair volue of the interest rote swap k recognised immediately in profit or 1oss. The Group only applies hedge
accounting when the hedge is expecied to be highly effective.

Wwhen o hedging instrument or hedge relationship i terminated but the hedged ransaction i stil expected to occur. the cumulative
gan or kass at ihat pointremains in equity with any subsequent movements in far volue taken o the incorme staterment. if the
nedged fransaction is no longer probable, the cumulative unrediised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income
staternent immediately.

The {ar vakse of interest rate swaps i the estimated amount that the Group woukd reéceive or pay to terminate the swap at the
balance sheet date, taking into account curent interest rates and the current credit worthiness of the swap counterparties.

The following table shows the far value of interest rate swaps:

2014 015
£ m
Current - -
Non-~curent N ) 11.6 a3
Faif value of interest rale swaps 1.4 23

The fair values of interest rate swops have been calculated by a third party exper!, discounting estimated future cash flows on the
basis of market expectations of future interest rates, representing Level 2 in the IFRS 13 far value hierarchy.

4.3 Netfinancing costs

Accounting policies
Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borowings (ess interest receivable on funds invested (both cakculated using the
effective interest rate method)} and gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in the income staterment.
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Section 4: Funding continued
4.3 Net financing costs confinued
014 215
Recognised in ihe income siatement: tm £m
Finance income
- Interest mcome on deposit (0.Y) {0.2)
Finonce income 0.1) (0.2)
Gross interest expense on keans 248 253
Interest capitalised o B ) (5.9 {2.7) 8
Loan interest and similar charges 20.9 2.6 g
Changes in mark to market of inlerast rate swaps not accounted for as hedges - 0.6 8
Swiap canceliation costs 1.0 - g
Finance cotls 21.% 232 3
2
Net financing costs 218 230 a

The average cost of the Group's wholly owned investrment debt af 31 December 2016 & 4.4% [2015: 4.7%). The overall average cost
of investrment debt on an BPRA basis s 4.2% (2015: 4.5%).

4.4 Gearing
The Group's adiusted gearing ratic is a key indicator that the Group uses to manage its indebtedness, EPRA net asset value (NAV)
and adjusted net debt are used to calculate adjusted gearing. Adjusted net debt excludes mark to market of mterest rate swaps

as shown below.

The Group's gearing ratios are calculoted os foows:

014 x5
Note tm £m
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 427 270
Current borowings 4. 1.3) (31.3}
Non-curent borowings 4.1 (474.5) {443.8)
Interest rate swaps llabilities 42 {11.8) (2.3)
Net debi per bolance sheet {442.7) (450.4)
Mark to market of interest rate swaps 1n.é 23
Adjusted net debl (432.1) {448.1)
Reported net asset value (oifributable to owners of the parent company| 23c 14516 1.275.)
EPRA net asset value 23 15573 1.394.4
o]
Basic {Net debi/Reported net asset value) 3% 3s5% %
Adpusted gearing [Adjusted net debi/EPRA net assel value) 8% 32% g
Gearing (EPRA net debt/EPRA net asset value| 2.3a 0% 52% g
Loan to volue (EPRA net debt/Total property portfofiol 2.3a 34% 35% >
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Secfion 4: Funding continved

4.5 Anoncial fisk factors

The Group's activities expase it 10 a variety of inancial risks: market risks — primarity interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's freasury policy focuses on the unprediciabiity of inancial markets and seeks fo minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial perfarmance. Deatails on credil sk con be tound in note 5.3.

a) interes robe sk
Interest rate risk & the risk that the Group & impacted by significant changes in interest rates. Borowings ssued alt or swapped
to floating rates expose the Group to interest rate risk. The Group's palicy is separated info two main areas:

[} Development and refinancing
The Group had no speciic development borrowings as at 31 December 2014 {2015: £ni).

The Group's principal expasire 1o interest rate flucluations during development rekates ta movements in longer term interast ratas
which affect the amount of debt the property ncome i copable of servicing at compiletion. Significant adverse movernents
undermine the Group's abiity fo release equity from its developments.

The Group wil continue to review the level of its hedging in the light of the cument low interest rate environment, The Group's poficy
alows this exposure 1o be managed through the usa of forward starting swaps.

) Medium and iong-term finance

The Group hoids s mediurm and long-ferm bank finance under both floaling and fixed rate amangements. The maiority of this loating
debt is hedged through the use of interest rate swap agreements, although not al these atangements qualify for hedge accounting
under IAS 39. During 2014, the Group's policy guideine has been to hedge 75% ond 95% of the Group's exposure for terms of
approximatety 2-10 years.

At 31 December 2014, after taking account of interest rate swaps, 100% (2015: 87%) of the Group's medium and long-term investrment }
borrowing was heid at fixed rates. Excluding the £52.9 mikon (2015: £1.7 milion) of swaps the fixed investment borowing is ot an

average rate of 4.6% [2015: 4.4%) for an average period of 5 years (2015: & years), including these swaps the average rate s 4.2%

(2015: 4.6%).

Tha Group holds inferes! rate swaps at 31 December 2014 aganst £92.9 million (2015: £1.7 million) of the Group's bomowings.
The maturity of these swaps and the apphcable interest rates are as folows:

ms 200 oy 5

Nominal Appic.able Norminal Appi: able '
amount hedged Induredt roles  arnount hecgexd nhenest akes
tm % 2m %
within one vear - - - -
Between one and two years - - - -
Between two and five yecrs ar.6 18 - -
More than five yeors 453 22 1.7 5.4

During the vear, if interest rates had increased/decreased by 1%, pre-tax profit for the year would have been £0.6 milion
(2015: £0.7 milkon] kewer/higher,

b) Liquiclly risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. For development activities. the
Group has a policy to inject substantially the full amount of equity required for each development before drawing debt agairst the
specific facility for the development. The funding requirements of each scheme are therefore subsfantially ‘ing-fenced’ and secured
at the outset of works,

The table below analyses the Graup's financiat kabiities and interest rate swaps into relevant maturity groupings based on the perod
remaining until the contraciual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tabie are the confractual undiscounted cash fiows
{including interest], so wil not always reconcile with the arnaunts dsciosed on the balonce sheet.
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Section 4: Funding continued
4.5 Financial risk factors continued
) Ucuadity risk continuec
2014
Telal conbactual Lass than Batwaen Between Over
cash fows 1yeaw 1and 2 yeans 2 and 5 yeors 5 yaars
£m tm £m tm £m
Bank and other loans* 490.2 19.7 40.9 1728 2548
Caonvertible bonds 238 22 1.6 - -
Trade and other payables 1287 123.7 - - -
8]
Interas! rate swops - effective 15.7 0.8 27 a2 4.0 '§
Interest rate swaps - ineffective - - - - - g
7234 1464 1352 181.0 240.8 ,‘8"
<
2015 3
S
Tetal cenfractual Less than Between Between Cver 3
coeh fiows 1 pacy 1 and 2 yeas 2ana Syeas 5 years
£m Em £m £m £m
Bank and other loans* 509.3 503 i9.6 171.5 2679
Convertinke bonds 6.1 22 2.2 e1.7 -
Trade and other payabiles 115.5 1155 - - -
interest rate swaps - effective .1 a3 06 48 34

Interest rate swaps - ineffective = - - - —
730.0 14683 n4 268.0 M3

* The cantractual undiscounted cashiiows iInchude £108 Bm (2015 £114 3m} in relaton to the Compary.

During 201 3 the Group sued £89.9m of convertible bonds. The bonds have a maturity date of 10 Octaber 2018, Under the terms

of the Convertible Bond, earty conversion of the debt into equity can be tiggered if the share price fracies over 1.3 times the
conversion price for a period of fime. As at 31 December 2016 this threshold has nol been riggered, This threshokd was iggered os at
31 December 2015; the bondholders had the right to exercise until 31 March 2016; no bondhoiders exercised during this period. The
bondholders may exercise the Conversion Right in certain circumstances discussed abave but this is contingent on a number of
factors and therefore the bonds ore shawn 1o maturity in the above disclosure.

¢) Covenart complionce

Many of the Group's funding facilities cary covenants. The Group monitors its covenant position and the headroom availoble on
an ongoing bass. At 31 December 2014, the Group was in full compiiance with all of its bomowing covenants. The Group i able fo
use avajable cash o reduce debt fo increase headroom on ils loon to volue (LTV) covenants. The covenant hecdroom position
s outined below and assumes that the Group is abke to use a mixture of availoble cash and add addifioncl property o banks'

security pools.
31 December 2015 31 Decermber 2015 g
Weighbed Weighled Weighied Wesghied @
covenant aciual covenani actuat =
Loan fo vaive 74% 5% 74% 29%* g
interast cover 1.5 404 1.47 4,47 _é.
Minimurn net worth - - £250m £1.374 9

* Cakcuiated on the bass that availkabie cash s used fo reduce debt and avollable property con be used as additional security.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secftion 4; Funding confinved

4.4 Operaling leases
a) Payable

Accouniing policies

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income staterment on a straight- line bask over the term of the lease.
Lease incentives recaived are racognised in the ncome statement as an integra! part of the total lease expense. Where the property
. inferest under an operating lease is classified as an investment property. the property interest is accounted for as if it were o finance

| lease and the far value model is used for the asset recognised.

The Group has a number of sale and leaseback properties which are accounted for as operating leases.

The total futre minimum lease rentals payable under non-cancellabie operating leases fall due for repayment as follows:

206 015

tm £m

Less than one year 138 14.7
Between one ond five yeors 54.2 572
More than five yeors 171.0 154.5
Tolal 241.0 224.4

These leases primarly relate fo properties which the group has sold and leased back and on which rental income s ecmed. The leases
are generally for periods between 13 and 18 years and subject to annual RPHbased rent review. The total operating lease expenditure
incurred during the year was £15.3 million {2015: £15.4 million).

b) Receivable
The Group accounts for its tenancy contracts offered to commercial and individua! tenants as operating leases. The future minimum
lease payments receivable under non-canceliable operaling leases are os follows:

216 215

tm £m

Less than one year 771 BS.4
Between one and five years 140.4 1243
More than five years 267.2 26.7
Tolal 484.7 2344

4.7 Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of sharehclders’ equity and adjusted net debt. ncluding cash held on deposit. The Group”s
equily & anolysed info jis various components in the Stotement of Changes in Eguity. The components and cakeulation of adjusted net
debt s set out in note 4.4. Capitol is managed so as ta confinue as a going concern and to promote the long-term success of the
business and to maintain sustainable retums for shareholkders and joint venture pariners.

The Group uses a nurmber of key medrics to manage its capital struchure:

adjusted net debt (4.4)

adjusted gearing {4.4)

LTV (2.3a)

weighted average cost of investment debt (4.5ai)

Vv VvVyy

In order to monage levels of adusted gearing over the medium term. the Group seeks to deliver NAY growth and to recycle capital
invested in lower peroming assets into new assets and property developments. £132.4 milion of property assets were sold in 2016 and
we plan to sel an averoge of £150 - £200 million of property each year. The Group targets a yield on cost of approximately 7%. The
Group does not commif to devetoping new sites until sufficient equity and funding to fulfil the full cost of the developrment is secure.

The Board monitors the ability of the Group to pay dividends cut of avaikable cash and diskibutable profits. The Operations Segment
generated cash of £61.3 millon (201 5: £40.8 miion] during the year, thereby covering the proposed dividend of £40.0 mikon, 1.5 fimes
{2015: £33.2 rnilion, 1.2 times).
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Section 4: Funding confinved
4.8 Equily

Accounting policles

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Extemnal costs drectly attributabie to the Bsue of new shares, other than on a business
combination, are shown as @ deduction, nel of tax, in equity rom the proceeds. Share issue costs incured directly in connection
with g business combination are deducted from the proceeds of the ssue.

The Company’s issued share capilal has increased during the yoar as follows:

O

2

214 ~ - os B

Orcinary Shaw QOrdénary Share: o

Cailed up, allofted and fully poid ordinary shares of £0.25p shares Prevrium scres  Pramam 3

aach No. of sharen [ #m  NO.of shares £m £m Q

At start of year 221,930,911 55.5 4933 201,541,803 30.4 3858 §

Share placing - - - 20137326 50 1073 <]

Share options exercised 114,905 - 0.3 251.782 0.1 0.2 2
At end of year 222,047,816 55.5 4938 221930911 55.5 4933

The holders of ordinary shares aore entitied to receive dividends as declkared from fime fo fime and are entified to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with regord to the Company's residual assets.

4.7 Dividends

Accounting policles
Dividends are recognised through equity on the eorlier of their approval by the Company's shareholders or their payment.

During the yedr, tha Company declared and paid an interim dividend of £13.2 milion — 6.0p per share {2015: £12.1 million - 5.50 per
share) and poid o £21.0 million fingl dividend — 9.5p per share relating 1o the year ended 31 December 2015 {(2014: £19.8 milion - 9.0p
per share).

After the year end. the Directors proposed a final dividend per share of 12.0p {2015 2.5p), bringing the total dividend per share for the
yeor fo 18.0p (2015; 15.0p). No provision has been made in relation to this dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Section 5: Working capital

This sechion focusas on how the Group generales iz opercling cash flows. Careful management of working copltal

o is viiol fo ensure that the Group can mest s rading and financing obligations within ks ordincay operaling cycle.
On the following pages you will find disciosures around the Group's cash posifion and how cash is generaled from
the Group's frading activitles, and disclosures areund trade recelivables and poyables.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalenis

Accounting poicles

Cash and cash equivalents comgprise cash balances and cal deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readiy converiible 1o known amoynts of cash and which ore subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bonk overcrafts
that are repayabie on demand and form an integral port of the Group's cash manogement are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the punpose of the statemeant of cash flows.

The Group's cash position at 31 December 2016 was £42.7 redlion [2015: £27.0 milion)].
At 31 December 2014 the Company had an overdraft of £0.1 million {2015: overdraft £1.4 milion).

The Group's cash bolances include £13.4 milion {2015: £8.5 milfion) whose use at the balance sheel date & resincted by funding
agreements to pay operating costs and loan inferest rekating to specific properties.

The Group generates cash from its operating activities as folows:

Gloup COmpany
w1 2015 20% s
Note: £€m £m £m £m
Profit/{iass) for the year 226.4 355.7 2138 289.9
Adjustments for,
Depreciation and amorfsation 33 44 26 - -
Far value of share based payments 4.1 12 29 - -
Dividends received - - {132.3) {55.7}
Change in value of nvestiment property 31 (77.2} {164.8) - -
Chaonge in value of investments 35 - - (77.1) [236.3)
Net finance costs 43 nas 230 {0.3) [0.3)
{Profit] /loss on disposal of investment property (0.4} 0.6 - -
Snare of pint venture profit 3.4b (94.8) 1181.8] - -
Trading with joint venture odjustment 75 15.5 - -
Tax charge/ [credif] 2.5a {25.0) 327 - i -
Cash flows from operaling aclivilies before
changas in working captial 639 86.4 (29) 2.4)
{increase)/decreqgse in trade and other receivabies (20.4) {39.6) - -
Decrease/{increase) in compleled property and property
under development - 70.1 - -
Decrease/(increqse} in inventories 0.7 0.3 - -
Increase/(decrease] in rade and other paycbles 281 3.4 } 0.3 0.2
Cash flows from cperating aclivities n.3 120.8 (2.6) (22)

£25.6 million of the brought forward trade ard other receivables was settied in units in the USAF rather than cash.

Cash Aows consist of the following segmentat cash inflows/{outflows): Cperations £61.3 milion {2015: £40.8 million], property

[£4.0 million} (2015; (£48.3 milion)) and unallocated (£39.6 milion) [2015: £6.9 milion). The unallocoted amount includes Group
dividends (£34.2 milion) (201 5: {£31.9 miion)}, tax payabie of (£2.2 milion) (2015: (£0.3 milion)), investment in joint ventures [£nd)
[2015: (£52.4 milion) ). contrbbutions to UNITE Foundation (£1.0 million) {2015: (£1.0 milion)} and amounts received from shares ssued
£0.3 mifion {2015: £112.6 milion).
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Section 5: Working capital continued
5.2 Trade and other receivables
Accounling policies
Trade receivabiles are inifially recognised at the amount invoiced to the customer (foir value) and subsequentty at the amounts
considered recoverable ([amortised cost). Estimatas are used in determining the level of receivables that will not, in the opinion of
the Boord), be collected. These estimates inchude such factors os histonical expenience ond indusiry specific foctors. A provision for
impaiment of rade receivables is established when there is sufficient evidence that the Group will not be able to coflect al amounts
due. The carying value of trade receivabiles i considered o approximate far value.
g
Trade and other receivables con be anolysed as folows, all irade ond other receivables are curent. 'g
Group Companty T
s 15 2004 D15 8
tm £m 2m £m &
Trode receivables 17.8 23 - - 3
3
Amounts due from group undertakings - - £B6.4 6393 o
Amaounts owed by joint ventures 343 417 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 84 7.1 - -
USAF pedormance fee 3 25.6 - -
Qther receivables 7.3 6.3 - -
Trade and other recelvables 779 83.0 686.4 439.3

The USAF performance fee will be setled in units in USAF.

The Group offers tenancy confracts to commercial [Univessities and retail unit tenants) and individual fenants based on the acadernic
year, The Group monitors and manages the recoverability of its receivables based on the academic yeor to which the amounts
relate. Rental income is poyable immediately, therefore all receivables relating 10 fenants are past the payment due date.

2014
Ageing by academic year
Total 0117 2015716 e yoors
tm tm tm £m
Rental deblors
Commercial tenants {past due and impaired) 0.4 0.3 0.1 -
individual tenants (past due and impoired) 188 174 0.9 0.s
Provisions comied {1.4) {0.1) [0.8) {0.5)
Trade receivables 178 174 0.2 -
2015
AQERng Ty OCackme yoor o
Totel 158 01415 Prior years ¥
£m £m im &m 2
Rentot deblors e
Commercial tenants [past due and impaied) 08 06 o1 al g
Individual tenants {past due ond impaired] 34 [ 0.7 1.0 3
Provisions comied (2.1} {0.4) {0.6) {11 2
Troxle receivables 23 21 0.2 -

Amounts receivable from joint ventures are not past due or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

Secfion 5: Working capital confinued

§.2 Trade and other receivables continued
Movements in the Graup's provision for impaiment of rade receivables con be shown as folows:

2014 2035

tm £m

At January 21 1.7
Impairment charged io income staterment in yeor 0.7 0.4
Receivables written off during the year |utiisation of provision) (1.4) -
Al 37 Decembay 14 2.t

5.3 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if o custormer or counterporty o a inancial instrument fails o meet its contractuat
obkgations. It arses principally from the Group's cosh balkances. the Group's receivables from customers andt joint ventures and loans
rovided to the Groun's joint ventures.

At the yeor end, the Group's exposure to credit risk was as follows:

2005 15

Note £tm £m

Cash 5.1 42.7 270
Trade receivabies 52 17.8 23
Amounts due from joint ventures (exciuding keans that are capitat in nature) 5.2 36.3 41.7
9.8 7.0

a} Cash
The Group operates investment guidelines with respect 1o surplus cash. Counterparty fimits for cash deposits are kargely based upon
iong-term rafings published by credit rating agencies and credit default swap rotes.

b) Tiade receivables

ihe Group’s customets can be spiit info fwo groups - (i students (individuals] and (i} commercial organisations inciding Universities.
The Group's exposure to cradit risk is influenced by the characteristics of each customer. The Group holds fenant depasits of

£8.5 milfian {2015: £7.8 milion) as colateral against individual cusiomers. Based on the Graup's experience and historical low level
of bad detst the Gioup views these receivabiles as recoverable balances with a low risk of gefault.

) Joint veniures

Amounts receivable from joint ventures foll info two cotegories — working capital balances and investrnent koans, The Group has
strong working relafionships with its joint venture partners herefore view this as alow credit risk bolance.

5.4 Trade and ofher payables

Accounfing policies
Trade payables are nifially recognised at the volue of the invoice received hom a suppder (far value) and subsequently at amortised
cost. The cammying volye of rade payables is considered approximate to far value.

Trade and other poyabies due within one year can be analysed as follows:

Group Cormpany
24 015 015 X5
tm £m tm £m
Trade poyables 148 207 - -
Retentions on consiruction confracts tor properties L2.] 44 - -
Amounts due to groul undertakings - - 1.3 582
Other payables and Gocrued expenses 458 525 3.0 2.7
Defesedincome 583 37.7 - -
Tracde and other payobles 123.7 1155 4.3 60.9

Other payable ond accrued expenses include £8.5 milion (2015: £7 8 milion) in refation to custorner deposits. These will be retumed at
the end of the fenancy subject to the condition of the accommodation and poyment of any outstanding smaounts. Deferred income
redates to rentalincome that has been collected in advance of it being recognised as ravenue.
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Secfion 5: Working capital continved
5.5 Transactions with othes group compaonies

During the yeor, the Company entered into various interest free loans with its subsidianes. the aggregate of which are disclosed in
the cash flow statement, In addition, the Company was charged by Unite Integrated Solutions pic for corporate costs of £2.5 mikion

{2015: £2.3 milion).

As g resutt of these intercompany transactions, the following amounts were due (to)/from the Company’s subsidianes at the year end.

2015 W5

tm £m

Unite Holdings pic 0.7 103.7
LEC (Holdings) pic 8157 534.6
UNITE Jersey Issuer Lid - 1.0
Amounts due from Group underakings 686.4 639.3
Unilodge Holding Lid - 158.2)
Unilodge Hokdings {UK} Lid - -
UNITE Jersey Issuer Ltd 1.3) -
Amounts due to Group undertaldngs 1.3) (58.2)

The Company has had a number of transactions with its joint ventures, which are disclosed in note 3.4c.

The Company has guaranteed £121 milion of its subsidiory companies’ borowings (2015: £121 million). The guarantees have been
entered info in the normal coursa of business. A ligbilty woulkd onty arise in the event of the subsidiary faiing to fulfil its contractual

obligations. These guarantees are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

Section é: Key management and employee benefiis
‘ The Group's greciest rezowrce it its stall and it works hard to develop and relain s people. The remwneration policies
) o In ploce are almed to help recognise the conhibution that Unffe’s peopis moke fo the perdormance of fhe Group.

Over he next couple of pages, you wil find disclosures on wages and salaries ond shoare oplion schemes which aliow
1 employees of the Group to loke an equity interest In the Group.

6.1 Staff numbers and costs
The average numMber of persons employed by the Group (including Drectors) curing the year, analvsed by category, was as follows:

Numbes of employses

2014 D15
Managefial and administrative s 3%
Site operatives 881 758
1.204 1.088

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were os folows:
200 5
tm £m
Wages and sakries 380 37.5
Social security costs 34 35
USAF performance fee bonus - 22
Pension costs 12 1
Fair value of share based payments 1.2 29
4.0 472

The woges and sakaries costs include redundancy costs of £1.0 milkon [2015: £0.7 milion).

Full details of the USAF performance fees are set out in the Strategic Report on pages | o 49.

Accounting policles
The Group operaies o defined conhibution pension scheme, Obbgations for contibutions 1o defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

6.2 Key management personnel

The Boord considers that the key management persannel within the Group are those appointed o the Bocrd. As such, the
remuneration of key management personnel is contaned within the Remuneration Report on pages 84 o 95, which covers
the requrements of schedule 5 of the relevant legisiation.
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Seclion é: Key management and employee benefits confinued
6.3 Share based compensation

A transaction b classified gs a share bosed fransaction where the Group receives services from employees and pays for these
in shares or similar equity instruments. The Group operates a number of share based compensation schemes aliowing employees
to acquire shares in the Company.

a) Share schemes

The Group operates the following schemes:

Exercutive share option scheme — 'The Approved Scheme’ } Detalls can be found in the Directors’
Executive share option scheme — ‘The Unapproved Scherne’ Remuneration Report

Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Save As You Eam Scheme [SAYE] Open fo employees, vesting periods of three

to five yeaors, service condition

Empioyee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) Used to award port of Drectors’ and senior
manogers’ bonuses in shares, vest after three
years' continued service

b) Ovistanding share oplions
The tabie bekow summarises the movements in he number of share options outstanding for the Group and their average

exercise prce:

Numiber of Numnber of

Waeighled average opllont  waghted average options

ouarciss price o ) price itrousonas)

0% 014 D15 2015

Cutstanding ot 1 January £0.91 2,774 £0.57 3618
Forfeited during the year £0.80 (495) £1.13 {148)
Exercised during the yeor £0.40 (845) £0.35 {1.337)
Granted during the year £1.47 (Y44 £1.76 661
Outstanding at 31 December £1.%2 213 £0.91 2,774
Exercisable at 31 December £0.58 109

For thase options exercised in the yedar, the average share price during 2016 was £6.24 (2015: £5.93).

For those opfions sfil outsianding, the range of exercise prices at the year and was Op to 6420 (2015: Op to 584p) and the weighted
average remaining confractual kfe of these options was 1.6 years (2015; 0.4 years),

The Group funds the purchose of its own shares by the "Employes Share Ownership Trust’ 1o meet the obligations of the LTIP and
executive bonus scheme. The purchoses are shown as *‘Own shares acquired' in relgined eomings, As at 31 December 2014 the
number of shares held by the BSOT was 1,145,592 (2015: 1,589,285).

The accounting is in accordance with the relevant standards. Ne further information is given as the amounts for share basea
payments are immaoternaol.

Secfion 7: Events daffer the balance sheet date

In the nomal course of business subsequent to the year end the Group completed one acquisition tronsaction on 9 Febnary 2017
and one disposal fransactions on 17 Fabruary 2017 within Investrent Property and Investment Property hetd within its investment in
joint ventures.
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LSAV{Siapkedon) GP2 Lrmied {50.00%)

Unile Copiol Ches Lmated Portnershe [50 00%)

Unite Coprial Crties Two Limited Portnershyp {50 00%)
USAF Monagement N 15 Limited Parnership (23.20%)
USAF Management No. 14 Limited Partnershp 123.20%)
HSAF Monogement ho. 17 Limited Partnersiip (230K}
USAF No 15 Lrmked Portrersteo (23.20%)

Frbert Village Student Accommaodaton Linted
Pormershios (22.90%)

Forster Hol Umited Porirership (22.90%)

Shudient HOLNOMTNeas Limred (22.90%}

USAF Maonagement No 18 LP {22.90%,;

USAF GP Na 1 Lemtexd (14,40%)
USAF GF No 10 umited {14.40%)
USAF GP No 11 imvted [14.40%}
USAF GP Na 12 umited {14.40%)
USAF GP Na 14 nited (14 40%)
USAF GP No 4 Limrted (14.40%)
USAF GP No 1 5 mvted (14 408}
USAF GP No 18 Limifed (14.40%)
USAF GP No SLamited [14.40%)
USAF GP No GLimwted {14.40%)
USAF GP o 8 Limyted (14.40%)

Regisered office: 13 Caslle Sireet, 5t Heller. Jetsey, JE4 SUT

LDC (G Suffomk 51} Uit Trust

LDC (Morsheld) Und Trust

LDC {St Pancos Woy) Unet Trgst
LBC (Thurso Sheet) Unit Trust

LSAV [Jorsay Manager Lrmiedd
Unite ({Capitcl Cites) Jarsey Limited
UNITE Jorsery lssuar Lirrited®

USAF jarsey iInvestments mted
USAF Jarsay Manoger bmied

LD (Feery Lane 2) Ul Trust (SDO0%)
O Sratiore) U Trusl (SO00%)
LSAV [Holdngs) Limtedt (30.00%)
SAV (Trustee] Lmded (50.00%)
LSAV Undl Trust [SO0C%)

Regisiered office: Third Roor, Lo Plaiierie Chaombers, St Peter Pod. Guemsey,. GY1 IWG

USAF Feeder Guearmsey Lemited (45.22%)
USAF 15F Undt Tust {23.20%)

Regisiered office: Third Floor, Barclays House, Viciora Sireet, Douglas, Isle of Mon, IM1 2LE

Leadimil Rood Stuagent Accommoaafion Und Trst
Lennon Studics Student Accommodaon Ut Trust

USAF POHOEG 15 Lt Thst (23.20%)
USAF Porifolo 16 Lnit Trust [23.20%)

The Rallyard Student Accomenodafion Unit Trust

Regisieved office: Saltire Court, 20 Costie Terrace, Ecinburgh, EHT 2 EN

L3AV [GP] Urnec {50 00%)

* Held direchly by the Company.

LSAV [Property Hokchngs) LP {50.00%)

USAF Nomines No 184 Lrnied {14 40}
USAF Norminee No 1A Limised (14.40%)
USAF Morminee No 5 Lmited (14 20%)
USAF Nominee No 54 Limited (1 4.40%)
LUSAF Nomuries No 6 Lemeted [14,40%)
USAF NOmInee Na &A Lireted ({14.40%)
USAF Norminee No 8 Limded | 14.40%)]
USAF Normunee No 8A Umwed (14.40%)
USAF RCC Limnidedd {14 407}

UNITE Copitcal Cibies Urit Trust [S0.00%)
Studant Hols Long Lacse ' Un# Trust (22 0%
USAF Portfolo 18 Jret Trust (22.90%)

LDC {Noim Street} Und Trus! {22800

UNITE LK Student Accommaodaton Fund (1 4.40%)

USAF Portfolic 17 Und Trust {23 20%)

Fbert Sheat Sudent Accommodahon Unit Trust {(22.90%)

** The comparty is exemp! from the requirerments of the Cormpanies Act rélating to the oudit ofindividual accounts by vinue of s479A for the finonoal year

ended 31 December 2016,
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Secfion 8: Company subsidiaries and joint ventures contfinued

Registered office: The Core, 40 S Thomas Street, Bdstol, BS1 44X

LDC [Swarford) G2 Limited [S0.00%) USAF Na | Limited Partnershu (22.90%) USAF Hoidings B Lrted {14.40%)

LDC (Shatford) Lmded Partnersh (S0.00%) USAF Mo 10 bmited Partnersp [22.90%) USAF Holdings C Limited | 14.40%)

LSAV {Angel Lone} GPI Limited (S000%) USAF No | 1 Limited Parinersrap "22.50%) USAF Holdings F bmilect {14 40%)

LSAY JAngel Lane) GP2 Limited! (S0.00%) USAF Ne || Management Limited Partnership £22.90%] USAF Holdings G mited {1 4.40%

LSAV [Angel Lona) Limvied Parnarshp (S000%) USAF No |12 imited Partnershe 122 90%) USAF Holdings H Limited {1.4.407%;

LSAY tANGel Lona) Management Umied Parnensy USAF No |4 bmited Portietsrsg (22.90%) USAF HOIRNGS | Lrmvded {14 40%)

(S0.00%) USAF No |4 Monagement Limitec] Parranship (22 905 USAF Holdings J Limited |1 4.40%)

ISAY {Stopleton) Umited Portrerivp (50 00%) USAF No 18 Lrited Partnexsneg {22.90%) USAF Hosdings Limwled {14.40%,)

LSAY {Stapleton) Management Limled Partnersp USAF No & Limried Portnershe (72.90%) USAF Normnee No 1 Limeted {14.4(%)

(5000%) USAF No 8 Limied Partrersh (22.90%) USAF Normnee Mo 10 Lemitea (14 47%) o)

LSAY {Skatfoxd) Management Lrritec Partnenhip LDC (Norm $ireel) Limded Portnershe (72.80%; USAE Nominee No 104 Limted (14.40%; e

1SD00%) LOC {NOm Sirest] Management Levited Parmersrp USAF Nominee No 1) enited (14 40%) 3

LSAV (Wemoley) GP Lmited (S0.00%) {Z280%} USAF Nominee No 114 Limited {14 40%; =

LSAY (wombley) G2 Lmifed (S0.00%| Fibert Viiage GP rmied (14 40%) USAF Norinee No 12 amted (14 47K) o

LSAV {Wambley) irdad Partnertp (5000%) Forster Hol GF Limated (14 40%) USAF Nomines No 1 2A Limited {1 4.40%) g

LSAV (Wambley) Managemen! Lmited "atneshp LOC (N Street) GP | Limited [14.40%) USAF Nominee No 14 _rmided {1 4.40%) Q

(S000%} LDC o Street) GP 2 Lriten {1 4.40%) USAF Namines No 14A Lrritect {1 4.40%) 2

LiAv(Siapieion] GP| Limnited {50.00%) USAF Finance I Limiled (14.40%) USAF Norminee No 18 it (1.4 40%) §
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;

CONTINUED

Section 8: Company subsidiardes and joint ventures

In accordonce with Secion 407 of the Companies Act 2006, a full Ist of subsidicries and equity accounted invasirments os of
31 December 2016 is disclosed balow. Unless otherwise stated, the Group's ownership interest represents 100% of the ordinary shares,
units or parinership capital held indirectly by Unite Group ple. No subsidiary undertakings have been excluded fromn the consolidation,

Regisierad office: The Core, 40 5t Thomas Sireet, Bristol, BS1 6JX

Branchirn Umiteg

Rrzharainge Froparhes Limdec

Hirerncad Lirrfled (03128294

infoforth Umeed (04334260)™

LOC (A8 Warahause) Lmkos

LDXC {Alscol Road) umied

LDC [Brunel House) Livved (09740628~

LDXC {Comden Court Laasenokd) Lireded [5140620)°*
LD {Comden Cour} Lerbedt IDS0B2471 )

D (Capkal Ches Norunes no, 1} Limided

LDC (Captal Ches Namines o, 21 Lmided

DC (Captal Ches Nomnes no 3] Lmited

LDC {Capital Cries Nomnes no, 4) Lmied

LDC {Coprtal Cilies) Unnited

LDC (Cousewayend) Limded

LDC [Chariy Coud Lectsshold) Lmded (05140258)
LDC (Chaucer House) Limaed [098968020)=

LDC (Conshtuden Skoa?) Lmped 072109981

LDC {Consiuction Two] Lrnited (04847268)=

LDC (Curzon Shmat} Limwod 10462827 1)~

LDC {Euro Loan) Limied

LDC (For Goslans) umnited {09150149)™

LDC (Fery Lone 2) GP 3 Lmited

LDC (Femry Lane 2) GP 4 Lmiter

LD {Ferty Lane 2} Hoidngs Limited

L0OC {Anonce) umded

LDC [Frogmone Sweet) Lmied™ (03389 5851

LDC (Graenarm Skeet) Urited

LDC (G Suffok 51) et POrnerchip

LDC (Gt Sut'ok $i) manogement Lmiled Parthershin
LDC (Gt Suffok Sireet] GP Lmied

LD (Gt Suftok Sireet] GP2 Limhad

LOXC (G Suffolk Sreet] Holdwgs Lmited

LDC (Gt Sulfok Sreet) Management GP1 Lmited
LOXC (G Sulfolk Sireet) Monagement GP2 Limded
UDC {Homplon STeed) Limited 1044155981

LDC {Hihead) Lmited

U (Hok#ngs| PLC"

LOC {Holoway Rood 3) umited D6I3899)~

LDC (Irypend Wharf) Limhed (0454148781

LDC (intemational House} Limrec {£0131352)%

LDC (Jernes Watson Leasehakd) rmtad (03920024)
LOXC {Ketham Isioncd] Lmmed (.81 522291

LOC (Lacsahoid A} nded! {D4066933)"*

LDC fieasehokd B) Urnitect (057 78242)*

LDC [Loughbxerough) Lmitexd

LDC tvagret Court Leasehold) Limded (051 40255
LDC {moarsheid] GP1 Lmiled

(DX (Monsfieial GP2 umiled

DC {Marskel) GP3 brited (07434075

LD ivarsheld) G4 Lmited (074340 7)~

LDC (Marsfied] Lrvied

1DC Monsfield) Lervied Partnsrsh

LOC (Morshield) Managerment umitea Parnenstwn
INC (Margaret Rue Freanold) Lmeen [06641245)*
LDC (Margaret Rule Lecsehokd) Linvied (066412481 j=
LDC {Mlenmmam View] Umited (098590375]~

LDC {MITF Porfoho) Lmred

X

LDC (Nom Skeet) GP 3 mited
LDC tNom Sreet) GP 4 Lreded

LOC (N Sireet) Holdings Umited

LOC (Newgohe) imilked 08875849

LDC | New Wakefiex)] Lmited

LDC (Old Hospihe) umvted {09702143)™

LDXC (Oxdord R Boumnemout) Lintad (04407300
LDC [Prhwines) amited (05518624

LOC (Powifoso 100) Limded

LG (Pertiohe ) e

LD Podfollo Fre Morrenaa) Lrmrked

LDE {Poriono Fve) Lmied 106079531)

LDC [Perthold Fous) Lmed

LDC (Partfols One) Limited

LDC (Porttoso Ten) Linded {06B77517)

LDC (Porttolo) Lmvted

LD {Progec! 110] Lamited

LDC (Froect 1]} Lemited

LDC (Rodmarsh Rood) [ended

LDC {Skeiome| Limded [CR8P8132]"°

LDC (Smuthfield) Lrmiteal (GX373096]™

LDC (St .e0ndrs) Lirnited (QBB7SE30}*

LDC (5t Pancros way) GF ) Umided

LDC (5t Poncros Way) GP2 Limvtad

LDC (5t Pancres way) GP3Lmied

1 DC St Puncres way} GP4 iniled

LDC {51 Pancros way) Holkngs imited

LDXC {$t Poncrys Way] Lenited Partnership

LOC (5t Pancras way} managerient Lifed Parinersh
LBC (S vincenss) urnited (102183101

LD [Swincion NHS) irwbed

LDC (Tara House) Limited (092141777

LDC (Thurso Streal) GP1 e 1071990224~

LOC {Thurso Street) GP2 United {071 98779)™

LIC {Thurso Siraer GPA Limvded (074340011

LDC {Thurso Sirmet) GP4 Limsled (07434133

LDC (Thurso Sreet) Lmoed Partoersp

LOC (Thursa Steef| Manogemen! Umited Parnanshe
LDC iVenturo) umitect

LOC {Vamon Sauare) Limited [064441305° ‘
LDXC [wilkarmn Mo Il imited

LDC Captal Crves Two [GP} umited

Leadmil Ruod GP Lmdacd {0601 64291

Lennan SHuckos Student Accormmoadation bmited
Porinesshp

LSAV [Angel Lone] GP3 Lmited

(SAV [AnQS Lane| GP4 Lmited

SAV (Sraiforc) GP3 umited

L SAV [Stralforg) GP4 tmmied

LSAV (Wembiey} GPILimted

LSAV (WernbDigy) GP4 Limited

LSAY Rent Comecnon Umited

LSAV [Stopietont GP3 Limied

_SAV [Stapleton) GP4 Lmitad

Rty o GP L (0601 5486)™

Rolyard Sfucent Accormpmadation Lirnited Portnessnip
Srargesen Lmded

Tre UNITE Foungghon

Unvie Accommadanan Management 14 Lim ted

fCF081214)=

Unie Accommadatan Managarent | 7 Limited

(08163281~ I
Linite Accommodaion Monagemen! 18 Limitad '
08325484

Urss Accormrmodation Managemaent 19 imied

Undle Accommocianion Management 2 Limred

Unile Accommadkation Managerrent 20 Limvied

Unlte Accommodation Managerment 4 Leriled

(064862251

Unite Accommodiahon Management § Limited

Urde Acommodation Management 8 Umited

Urideg ACCOmmodahon Maragament amited
Unite Accornmodation Managemen! One
Hurdred pumited

UNIE Capital Cives Hoidings Limed

UNIE Consruchon jAngel Lone) Lmiled [0B792704)™
UNITE Consiruchion [Stapseion) Lrritad (09C23406)~
UNTE Congiruchon {Wermbley} unniled (050247 4)™ .
Unde Anance Lyyiled” 43I0

UNITE Fnance One (Accommaciction Senaces) Lamed
Urdle Ananca One {Holdngs} urrred (0431 8207~
UNITE finance One (Property| Umited (GAXI31)™
UNITE FM irsedd (068075621

UNITE For Success Lrmited

Unde Holdings Lic* (031 45448)

UMNITE Homes Limded (051 40262)™

Unda integrated Scutions plc

Urwte London urrifed

Unite MOOuar Soushons Limded

Unlier Rertt Collechon Limtad (0567351

UNITE Student Living Limiled

USAF GP Na 11 manageent umiled

USAF LP Lirnrdexs (0584087 4)™

USAF Monogerment GP MO 14 Linitad

USAF Manogement GP 0.1 5 Limited

USAF Manogement GP No. 1§ Limec

USAF Management GP Mo 17 umited

USAF Nomnee No- 7 Limited

USAF NowTiiens ki 74 firtutexd

Zerth [Two} Umited

LSAF Management 10 Umiec

L3AF Manogement |1 Lmited

USAF Manogement 12 Limiteg

USAF Management 14 Lrniled

USAF Managerment 18 brntled

USAF Maragemaen) & Lrvided

LSAF Manogement 8 Limrded

USAF MONagement Imiied

LDC (Ferry Lane 2) GF 1 Limitea [S0.00%)

LOC {Femy Larme 2) GP 2 Urmited (S0.00%)

LOC |Fary Lane 2 Limitea Parinership (50-00%)
LDC {Fary Lame 2) Managernant Limted 2artnersnip
{5000%)

LOXC jStatiord; GP1 rrded [SO.00%)
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FINANCIAL RECORD

2016 205 M4 2013 012
EPRA NAY per share (pence) (21} 579 434 382 350
IFRS NAV per share [pence) 453 574 414 370 321
EPRA net assets (£m) 1.557 1,394 881 682 567
IFRS net ossets (Em) 1.452 1,275 843 653 514
Managed portiolio value [Em) 4,327 3827 2,951 2.736 2.588
LTV adjusted see-through (%] L 35% 43% 49% 52%
EPRA eomings [Em) Al 50 33 23 14
Profit/{loss) before tax {Em) 201 .. 108 77 126
EPRA earnings per share [pence] 28 2 17 8 10
Adljusied EPRA earnings per share {pence) m 23 17 14 10

IFRS eamings per share |pence| 101 144 53 44 78
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is herepy given that the Annual General Meeting of The Unite Group pic {the Company] will be held at 3 Rivergate, Temple
Quay, Bristol BS1 4G0 at 10.00am on 11 May 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing Resolutions 1 1o 14 as
ardinary resolutions and Resolutions 15 1o 18 as special resolufions.

Ordinary Resolutions

Annual Report and Accounts

. Toreceve the audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 together with the Direclors'
Report, the Strategic Report ang the auditors’ report on thase annual accounts [the Annual Report and Accaunts).

Direciors’ Remuneration Report
2. Toopprove the Directors’ Remuneration Report contained within the Annual Report and Accounts.

Fino} dividend
3 Todeckore a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 12.0p per ordinary share payable on 19 May 2017
to shareholders on the register of members of the Company ot the close of businass on 21 April 2017,

Re-election of Directors
4.  Tore-elect Mr P M White as a Oirector of the Company.

5. Tore-elect Mr R § Smith as a Director of the Company.
6. Tore-elect Mr J JLister as a Director of the Company.
7. Tore-elect MrR C Simpson as a Director of the Company.
8. Tore-elect Mrs M Wolstenholme as a Director of the Company.
9. Tore-elect Sir Tim Wilson as a Director of the Company.
10. Tore-elect Mr A Jones as a Director of the Company.
il. Tore-elect Ms Elzabeth McMeikan as a Director of the Company.
Avuditors
12. To reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditors of the Company o hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which
accounts are kid before the Company.
13. To authorise the Directors to determine the remunenation of the auditors.
Authority 10 alict shares
14. Thot. in substitution for any equivalent authorities and powers granted to the Directors prior o the possing of this Resolution, the
Directors be and are generally and unconditionally cuthorised pursuant fo Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act):
{al To exercise all powers of the Company to aliot shares in the Company, and grant rights to subscribe for or o convert any
security into shares of the Company (such shares, and rights to subscribe fior or to convert any security into shares of the
Company being “relevant securifies"), up fo an aggregate nominal amount of £18,505,732 (reprasenting approximately one
third of the nominagt value at tha issued ordinary share capital of the Comparty as ot 22 Felruary 2017), such amount to be
reduced by the nominal amount of any alloiments or grants made under parograph {b) below in excess of £18,505,732:
(b} Toaliot equity securities [as defined in Section 5601) of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £37,011.464
{representing approximately two-thirds of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 February 2017} (such amount to be reduced by the nominal amount of any allotments or grants made under
panagraph (a) above) in connection with an offer tyy way of rights issue:
{ii  in favour of holdars of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company, where the equity securities respectivaly

attributable to the interasts of such holders are proportionate (as nearly as practicable} to the respective number
of ordinary shores in the capital of the Company held by them
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

i To holders of any other equity securities as required by the rights of those securities or as the Directors ofherwise
consider necassory

but subject to such exclusions or ather armangements as the Directors may deem necassary or expedient o deal with

in relation ta treasury shares. fractional entitlenents or legal, regulatory or practical problems arising under the laws or
requrements of any overseas teitory or by virtue of shares being represented by depaository receipis or the requirernents
of any redevant reguiartory body or stock exchange or any other matter whatsoever, provided tat this authority shall expire
{unless previously renewed, varied, extended or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the date falling 15 months
from the passing of this resoiution or, i eorlier, at ihe conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Compony to be
held following the passing of this resolution, save that the Company may at any time before such expiry make an offer or
enter into an agreement which woukt or might raquire relevant securities fo be allotted after such expiry and the Directors
may aliot relevant securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as it this authority had not expired.

Special Resolutions
Authority to disapply pre-emption rights

15,

Thot if Resolution 14 [Autharity to allot shares) is possed. the Board be autharised to aliot equity securities jas defined in the
Companies Act 2008] for cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held by the Cormpany
as iraasury shares for cash as if Sectian 561 of the Compariies Act 20046 did not apply to ony such allotment or sale. such
authority 1o be limited:

{al To allotments for rights issues and other pre-emptive issues: and

{b) To the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares {otherwise than under paragraph (gl above) vp to a nominat
amount of £2,775,859 (this amount representing not more than 5% of the ssued ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 22 Fabruary 2017},

such outhority to expire at the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company [or, if earlier, at the Close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the dote which i fifteen months after the date of this meeting] but, in each case. prior o its expiry
the Company may make offers. and enter info agreements, which waould, or might, requine equity securities to be alictted [ond
treasury shares Yo be sold) after the aulhority expires and the Board may allot equity sacurities (and seb reasury shares) under
any such offer or agreement as ¥ the authority had not expired.

That if Resoution 14 [Authority fo allot shores) is passed, the 8oard be authorised in addition 1o any authority gronted under
Resolution 15 10 gikot equity securities (as defined in the Companies Act 2004) for cash under the authority given by that
resolution and/or o sell ordinary shares held by the Company Os freasury shares for cash as if Section 56! of the Compaonies
Act 2006 did not apply to any such allotment or sole, such authority Yo be:

[o) Limited 1o the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury shares up to a nominal amount of £2.775,859 {this amaount
representing not more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 22 February 2017); and

b} Used only for the purposes of tinancing (or refinancing. if the authorily is 1o be used within six months after the original
tnansaction} a frensacton which the Boand of the Comparny datermines fo be an acquisition or other capitai investment
of a kind contempioted by the Statement of Principies on Risopplying Pre-Emption Rights mast recently published by the
Pre-Emption Group prior fo the date of this notice,

such authority to expire af the and of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company {or. if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 August 2018, this being the date which is fileen months after the date of this meeting) but. in each case, prior ta its expiry
the Company may moke offers, and enter into agreements, which would, or might, reguire equity securities 1o be oliotted {and
treasury shares 1o be sokd) after the authority expires and the Board may allot equity securities {ond sell freasury shares) under
any such offer or agreement gs if the authority had not expived,
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To amend Aricle %4 (Directors’ fees) of the Arlicles of Associotion
7. That, Article 94 [Directors' fees) of the Articles of Associotion be amended by delefing the existing Article 94 and replacing it
with the following:

“The Directors (other than allernate Cirectors) shall be entitied to receive by way of fees for their services as Directors such sum
as the Board may from fime to fime determine {not exceeding £750,000 per annum in aggregate or such other sym as the
Company in general meeting shall from time to Hime determine). Such sum [unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the
Company by which it is voted) shall be divided among the Directors in such proportions and in such manner as the Board may
delermine or in default of such determination, equally ([except that in such event any Director hoiding office for lass thon the
whole of the relevant period in respect of which the fees are paid shall only mnk in such division in proportion to the time during
such period for which he holds office}. Any lees payabie pursuant to this Article shall be distinct from any saiory, remuneration
or other amounts payable to a Director pursuant to gy other provisions of these Articles and shall cecrue from day 1o day.

Notica of general meetings
18. THAT. a general meeting other than an Annuat General Meeting. may be calied on not less than 14 clear days’ notice.

By order of the Board

Christopher Szpojnarowlicz
Compaoany Secrefary
22 February 2017

Registered office;

The Core

43 51 Thomas Siveet Brstol
BSY 4JX

Registered in England and Wales with registered nurmber 03199160
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

CONTINUED

Notes

I. A member of the Company who wishes to attend the meeting in person shouid arrive at 3 Rivergate, Tempie Quay, Bristo! BSI
&G0 in good lime before the meeting, which will commence at 10.000m In order to gain admittance to the meeling, members
may be required o oroduce their attendance card, which is attached to the forrm of proxy enclosed with this document, or
otherwise prove their ideniity.

2. A member of the Company wheo is entified to atlend, speck and vole al the meeting and whe is unabile or does not wish to
attend the meeting is entitled lo appoint @ proxy to exercise oll or any of kis/her rights 1o gttend and o speak and vole on his/
her behalf ot the meeting. A member may appeint mare than one proxy provided each proxy 1§ oppointed o exercise rights
attached to different shares [so o member must have rore than ona share fo be able lo appoint more thon one proxy). A
proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting ta represent his/her appointing member. Appointing
a proxy will not preven’t a mermber from atlending in person ond vofing at the meeting although voling in person at the meeting
will lerminate a member's proxy appointment. A proxy must vote in accordance with any instructions given by the member
by whom the praxy is appointed. A form of proxy which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions
accompanies this notice. You can only oppoint a proxy using the procadures set out in these notes and the notes 1o the
proxy form,

3. Tobe valid, any form of proxy. and the original of duly certified copy of the power of attorney or other authority {if any) under
which 1t is signed or authenticated, must be received by hand or by post at Computershare investor Services pic, The Pavilions,
Brdgwater Road, Bristol, 8599 4IY. no ialer than 10.00am on 9 May 2017,

4. CREST members who with 1o oppoint a proxy or proxies through te CREST electronic proxy appointrment service may do so
for the meeting and any adjournment(s) therecf by following the procedures described in the CREST manual. CREST personal
rmemioers or olher CREST sponsored mambers, and those CREST members who have appaointed a voling service provider,
shoukd refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s). who will be able 1o take Ihe appropriate action on ther behalf,

5. In order for G proxy appeintment or instruction made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message {a CREST
Praxy Instruction] must be property authenlicated in accordance with Eurociear UK & Ireland Limited's (Eurociecr) specifications,
ond must confain the information required for such instruction, as described in the CREST Manuat. The message. regardiess of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy, the revocation of o proxy or is an omendrment to the instruction given o a
praviously appaintad proxy must, in order 1o be q valid. be transmitted so as to be received by the Company's agent {CREST ID
3RAS0] by tha iatest time for receipt of proxy appointments specified in note 3 above. For this purpose, the time of receipt will
be token to pe the time (os defermined by the tmestamp applied to the message by the CREST A ppiication Host] from which
the Company’s agent is abie to ratrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescriped by CREST. After ihis time
any change of instructions 1o proxies appoeinted through CREST shouid be cormmunicated o the appointee through olher means.

4. CRESTmembers and, whare applicable, their CREST sponsors or voling service praviders, should note that Euroclear does nat
make availckle special procedures in CREST for any padicular message. Normal systern timings and limilations will, therefore,
apply in reiation to the input of CREST proxy instructions, it is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take o, if the
CREST rmember is o CREST persanal mernber, or sponsored member, or has appointed o voting setvice provider, fo procure
that his/har CREST sponsar or voling service provider(s} lakeis)) such oction as shall be necessary 1o ensure that o massage is
transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicabie.
their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are refevred, in particulor, 1o those sechions of the CREST manua)l concerning
practical limitations of the CREST systern and timings.

7. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST proxy nstruction in the circumstances set outin Reguiation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertficated
Sacurities Regulotions 2001 {os eamended).

8. If you would like to submit your proxy vote via tha internet. you can do so by accessing our registrar's website
www.eproxyappointment.com). You will require the control number, your unique PIN fwhich will expire at the end of the voting
period) and your Sharehoider Reference Number {$RN}), printed on the proxy card, in order 1o log in and submil your proxy vote
electronically. You can acoess this site from any internet enabled PC. If you submit your proxy via the intermet it should reach the
registrar by 10.00am on ¢ May 2017, Should you compiete your proxy form electronicoily and then post a hard copy, the form
that armivess kast will be counted to the exclusion of instructions received earlier, whether electronic or posted, Please refer to the
tarms and conditions of the service on the website.

9. Inthe case of joint halders of shares, where morne than one of the jeint holders purports to appaint a proxy, on'y the appointmeant
submitted by the most senior hokier will be acceptad, Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint
holders appear in tha Company’s register of members in respeci of the joint holding {the first-named being the most senior).

10. if you suomit more than one valid proxy appaintment in respect of the same shares, the appointrment received last before the
latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.
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19.

Any person to whom this notice has been sen who is a person nominated under Seclion 144 of the Act to enjoy information
rights (o Nominated Person) may. under an agreement between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she was nominated,
have aright o be appointed {or to have someone ese appointed} as a proxy for the meeting. If a Nominated Person has no
such proxy appointment right or does not wish to exercise it, ha/she may. under any such agreement, have a right fo give
instructions to the shareholder as fo the exercise of voting rights.

The stafement of the rights of sharehokders in reiation to the appoinfment of proxies above does not apply to Nominated
Persons. These rights can only be exercised by sharehelders of the Company.

Pursuant to Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006 and Regulation 41 of the Uncerfificated Securities Regulotions 200% [as amended],
the Compxany specifies that anly those sharehoiders registered in the register of members of the Company at 5.00pm an § May
2017 [or, if the mereting is adjoumed, 48 hours belore the timed fixed for the adjourmed mesting) shall be entitied to attend or
vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. In each case, changes to the
register of members of the Company after such fime shall be disregarded in determining the rights of ony person to attenc

or vota at the meeting.

As at 22 February 2017 (being the last practicoble business day prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company’s issued
share capital comprised 222.048.787 ordinary shares carrying one vote each at o genserat meeting of the Company. No
ocdinary shares were held in treasury and therefone the total voting rights in the Company os ot 22 February 2017 are 222,068,787,

. You may not use any electranic address provided either in this notice of meeting or any rekated documents (inckuding the proxy

form) to communicate with the Company for ony purposes other thon those expressty stated.

Membars attending the meeting hava the right to ask and, subjact to the provisions of the Act, the Company must cause to be
answered, any questions relating to the business being deatt with at the meeting.

The following information is avallable ot www.unite-group.co.uk (1] the matters set out in this notice of Annual Genenal Meeting:
[2) the fotal numibers of shaves in the Company in respect of which members ore enfitled 1o exercise voting righ's of the meeting:
(3} the totals of the voting rights that members are entifled o exercise at the meeting: ond (4} members’ statements, members'
resclutions ond members' matters of business received by the Company after the date on which natice of the meeting

was given,

it is possible thatl, pursuant to requests made by members of the Company under Section 527 of the Act, the Company may
be required to publish on g wetssite a stalement setting out any matter relating to: (o) the audtt of the Company’s accounts
{including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the meeting: or (b} any circumstance
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and
reports were kaid in accordanca with Secfion 437 of the Act. The Company may nof raquire the members requesting any such
websile publication 1o pay its expenses in complying with Sections 527 or 528 of the Act, Where the Company is required to
place a statement on o website under Section 527 of the Act. it must forward the statement to the Company's auditor not later
than the time when it makes the staterment available on the website. The business which may be deolt with of the meeting
includes any staterment that the Company has been required vnder Section 527 of the Act 1o publish on a websita.

In accordance with Section 338 of the Act, a mermber or mermbers of the Cormpony may (provided that the criteria set out

in Section 338(3) of the Act are met) reguire the Company o give to members notice of a resclution which may property

be maved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, provided that: {a) the resolution must not be, if passed, ineffective
{whether tyy reason of inconsistency with aony enactment or the Campany's constitution or otherwise|; and (b} the resolution
must not be defamatory of any person, frivolous or vexatious. Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form,
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it, must identify the resolution of which notice is o be given and must
be received by the Company not later than six weeks before the meeting, or, If later, the time at which notice 1s given of the
meeting. (In the foregoing sentence, the ferms 'hard copy form’, ‘elecironic form’ and ‘authenticated’ bear their respective
meaanings set out in the Act in relation to o communication. or o documaent or information sent or suppiied, to o company.)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CONTINUED

20. In accordance with Section 338A of the Act, a member or members of the Company may [provided that the criteria set out
in Section 3384 (3] of the Act are met) requine the Company fo include in the business fo e deatt with at the meeting a matter
lother than o proposed resolution} which may properly be included in the business of the meefing, provided that the matteris
nol delomatory of any person, frivolous or vexotious, A request may be in hard copy form or electronic form, must identify the
matter to be mcluded in the businets, must be accompaniad by a statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it and must be received by the Company not ialer than six weeks befora the
rneating, o, if later, the fime at which notice is given of the Annual General Meeting. [In the foregoing sentence, the terms 'hard
copy form’, "electronic form’ and ‘authenticated’ bear the respective maanings set aut in the Act in elation to a communication,
or o document or information sent or supplied, 1o o0 company.)

21. A member that is a company or other organisation rot having a physical presence cannot attend in person but can appoint
someone 1o represent it. This can be done in ane of two ways: either by the appointment of a proxy {os described in the notes
above|] or of a corporate repraseniative, Members consigering the appointment of a corporate reprasentative should check
their own legal position, the Company’s orticlas of associotion and the relevant provisions of the Act,

22. The foliowing documents are availabla for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the usual business hours
on any weekday (Saturday. Sunday or public holidays exciuded) from the date of this nofice until the conclusion of the meeting
and will oo be availobile for inspection at the place of the meeting from 9150m on the day of the meeting untilils conclusion:
o] copies of the Executive Drectors' service controcts with the Company and any of its subsidiary underickings: ond

{b} letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors.
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted EPRA earnings

Adjusted EPRA earnings are prepared
on the basis of EPRA earnings excluding
the yield related etement of the USAF
performance fee.

Adjusted EPRA eamings per share
The eamings per share based on adjusted
EPRA eqrmings.

Adjusted net debt

The Group's debt, net of cash and
unamortised debt raising costs, exciuding
the mark 1o market of interest rates swaps.

Adjusted net debt

to property assels

The adjusted net debt os g percentage
of the value of Unite properties.

Basis points (BPS)

A basis point is o term used o descrine o
small perceniage. usually in the context
of change. and equates to 0.01%.

Direct let

Propertias where short-hold tencncy
agreements are made drectly between
Unite and the student.

EBITDA

The Group's EPRA earnings before
charging interaest. tax, depreciation and
amortisation. The profit number is used to
calcuiote the rotio to net debl.

EPRA eamnings

EPRA eamings are preparad on the basis
recorrmended for real estate companies
by EPRA, the Euwropean Public Real Estate
Association. This excludes movermnents
relating fo changes in values of
investment properties and interest rate
swaps and the related tax effects.

EPRA earnings per share
The eamings per share based on
EPRA eomings.

EPRA NAY

EPRA NAY is prepared on the basis
recommended for real estate companies
by EPRA, the European Public Real Estate
Association. This includes all property

at market volua but excludes the mark

to market of interest rate swaps. This Is
recommended by EPRA as a measure

of net assets.

EPRA net asset value per share
The diluted NAV per share figure based
on EPRA NAV.

EPRA NNNAV

As EPRA NAV but includes both debt

and interest rate swaps carried at market
value, This is mcammended by EPRA

as a ‘spot’ fair volue net asset measure,

Financing cosis

Gross financing costs nat of interest
capitalised info developments and
interest received on deposits.

Gross asset value

The Group's wholly owned property
portfolio fogether with the share of the
Joint Ventures property portiolic.

Gross financing costs

This includes afl interest paid by the
Group, including those capitalised
inte developments and operaling
lease rentals.

# includes all receipts and payments
under intenest rate swaps whether they
ore effective or ineffective under IFRS
as sconarnically they all hedge inferest
rate exposures.

interest cover ratio (ICR)

The interest cover ratio is the income
genemited by a property as a multiple of
the interest charge on the debit secured
on the property.

141

Lease

Properties which are leased to Universities
for a number of years and have no Unite
management presence.

LSAV

The London $tudent Accommaodation
Joint Venture [LSAY) is ajoint venture
between Unite and GIC, olongside UCC.
Both Unite and GIC have a 50% stake
and LSAV has the same maturity date as
UCC (September 2022). 1t is the primary
vehicle through which Unite underiakes
developrrent activity in London ond it
has right of first refusal over Unite's London
developrnent pipeline projects unti such
time as its capital investment targets are
mel. LSAY ana UCC were merged during
2012 and the new combined entity is
referred 0 a5 LSAV.

Net debt: EBITDA

The Group see-through debt, net of cash
and unamortised debt raising costs and
excluding mark to market of interest rate
SwWaps as O proportion of EBITDA.

Net inltial yield (NIY or yield)

The net opearating income generated by
0 property expressed as a percentage
of its value, faking into account notional
acquisition costs.

Net operating income (NOI)

The rental income from rental properties
less those operating costs directly related
to the property, therefore excluding
central overhead.

Net rental growth

The onnual growth in net operating
income (rmeasured on & like-for-like
basis, ie excluding impact of completion
and disposals).
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GLOSSARY
CONTINUED

Nominatlons Total income from

Properties where Universities have managed portfolio

entered into a confract fo guaranfee This measure indicates the overofl scale
occupancy. The Universities nominate of the property portfolio that the Group
students fo live in the bullding and Unite | manages. It comprises rental and related
enters into thort-hokd tenancies with income, totalling £304.9 million from
the students, properties owned by Unite and its

co-invesiment vehicles.
Non-core assels
Properties that do not fit with the Group's | The Group's share of this gross income
long-term investrment sirategy because of | is shawn in note 2.2(a).

their locotion or thelr size.
USAF/THE FUND
Overheod efficiency The Unite UK Student Accommodation
The Group's avernead efficiency Fund [USAF is Europe’s largest fund that
measuras thows operating expenses, purety tocuses on completed income
net of management feas, as @ proportion | providing student accommaodation
of the: gross asset value., investment assets. The fund is an
open-ended infinite life vehicle which
Rental properties nas unique buying access 1o Unite's
nvestment and completed properties development pipeline. Unite acts as

whose construction has been completed | fund manoger for the fund, as well as
and are used by the Operafions segmant | Owning a significant mincrity stake.
o generate net portfolio contribution.

Sale and leaseback
Properfies that have been sold to

a third party investor then leased
back to the Compony. Unite is glso
responsible for the management of
these assets on behalf of the owner.

See-through

Sge-through refers to the Group's wholly
ownad assets or liabilities in addition

to the share of the joint ventures (USAF
and LSAV) assels or liabilities,
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COMPANY INFORMATION
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OTHER INFORMATION

THIS REPORT [S COMPLEMENTED

BY A RANGE OF ONLINE INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR BUSINESS INCLUDING OUR
OPERATIONS AND PROPERTY DIVISIONS,
OUR MARKETS, AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY.

WHERE TO
Fl N D M 0 RE WWULUNITE-GROUP.CO.UK



The Unkte Group pic

The Core

40 5t Thomas Streat
Bristol BS1 6JX

+44 (0) 117 302 7000
info@unite-students.com

www.unite-group.co.uk
www.unitestudents.com



